
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Tuesday, 13 July 2021.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Governance 
and Audit 
Committee 

 

     
 

 

Wednesday, 21 July 2021 at 1.00 pm 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Ian Stokes, Vice-Chairman of the Council (Chairman) 
Councillor Paul Wood (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor Gloria Johnson, Councillor Jacky Smith, 
Councillor Mark Whittington and Councillor Sue Woolley 
 

 

Agenda 
 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2021 
 

(Pages 3 - 12) 

4.   Updates from previous meeting 
 

(Page 13) 

5.   Planning Service Review - Progress Report 
This report outlines the progression made following an external review of 
the Planning Service commissioned by South Kesteven District Council. 
 

(Pages 15 - 49) 

6.   2020 - 2021 Draft Statement of Accounts 
This report provides the Governance and Audit Committee with the 
opportunity to review the draft version of the 2020 - 2021 Statement of 
Accounts. 
 

(Pages 51 - 185) 

7.   Internal Audit Follow Up Report 
This report provides an update on the implementation of Follow Up 1 and 
Follow Up 2 management actions that were reported as part of the 
Internal Audit Annual Report on 9 June 2021. 
 
 

(Pages 187 - 208) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

8.   Internal Audit - Progress Report 
This report provides an update on progress against that plan and 
summarises the results of work to date. 
 

(Pages 209 - 224) 

9.   2020 - 2021 Treasury Management Annual Report 
This report provides Governance and Audit Committee with the details of 
the Council’s treasury management activity for the financial year 2020 - 
2021. 
 

(Pages 225 - 234) 

10.   Outturn Position Report 2020 - 2021 
This report provides the Governance and Audit Committee with details of 
the Council’s outturn position for the financial year 2020 - 2021. 
 

(Pages 235 - 279) 

11.   Health and Safety Annual Report 2020 - 2021 
This report presents the Health and Safety Annual Report 2020 - 2021. 
 

(Pages 281 - 298) 

12.   Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special circumstances, 
decides is urgent. 
 

 



 

Minutes 
Governance and Audit Committee 
Wednesday, 9 June 2021 
 

Council Chamber - South 
Kesteven House, St. Peter's Hill, 
Grantham. NG31 6PZ 

 

 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 

Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council) 
Councillor Paul Wood (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Gloria Johnson 
Councillor Jacky Smith 
Councillor Mark Whittington 
Councillor Sue Woolley 
 
Cabinet Members 
 

Councillor Robert Reid (Cabinet Member for Housing and Property) 
Councillor Adam Stokes (Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources) 
 
Members in attendance 
 

Councillor Breda-Rae Griffin (Chairman of the Council) 
 
Officers in attendance 
 

 

Chief Executive (Karen Bradford)  
Deputy Chief Executive (Alan Robinson) 
Interim Director of Finance, Section 151 Officer (Richard Wyles)  
Strategic Director of Commercial and Operations (Gary Smith) 
Monitoring Officer (Shahin Ismail)  
Head of Finance (Alison Hall-Wright)  
Head of Democratic Services (Graham Watts)  
Acting Principal Democratic Officer (Shelley Thirkell)  
Democratic Officer (Anita Eckersley) 
 

Internal Audit 
 

Rob Burnett (RSM) 
 

1. Agenda 

The Chairman used his discretion to amend the order by which the Committee would 
consider the agenda. 

Agenda Item 6, Annual Report and Opinion would be considered prior to Agenda Item 
5, Progress report. 
 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

2. Apologies for absence 

No apologies for absence had been received.   
 
It was noted that all Members of the Committee were present. 
 

3. Disclosure of interests 

No interests were disclosed. 

 
4. Minutes of the meeting held on 18 March 2021 

In response to a member’s query regarding minute 45, and whether the “Fire Safety” 
element could include electrical, the Chief Executive confirmed that “electrics” was a 
separate element under Housing Compliance.  The Chief Executive assured members 
that the Fire Safety Management Plan covered all types of causes of fire. She also 
commented that the Fire Safety Management Plan, recently submitted to Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, would be considered by Cabinet on 15 June 2021.  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 18 March 2021 were proposed, seconded, and 
agreed as a correct record. 
 

5. Updates from previous meeting 

The Cabinet Member for Housing and Property referred to minute 45 on the Action 
Sheet and provided an update on the work undertaken so far.  He noted that: 

Electrical Contracts and Specifications: 
 

• Contract with Gas UK – The electrical arm undertaking the inspections. 

• Currently 700 inspections had been carried out. 

• The aim was to complete the inspections and works by March 2022. 

• One exception was Category 3 works which would take longer to complete. 

Gas: 
 

• Works had been completed apart from 49 residents who had refused to allow 
entry. 

•  Those residents would be receiving a letter from the magistrates enforcing entry. 

Legionella:  
 

• Compliant – All water inspections had been carried out. 
 

 Asbestos: 
 

• Issues at properties in Earlesfield. Consultation with the Housing Regulator was 
being undertaken. 

• Health and Safety Executive had also been contacted.  An update on Riverside 
would also be sought. 

Fire Safety: 
 

• The Fire Safety Management Plan would go before Cabinet on 15 June 2021.  

• The Fire Risk Assessments (FRAs) were being undertaken by Pennington Choices 
who were Fire Safety Consultants. 

4



 

• 74 risk assessments out of the 173 inspections had been completed, leaving 99 to 
be undertaken.  

• Aiming to complete the inspections by the end of June 2021. 

Performance Management Software (Propeller Software Package):  
 

• Now up and running since 25 May 2021. 

• Gas, Electric and Legionella uploaded onto the new system with other areas being 
added all the time. 

• Proposals for a “Rant and Rave” Customer service link to be added. 

• Monitoring was being undertaken monthly. 
 

Stock Condition: 
 

• Stock Condition Survey underway and should be completed by the end of October 
2021. 

• This would provide time to balance expenditure, housing stock, Capital, and the 
new build programme. 
 

Green Homes Grant: 
 

• Two-fold process – First stage – eligibility passed. 

• Second stage: completed and submitted – Aimed to be on site in July 2021. 

• Aim to use all the monies by December. 

• Solid Fuel Properties: Aiming to introduce air source heating. 
 

The Chief Executive reminded Members that the Council had self-referred to the Social 
Housing Regulator in September 2020. Monthly meetings had been taking place with 
the Regulator with the last meeting taking place on 28 May 2021.  Monthly reports were 
being sent to the Housing Regulator along with weekly reports regarding the Earlesfield 
Estate.  Positive feedback had been received from the Housing Regulator regarding the 
progression of the actions being undertaken by the Council to ensure compliance with 
Housing Regulations.    
 

Members queried the following: 

• Whether the proposed timing of October 2021 for the completion of the Stock 
Condition Survey allowed sufficient time to incorporate a programme of works into 
next year’s budget.   

Members were advised that timescales for the Survey allowed sufficient time for 
budgets to be considered, prior to budget setting for 2022/23.  

• Whether there was confidence that the green home measures would be delivered 
by December 2021; what the procurement process was, whether installers had 
been appointed and how bottle necks would be avoided. 

The Committee was informed that when the Council received notification that they 
would receive the green grant, the necessary preparation works had been undertaken. 
Members were also informed that assurance had been given that works would start by 
July 2020. 
 

DECISION: 

Members noted the Action Sheet and updates from the previous meeting.  

5



 

 

6. Internal Audit - Annual Report and Opinion 

The Interim Director of Finance reminded the Committee that their key action was to 
reflect on the Audit Report findings and focus on the implementation of the 
recommendations and follow up works undertaken by the Auditors.  Reassurance was 
given that the Council now had new improved software which would enable closer 
monitoring of the agreed actions and ensure significant improvements to the Control 
Framework.  

 

The Head of Internal Audit Services presented the Internal Audit – Annual Report and 
Opinion for 2020-21. The report provided an overview and gave an audit opinion on the 
individual audit assignments undertaken throughout the year. The areas covered had 
been Governance, Risk Management, and the Overall Control Framework in place. An 
overall amber/red opinion had been given.  This was due to weaknesses being 
identified in the control framework within the areas where audits had been undertaken.   
 

The Committee were informed that 3 of the 8 assurance opinions given were positive, 5 
were negative.  Although two follow up actions agreed by Management had been 
positive, it was noted that 30 actions had missed the implementation date.  Reference 
was made to the number of actions raised and agreed by Management, 40 high priority, 
69 medium, 21 low priority.  The 8 advisory actions were linked to the General Data 
Protection Regulations (GDPR) Review. Comment was made on the high number of 
actions, but it was recognised that focus had been in the right areas when the plan was 
developed and agreed with Management at the start of the year. 
 

The Chairman commented that although he was disappointed with the outcome, he 
understood the opinion.  He also commented that the Committee had been seeking 
more detail on the gas compliance for a considerable number of years.  The Chairman 
also noted that an audit of the two areas, Housing compliance and Repairs Stock 
Control, had been requested by the Council and that he was pleased that the Chief 
Executive had picked up these concerns and taken them forward. 
 

In response to Members concerns about the 30 outstanding actions that had not met 
the implementation date, the Chief Executive assured the Committee that a new plan 
was in place and all actions were being monitored regularly by the Corporate 
Management Team.  The Chairman also reminded the Committee that the report was 
outlining historic actions for 2020/21 following the audits in August and November.   
 

The recommendations of the report were proposed, seconded, and agreed: 

DECISION: 

To accept the Internal Audit Annual Report and Audit opinion for 2020/21. 
 

7. Internal Audit - Progress Report 

The Head of Internal Audit Services presented the final Internal Audit Progress Report 
for 2020/21.  The report on Remote Working and Operational Resilience had been 
undertaken by an IT Audit Specialist and had now been finalised.  This meant the work 
for 2020/21 had concluded. 
 

Members were informed that there was a partial assurance and that the Management 
Team had agreed actions and implementation dates. The negative opinion was based 
on the following 7 medium actions. 

6



 

 

1 No training programme on Cyber Security/Cyber Risk for staff and this not being 
included in the induction for new starters. 

2 No review of Firewall logs. 
3 No Firewall change/management policy (what had changed/when/by whom or 

appropriate authorisation). 
4 No incident management policy. 
5 No formalised backup procedures or policies. 
6 No periodic review of privileged access rights/super users. No overall Change 

Management Policy. 
7 Third Party Access. 

It was noted that these were key controls and had to be addressed to improve the 
resilience of the Council’s IT System’s security and infrastructure. 
 

The Interim Director of Finance commented that IT Services had undergone recent line 
management changes and now had a new Head of Service.  It was also noted that 6 of 
the 7 actions had been implemented and Action 5, Core IT Processes – back up 
procedures would be met by the agreed end of June implementation date. 
 

The Committee was informed that a discussion had taken place with the Auditors 
around the robustness of the actions, as the processes were in place and being 
undertaken as a matter of course by the Team.  The auditors had highlighted the 
requirement for them to be documented.    
 

In response to Members concerns regarding the actions, specifically the back-up of the 
IT system, the Committee were assured that all the issues highlighted within the actions 
were undertaken routinely and in accordance with the proper processes by the Team.  It 
was acknowledged that the lack of documentation was a weakness and was being 
resolved.  

DECISION: 

Members noted and accepted the contents of the report. 
 

8. Financial Management Code 

The Interim Director of Finance presented a report on the new Financial Management 
Code.  He explained that although Local Government Finance was governed by primary 
legislation and regulation, this had not been supported by a professional code.  CIPFA 
(The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) had drafted a Financial 
Management Code, which was not a legislative document, but was one the Auditors 
were keen the Council adopted. The Code had been due to be implemented in shadow 
form in 2020/21 and then implemented in 2021/22 but this had been delayed due to 
COVID.  The external Auditors would be referencing the Code from 2021/22 and 
expected the Council to adopt it. 
 

The focus of the Code was around value for money, governance and financial 
management styles, financial resilience, and financial sustainability.  It set out an 
overarching framework of assurance that would build on existing financial management 
good practice. The Code had been designed on a principles-based approach which 
would assist in determining whether the local authority was financially sustainable.    
 

The Code would be structured around 7 specific standard references:   

7



 

• The Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer and Leadership Team.   

• Governance and Financial Management Style.   

• Long to Medium Term Financial Management.  

• The Annual Budget.   

• Stakeholder Engagement and Business Plans.   

• Monitoring Financial Performance.   

• External Financial Reporting.    
Each of these areas would be supported by a set of guidance standards against 
which Councils would be assessed. CIPFA’s expectation was that authorities 
would comply with all the financial management standards to demonstrate 
compliance with the Financial Management Code and statutory responsibilities. 

 

The main aim of the Code was to ensure that Council’s undertook good practice and 
had an organisational wide responsibility for financial management, so it did not just sit 
within the finance team or with the Chief Finance Officer. 
 

The first step the Council would need to take would be to draft a self-assessment 
against the Code.  Reference was made to 1.16 of the report that set out some key 
proposed areas of focus.  The action plan had been created around these areas and 
was outlined at Appendix 1. The Self-Assessment would be regularly reviewed and 
refined and would be brought back to the Committee in six months-time. The Committee 
could also determine whether there were other areas they felt should be covered.  
Progress would be monitored through the Governance and Audit Committee and would 
also be included in the Annual Governance Statement. The Committee was being 
asked to approve the proposed action plan. 
 

In response to a member’s query about the process for Whistle-blowing the Committee 
was informed that there was a link on the website and there were several ways to 
submit an issue.  The Chief Executive, S151 Officer and Monitoring Officer considered 
all submissions and directed the appropriate action.  If contact details for the Whistle-
blower were available, they would be updated on any outcomes. 

 

A Member queried whether the standards of the Code would be met if the Committee 
accepted the Action Plan.  It was noted that the Code was voluntary and provided a 
framework for the Council to work towards.  The Council had discretion on how far it 
wanted to comply with the Code which set a very high baseline.  When determining how 
to meet each requirement, consideration would need to be given to the Council’s finite 
resources and capacity.  
 

The action plan had been drafted for consideration and was relatively subjective and it 
would be for the Council to determine which points, they felt should be addressed. 
 

Members felt the Code contained some good points but were mindful of the potentially 
prohibitive costs for some of the actions and whether these costs would outweigh the 
benefits.  
 

ACTION:  

That the Financial Management Code action plan update is brought back to the 
December 2021 meeting of the Committee. 
 

That the recommendations of the report, were proposed, seconded, and agreed: 

8



 

• That the Governance and Audit Committee noted the requirements of the 
Code. 

• Approved the implementation of the action plan as set out at Appendix 1 in 
so far as the actions fell within the Committee’s remit. 

 
9. Risk Management & Business Continuity Annual Report 2020 - 2021 

The Interim Director of Finance presented the Risk Management 2020-21 element of 
the report. He noted that during 2020-21 risk management activities had been 
undertaken in accordance with the Framework and that adaptations had been made in 
response to the ever-changing operating framework. The Risk Management Group had 
met to consider issues relating to risk management, internal audit, insurance, counter 
fraud governance, procurement, data protection business continuity and safeguarding. 
 

Due to the emerging impact of the pandemic, one of the earlier pieces of risk work 
undertaken in April 2020, was Heads of Service being asked to review their services’ 
risks, look at the potential impact of occurring risks, capture any additional controls that 
were required and categorise and assess their risk priority.  A snapshot of the profile of 
the risks identified was outlined at 2.5 of the report. One of the biggest areas of impact 
had been the business continuity arrangements and this was detailed at section 3 of the 
report. 
 

Reference was made to page 63 of the report which provided details of the work 
undertaken on the Annual Assurance Statement.  A questionnaire containing a series of 
statements around key governance areas including COVID-19 had been sent to 
Managers asking whether they agreed with the statement. Their responses then 
informed an action plan that would be monitored and managed by the Council’s 
Statutory Officer Group who would track the areas of concern.  Thematically, this 
provided an insight into where there were potential issues.   
 

Another significant piece of work had been the migration of the Corporate Risk Register 
to the Strategic Risk Register.  Three meetings had taken place during the year that 
oversaw the moving of prescribed risks to a thematic approach.  Details of this could be 
found at 2.11 of the report.  Cyber Security had also been added as a new risk. 
 

To bolster the Risk Management Framework, software for risk and action had been 
purchased and implemented across the organisation.  This software would be used to 
track the recommendations from Internal Audit, actions arising from the Annual 
Assurance Statement and the Strategic Risk Controls.  These platforms could be 
accessed by all Heads of Service and would provide better tracking and access to real-
time information. 
 

The Director of Commercial and Operations provided an update on the Business 
Continuity Plan.  He referred to the robust continuity arrangements that were in place 
and the substantial assurance given by Internal Audit in February 2021. Reference was 
made to the significant live testing resulting from the pandemic and how the Council had 
shown how it had been able to respond to the challenges it faced.  The Continuity Plan 
had been quickly adapted to maintain core statutory services to keep residents and staff 
safe.  This had involved a range of things such as significant redeployment of staff to 
bolster key services and support work by the Council’s IT Team that had enabled 
significant numbers of staff to work from home as well as facilitating virtual meetings.  
The Council had also been an active member of the Lincolnshire Resilience Forum.  In 

9



 

addition, a significant amount of work had been undertaken to enable the elections to 
take place smoothly and safely. 

 
In response to a member’s query about the number of managers who had responded to 
the Annual Assurance questionnaire, the Committee was informed that those managers 
who had not responded had been contacted and had subsequently responded.  

 

The recommendations of the report were proposed, seconded, and agreed: 

DECISION: 

That the Governance and Audit Committee approves the Risk Management and 
Business Continuity Annual Review outlined in the report. 
 

10. Risk Management Framework 2021 - 2023 

The Interim Director of Finance presented the report on the new Risk Management 
Framework 2021-2023. The new Framework superseded the current Framework and 
would be the document used to assess the Annual Management Framework report.  
The Framework had not significantly changed but had moved from corporate risks to 
strategic risks.  There had also been a move to risk appetite which the Committee had 
previously worked on.  Risk appetite was where the Council saw itself against those 
risks in terms of exposure. 
 

Reference was made to Page 89 of the report, the 7 strategic risks and the Council’s 
risk appetite against those risks. 
 

The Risk Management Framework provided details of the risk environment the Council 
operated within and the controls and mechanisms in place to ensure risk was 
sufficiently managed by officers and members. The Risk Management Framework had 
been updated and included the following key changes: 

• To reflect the move from a corporate risk register to a strategic risk register. 

• Inclusion of a Risk Management Policy Statement in line with best practice. 

• Expansion of the Risk Management Strategy objectives and how they would be 
achieved. 

• Refresh of the areas of risk, broken down into Strategic and operational risk areas 
of Service, Financial, Compliance and Regulatory, and Business as usual risks. 

• Additional information around how risk assurance would be sought. 

• Expansion of the Council’s risk appetite by inclusion of a Risk Appetite Statement.  
This would include a risk appetite overview, risk appetite levels description, 
monitoring and reporting, and themes. 

 

Appendix D of the report provided an outline of the Risk Management Process. 
 

In response to a member’s query about how the Council would avoid not delivering its’ 
stated priorities, the Committee were reminded that financial resources were in place 
once approved by approved by the Council.  
 

The Interim Director for Finance reminded the Committee that the summarised Risk 
Register considered at the meeting in February 2021 had included more detail and had 
specifically referenced leisure and the development of a strategy to invest in high quality 
facilities across the district. It was an action that sat alongside supporting communities.  

10



 

In terms of implementation, the Committee would be provided with the progress against 
the actions the Committee had agreed they wanted implemented.  

 

A further comment was made on the importance of how risks at all levels needed to be 
managed. 
 

ACTION: 
 

It was noted that the Committee would receive an update on a six-monthly basis. 
 

The recommendations of the report were proposed, seconded, and agreed: 

DECISION: 

That the Governance and Audit Committee, having reviewed the contents of the 
report, noted the content, and approved the draft Risk Management Framework 
attached at Appendix A. 
 

11. Property Searches Update 

The Monitoring Officer referred to the Committee’s request from the previous meeting 
for a report on the current performance of the Council’s Property Searches.  It was 
noted that the Land Charges function had only recently transferred from Planning to 
Legal and Democratic.  This move would provide greater focus on the service and 
remove planning pressures.  The report reflected the background to both the long and 
short-term issues that had been identified. 
 

The main short-term issue was the increase in supply and demand arising from the 
Government’s announcement of a Stamp Duty Holiday which meant the demand for the 
service had exponentially increased.  This had been compounded further when the 
Stamp Duty holiday had been extended further.  Budgets had previously been 
incorporated with the Planning Service, but these had now been disaggregated which 
had identified two vacant posts. Understaffing and an increase in demand had meant 
lengthy turnaround times and turnaround times had increased even further since the 
last report to Committee.   
 

In the short-term, to address this, specialised agencies and local authorities had been 
contacted and it was anticipated that two temporary resources would be in place next 
week to address the immediate issue of demand. 
 

Looking at the longer-term, the service was dependent on other services such as IT and 
mapping data.  A strategic discussion with corporate colleagues was taking place to 
better understand the issues.  There was also a focus on the forthcoming migration of 
Land Charges to the Land Registry, so it was important to ensure the data was fit for 
purpose and that the Council’s systems enabled this to happen.  Stage 1 of the 
modernisation agenda for the service had identified inherent problems and the need for 
Council’s processes to be improved which would, in the longer term reduce the issues 
the service was currently experiencing. 
 

Whilst members welcomed the honesty of the report, they had concerns about using 
temporary or agency staff. Members were informed that these specialised resources 
often worked in short term appointments and that the aim was to try to encourage the 
temporary posts into permanent posts. 
 

11



 

Discussion took place on performance, turnaround targets and whether the Committee 
should refer this to the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (FED&CS OSC) so a policy decision on an 
appropriate turnaround target could be made. It was important to improve the Council’s 
current reputation regarding delays in providing this service.  The Committee was 
informed that the turnaround target was 10 days for Land charges and that the Personal 
Searches target of 20 days was within target. The focus had to be on performance and 
FED&CS OSC would be the appropriate forum to consider this as their remit was 
performance and KPIs.   
 

The Vice Chairman of Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee noted he would speak with the Chairman and ensure 
it was on their workplan. 
 

In response to members’ concerns about the lack of a strategic approach for the 
service, the Committee was assured that these were being addressed.  
 

Members also queried whether other local authorities had similar issues and what 
impact this would have on finding support and whether Internal Audit had been asked to 
review the service.  It was noted that the Council’s experience was indicative of other 
local authorities and Internal Audit were currently undertaking a review of Land Charges 
arising from an action from this Committee. 
 

Further discussion took place on the Committee being kept informed of progress. 
 

ACTION:  

That the Committee would continue to receive updates on progress and 
improvements to the service. 
 

The recommendations of the report were proposed, seconded and agreed: 

DECISIONS: 

a) That the Governance and Audit Committee, having reviewed the contents of 
the report, noted the content, and the land search turnaround times at 
Appendix 1. 

b) That the Governance and Audit Committee, recommends that the Finance, 
Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (FED&CO OSC) considers the KPIs for this area and oversees the 
performance of Land searches. 

 

12. Work Programme 2021-2022 

The Committee agreed that the following items be included on the Work Programme: 
 

• The Cratus External Planning Service Review – 21 July 2021.  

• Section 106 – The Committee to receive a six-monthly report, next report to go to 
the 29 September 2021 meeting. 

• Update on the new Financial Management Code – 22 December 2021. 
 

13. Close of meeting 

The Chairman closed the meeting at 16:17.
 

12



Action Sheet 
To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 9 June 2021 meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee.  

Min 
no.  

Agenda Item Action(s) Assigned to Comments/status Deadline 

8 Financial 
Management 
Code 

That the Financial Management Code 
action plan update is brought back to 
the December 2021 meeting of the 
Committee. 

Richard Wyles 
(Interim Director of 
Finance) 

Added to the Work 
Programme 

22 
December 
2021 

10 Risk 
Management 
Framework 
2021 - 2023 

That the Committee would continue to 
receive updates on progress and 
improvements to the service. 

Tracey Elliott 
(Governance & 
Risk Officer) 
/Richard Wyles 
(Interim Director of 
Finance) 

Added to the Work 
Programme – under reports 
to be added when required 

21 July 
2021 

12 Work 
Programme 
2021-2022 

Add to the Work Programme: 
 

• The Cratus External Planning 
Service Review – 21 July 2021.  

• Section 106 – The Committee to 
receive a six-monthly report, next 
report to go to the 29 September 
2021 meeting. 

• Update on the new Financial 
Management Code – 22 
December 2021 

Democratic 
Services 

Added to the Work 
Programme 

COMPLETE 

 

13

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Planning Service Review – Progress Report 

This report outlines the progression made following an external review of the Planning Service 
commissioned by South Kesteven District Council. 

 

 

Report Author 

William Tse, Project Lead 

 
01476 406376 

 w.tse@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive 5 July 2021 

Approved by: Nicola McCoy-Brown, Director of Growth and Culture 7 July 2021 

Signed off by: Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Planning Policy 

13 July 2021 

 

Recommendations to the decision makers 

In noting the receipt of the Planning Service Review and work progressed to date, it is 
recommended that the Governance and Audit Committee: 

1. Endorses the action plan.  

2. Notes the planned engagement with Members ahead of any formal reports to 
relevant Committees. 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 

21 July 2021 

Report of: Councillor Nick Robins 
  Cabinet Member for Planning and 

Planning Policy 

         

15

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 A key theme in the Corporate Plan (2020-2023) is the provision of housing that meets the 

needs of all residents. High quality housing is essential for all, and the Council is 

committed to working with partners to provide this.  A main action has been to undertake a 

planning review to improve performance and support local sustainable, high quality 

growth.   

1.2 The Planning Service Review was instructed in May 2020. Cratus, a public sector advisory 

company with significant council and planning expertise, were duly appointed. Cratus 

thereafter conducted a total of 26 interviews with staff, Members, and key external 

stakeholders.  Written representations were received to supplement the process. Due to 

the impact of COVID-19 restrictions, the Planning Service Review was conducted 

remotely.   

1.3 The received Planning Service Review was originally on 30 November 2020 Governance 

and Audit Committee agenda. However, the item was subsequently removed at the 

Chairman’s request.  

1.4 The remainder of this report considers the items included in the Planning Service Review, 

progress against actions, proposed next steps and further considerations for the Council. 

1.5 The Planning Service Review (attached at Annex 1) was externally developed by Cratus, 

includes 29 recommendations, and recognises the importance of planning as a critical 

component in supporting economic growth and unlocking future prosperity of local 

communities. 

1.6 An internal project team were deployed to engage with the Planning Service, Members 

and Cratus to develop a draft action plan to scope out and begin progressing the 

implementation of the recommendations (as illustrated at Annex 2).  

1.7 The recommendations focus upon several areas, including (but not limited to): 

- Embedding good practice in the operational (officer) delivery of the service. 

- Identifying areas where change to the protocols and functioning of the Planning 

Committee are likely to be beneficial. 

- Highlighting opportunities to invest in technology and communication to help improve 

the service. 

1.8 Since receipt of the Planning Service Review there has been a high degree of leadership 

change in the Planning Service, beginning with the appointment of an Interim Head 

Planning (to June 2021) and the recent commencement of the Director for Growth and 

Culture in May 2021. A highly experienced Assistant Director of Planning has recently 

been appointed by the Employment Committee, who will join the Council in mid-

September 2021.  The Assistant Director of Planning will work closely with the Director for 

Growth and Culture and the Cabinet Member for Planning and Planning Policy, with the 

aim of providing consistent and strong leadership of the Planning Service. 

1.9 There are items referred to in this report that are within the scope of other Committees.  

For example, should there be any proposals to amend the delegations and processes for 

Planning Committee, these will be presented to the Constitution Committee for 

consideration.   

 

16



 

 
 

2 Consultation and feedback received, including overview and scrutiny 

2.1 In line with good practice, since October 2020 a significant amount of informal 

engagement with Members has taken place. These informal sessions have included 

private briefing and workshop sessions to enable Members (and Officers) to engage with 

the Planning Service Review and subsequent work to help shape the recommendations.   

2.2 On 22 October 2020, the Cratus review team, the Leader of the Council, the (then) 

Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing and the Chief Executive Officer, presented the 

findings of the initial report (Annex 1) as follows: 

- Session One - Planning Committee Members 

- Session Two - All Council Members 

- Session Three - Officers within the Planning Service 

2.3 All attendees at the session were provided with the opportunity to ask questions of the 

review team. Encouragingly, the sessions resulted in a willingness to develop and improve 

the Planning Service from both Members and Officers.   

2.4 On 2 and 3 December 2020, a series of four half-day workshops were arranged to engage 

Planning Committee Members, all Members as observers and Planning Officers. These 

sessions provided a greater level of clarity, explored the recommendations, and began to 

develop and prioritise the action plan. This approach culminated in a combined meeting, 

facilitated by Cratus, which included Committee Members and Officers. 

2.5 The Planning Service Review recommendations require a refinement to the protocols and 

processes of the Planning Committee to be in line with best practice across the Public 

Sector. Cratus drafted initial proposals by working collaboratively with both the former and 

current Cabinet Member responsible for Planning, as well as with the Chairman of the 

Planning Committee, to ensure they reflected and aligned with practice in South Kesteven. 

2.6 Additionally, a series of informal meetings have taken place with Councillors to raise 

questions and concerns and provide input on the draft protocols and processes prior to 

formal proposal to any Committee. This approach included an extended informal session 

with the Planning Committee on 26 May 2021 where Members explored the draft protocols 

in greater depth to understand the rationale behind changes and proposed revisions. That 

session focused on how the protocols would work in practice and enable the smoother 

and efficient operation of the Planning Committee and crucially included practical 

examples of how adopting the proposed protocol and processes might work in practice.   

2.7 There are two further informal sessions scheduled for 20 July which will mirror the items 

delivered during 26 May meeting. The first is with substitute Members of Planning 

Committee and those Committee Members who were unable to attend on 26 May and will 

take place in the afternoon. The second is an All-Member Briefing.  This will take place 

early evening and is intended to enable Members to raise any outstanding questions.  

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 Do Nothing – note the report but do not request further action or updates to the 

Governance and Audit committee. 

 

 

17



 

 
 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 The preferred option is to note the report and support the action plan associated with it, 

including formal engagement with the relevant committees at the appropriate time.  

Governance and Audit Committee can expect to receive an update on progress within six 

months. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendations 

5.1 The preferred option provides Governance and Audit Committee with the assurance that 

the areas for development highlighted by the Planning Service Review are being 

prioritised and addressed, with improvements embedded. The approach outlined, provides 

the Audit and Governance Committee with the opportunity to maintain ongoing oversight 

and refinement of the action plan.  

5.2 As indicated earlier in the report, the relevant Committees will be engaged to debate 

changes as appropriate.   

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 The next steps are to support the continued delivery of the action plan, with a return to the 

Governance and Audit Committee for a progress update in six months’ time. 

6.2 Throughout the delivery of the action plan, there will be ongoing engagement with Members 

and Officers to inform the development of future proposals to the relevant Committees. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 It is not possible at this time to confirm if there will be financial implications arising from the 

implementation of the stated recommendations.  Should any additional costs be required, 

this will be assessed and considered at the appropriate time. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance  

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 External reviews are essential to ensure good governance of public services.  

8.2 The recommendations are to be welcomed from a governance perspective, as it indicates 

that service delivery can be improved if implemented.   

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 The Planning Service Review has identified improvements to support the decision making, 

by officers and Members. These impacts would be positive and there are no direct impacts 

for equality or safeguarding.  

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 No risk relating to this report have been identified. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 There are no direct community safety implications resulting from this report. 

 

18



 

 
 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 The Planning Service Review recommends a revision to the planning site visit protocol.  It 

is suggested that there would be fewer site visits which will have a positive impact on climate 

change due to the reduction in the number of vehicular journeys undertaken. 

13 Other Implications (where significant) 

13.1 None identified. 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 Governance and Audit Committee 30 November 2020: Planning Service External Review: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s28333/Planning%20Service%20Revi

ew.pdf  

15 Appendices 

15.1 Annex 1 – South Kesteven Planning Review (Cratus) 

15.2 Annex 2 - Planning Review Action Plan  

 

Report Timeline:  Final Decision date   21 July 2021 

 

19

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s28333/Planning%20Service%20Review.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s28333/Planning%20Service%20Review.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



South Kesteven District Council

Planning Service Review
September 2020

21



B 22



1

Introduction
1. Cratus was instructed in May 2020 by South Kesteven District Council to undertake a 

comprehensive review of the Council’s Planning & Development Service.  A core objective was 
to evaluate the effectiveness of the service through a series of interviews with officers, elected 
members, and key external stakeholders.

2. This report is structured to provide comment and recommendations to the Council in relation four 
key areas:

 � Operation of the Planning Committee including its efficiency and procedure rules in relation to 
democratic participation and representation

 � Interaction between elected members and case officers throughout the lifecycle of an 
application being determined (pre-application, submission, and implementation)

 � Alignment of decisions with the Council’s Local Plan and associated planning policies and wider 
corporate objectives

 � Organisational structure and effectiveness of the Planning and Development Service

Introduction to South Kesteven
3. South Kesteven District Council is a rural district and in the county of Lincolnshire.  Its main 

settlements are Grantham, Stamford, Bourne and The Deepings alongside several other villages and 
hamlets which are more remote and have experienced lower levels of growth.  Upper tier services 
in the county are provided by Lincolnshire County Council and there are many Parish Councils 
covering the district.  For the purposes of this review, whilst those bodies are interested parties 
in the planning and development process, South Kesteven District Council is the Local Planning 
Authority and takes precedence.

4. In January 2020, the South Kesteven Local Plan was adopted.  Contained within it is a strong 
growth agenda and a requirement to build 650 new homes per year, and 16,125 by 2036 to 
accommodate population growth from 140,000 to 166,000 residents.

5. Much of this growth is planned around Stamford and Grantham, however there is a requirement 
for growth within villages too, to meet local housing need and ensure their vitality and 
sustainability.  South Kesteven is in an enviable position in having an adopted plan and clear 
rationale and trajectory for growth.  However, having a plan in and of itself does not deliver 
growth.  There is now a wider ranging responsibility on elected members, and the wider Council, to 
align planning decisions around the polices in the Local Plan and to ensure a greater appreciation of 
the critical role planning plays in building economic growth and prosperity for local communities.

23



2 24



3

Section 1: Operation of the Planning Committee 
including its efficiency procedure rules in relation to 
democratic participation and representation

Committee - Structure and Agenda
Observations

6. Membership of the Committee has reduced over recent years to its present size of 13 members.  
The reduction has been welcomed by several members and is now felt to be more manageable 
because of these changes.  Several members felt that the planning committee and service had been 
less effective in the past two to three years.

7. The volume of applications referred to Committee for decision is high and this affects its efficiency 
with minor applications being considered by elected members which in most other authorities 
would be delegated to officers.  Some of the reasons for this stems from a lack of trust that 
members have in the service, borne from several issues which are explored throughout this report.

8. However, to summarise briefly, these include, a significant turnover of staff within the department 
and the lack of a clearly defined system of delegation.  These feed through to demands that all 
applications above 10 units must be referred to Committee and a sense that the churn of officers 
has led to a reduction of knowledge regarding the District.

9. The development of the Local Plan raises fresh challenges for an established planning committee.  
The nature and complexity of applications will change and for some this can bring a greater tension 
to the deliberations of the Committee.

10. There was a view expressed that the role of the Local Planning Authority should be considered 
as an effectively separate entity from the Council.  This view raises a major philosophical point as 
to the how the members of the Planning Committee view themselves and their relation to the 
corporate ambitions of the Council.

11. The Local Plan is a corporate and collectively determined policy by the whole Council and the 
Council has a right to expect that its policies will be adhered to in framing the decisions of the 
Committee.

12. A new growth agenda requires a planning committee often to adjust its focus to meet the 
challenges of larger applications which may first require permission in outline and subsequently may 
require many more conditions to be applied once a resolution to grant consent has been taken.

13. There is evidence that members are deeply unhappy with applications which have several 
conditions attached to them, viewing this as a failure on the part of officers to properly negotiate 
the detail of the application they are considering.

Our Thoughts

14. To meet these evolving changes and the different preferences of elected members, some local 
authorities have moved to sub-divide their planning committee functions.  Typically, this has 
resulted in a Strategic Planning Committee designed to focus on genuinely major applications, 
supported by bespoke training to generate greater confidence in addressing the complexity of 
major applications.  Alongside this, local area committees to consider smaller applications have 
been established to enable those members for who planning is critical to the oversight of local 
interests, to continue in this role.

25



4

15. As the challenge of more complex applications evolves, the Council should consider whether its 
governance structures can better meet the requirements of decision making across the totality of 
planning by the creation of separate specialised committees.

Recommendation

1. Considering the challenges of the new growth agenda, consider whether the present 
Committee arrangements are fit for purpose or whether there may be benefit in considering 
whether to work towards a new member structure for the consideration of different types of 
planning application.

Operation of Committee

16. Members feel that the operation of the Planning Committee and its meetings is sound.  However, 
many found meetings too long and repetitive.  There is a need to better expedite the determination 
of applications without losing purposeful debate and discussion.

17. The Committee would benefit from a refocusing on the expediency of determination whilst not 
losing purposeful debate and discussion.  This is a balance, but some members reflected that on 
occasion this was skewed towards lengthier or repetitive debate, often on matters that were not a 
material consideration in the determination of a planning application.

18. As a direct consequence of the pandemic, new time limits for speakers (those in favour and those 
opposed), questions to officers and debate have been introduced.  These measures have been 
welcomed but others feel rushed with the time limits on questions and the debate.  Some members 
have raised the prospect of returning to unrestricted contributions in future.

19. Members do not always have regard to advice from officials and this tends to rely on the service 
head and case officers being robust enough at committee.

Our Thoughts

20. Cratus observed three planning committee meetings and noted that in any case, regardless of new 
time limits, they were rarely strictly adhered to in any case.  It is important that applications and 
members of the public are given equal time to make their respective contribution and this requires 
managing.  There are many ways this can be achieved but two core principles need to be adopted: 
first that there is clarity in the rules and second that the rules are adhered too.

21. For example, in the Royal Borough of Greenwich, when an application is heard, the following 
procedure is followed:

 � The Head of Planning or Case Officer briefly (max 10 minutes) introduces the application

 � Contribution from a member of the public against the application (2mins)

 � If more than one individual members of the public is registered their allotted time is at the 
discretion of the Chair.

 � Contribution from organised Community Group (4min)

 � One contribution from a ward member (if present) (5mins)

 � One contribution from the applicant or their agent in favour of the application (10min)

26



5

22. This order is followed in sequence and without debate and speakers are only able to contribute if 
they have put a request to Democratic Services two days in advance of Committee.  These limits are 
rigorously applied, and the Chair of Committee will bring the contribution to a close once the time 
limit has been reached, without exception.

23. The remaining debate is then limited to Members of the Committee only and whilst there is no 
time limit, questions and contributions are more restrained than observed in South Kesteven.  In 
Greenwich, members are expected to provide their opinion on the application, provide brief 
material reasons for it and are reminded by the Chair if they are repeating a point that has already 
been introduced into the debate.

24. This example is only shared to demonstrate different practices between local authorities.  It is 
for each authority to consider best practice, but the evidence suggests that this is an area where 
the Council can learn from others.  It is not to say these are right for South Kesteven as it is for 
the Council to determine itself what most suits its needs.  However, it does demonstrate this is a 
pressing issue that must be resolved by the Council, to help improve the operation and procedures 
of Committee, and its associated decisions.

25.  More support to the chair and committee from senior staff, including legal advice, is strongly 
recommended.  Such advice is independent from the case officer presentations and helps ensure 
legal and planning risks are adequately taken into account where appropriate

Recommendations

2. Clarify the protocols for representations to the Planning Committee, ensuring consistency and 
equity in those for and against an application.  Adhere strictly to the time limits.

3. Ensure the new protocols are published and readily understood by all participants at each 
planning committee and that prospective speakers are reminded of them before the meeting.

4. Specific training for Chair and Vice-Chair on running procedures and Chairing of meetings.

5. Senior staff advice including legal advice, should routinely be available to committee members 
at the committee

Refusing an Application

Observations

26. The Council allows for the refusal of planning permission at Committee without requirement for 
reasons to be stated at the meeting.  There is a period following Committee of five working days 
during which elected members are required to submit their reasons for refusal to the case officer in 
advance of the decision notice being issued.  This is wholly unacceptable and significantly increases 
the risk of decisions being challenged.  Where members vote to refuse an application, they must 
vote on the reasons for refusal.  The present practice lacks transparency, is unfair to applicants and 
is extremely damaging to the reputation of the District Council.

Our Thoughts

27. The existing practice is indefensible.  Whilst recognising that the technical drafting of reasons for 
refusal is a matter for case officers, committee members should be providing sufficient and sound 
rationale at the point of determination, to allow officers to issue the decision notice.  Members 

27



6

should acknowledge that it may be appropriate for them to defend a decision of the council at 
appeal it is therefore important that the grounds for refusal are properly set out at committee

28. This will help further demonstrate transparency, trust, and confidence in the planning service at 
the Council and will be critical in mitigating risks of legal challenge as the complexity of application 
increases to meet future growth ambitions.

29. Elected members and officers operate with integrity at South Kesteven and this change will further 
reinforce those values and will ensure that members of the public and the development community 
are given reasons for refusal at the point a decision is made.

Recommendation

6. The Council changes its procedures to ensure applications are only refused at Committee 
where members have voted to do so based on clear and cogent planning grounds.  Where a 
decision has been taken against officer advice or which is wholly contrary to the Local Plan, 
it may be that it is considered more appropriate for members, rather than council officers to 
defend any such decision at appeal

Scheme of Delegation
Observations

30. The review found no member who was able to articulate when, or why, an application would 
be considered for delegation to officers.  Examples of major applications being consented under 
delegated authority in the past were mentioned and this has bred suspicion among members, 
resulting directly to the procedural change that all schemes of 10 units or more are presented to 
Committee for decision.

31. The scheme of delegation in South Kesteven is not consistently applied and this leads to an 
uncertainty about how to administer certain applications and results in a greater number being 
heard at Committee.

32. Whilst members broadly expressed a view that this enables a greater oversight of the decisions 
being made by the Council, there is a recognition that this has led to too many applications 
been presented to the Planning Committee.  In the absence of a clearly understood Scheme of 
Delegation, this is unlikely to change.  The result is an extremely inefficient and cumbersome 
process that runs the risk of preventing effective consideration of genuinely major applications, 
with the likelihood of greater delay to, or refusal of, the very applications which are designed to 
meet the wider ambitions of promoting growth and investment in the District.

Our Thoughts

33. Without exception, it was clear that members would very much welcome a transparent scheme of 
delegation and that this would assist in the rebuilding trust in the Department.

34. An opportunity exists to improve and clarify the scheme of delegation.  As arrangements are made 
for the recruitment of a permanent Head of Service to do this collaboratively between members 
and officers helping to build trust and confidence.

28



7

 
Recommendation

7. Agree a revised Scheme of Delegation collaboratively with elected members for adoption by 
the Council and ensure any deviation can only be agreed on an exceptional basis by the Chief 
Executive, in consultation with the Leader of the Council.  No one involved directly in the 
planning function, either member or officer, should have the ability to vary the scheme.

Call-In Procedure

Observations

35. Any elected member can request a Call-In of any planning application received by the Council.  This 
is an established precedent in South Kesteven but one that does not necessarily sit comfortably 
with demonstrating probity; a value all members recognised as being vitally important to 
maintaining confidence and trust within the planning system.

36. The Call-In process is not consistent with established practice in other Local Planning Authorities.  
The present system leaves members open to challenge.  Councillors are elected to represent a 
specific geographical area.  A Call-In of an application within that area can be readily understood 
as being in accordance with their responsibilities in representing that locality.  Where a Call-In 
of an application occurs outside the area a member is elected to represent, a member is open 
to challenge that another interest exists, outside of their role as an elected ward representative.  
Whilst there is no suggestion of impropriety, elected members need better protection from a revised 
Call-In procedure.

37. Members of the Planning Committee can both call in an application and then participate in 
determining it.  This is not good practice.

Our Thoughts

38. Given the quasi-judicial nature of the role Committee Members hold, it is not considered 
appropriate to continue with the current practice as it leaves both individual members and the 
District Council open to challenge and accusations of pre-determination.  It would not be unrealistic 
for an applicant or member of the public to presume that a member effecting a call-in had gone 
some way to pre-determining the application.

39. New processes need to be put in place which permit only ward councillors to call in applications on 
clear planning grounds.  Where members sit on planning, a member effecting a Call-In may make 
representations to the Committee but should not participate in its determination.

Recommendation

8. Agree a revised Call-In protocol which permits members to call-in applications within their 
wards, on submission of a request containing a sound planning reason.  This should be 
adjudicated by a senior manager, ideally the Service Director.  The protocol should also ensure 
that the initiator of the Call-In does not participate in the determination of the application.

29



8 30



9

Site Visits
Observations

40. Members of the Planning Committee significantly value site visits.  Most feel that they are vital to 
the decision-making process and some members hold a view that those who do not participate in 
these visits should not be able to participate in the determination of the application.  This would 
not be considered appropriate and we do not agree with this view.  At best, this is a rather tenuous 
link to make and on the contrary other officers and members reflected that, on occasion, those 
members who do not attend a site visit can sometimes appear at Committee and still make more 
policy based and informed decisions.  Whilst site visits can play an important role in helping to 
visualise larger planning applications, it not an essential component for all applications, given the 
amount of information and images included in committee reports.  Indeed, members have been 
extremely complimentary about the additional images and information contained in reports which 
have been inserted for the virtual meetings.

Our Thoughts

41. There are considerable resources that go into these visits: officer and members time and travel 
expenses.  These visits do not provide best value to the Council and offer limited contextual added 
value to the determination process.  There does not appear to be set criteria and guidance for 
site visits which does not appear to be a comfortable position for the Council to put itself in.  It is 
not agreed that members unable to attend site visits should be prevented form taking part in the 
determination of that application

Recommendations

9. The creation of a criteria for when an application justifies a site visit will help provide greater 
clarity and confidence in the planning system.

10. Further, a Code of Conduct for members when attending site visits will help protect the 
council and members from any vexatious or otherwise pre-determination and other legal 
challenges.

Training
Observations

42. There was a strong feeling amongst elected members generally, that there was adequate training 
and that it was of a good quality.  Elected members like that training is linked to applications that 
were coming to Committee.  Members generally feel that they receive enough training to build a 
knowledge base that allows them to take informed decisions.  This is positive, however evidence is 
varied that this training is consistently applied and prevalent when decision making at Committee.

43. Consequently, members would like to see, and would welcome, further training and would expect 
high levels of take up.  Specifically, members would welcome to opportunity to have greater 
involvement and understanding of the Local Plan process; its adoption, future reviews, and their 
ability to influence to a greater extent its outcomes.  Although there is a good level of awareness 
of the significance of the Local Plan (there is not always a joint ownership of the) policies therein.  
However, there is an appetite for further meetings and training on it.  This would assist in building 
stronger relationships with officers.

31



10

44. This would be valuable as a consistent theme from both officers and the wider development 
community was that there is inconsistent application of plan policies in decision making, leading 
members to take seemingly ‘random’ decisions at Committee, especially when overturning officer 
recommendations.  We have seen evidence that on occasion members appear to disregard the 
application of planning polices and the weight that should be attached when balancing the merits 
of an application and its subsequent determination.  There is also evidence of members having 
regard to matters beyond the remit of the Committee.

45. It is clear that not all members feel comfortable with the growth agenda, albeit there is a reluctant 
acceptance that growth is required.  From observation, this reluctance to embrace the growth 
agenda is impacting upon operation and decisions of the Planning Committee and of itself, this 
matter is not likely to be resolved by a programme of training.

46. One further consideration is the application of conditions when consenting applications.  There is 
a general resistance amongst members for applications to be approved with conditions or those 
seeking outline permission.  This is unusual as they are not uncommon practices and alludes to a 
desire for unreasonable control of, and undermines confidence in, the planning system.  As noted, 
the Council has significant growth ambitions which by its very nature will invite larger applications.  
These are likely to carry multiple conditions and may consist of outline applications prior to full 
determination.

Our Thoughts

47. Members need to become more comfortable with the process of outline applications and the 
application of conditions.  Not doing so will undermine the credibility of the Local Plan and will 
not help attract and secure the desired investment into the District the Council wishes to see.  This 
needs to part of a broader training programme which will also help embed the operational changes 
we recommend later in the report

Recommendations

11. Develop a tailored and targeted member training programme which addresses specific 
concerns and in particular addresses issues raised around application of planning policy in 
decision making, the framework and appropriate use of conditions, and the key stages in 
determination of a larger planning application.

12. A series of workshops in relation to Local Plan “ownership” and future revisions.  This is likely 
to be an ongoing piece of engagement with elected members.

13. More training for officers on best practices when presenting to the planning committee

Reputation
Observations

48. The planning process is inherently political often with profound consequences for all those engaged 
with it.  This is not unique to South Kesteven and given the stakes involved on decisions (with 
applicants, developers, landowners, local communities) the system is well scrutinised.

49. Consequently, the value placed on the integrity of the planning process, the consistency of decision 
making alongside behaviours and culture of members and officers cannot be understated.  Further, 
as planning is one of the core functions of the authority, it will be one of the few channels used by 
residents to democratically engage with it.

32



11

50. Discussions with elected members, the development community and agents indicate there is further 
progress that can be made to ensure consistency in policy-based decision making that is aligned 
with the corporate and planning strategies of the Council.

51. Local government in South Kesteven is organised over three tiers: parish councils, the district 
council and county council.  It is perfectly appropriate and usual for individuals to seek office and 
serve on one or more of these bodies.  These individuals are often categorised as single, twin, or 
triple hatters.

52. For the purposes of planning and development, South Kesteven District Council is the Local 
Planning Authority for the district and holds all associated statutory functions and decision-
making powers.  Members of the Planning Committee at South Kesteven therefore have specific 
obligations to consider applications only against planning policy and guidance set by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Other interests must be disregarded, and any conflicts appropriately declared 
to ensure integrity and confidence in the system and ensure their decision making is not (and is not 
seen to be) unduly influenced.  Whilst this is recognised by committee members and officers there 
is an opportunity for further strengthening guidance in this area.

53. The volumes of applications heard referred to Committee for a decision is high and this affects its 
efficiency and results in minor applications being considered by elected members which in most 
other authorities would be delegated to officers.

Our Thoughts

54. As noted earlier in the report, there are opportunities to resolve this through greater adherence 
to a revised scheme of delegation and Call-In procedure.  However, we observed in addition, 
some reluctance to embrace the growth agenda among some members and revised processes 
and additional training will not resolve this aspect.  For this reason, we think the Council should 
consider whether the creation of a Strategic Planning Committee to consider fewer, significant 
applications alongside a more area focused Committees for regular applications would make more 
operational sense.

Recommendations

14. The Council should revise the expectations of elected members who serve on the Planning 
Committee to ensure the highest standards of transparency and openness in relation to other 
tiers of Government in the District.

33



12

Section 2: Interaction between members and case 
officers throughout lifecycle of an application 
being determined (pre-application, submission, and 
implementation)

Observations

55. The lifecycle of a major application starts ahead of pre-application discussions.  The initial point of 
contact may be between aspiring applicants and the Leader of the Council or Chief Executive, in 
their wider roles of articulating the priorities of the administration to the wider community.

56. It will fall to the leadership, or a relevant director, to provide this public focus and to attract the 
inward investment and planning applications which can deliver on the aspiration’s members have 
set for the District.

57. South Kesteven is in competition for the attention of investors and developers and where 
successful, this will bring millions of pounds of inwards investment to the District.  It follows from 
this, that those seeking to invest will rely on the credibility of the Council and its leadership.  It 
will also rely on the credibility of the Council’s internal processes, including planning, to deliver.  
Without this, investors will lose confidence in the District and look elsewhere.

58. Getting this process right will enable the planning system to recognise the wider corporate 
ambitions of the Council and link decisions to policies contained within the Local Plan.

59. For the Council to deliver on its growth ambitions for more housing and economic activity, planning 
must play a role in facilitating the delivery of these ambitions.

Process - Pre-application
Observations

60. There is a lack of clarity and coherence in the Council’s pre-application processes.  This extends 
to early strategic engagement by senior members of the administration which might take place 
even in advance of a formal planning pre-application with the Council’s Planning Service.  This 
is confusing for applicants and communities and will hinder delivery of the Council’s growth 
ambitions.

61. There is a difference between a strategic discussion with the leadership (member and officer) of 
the authority around potential growth opportunities in line with attracting inward investment and 
the likely parameters for growth against a formal planning pre-application discussion to cover in 
detail more technical matters.  This would usually take place with case officers and on occasion in 
consultation with the Chair of the Planning Committee.

62. At present, the Design Pad is chaired by the Head of Planning, which is an appropriate level but 
otherwise contains too many staff and too many at a junior level.  There is also representation 
from external bodies.  The conversations at this stage seem to involve too much minutiae which 
cut across the responsibility of the case officer and creates the impression that the Chair and 
other members are negotiating the detail of the scheme.  This runs the risk of accusations of pre-
determination.  Our discussions with elected members and officers make it clear there is an element 
of blurring between the respective roles and responsibilities

34



13

Our Thoughts

63. Members would benefit from greater clarify and guidance.  This would help secure the integrity of 
the planning system and enable discussion between applicants and the authority to proceed.  It is 
rare for committee or ward members to be engaged at formal pre-application stage on technical 
matters should clearly be a role for professional officers The appropriate point for members to be 
involved in this process is by setting appropriate design standards in the Local Plan, which officers 
then use to aide discussion with applicants.

64. Where earlier member engagement may be appropriate is in relation to strategic applications and 
this should be a well recorded and documented process undertaken in partnership with officers.

Recommendation

15. Create a clearly defined pre-application process which distinguishes between strategic and 
minor applications, and between corporate discussions in relation to growth and investment 
versus technical input from the planning service.

Process - Submission
Observations

65. In the reviewing process some significant steps have been taken to embrace new technology and 
indeed the paperless office ethos was recognised strongly both within the organisation and by 
external users of the system.  However, there are still areas where performance and could improve 
and one of those is in the validation process where the existing process still involves handovers 
between staff which is unnecessary.  The passing of an application to a planning case officer and 
then back to the office is inefficient and relies on people being at work that day.  This should be 
formalised as a back of house function.  Any additional views the case officer has can always be 
addressed later and this would mean that applications are validated quicker.  The case officer would 
need resources to do this and this is not work that the virtual worker can help with.

66. There is a need for a clear process of ongoing engagement of interested parties with clarity of roles 
and responsibilities.

Our Thoughts

67. Upon submission of the application, discussions between officers and the applicant will continue.  
At a certain point, officers should brief the Leader and Cabinet Member as appropriate, and the 
Chief Executive.  This should be led by the Director, with relevant supporting staff, including the 
Head of Planning.

68. The Planning Committee as a whole would benefit from appropriately timed briefings on major 
applications before they are presented to Members for decision.  This will enable the Committee 
to be aware of the schedule of important issues ahead of them.  Members should not pre-judge 
such applications in any way but such briefings would ensure all Committee members are better 
informed of major impending decisions than presently seems to be the case,

69. An effective Scheme of Delegation and revised Call In procedure, highlighted elsewhere in this 
report, will assist in freeing up time on committee agendas and create the space for a better system 
of briefings on genuinely major applications.

35



14

 
Recommendation

16. The Council should replace the existing ‘Design Pad’ with full briefings for all members of the 
Committee on major applications.

Process - Implementation
Observations

70. It is clear that post-decision processes are weak.  There is no coherent monitoring of S106 
funds and no enforcement cases have been reported to committee for over a year.  In addition 
performance data relating to the planning service is not subject to sufficient scrutiny

Our Thoughts

71. Following a resolution to consent the application at Committee, the Council needs to do much 
more to provide a specific oversight of the implementation of planning conditions and the delivery 
of Section 106 contributions.  Enforcement is important and poor enforcement undermines the 
point of conditions being imposed and is both practically and reputationally damaging

72. The department should hold a register, scheme by scheme, with scheduled dates for payment 
of s.106 monies and to also chase progress on consented schemes.  It is not unknown for some 
successful applicants to ‘land bank’ applications and defer delivery.  The Council should be alert 
to this and should be pro-active in chasing successful applicants to progress their schemes and 
discharge the conditions applied to their consents.  Enforcement should be both reactive and 
proactive

73. To this end, arrangements should be put in place with individuals given clear responsibility to 
monitor and chase these matters.  Effective oversight and management of these matters will build 
confidence in the planning system and among members.

74. Good practice would suggest that the Planning Committee should receive regular reports on these 
matters, alongside the regular reporting of enforcement complaints and activity, which is also 
perceived to be very weak.

Recommendations

17. Quarterly reporting of Section 106 income and expenditure, and enforcement matters should 
be scrutinised by the monitoring officer and reported to committee

18. The Enforcement policy should be reviewed and appropriately resourced

36



15

Relationships
Observations

75. As mentioned above, there is a distrust by members of the planning department and there is a view 
from elected members that they understand the District better than officers.

76. There has been a relatively high turnover of staff within the planning and development service and 
this has prevented more established relationships forming between elected members, applicants, 
and officers.  Whilst this is not necessarily a cause for concern, it is clear that the Council would 
benefit from more permanence within the officer core to help build trust and confidence in the 
planning and development service.

77. Trust is also undermined by the total lack of understanding by members of any scheme of 
delegation, or the rationale used to take delegated decisions.  As mentioned elsewhere, it is this 
lack of a transparent scheme of delegation which has led members to insist that all applications 
of 10 units or more are presented for decision to Committee.  This may also be feeding a higher 
level of call-in applications and the insistence of site visits to view every application coming to 
Committee.

78. That said, relationships between members and officers remains constructive but there is further 
work to be undertaken to ensure that the professional opinion of officers and the process of 
forming decision recommendations is understood and respected.

79. The Council is in a relatively strong position having an adopted Local Plan and other associated 
policies and more can be done to use these documents to inform planning decisions.  And this links 
to the recommendations above regarding the operation of the planning committee.

Our Thoughts

80. The recent appointment of the Chief Executive presents a moment in time to establish reaffirm a 
positive culture of working relationships between members and officers within the planning service.  
This would be based on clearly defined interactions and clarity in roles and responsibilities.  This 
would ensure a mutual respect and understanding of roles and enable greater trust and confidence 
to be established.  The key objective in good authorities is a high level of trust between members 
and officials.

Recommendations

19. Use the opportunity of a revised planning and development structure to revisit member 
and officer relationships through the lifecycle of an application to ensure value added and 
appropriate interaction.  This could be achieved through internal and external training and 
support - and must be undertaken collaboratively.

20. Outlines the clear roles and responsibilities of elected members and officers in the 
determination of planning applications

37



16

Section 3: Alignment of decisions with the Council’s 
Local Plan and associated planning policies and wider 
corporate objectives

81. This report does, in its other sections, identify how the Council can better align its decision-making 
at the Planning Committee with the policies of the Local Plan.

82. These include:

 � A change to the process whereby applications can be refused at Committee, without the 
articulation of any planning reasons.

 � A clear Scheme of Delegation which should reduce the volume of applications heading to 
Committee.

 � A requirement that all call-in applications be only accepted with upon submission of a clearly 
stated planning reason.

 � An effective system of training, which is regularly repeated and refreshed, to enhance 
understanding of the Local Plan.

 � Revised protocols which clearly identify the respective roles and responsibilities of Members and 
Officers.

 � The implementation of measures designed to strengthen the permanence of the officer team, to 
build up local knowledge and with it, the growing trust of members.

83. If the above can be achieved the Council would stand in a stronger position to demonstrate that 
it is committed to the growth that is promoted in the Local Plan.  Clear alignment between the 
Executive, the members of the Planning Committee and officers on the core objectives in delivering 
the Local Plan vision would significantly strengthen the Council’s reputation as a place to do 
business.

38



17

Section 4: Organisational structure and effectiveness 
of the Planning and Development Service

Structure
Observations

84. There is a lack of leadership and management within the Department.  We found no evidence that 
Directorate Management Team meetings were being held between the Director and the Heads of 
Service, at least one of whom reported a feeling of being unsupported in their role.

85. Performance management arrangements between officers, the Head of Service and Directors is 
lacking and lines of communication are inconsistent.

86. The Planning and Development Service consists of three core teams: Development Management, 
Policy and Special Projects.  Development Management administers and considers most planning 
applications received by the Council and more strategic and major applications are reserved to the 
Special Projects team and often includes the use of specialist planning consultants.

87. There is a range of opinion on the effectiveness of the structure amongst the members, officers 
and stakeholders engaged in this review.  This is not unusual but does introduce a degree of 
uncertainty within the service which often leads to difficulties in recruiting and retaining staff, 
career progression and consistency in advice, approach and decision making.

88. Similarly, there is desire amongst some for the Council to reduce its reliance on external consultants 
and build in-house expertise and skills so that corporate memory and knowledge is gained, trusted, 
and high performing relationships developed.  Again, this is about balance and may not always 
be possible given the size and frequency of certain applications requiring specialist skills, but there 
is a general feeling amongst those who participated in this review that the Council would benefit 
from further thought in this regard.  It was apparent that the special projects team was set up as a 
reaction to underperformance in the delivery of major schemes; whilst it is true that major schemes 
require bespoke supervision, it is not inherent in planning services that this means a separate team 
and the use of consultants.  A good planning service run with a co-ordinating strong manager 
should be able to deliver a first-rate service in this regard and help less experienced staff develop 
skills and experience.

Our Thoughts

89. It is essential that basic management arrangements and Senior Management Team meetings 
are put in place as a matter of urgency.  Performance management data reporting and analysis 
could be improved and would help aide discussion with elected members.  Whilst many sensed 
an improvement in service, it was not clear, beyond subjectivity why this was felt to be the case 
- however welcome such comment are.  The Council would benefit from more streamlined and 
consistent data performance analytics.

90. We believe that the alignment of all teams in the service under a single Head of Service would 
bring clear benefits in leadership, cohesion, and the effective deployment of resources across all 
planning applications and policy development.  In addition, the role of the director needs to be 
clearly established as a corporate position and undertaken with strong leadership and people 
management skills.

39



18

 
Recommendations

21.  Implement a system of regular Directorate Team meetings between the Director and the 
Heads of Service to provide leadership, direction and focus to the service.

22. Linked to resolving issues of structure and permanence within the officer core, establish a 
culture of collaborative and strong leadership including regular opportunities for engagement 
between officers, Heads of Service and Directors.

23. Establish a system of performance indicators which are easily understood by members and 
officers and hold regular feedback sessions for teams and individuals.

24. Develop in-house experience within the planning team by aligning Special Projects, the Local 
Plan, and Development Management teams under a single head of planning service and 
exercise greater restraint over the use of external consultants.

Resources
Observations

91. As recognised above, the Council has invested considerable resources in IT, moving towards a 
‘paperless office’ within the planning and development service.  This is welcomed by many however 
there is recognition that there is further opportunity to drive improvement in processes and 
performance through further enhancements to systems.

92. Whilst this review considered the planning and development function, there was a general view 
that greater corporate rigour to exploiting the benefits of improved and automated systems could 
be gained by the wider Council.

93. Similarly, greater focus should be placed on understanding the implications of improvement or change 
in part of the process and the remainder of it.  For example, the virtual worker system to drive an 
improved methodology is despatching planning correspondence still requires officer in put but was to 
be paid for by the reduction of these staff to the point where the operation was no longer effective.

94. Linked to this is a shared view amongst officers, members, and stakeholders that the function is 
stretched and there is difficulty in recruitment and retention of personnel.

Our Thoughts

95. The churn amongst the officer core leads to lower levels of morale, delays to the determination of 
planning applications, and a greater reliance on external consultancies for specialist advice.  The 
service needs clarity, stability, and permanence in its staffing core and this should be a key objective 
of the leadership and administration of the Council and of the Department.

Recommendations

25. Fully exploit the opportunity of technology investment.

26. Ensure clarity within the Council on who holds responsibility for the delivery of the IT strategy, 
updates, and training of staff.

27. The conditions for permanence within the staffing structure and review recruitment 
proposition to ensure the Council can attract and retain high quality personnel.  This will 
enable clear leadership, structure and lines of engagement between officers.

40



19

Reputation
Observations

96. Applicants, agents, and developers often find the processes of the planning service challenging 
to overcome and mentioned inconsistencies in requirements, case officers and decisions made at 
committee.  This materially affects the reputation of the Council and whilst acknowledging the 
inherently difficult nature of planning, is therefore directly linked to the confidence the authority is 
able to instil in those it will need to count on to deliver growth ambitions.

Our Thoughts

97. There is further work to do to ensure applicants are able to engage strategically with the authority, 
understand core parameters to then enter the planning system with a confidence that the authority 
will be able to deliver broadly on the commitments it is making.  This will be vital to future 
competition of investment and growth.  Engagement with the leadership and at Director level 
could be strengthened to provide greater oversight and support to the service.

98. Linked to earlier point around member training and consistency, the Council would benefit from 
greater levels of clarity in decision making which is linked to material considerations required in the 
Local Plan and planning law.

Recommendation

28. Establish clear pathways for engagement with the Council at strategic and operational levels 
in respect of planning consents and development proposals.  For example: Developers to meet 
with Leader and Chief Executive or Director only.  No members of the planning committee 
should be meeting with developers.

Conclusion
99. We have thoroughly enjoyed the opportunity to undertake this review and to meet with the 

Members and Officers at South Kesteven.  We hope the report we present to you is one which will 
be of use and enable to the Council to take the necessary steps to strengthen the planning service.  
It is always the case, that a review such as this will focus on those things which need improvement 
and not on the positive things which already in place within the District.

100. We have been greatly impressed by the new Council leadership and by the commitment of officers 
to their roles at the Council.  We have felt the real affection members hold for the District and the 
many distinct places within it.

101. We believe that if the recommendations above can be delivered, then the Council will stand in a 
stronger position to demonstrate that, as a Council, it is committed to the growth agenda that is 
promoted in the Local Plan.

102. A consistent and aligned voice between Members and Officers on the core objectives in delivering 
the Local Plan vision would significantly strengthen the Council’s reputation and standing, as a 
place to do business.

41



20

Section 5: Process of the Review
103. The review was conducted by Cratus Communication through a series of engagement meetings 

undertaken by:

 � Chris Roberts

 � Steve Quartermain CBE

 � Charlotte Platten

104. Interviews were conducted via teams.  All interviews were conducted in confidence and any 
comments mentioned in the report will not be attributed to those that said them.

105. Throughout the course of the review 26 interviews were conducted, and we received several 
written representations from staff and members

Summary of Recommendations
1. `Considering the challenges of the new growth agenda, consider whether the present Committee 

arrangements are fit for purpose or whether there may be benefit in considering whether to work 
towards a new member structure for the consideration of different types of planning application.

2. Clarify the protocols for representations to the Planning Committee, ensuring consistency and equity 
in those for and against an application.  Adhere strictly to the time limits.

3. Ensure the new protocols are published and readily understood by all participants at each planning 
committee and that prospective speakers are reminded of them before the meeting.

4. Specific training for Chair and Vice-Chair on running procedures and Chairing of meetings.

5. Senior staff advice including legal advice, should routinely be available to committee members at the 
committee

6. The Council changes its procedures to ensure applications are only refused at Committee where 
members have voted to do so based on clear and cogent planning grounds.  Where a decision has 
been taken against officer advice and which is wholly contrary to the Local Plan, it may be that it is 
considered more appropriate for members, rather than council officers to defend any such decision 
at appeal.

7. Agree a revised Scheme of Delegation collaboratively with elected members for adoption by the 
Council and ensure any deviation can only be agreed on an exceptional basis by the Chief Executive, 
in consultation with the Leader of the Council.  No one involved directly in the planning function, 
either member or officer, should have the ability to vary the scheme.

8. Agree a revised Call-In protocol which permits members to call-in applications within their wards, on 
submission of a request containing a sound planning reason.  This should be adjudicated by a senior 
manager, ideally the Service Director.  The protocol should also ensure that the initiator of the Call-In 
does not participate in the determination of the application.

9. The creation of a criteria for when an application justifies a site visit will help provide greater clarity 
and confidence in the planning system.

10. Further, a Code of Conduct for members when attending site visits will help protect the council and 
members from any vexatious or otherwise pre-determination and other legal challenges.

11. Develop a tailored and targeted member training programme which addresses specific concerns 
and in particular addresses issues raised around application of planning policy in decision making, 

42



21

the framework and appropriate use of conditions, and the key stages in determination of a larger 
planning application.

12. A series of workshops in relation to Local Plan “ownership” and future revisions.  This is likely to be 
an ongoing piece of engagement with elected members.

13. More training for officers on best practices when presenting to the planning committee.

14. The Council should revise the expectations of elected members who serve on the Planning 
Committee to ensure the highest standards of transparency and openness in relation to other tiers of 
Government in the District.

15. Create a clearly defined pre-application process which distinguishes between strategic and minor 
applications, and between corporate discussions in relation to growth and investment versus 
technical input from the planning service.

16. The Council should replace the existing ‘Design Pad’ with full briefings for all members of the 
Committee on major applications.

17. Quarterly reporting of Section 106 income and expenditure, and enforcement matters should be 
scrutinised by the monitoring officer and reported to committee.

18. The Enforcement policy should be reviewed and appropriately resourced.

19. Use the opportunity of a revised planning and development structure to revisit member and 
officer relationships through the lifecycle of an application to ensure value added and appropriate 
interaction.  This could be achieved through internal and external training and support - and must be 
undertaken collaboratively.

20. Outlines the clear roles and responsibilities of elected members and officers in the determination of 
planning applications

21. Implement a system of regular Directorate Team meetings between the Director and the Heads of 
Service to provide leadership, direction and focus to the service.

22. Linked to resolving issues of structure and permanence within the officer core, establish a culture of 
collaborative and strong leadership including regular opportunities for engagement between officers, 
Heads of Service and Directors.

23. Establish a system of performance indicators which are easily understood by members and officers 
and hold regular feedback sessions for teams and individuals.

24. Develop in-house experience within the planning team by aligning Special Projects, the Local Plan, 
and Development Management teams under a single head of planning service and exercise greater 
restraint over the use of external consultants.

25. Fully exploit the opportunity of technology investment.

26. Revise the validation process to be a back of house function.

27. Ensure clarity within the Council on who holds responsibility for the delivery of the IT strategy, 
updates, and training of staff.

28. The conditions for permanence within the staffing structure and review recruitment proposition to 
ensure the Council can attract and retain high quality personnel.  This will enable clear leadership, 
structure and lines of engagement between officers.

29. Establish clear pathways for engagement with the Council at strategic and operational levels in 
respect of planning consents and development proposals.  For example: Developers to meet with 
Leader and Chief Executive or Director only.  No members of the planning committee should be 
meeting with developers.

43



22

© This document is copyright the Advocacy Group Ltd 2020.

This proposal remains the property of the Advocacy Group Ltd Limited.  It has been supplied solely to assess our 
capabilities as a consultant on this project.  Circulation outside the intended recipient is strictly prohibited.

London

 City Bridge House 
57 Southwark Street 

London, SE1 1RU

020 8629 7190

Bristol

Park House 
10 Park Street 

Bristol, BS1 5HX

0117 915 4554

Southampton

White Building 
1-4 Cumberland Place 

Southampton, SO15 2NP

1. 023 8214 0916

Manchester

125 Deansgate 
Manchester 

M3 2LH

07791 551 334

Contact details

We serve clients nationally from: London, 
Bristol, Southampton and Manchester.

Email: hello@cratus.co.uk

Website: www.cratus.co.uk

Twitter: @CratusComm

44

mailto:hello%40cratus.co.uk?subject=
https://www.cratus.co.uk/
http:/https://twitter.com/cratuscomm?lang=en/@CratusComm


ANNEX 2 
 

PLANNING REVIEW ACTION PLAN 
 
DATE:  JULY 2021 
 
PURPOSE OF PAPER: 
 

To provide Governance and Audit Committee with an overview of the development of and progress of the improvement plan arising 
from the externally commissioned review for the Planning Service. 
 

The table below provides an overview of the action, progress to date and anticipated completion date of the action. This has been 
split into actions that are within the scope of the officers (i.e. improvements to the Planning service) and those that include Member 
engagement (i.e. engagement with the Planning Committee). 
 

Please note that the Action Numbers are referenced back to the initial report provided by Cratus, in Annex 1. 
 

OVERVIEW OF PROGRESS: 

Action 
No. 

Action Progress Expected 
Completion 
Date  

Officer Programme – Operation of Planning Service 

11. Develop a tailored and targeted member training 
programme which addresses specific concerns and in 
particular addresses issues raised around application of 
planning policy in decision making, the framework and 
appropriate use of conditions, and the key stages in 
determination of a larger planning application. 

1. Audit of the training which has taken place.  
2. Review training for gaps and examine training process for 

committee members. 
3. Future training needs identified and a draft schedule 

developed to support ongoing development of the planning 
service. 

 

Training schedule in place until February 2022.  

Complete 

12. A series of workshops in relation to Local Plan 
“ownership” and future revisions. This is likely to be an 
ongoing piece of engagement with elected members. 

Programme of training to be constructed and shared as per 
Recommendation 11.  
 

Early delivery includes Sessions on 27th January and 24th 
February on Local Plan housing/environmental policies and the 
draft Design SPD. 
 

Future sessions to be incorporate as part of the ongoing 
training programme. 

Complete – 
February 2021 
(with ongoing 
action) 

13. More training for officers on best practices when 
presenting to the planning committee. 

The newly appointed Director for Growth and Culture to 
oversee the delivery of this action . The sessions to be 
delivered with support of Chair and Vice Chair of planning 
committee in attendance. 

 August 2021 

17. Quarterly reporting of Section 106 income and 
expenditure, and enforcement matters should be 
scrutinised by the monitoring officer and reported to 
committee. 

Publication of the Infrastructure Funding Statement and 
Associated documents to MHCLG. Regular quarterly briefings 
for Planning Committee in place. 

Complete - 
December 
2020 (with 
ongoing action) 

18. The Enforcement policy should be reviewed and 
appropriately resourced. 

Additional Planning Enforcement budget approved for 2021/22 
and recruitment activity was undertaken, however an 
appointment was not made.   
 

A further recruitment process is underway that is anticipated to 
be complete on 19 July 2021.  
 

Work to refine the Enforcement Policy will take place alongside 
the new Assistant Director for Planning as a priority – it will then 
be presented to Planning Committee. 

Resourcing - 
September 
2021 
 
Policy – 
December 
2021 

21. Implement a system of regular Directorate Team meetings 
between the Director and the Heads of Service to provide 
leadership, direction and focus to the service. 

Agreed and meetings scheduled with Interim Head of 
Development Management. Weekly Team Leaders meetings 
and 1-2-1s in place. Item to be reviewed with the new Assistant 
Director of Planning. 

To be reviewed 
in September 
2021 

22. Linked to resolving issues of structure and permanence 
within the officer core, establish a culture of collaborative 
and strong leadership including regular opportunities for 
engagement between officers, Heads of Service and 
Directors. 

Create channels for junior staff to receive regular 
communications and seek support from Leadership. Ensure 
engagements from 1-2-1’s are meaningful and support the 
development of officers. 

Complete 

23. Establish a system of performance indicators which are 
easily understood by members and officers and hold 
regular feedback sessions for teams and individuals. 

Service Plan developed and approved in April 2021. Delivery 
against objectives and implementation to continue. 

Complete 

24. Develop in-house experience within the planning team by 
aligning Special Projects, the Local Plan, and 
Development Management teams under a single head of 
planning service and exercise greater restraint over the 
use of external consultants. 

Review Structure aligned to Assistant Director role and 
implemented (May-June 2021). Item achieved within current 
structures. Senior Planning Officer's started in May 2021 / 
Enforcement Officer August / recruitment in place for Principle 
Conservation officer and Assistant Director of Planning 
appointed to join in September 2021. 
 
 

Complete 

25.  Fully exploit the opportunity of technology investment. Audit of functionality across systems complete. Implementation 
plan in development working with the South Kesteven ICT 
service to provide training and appropriate solutions across the 
service. 

July 2021 – 
Implementation 
Plan 

45



Roll-out 
Ongoing – 
expected 
completion 
date 
September 
2021 

26. Revise the validation process to be a back of house 
function. 

Engagement and workshop conducted with individual teams 
and jointly. A resource analysis has been completed to 
understand the required resource to absorb validation 
requirements.  
 

Transfer of activity to commence in July 2021. 

August 2021 

27. Ensure clarity within the Council on who holds 
responsibility for the delivery of the IT strategy, updates, 
and training of staff. 

Included within Item 25 once current upgrades have been 
implemented. 

September 
2021 

28. The conditions for permanence within the staffing 
structure and review recruitment proposition to ensure the 
Council can attract and retain high quality personnel. This 
will enable clear leadership, structure and lines of 
engagement between officers. 

Review Structure aligned to Assistant Director role and confirm 
timescales for implementation. 

July 2021 

5. Senior staff advice including legal advice, should routinely 
be available to committee members at the committee 

This has been agreed and implemented. Complete 

Officer and Member Programme – Engagement with Planning Committee and Other Processes 

1. Consider whether the present Committee arrangements 
are fit for purpose 

The committee arrangements are being considered as part of a 
wider review of protocols and processes, which are referenced 
in the actions outlined below. 

External review 
complete – 
ongoing 
engagement 
with Members 
to support the 
development of 
new proposals 
to be 
considered by 
relevant 
committees in 
the Council 
 
Likely 
completion 
date for any 
changes is 
November 
2021. 

2. Clarify the protocols for representations to the Planning 
Committee, ensuring consistency and equity in those for 
and against an application. Adhere strictly to the time 
limits. 

Current speaking arrangements and protocols for 
representations are appropriately clear.  
 

The Chair and Vice Chair of the Planning Committee are 
responsible for ensuring that these protocols are adhered to. 
 
 

External review 
complete – 
ongoing 
engagement 
with Members 
to support the 
development of 
new proposals 
to be 
considered by 
relevant 
committees in 
the Council. 
 
Likely 
completion 
date for any 
changes is 
November 
2021. 

3. Ensure the new protocols are published and readily 
understood by all participants at each planning committee 
and that prospective speakers are reminded of them 
before the meeting. 

Existing protocols to be clearly communicated to participants 
and reviewed once any changes to protocols and scheme of 
delegations are in place.  
 

Informal engagement with Members to support the 
development of new protocols alongside the committee and to 
support familiarisation with any new proposals.   
 
Any revisions to the protocols to be considered by relevant 
committees (I.e. Constitution Committee). 

External review 
complete – 
ongoing 
engagement 
with Members 
to support the 
development of 
new proposals 
to be 
considered by 

46



relevant 
committees in 
the Council. 
 
Likely 
completion 
date for any 
changes is 
November 
2021. 

6. The Council changes its procedures to ensure 
applications are only refused at Committee where 
members have voted to do so based on clear and cogent 
planning grounds.  

Annual Refresher training delivered on 26th May alongside 
regular scheduled training in regard to local policies. 

Complete with 
ongoing 
training plan in 
place. 

7. Agree a revised Scheme of Delegation collaboratively with 
elected members for adoption by the Council and ensure 
any deviation can only be agreed on an exceptional basis 
by the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader of 
the Council. 

An external review (undertaken by Cratus) has developed a 
suggested scheme of delegations. 
 

These initial drafts will be discussed and developed informally 
alongside Members during July 2021 and beyond prior to the 
formal presentation of proposals to relevant committees (i.e. 
Constitution Committee).  

External review 
complete – 
ongoing 
engagement 
with Members 
to support the 
development of 
new proposals 
to be 
considered by 
relevant 
committees in 
the Council. 
 
Likely 
completion 
date for any 
changes is 
November 
2021. 

8. Agree a revised Call-In protocol which permits members 
to call-in applications within their wards, on submission of 
a request containing a sound planning reason. This should 
be adjudicated by a senior manager, ideally the Service 
Director.  

An external review (undertaken by Cratus) has developed 
suggested call-in protocols. 
 

These initial drafts will be discussed and developed informally 
alongside Members during July 2021 and beyond prior to the 
formal presentation of proposals to relevant committees (i.e. 
Constitution Committee). 

External review 
complete – 
ongoing 
engagement 
with Members 
to support the 
development of 
new proposals 
to be 
considered by 
relevant 
committees in 
the Council. 
 
Likely 
completion 
date for any 
changes is 
November 
2021. 

9. The creation of a criteria for when an application justifies a 
site visit will help provide greater clarity and confidence in 
the planning system. 

An external review (undertaken by Cratus) has developed 
suggested criteria for site visits. 
 

These initial drafts will be discussed and developed informally 
alongside Members during July 2021 and beyond prior to the 
formal presentation of proposals to relevant committees (i.e. 
Constitution Committee). 

External review 
complete – 
ongoing 
engagement 
with Members 
to support the 
development of 
new proposals 
to be 
considered by 
relevant 
committees in 
the Council. 
 
Likely 
completion 
date for any 
changes is 
November 
2021. 

47



10. Further, a Code of Conduct for members when attending 
site visits will help protect the council and members from 
any vexatious or otherwise pre-determination and other 
legal challenges. 

An external review (undertaken by Cratus) has developed 
suggested code of conduct Members on site visits. 
 

These initial drafts will be discussed and developed informally 
alongside Members during July 2021 and beyond prior to the 
formal presentation of proposals to relevant committees (i.e. 
Constitution Committee). 

External review 
complete – 
ongoing 
engagement 
with Members 
to support the 
development of 
new proposals 
to be 
considered by 
relevant 
committees in 
the Council. 
 
Likely 
completion 
date for any 
changes is 
November 
2021. 

14. The Council should revise the expectations of elected 
members who serve on the Planning Committee to ensure 
the highest standards of transparency and openness in 
relation to other tiers of Government in the District. 

An external review (undertaken by Cratus) has developed 
suggested expectations of Members. 
 

These initial drafts will be discussed and developed informally 
alongside Members during July 2021 and beyond prior to the 
formal presentation of proposals to relevant committees (i.e. 
Constitution Committee). 

External review 
complete – 
ongoing 
engagement 
with Members 
to support the 
development of 
new proposals 
to be 
considered by 
relevant 
committees in 
the Council. 
 
Likely 
completion 
date for any 
changes is 
November 
2021. 

15. Create a clearly defined pre-application process which 
distinguishes between strategic and minor applications, 
and between corporate discussions in relation to growth 
and investment versus technical input from the planning 
service. 

An external review (undertaken by Cratus) has developed a 
suggested approach to the pre-application process. 
 

These initial drafts will be discussed and developed informally 
alongside Members during July 2021 and beyond prior to the 
formal presentation of proposals to relevant committees (i.e. 
Constitution Committee). 

External review 
complete – 
ongoing 
engagement 
with Members 
to support the 
development of 
new proposals 
to be 
considered by 
relevant 
committees in 
the Council. 
 
Likely 
completion 
date for any 
changes is 
November 
2021. 

16. The Council should replace the existing ‘Design Pad’ with 
full briefings for all members of the Committee on major 
applications. 

Following internal discussion the recommendation to replace 
the ‘Design Pad’ has been removed. 
 

However, following the external review (undertaken by Cratus) 
a suggested approach has been taken to clarify the remit of the 
‘Design Pad’ and the role of officers and Members.  

External review 
complete – 
ongoing 
engagement 
with Members 
to support the 
development of 
new proposals 
to be 
considered by 
relevant 
committees in 
the Council. 
 

48



 
 
 

Likely 
completion 
date for any 
changes is 
November 
2021. 

19. Use the opportunity of a revised planning and 
development structure to revisit member and officer 
relationships through the lifecycle of an application to 
ensure value added and appropriate interaction. This 
could be achieved through internal and external training 
and support - and must be undertaken collaboratively. 

The new Assistant Director for Planning to lead a process with 
Members and Officers to ensure that roles and engagement are 
clear and optimised during the entire lifecycle of a planning 
application. 

March 2022 

20 Outlines the clear roles and responsibilities of elected 
members and officers in the determination of planning 
applications.  

To be communicated and clarified as part of any process 
involving revisions to delegations and processes.   
 

Informal engagement with Members through July prior to the 
development of any formal proposals to be considered by 
relevant committees (i.e. Constitution Committee). 

November 
2021 

29. Establish clear pathways for engagement with the Council 
at strategic and operational levels in respect of planning 
consents and development proposals. For example: 
Developers to meet with Leader and Chief Executive or 
Director only. No members of the planning committee 
should be meeting with developers. 

Following an external review (by Cratus) a suggested pathway 
has been developed with clear roles in engaging with 
developers (i.e. who should/should not communicate with 
developers at different stages). 
 

These will be discussed at informal Member briefing sessions, 
but does not require formal approval because it is an informal 
process and therefore can be applied with immediate effect. 
 

However, it will form part of the papers to Constitution 
Committee. 

August 2021 

4. Specific training for Chair and Vice-Chair on running 
procedures and Chairing of meetings. 

To be examined and provided in consultation with the Chairman 
and Vice-Chairman of the Planning Committee alongside the 
Director of Growth and Culture and newly appointed Assistant 
Director for Planning. 

September 
2021 

49



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 

21 July 2021 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

  Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 

           

 

2020/21 Draft Statement of Accounts 

This report provides the Governance and Audit Committee with the opportunity to review the draft 
version of the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts. 

 

 

Report Author 

Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 

 
01476 406208 

 alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Claire Morgan, Senior Accountant 12 July 2021 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 12 July 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

13 July 2021 

 

Recommendation to the decision maker 

It is recommended that the Governance and Audit Committee reviews the draft Statement 
of Accounts 2020/21 prior to the commencement of the external audit. 

 

51

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 A draft copy of the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts is now available for review by this 

Committee prior to the completion of the audit process and is attached to this report at 

Appendix 1.   

1.2 In accordance with the Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) Amendments Regulations 2021, 

the statutory deadline for completing the 2020/21 audit and publishing the final accounts is 

30 September 2021. 

1.3 The proposed public inspection period will begin on 3 August 2021 and will continue until 

13 September 2021.  During this time members of the public can exercise their right to 

inspect the accounts.  A notice to that effect is published on the Council’s website. 

1.4 Following completion of the audit, the final accounts will be presented to this Committee 

together with the audit opinion.  

1.5 The Narrative Report section of the Statement of Accounts provides a guide to the most 

significant matters reported.  It explains the Council’s financial position and assists in the 

interpretation of the accounting statements. It provides information about the district, 

including issues and challenges affecting the Council and its accounts, the political 

composition, the ambitions of the Council and an overview of the many achievements that 

have been made to improve the quality of life of the residents, businesses and visitors. 

1.6 The Council is required to produce an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) in 

accordance with the CIPFA/SOLACE framework “Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government” in order to meet the statutory requirement set out in Regulation 6 of the 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  The statement is an open and transparent review 

of the effectiveness of the Council’s system of governance, risk management and internal 

control, including performance across all its activities. 

1.7 Members are asked to ensure that the AGS for 2020/21 is an open and transparent 

reflection of the governance arrangements for that financial year.  The AGS forms part of 

the annual accounts and is reviewed by External Audit.   

1.8 Group Accounts have been prepared to reflect the Council’s relationship with Gravitas and 

will be incorporated into the final Statement of Accounts.  Due to materiality thresholds, it 

is not a requirement to include the other Council owned companies in the group accounts. 

1.9 As the audit progresses there may be further amendments which will be incorporated into 

the accounts.  The Committee will be informed of any changes when the final accounts 

are presented for their approval. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

Not applicable. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 It is a statutory requirement to prepare an annual statement of accounts. 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 Not applicable 

 

 

52



 

 
 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 To have the opportunity to review and draw the attention of the Council to issues arising 

out of the draft before publishing the final Statement of Accounts.    

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 Not applicable. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 These are included in the report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The Statement of Accounts must be published by the Council before the 30 September 

2021. It is the responsibility of the Governance and Audit Committee to approve the 

Statement of Accounts on behalf of the Council.  This is the Committee’s opportunity to 

review the unaudited statements prior to them being published. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 There are no equality or safeguarding implications arising from this report. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no exceptional/high risks have been 

identified. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 There are no community safety implications arising as a result of this report. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 Not applicable. 

13 Appendices 

13.1 Appendix 1 – 2020/21 Draft Statement of Accounts 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not applicable 

Previously Considered by: Not applicable 

Final Decision date   30 September 2021 

 

53



This page is intentionally left blank



2020/21

Statement  
of accounts

55



South Kesteven District Council                                  i                                                                
 

  
   

C O N T E N T S    
 
 
                                                                                                            Page Numbers 
 
 
Narrative Statement iv  
 
 
Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 1 
 
 
Core Financial Statements 
 
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 2 
  
Movement in Reserves Statement 3 

 
Balance Sheet 4 
 
Cash Flow Statement 5 
 
Notes to the Core Financial Statements 6 
 
Notes to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 9 
 
Notes to the Movement in Reserves Statement 20 
 
Notes to the Balance Sheet 24 
 
Notes to the Cash Flow Statement 56 
 
Other Disclosure Notes 58 
 
Supplementary Accounting Statements 
 
Housing Revenue Account 61 
 
Collection Fund Account 68 
 
Statement of Group Accounts 71 
 
Accounting Policies 77 
 
Glossary of Terms 89 
 
Auditor’s Report 95  
 
Annual Governance Statement 99 
 
  
 
  

56



South Kesteven District Council                                  ii                                                                
 

Notes to the Accounts        
 
Note          Page Number 
 
1. Accounting Standards that have been issued but not adopted  6 
2. Critical Judgements in applying Accounting Policies   6 
3. Assumption made about the future and other major sources of  7 

uncertainty 
4. Events after the reporting period      8 
5. Expenditure and Funding Analysis     9 
6. Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis    11 
7. Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature    13 
8. Precepts and Levies       13 
9. Income and Expenditure and Movement in Fair Value of Investment 14 

Properties  
10. Non-Service Related Government Grants    14 
11. Grant Income        15 
12. Officer Remuneration       16 
13. Termination Benefits       18 
14. Members Allowances       18 
15. Joint Operations        18 
16. Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under 20 

Statute  
17. Transfer to/from Earmarked Reserves     23 
18. Property, Plant and Equipment      24 
19. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing    26 
20. Heritage Assets        27 
21. Investment Properties       28 
22. Intangible Assets        29 
23. Financial Instruments       30 
24. Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments  32 
25. Debtors         38 
26. Asset Held for Sale       38 
27. Cash and Cash Equivalents      38 
28. Borrowing         39 
29. Creditors         39 
30. Leases         39 
31. Provisions        42 
32. Defined Benefit Pension Scheme     43 
33. Usable Reserves        49 
34. Unusable Reserves       50 
35. Cash flow Statement – Operating Activities    56 
36. Cash flow Statement – Investing Activities    57 
37. Cash flow Statement – Financing Activities    57 
38. Interest in other Companies and Entities    58 
39. External Audit Costs       59 
40. Related Parties        59 
41. Authorisation of Accounts for Issue     60 
 

Notes to the HRA 
 
Note          Page Number 
1. Housing Stock        63 
2. Land, Houses and Other Property     64 
3. HRA Revaluation Loss       65 
4. Major Repairs Reserve       65 
5. Financing Capital Expenditure      66 

57



South Kesteven District Council                                  iii                                                                
 

6. Capital Receipts        66 
7. Analysis of Reconciling Items in Movement on the Housing 

Revenue Account Statement      67 
8. Rent Arrears        67 
 

Notes to the Collection Fund 
 
Note          Page Number 
1. Council Tax        69 
2. Business Rates        69 
3. Precepts and Demands       70 
 

Group Accounts        Page Number 
 
Group Movement in Reserves Statement     72 
Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement   73 
Group Balance Sheet        74 
Group Cash Flow Statement       75 
 
Note           
1. Assets Held for Sale       76 
2. Cash and Cash Equivalents      76 
3. Cashflow         76 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

58



South Kesteven District Council                                  iv                                                                
 

Narrative Statement 
 
Introduction 
 
The Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021 has been prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA). 
 
The Statement of Accounts provides information to enable members of the public, Councillors, 
partners, stakeholders and other interested parties to: 
 

• Understand the financial position and outturn for 2020/21 

• Have confidence that public money has been accounted for in an appropriate manner 

• Be assured that the financial position of the Council is sound and secure 
 
The Narrative report provides information about the district, including issues and challenges 
affecting the Council and its accounts, the political make up, the ambitions of the Council and 
an overview of the many achievements that have been made to improve the quality of life of 
our residents, businesses and visitors. 
 
An Introduction to South Kesteven District Council 
 
South Kesteven is a largely rural district located in the south-west corner of Lincolnshire 
incorporating the four distinctive market towns of Grantham, Stamford, Bourne and The 
Deepings and over 80 rural villages covering over 365 square miles of stunning countryside. 
 
The district has excellent transport infrastructure as the road network provides multiple access 
points to the A1 and residents can board the East Coast mainline trains which provide quick 
access to London which is only an hour away. 
 
Information about the Council 
 
Political Structure 
 
During the financial year of reporting the Council had 30 Wards represented by 56 Members. 
The political composition of the Council was as follows:  there were 40 Conservatives, 12 
Independents (including 2 Liberal Democrats who aligned with the Independent Group), 3 
Labour, and 1 Unaligned. 
 
The Council operates with a Cabinet structure, four Overview and Scrutiny Committees and a 
Governance and Audit Committee responsible for corporate governance and approval of the 
Statement of Accounts. There is also an Alcohol, Entertainment and Late Night Refreshment 
Licensing Committee, Constitution Committee, Employment Committee, Licensing 
Committee, Planning Committee and a Companies Committee. 
 
The Cabinet is chaired by the Leader of the Council with each member of the Cabinet being 
allocated a portfolio, or area of the Council’s business, through the Leader’s Scheme of 
Delegation.   The Cabinet has executive decision making powers and meets on a monthly 
basis. 
 
In line with legislation and the Constitution, a number of areas of decision making are the 
responsibility of the Cabinet and senior officers, with Council retaining ultimate responsibility 
for the Policy and Budgetary Framework of the Council. 
 
 
 
 

59



South Kesteven District Council                                  v                                                                
 

Services Provided by the Council 
 
SKDC has a reputation of being an outward looking Council that is keen to engage and partner 
with external organisations and stakeholders. It provides a range of services to the population 
of approximately 143,000 residents which includes: 
 

• Providing a comprehensive arts and leisure offer 

• Providing high quality street scene services Providing business support and economic 
development through its fully owned company – InvestSK 

• Providing high quality grounds maintenance through its fully owned company – 
EnvironmentSK 

• Providing a network of Customer and Community Access Hubs across the District  

• Supporting residents manage their bills by providing housing benefit and council tax 
support Landlord services for approximately 5,920 social rented properties which 
includes the provision of a repairs and maintenance service for all the Council 
properties 

• Providing homelessness support to those most in need 

• Considering and administering Planning and Building Control applications 

• Managing car parks and public conveniences  

• Compiling and maintaining the electoral register and administering elections 
 
The Council also provides a number of services which support these operational functions 
including Human Resources, Financial Services, Legal Services, Democratic Services and 
Communications. 
 
 
The Council’s Outlook   
 
Financial Environment 
 
As with most authorities financial planning remains challenging  with continued  uncertainty 
surrounding future funding arrangements. Government has confirmed the long-awaited Fair 
Funding review and Business Rates review has been postponed until April 2022.    The 
2020/21 budget framework that was approved by Council on 2 March 2020 set out a three 
year position and showed funding challenges alongside the changes to the national funding 
arrangements.  During 2020/21 an amended budget framework was presented and approved 
by Council in September 2021.  This budget reflected the necessary changes to both forecast 
income and expenditure projections based on the changes that were being experienced during 
the year.  In the medium term, the exact timing of the funding challenges remains unclear but 
the Council is not being complacent and already has plans in place to reduce its operating 
expenditure and begin to create financial headroom in order to meet the challenges ahead.  
 
Governance and Risk 
 
In accordance with the Local Code of Corporate Governance and best practice, the Council’s 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) covers all significant corporate systems, processes and 
controls spanning the whole range of the Council’s activities. It provides an overview of the 
Council’s key governance systems and explains how they are tested and the assurances that 
can be relied on to show that the systems are working effectively.  The AGS has been prepared 
in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework and conforms to the Council’s 
Local Code of Corporate Governance and covers all significant corporate systems, processes 
and controls across all of the Council’s activities.   
 
The Council has an effective risk and performance management framework which is 
embedded across all areas of business activity.  Risk registers are maintained at a corporate 
and service area level. Corporate risks are reported to the Corporate Management Team and 

60



South Kesteven District Council                                  vi                                                                
 

to the Governance and Audit Committee biannually. We have focussed performance 
management arrangements which enables effective monitoring, control and reporting across 
the programmes of activity and also supports managers and leading officers with training and 
project management tools, techniques and performance management advice. In accordance 
with the Local Government Transparency Code we publish how we spend our money, how 
we use our assets, how we make decisions and have regard to issues important to local 
people. 
 
The Council’s internal auditors identified that although there are some weaknesses in the 
internal control framework, there is a positive direction of travel with investment in a corporate 
wide monitoring and tracking system for all audit and governance actions (4Action) and regular 
reporting of outstanding audit actions to both the Corporate Management Team and each 
Governance and Audit Committee.  Action plans are put in place to address all outstanding 
actions particularly in those areas where management concerns have also been raised and 
further work is required to strengthen the control framework. 
 
The Council’s response to COVID-19 
 
The Council continued to provide services to residents throughout the COVID-19 pandemic 
alongside delivering additional support to both residents and businesses in the district.  The 
Councils’ response to COVID-19 is detailed in the AGS and a summary of the key 
achievements directly related to COVID-19 are as follows: 
 
Support to Businesses: 

• 2,566 businesses received £29.7m of grant funding during the first phase of the 
pandemic; 

• Up to 31 March 2021 the Council had awarded £12.3m of grants to local businesses 
of second phase funding. 

 

Support to Residents 
 

• 12,686 Council Tax account holders received Hardship payments totalling £754k; 

• £164,500 Test and Trace payments were awarded to 329 claimants; 

• 631 Homeless people were provided with accommodation; 

• 2,865 requests were received by our SK Community Hub. 
 

Key 2020/21 Achievements 
 
Council approved the 2020-2023 South Kesteven Corporate Plan on 1 October 2020.  The 
Corporate Plan sets out the strategic vision and key priorities of the Council. The Corporate 
Plan underpins the Council’s strategic activity and provides the performance framework for 
managing the delivery of the actions and priorities in the Plan. It is good practice for a public 
sector organisation seeking to deliver a wide set of aims and objectives to set out a Corporate 
Plan and regularly review the activity and achievements against it.  The key achievements 
against the plan are summarised below: 
 
Commercial & Operations 
 

• Budget for the acquisition of land to build a new, modern depot was agreed by Council 
in November with the purchase of a new site completed on April 2021.  

• For 2020/21 96% of streets met the A Grade of the national clean streets standard 
which means there was no litter or refuse.  The remaining 4% achieved the B grade 
which means there predominantly free of litter and refuse apart from small items. 

• In 2020/21 the Council delivered the Garden Waste service to 35,893 customers which 
was a 5.18% increase on 2019/20. 

• Public satisfaction with Wyndham Park is 86.7% which is just below the target of 90+% 
however Queen Elizabeth Park satisfaction is 87.7% which is above the target of 

61



South Kesteven District Council                                  vii                                                                
 

80+%.  Green Flag status at Wyndham Park has been maintained for the last 10 years 
and in 2021 achieved its first Heritage Award. 

• Levels of recycling have reduced slightly across the district, at 38.78% compared with 
40.8% in 2019/20, but we are working with our Lincolnshire Waste Partnership 
authorities to improve this position. A countywide campaign seeks to reduce the 
proportion of non-recyclable materials collected.   

• In 2020/21 six electric vehicle charging pints were installed.  It is estimated that 30,000 
electric vehicle miles were generated through use of the charging points to 31 March 
2021, helping to reduce the district’s overall carbon emissions by 7.65 tonnes. 

 

Corporate 
 

• The Council implemented a COVID-19 Recovery Plan.  The action log indicates that 
217 actions have been completed as part of the South Kesteven response to the 
pandemic covering a broad range of the five priority areas within the Corporate plan.  
These areas include the re-instatement of services, re-instatement of the High Street 
and effective communication with residents, Businesses, partners and staff. 

• Full Council approved a balanced financial plan for 2021/22 on 1 March 2021. 

• Service plans for each service (with the exception of two services with vacant posts at 
Head of Service level) were developed for 2021/22 and were approved by the Chief 
Executive setting out the financial and performance target for the financial year 
2021/22 which focus on the delivery of the Corporate Plan and the 2021/22 budget. 

• In 2020/21the Council achieved spend of 54.33% with local suppliers against a target 
of 60%.   

• The Council singed up to the Mental Health Challenge and agreed an action plan.  A 
motion will be tabled to Full Council in July that proposes that South Kesteven District 
Council formally sign up to the Local Authority Mental Health Challenge that will set 
out supporting positive mental wellbeing as being a priority for the Council. 

• The amounts collected from Council Tax 98.40% (2019/20 98.11%), Non-Domestic 
Rates 97.73% (2019/20 99.16%) and Housing Rent 97.35% (2019/20 97.31%) during 
the year remained at a high level. 
 

Growth & Culture 
 

• In 2020/21 446 houses were completed against a Local Plan target of 650 as COVID-
19 has impacted on house build performance, although this level is not dissimilar to 
historic averages.  The Council is working proactively with developers and Homes 
England to stimulate high quality, sustainable growth. 

• The Council secured £5.560m Future High Street Funding to March 2024.  Planned 
spend of this is split into 3 distinct projects: Station approach, Market Place and the 
conversion of 22 upper floor units into residential dwellings. 

• The Council supported the roll out of improved broadband and other key infrastructure 
to support local businesses and rural areas.  The 2020/21 target for broadband 
coverage across the district was 97% and 96.44% was achieved. 

 
Housing & Property 

• A review of safeguarding processes and staffing has been undertaken to ensure the 
Council has robust policy and procedures in place relating to the safeguarding of 
vulnerable individuals. This review has run alongside the Council’s self-assessment 
submission to the S11 Safeguarding Children audit required to fulfil the Authorities 
duties under the Children Act 2004. Audit completed January 2021.  
The Council’s submission to this audit is currently going through the Lincolnshire 
Safeguarding Children Partnership assessment process. The final report from the 
Partnership relating to the outcome will be published in September 2021. 

62



South Kesteven District Council                                  viii                                                                
 

• The Council prevented 60 homelessness cases against a target of 130.  The main 
reason for this difference is that there was an embargo on possession proceedings 
due to COVID-19. 

• The Council provided 14 new Council Homes across the District. 

• The Council worked with housing associations and developers to support the delivery 
of 49 affordable homes against target of 100 which was due to COVID-19 impacting 
on site starts. 

 
2020/21 Financial Performance 
 
From a financial perspective, 2020/21 has been the most turbulent year for many years and 
one that has proved extremely challenging.  Almost immediately after the budget was 
approved by Council on 2 March 2020, the country went into lockdown and subsequently the 
budget framework was facing a high degree of volatility and uncertainty that continued 
throughout the remainder of the financial year and into 2021/22. 
 
The Council responded in many ways including the formation of COVID-19 financial impact 
reports that tracked and monitored the situation throughout the year including updated 
narrative on the levels of Government support, the impact on the income of the Council, the 
impact on Business Rate and Council Tax collection and the necessary unforeseen 
expenditure that was being incurred. 
 
This work culminated in an amended budget being presented and approved by Council on 17 
September 2020 which set out the budget allocations that required re-basing and showed in 
detail the full extent of the potential deficit the Council was potentially exposed to based on a 
range of scenarios and in the absence of mitigating actions being implemented.  The report 
also confirmed that the Council’s Budget stabilisation reserve may need to be utilised to meet 
any deficit that arises; this reserve was further bolstered by specific allocations to it as part of 
the Budget framework proposals for 2021/22 that were approved by Council on 1 March 2021. 
 
During the year 2020/21 there have been a high number of grants that have been awarded to 
the Council in order to serve a number of objectives ranging from supporting local businesses, 
communities, residents and also to provide specific financial support to the Council for 
reimbursement of lost income and supporting the financial recovery of the culture and leisure 
services.  These are summarised below in table 1: 
 

Table 1 - Specific Covid Grants 2020/21 

 
 
Name of Grant Amount 

Awarded 
2020/21 
£’000 

Re-opening High Streets Safely 126 

Covid Compliance and Enforcement (Covid Marshalls) 55 

LCC Covid Outbreak Management (Test and Trace) 100 

Leisure Recovery 321 

Cultural Recovery 230 

Furlough scheme (Arts and Building Control) 331 

Business Grants awarded  42,145 

63



South Kesteven District Council                                  ix                                                                
 

Winter Grant Scheme  8 

Tranches 1 – 4 Government support for Council  1,793 

Council Tax Hardship Grant 924 

Co-payment losses contribution 653 

 
Revenue Expenditure and Income 
 
Revenue expenditure is generally on items that are consumed within a year and is financed 
by Council Tax, Government Grants, National Domestic Rates and other income.  Gross 
Revenue expenditure in 2020/21 totalled £63.094m compared with £70.247m in 2019/20.  The 
decrease in expenditure in 2020/21 is mainly due to a reduction in capital charges of £4.739m 
which are reversed using statutory accounting adjustments so there is no impact on Council 
resources and a reduction of £1.150m in housing benefit expenditure which is offset by a 
reduction in the housing benefit subsidy funding received. 
 
The following charts show the spend in each directorate during 2020/21 and the sources of 
funding which the Council received: 
 

 
 
 

Commercial & 
Operations, 15,073, 

24%

Corporate, 26,101, 
41%

Growth & Culture, 
8,744, 14%

Housing & Property, 
13,176, 21%

Revenue Expenditure £000

64



South Kesteven District Council                                  x                                                                
 

 
 
 

Revenue Budget 
 
Each year the Council produces a 3 year budget which is approved by Full Council in March, 
this budget is then monitored and adjusted throughout the year to reflect where expenditure 
is expected to be incurred and as new priorities are approved.  Due to the financial impact of 
COVID-19 an amended budget was approved by Council on Table 1 shows the adjusted 
revenue budget compared with the actual net expenditure by directorate at 31 March 2021: 
 
Table 2 - Revenue Outturn Position 
 

Directorate 2020/21 
Original 
Budget 

£’000 

2020/201 
Amended 

Budget 
£’000 

2020/21 
Outturn 

£’000 

2020/21 
Variance 

£’000 

Commercial and 
Operations 

8,033 9,664 9,809 145 

Corporate 7,283 10,109 9,362 (747) 

Growth & Culture 5,161 6,718 6,174 (544) 

Housing & Property 1,238 2,090 1,612 (478) 

Housing Revenue 
Account Recharge 

(2,558) (2,566) (2,592) (26)  

Sub-total 19,157 26,015 24,365 (1,650) 

Housing Revenue 
Account 

(8,018) (7,118) (18,034) (10,916) 

Net Cost of Services 10,664 18,897 6,331 (12,566) 

Internal Drainage Board*  (724)  

Investment Property* 321 

Adjusted Net Cost of 
Services Total 

5,928 

*The net cost of service is adjusted at year end to transfer these items below the line as per 
accounting regulations 
 

Council Tax, 9,621, 
12%

NNDR, 5,344, 7%

Fees and Charges, 
6,361, 8%

Interest  Income, 
419, 1%

HRA Rental Income, 
24,168, 31%Non-service Related 

Grants, 5,550, 7%

Other HRA Income, 
1,170, 2%

Investment Property 
Income, 337, 0%

Service Related 
Grants, 25,467, 32%

Sources Of Income £000

65



South Kesteven District Council                                  xi                                                                
 

General Fund Outturn 
 
The outturn position shown at table 2 details a net underspend of £1.650m when compared 
with the amended budget. This underspend includes a number of statutory accounting 
adjustments which are reversed out to ensure there is no impact on the tax payer. The outturn 
position following the removal of the accounting adjustments and budget carry forwards results 
in an underspend of £3.014m.  
 
There are a number of under and over spends which account for this variance which include 
in year vacancies which resulted in an underspend of £428k although this is partly offset by 
an overspend in agency fees of £115k.  The Council received additional income of £856k from 
a number of grants including job retention grant, new burdens and cultural recovery grant.  
Additional income of £670k was received from a number of service areas including car parking, 
commercial rent and planning.  Expenditure savings totalling £1.424m were achieved across 
the Council which include an alteration to the works to the Council offices and a reduction in 
advertising, postage and printing costs.  The savings and additional income received by the 
Council are partly offset by an increase in expenditure of £995k which includes the award of 
£739k Council Tax relief which is funded by a Section 31 grant and a reduction in income of 
£240k from court fees.  which are partly offset   which are partly offset by a number of service 
areas were achieved totalled £1.424m.  The 2020/21 Capital and Revenue Outturn reports 
provides detailed explanation for the variances and can be accessed 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=4115&Ver=4. 
 
 
Housing Revenue Account Outturn 
 
The outturn position for the HRA shown at table 2 details an in year surplus of £10.916m 
(2019/20 £2.821m surplus) when compared with the amended budget. The difference 
between 2019/20 and 2020/21 mainly relates to a revaluation gain in 2020/21 of £12.353m 
compared with a reduced gain of only £9.056m in 2019/20, a reduced impairment charge of 
£2.602m in 2020/21 compared with £4.567m in 2019/20 these gains are reversed using 
statutory accounting adjustments so there is no impact on Council resources. There was also 
a reduction of £0.868m in repairs cost which was due to a delay in repairs due to COVID-19 
as properties needed to be accessed to complete the repair.  The 2020/21 Capital and 
Revenue Outturn reports provides detailed explanation for the variances. 
 
Capital Expenditure 
 
Capital expenditure is defined as expenditure incurred on assets which have a life exceeding 
one year.  The Council incurred expenditure totalling £5.396m in 2020/21 compared with 
£16.108m in 2019/20.  This difference mainly relates to £2.491m of loans to other 
organisations in 2019/20, £2.904m of expenditure in 2019/20 on the cinema development and 
associated public realm work, £1.964m reduction in expenditure on HRA major repair works 
due to COVID-19 restrictions, £2.299m of expenditure was incurred on New Build properties 
compared with £0.404m in 2020/21 and there was a reduction in the expenditure on equipment 
of £1.226m which mainly relates to the expenditure incurred on the university fit-out project 
(£0.581m), the wireless project (£0.194m) and a number of smaller capital projects (£0.172m) 
in 2019/20.  The following chart details the capital expenditure incurred in 2020/21. 
 
 

66

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=4115&Ver=4.


South Kesteven District Council                                  xii                                                                
 

 
 
 
It can be seen from the chart that 12.9% of the capital expenditure was assets under 
construction.  This expenditure primarily relates to £0.229m on an office conversion on Elm 
Street in Stamford and £0.405m has been invested in developing new homes in the HRA. 
 
Expenditure on the HRA accounts for 48.22% of the total capital expenditure, the £2.602m 
incurred related to enhancing Council dwellings, for example replacing roofs, kitchens and 
bathrooms. 
 
Vehicle, Plant and Equipment accounts for 22.72% of the expenditure incurred.  This 
expenditure includes £0.939m on vehicles, £0.779m relates to the General Fund and £0.160m 
to the HRA.  £0.287m was invested in new equipment which includes £0.107m on the fit-out 
of the University which is located in the Savoy cinema building and £72k on vehicle electric 
charging points in Welham Street Car Park. 
 
 
The other forms of capital expenditure relate to capital grants released to finance capital 
assets owned by third parties, heritage and intangible assets.  £614k was incurred on Disabled 
Facilities Grants and £37k on Shop Front Grants which are both financed by Government 
Grants. 
 
Capital Financing 
 
The Council has funded the 2020/21 Capital Programme from Capital Receipts, Government 
Grants, the Major Repairs Reserve, Other Grants and Contributions and Use of Reserves.  
The following charts details the financing of the capital expenditure:  
 

HRA Expenditure, 
2,602, 48.22%

Other Land & 
Buildings, 193, 

3.58%

Vehicles, Plant & 
Equipment, 1,226, 

22.72%

Assets Under 
Construction, 696, 

12.90%

Intangible Assets, 
13, 0.24%

Heritage Assets , 15, 
0.28%

Disabled Facilities 
Grant, 614, 11.38%

Other Grants, 37, 
0.69%

Capital Expenditure £000

67



South Kesteven District Council                                  xiii                                                                
 

 
 
Note - £3.222m of HRA loan repayment and £0.142m Minimum Revenue Provision were also 
financed from working balances. 
 
The Non-Enhancing Capital and replacement vehicles expenditure incurred by the HRA has 
been financed by the Major Repairs Reserve which is ring-fenced to finance HRA capital 
expenditure and HRA debt repayment.  The assets that are currently being constructed and 
the purchase of an additional dwelling were financed using the HRA capital receipts received 
from the disposal of HRA assets. 
 
The Council released £1.255m of reserves to finance 23% of the remaining expenditure.  The 
main use of these reserves was the office conversion on Elm Street (£0.229m) in Stamford 
and replacement vehicles (£0.768m). 
 
The council utilised £0.770m of government grants of which £0.614m was used to finance the 
disabled facilities grants, £97k was towards the cost of the university fit-out, £44k towards the 
cost of the Vehicle Electric Charging Points and £15k was used to finance shop front grants.  
 
At 31 March 2021 the balance on the ring-fenced Major Repairs Reserve was £17.90m which 
will be invested in continuing to enhance Council dwellings and other HRA assets. The 
balance of £8.057m on the HRA capital receipts reserve will be used to increase Council 
housing stock.  The General Fund capital receipts reserve had a balance of £2.195m.  The 
Council continues to generate its own resources through the disposal of assets deemed to be 
surplus.  During 2020/21 £0.797m of HRA capital receipts were received which mainly relate 
to the sale of Council dwellings. 
 
Capital and Revenue Budget Monitoring 
 
 
The Council monitors its capital and revenue budgets on a monthly basis and produces 
quarterly monitoring reports which are  presented to the Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet.  These reports highlight 
significant under and overspends so that members are aware of any potential financial 
pressures that may arise from these variances.  Any financial pressures which are expected 
to impact on future years are incorporated into the Medium Term Financial Plan and the 
budget report for the following year.  The 2020/21 Revenue and Capital Outturn report 
presented to Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, Cabinet and Governance and Audit Committee  provides further detail on the 
variances between the adjusted budget and actual spend. 

General Fund 
Capital Receipts, 

204, 4%

HRA Capital 
Receipts, 371, 7%

Grants & 
Contributions, 770, 

14%

Use of Reserves, 
1,255, 23%

Major Repairs 
Reserve, 2,796, 

52%

Capital Funding £000

68



South Kesteven District Council                                  xiv                                                                
 

 
LOOKING FORWARD  
 
Strategic Direction - Vision 
 
Following the approval of the Corporate Plan in October 2020, the budget setting and medium 
term financial planning underpins and support’s the delivery of the stated ambitions as set out 
in the Plan.  This clarity of focus and purposes allows the Council to be clear on how it’s 
funding will be prioritised and enable disinvestment or re-allocation from non-priority areas.   
The Plan now sets out the core of the Council’s overarching strategic planning framework 
which includes the Medium Term Financial Plan, Local Plan and arrangements for delivering 
good governance.  
 
Sustainable Financial Autonomy 
 
Sustainable financial autonomy remains a cope part of the Council’s ambitions whereby it is 
no longer reliant on Government grant support to deliver its Corporate Plan ambitions but is 
able to generate income for re-investment. Accordingly, the Council is committed to: 
 

• An ongoing, robust and detailed review of the assumptions that underpin the Medium 
Term Financial Plan supporting by scenario planning linked to the timing of the national 
funding distribution changes specifically business rates reset and the Fair Funding 
review. Ensuring a balanced budget position is achieved through the transformation, 
modernisation and service review programme which is designed to reduce costs, drive 
efficiencies and ensure that resources are deployed effectively and directed to where 
they are most needed. 

• Delivering budget reductions and savings included within annual budgets.  

• Maximising key income streams, including business rates, new homes bonus, fees and 
charges, investment income, etc.  

• The prudent use of reserves and balances, as these can only be used once. 

• Ensuring that the Capital investment ambitions are supported by robust business 
cases that demonstrate value for money and support the Corporate Plan.  The Capital 
programme is supported by a robust   governing framework that includes details of the 
capital cost and financing of each of the capital investments. 

• Commissioning services that are relevant to the community and valued by those who 
use them. 

• Reviewing the costs and performance of operating assets and identifying those that 
are classified as surplus to requirements or can be disposed of to generate capital 
receipts. 

 
The Housing Revenue Account relates to the management of the Council’s social housing 
stock.  Given the issues identified in the delivery of landlord health and safety compliance, 
considerable improvement plans have been put in place in 2020/2021 and 2021/22 as part of 
the engagement with the Regulator of Social Housing.  As the Housing Service continues its 
journey to full regulatory compliance and ensures resources are allocated to meet and manage 
emerging risks, there is the increased possibility of previously unforeseen areas of expenditure 
being incurred in 2021/2022. 
 
EXPLANATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
The 2020/21 Statement of Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2020/21, issued by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2021.  The Code requires 
that core and supplementary statements are produced together with disclosure notes and the 
style and format of the accounts complies with the local authority accounting standards.  As 
recommended by CIPFA and our external auditors the Council continues to ‘de-clutter ‘the 
accounts by annually reviewing the content and removing unnecessary detail. 

69



South Kesteven District Council                                  xv                                                                
 

 
The accounts give a true and fair view of South Kesteven’s financial position for the financial 
year 2020/21.  The accounting policies are outlined on pages 77 to 88 and have been fairly 
and consistently applied.  Proper and up-to-date accounting records are maintained and all 
reasonable steps are taken to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 
 
The Interim Director of Finance is the statutory officer responsible for the proper administration 
of the Council’s financial affairs (referred to in the statement as the Chief Finance Officer).  
They are required by law to confirm that the Council’s system of internal controls can be relied 
upon to produce an accurate statement of accounts.  The statement of assurance for 2020/21 
(known as the Statement of Responsibilities) appears on page 1 of this document. 
 
The Core Financial Statements are: 
 

• Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (Page 2) - this shows the 
accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with IFRS rather than 
the amount to be funded from taxation.  
 
The Net Cost of Service has decreased from £12.560m in 2019/20 to £5.928m in 
2020/21.  This is primarily due to an HRA revaluation gain in 2020/21 of £12.353m 
compared with a reduced gain of only £9.056m in 2019/20 and a reduced impairment 
charge of £2.602m in 2020/21 compared with £4.567m in 2019/20.  There was also a 
reduction of £0.868m in repairs cost which was due to a delay in repairs due to COVID-
19 as properties needed to be accessed to complete repairs.   
 
The movement in Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure is technical in 
nature. The decrease of £0.371m consists of a net increase of £83k on interest payable 
and receivable, a reduction of £0.223m on net interest on the pension liability and the 
£0.281m movement in the value of the property fund investment.    
 
There has been an increase of £3.441m in the income received from taxation and non-
specific grants.  There was a decrease of £0.482m in NNDR and Section 31 business 
rate grant.  There was an increase in Council tax of £0.352m and a reduction in New 
Homes Bonus of £0.143m.  The Council received £3.440m of Section 31 grants to fund 
the cost of COVID-19 which includes £0.739m to fund the cost of the Council Tax 
Hardship awards, £0.653m Co-payment Losses grant and £1.793m COVID Support 
grant. 
 
The combination of these variances means there has been an increase of £9.511m in 
the surplus on the ‘Provision of Services’. Non-current assets have been revalued 
during the year and this has resulted in a surplus of £13.250m (Surplus of £8.263m in 
19/20) being recognised in the CIES. This relates mainly to the upward revaluation of 
Council Dwellings.  Changes in actuarial assumptions in the pension fund have 
resulted in a loss of £14.974m (18/19 surplus of £10.325m) mostly resulting from a 
change in methodology for estimating the discount rate and inflation forecasts.  
 

• Movement in Reserves Statement (Page 3) – this shows the movement in the year 
of the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those 
that can be applied to fund expenditure) and ‘unusable reserves’ (those that an 
authority is not able to utilise to provide services).  

 

• Balance Sheet (Page 4) – The Balance Sheet shows the Council’s assets and 
liabilities at 31 March each year, in accordance with the Council’s Accounting Policies. 
There is an inverse relationship between the Council’s net worth and in particular 
pension liabilities i.e. as pension liabilities increase the Council’s net worth reduces 
and vice versa. The net assets have increased by £6.683m largely due to: 

70



South Kesteven District Council                                  xvi                                                                
 

 
- an increase of £15.784m in Property, Plant and Equipment which relates to 

revaluation gains and the acquisition of new assets;  
- an increase of £11.450m in Short Term Debtors which mainly relates to the 

Central Government and Lincolnshire County Council Collection Fund Debtor; 
- an increase of £13.692m in Short Term Investments and Cash and Cash 

Equivalents which is due to higher cash balances following the receipt of 
additional Section 31 grants received during the year; 

- an increase of £17m in Short Term Creditors which mainly relates to the receipt 
of additional Section 31 grants; 

- an increase of £17.873m in other long term liabilities which relates to an 
increase in the pension liabilities. 

 

• Cash flow Statement (Page 5) – this shows the inflows and outflows of cash arising 
from transactions with third parties for revenue and capital purposes.  
 

• Notes (pages 6) – these provide supporting context to the above Statements.  
 
Supplementary Financial Statements  
 

• Housing Revenue Account (pages 61) - This reflects a statutory obligation to 
account separately for the Council’s housing landlord function.  It details the major 
elements of housing revenue expenditure – maintenance, administration and capital 
financing costs and how these are met by rents and other income.  It is noted that the 
surplus was £15.341m in 2020/21 (£8.959m in 2019/20) this increase is mainly due to 
a revaluation gain in 2020/21 of £12.353m compared with a reduced gain of only 
£9.056m in 2019/20 and a reduced impairment charge of £2.602m in 2020/21 
compared with £4.567m in 2019/20.  There was also a reduction of £0.868m in repairs 
cost which was due to a delay in repairs due to COVID-19 as properties needed to be 
accessed to complete repairs.   

 

• Collection Fund (pages 68) – this reflects the statutory requirement for the Council 
to maintain a separate account providing details of receipts of Council Tax and 
Business Rates and any associated payments to precepting authorities and central 
government.  It is noted that there is now a deficit of £22.710m on the Business Rates 
section of the Collection Fund compared with a surplus of £0.322m £2.590m in 
2019/20. There are a number of variables that affect this including valuation appeals 
by businesses to the Valuation Office and collection rates.   The deficit is distributed 
as follows: £11.353m Central Government, £9.087m South Kesteven District Council 
and £2.270m Lincolnshire County Council.  The deficit relates to an in -year reduction 
in the net business rates collectible following the award of additional reliefs to support 
businesses during the COVID-19 pandemic which are funded by Section 31 grants.  
The Council received the Section 31 grant to fund the additional reliefs in 2020/21 but 
due to the technical nature of the Collection Fund they will be used to fund the deficit 
in future years.  The Council has transferred the grant to a newly created a Section 31 
Grant reserve which had a balance of £8.828m at 31 March 2021.   

 

• Statement of Group Accounts (page 71) – according to statutory requirements the 
Council is required to produce Group Accounts where it has subsidiaries, joint ventures 
or associates. The Council has four wholly owned companies (EnvironmentSK, 
Gravitas Housing Ltd, InvestSK and LeisureSK) whose accounts require consolidation. 
However, the transactions relating to EnvironmentSK and InvestSK are not material as 
they receive the majority of their funding from the Council.  Therefore only the company 
accounts of Gravitas Ltd have been consolidated with the Council’s.   LeisureSK has 
only been operating since 1 January 2021 so the Group Accounts in 2021/22 will also 
include this company as well. 

 

71



South Kesteven District Council                                  xvii                                                                
 

• Glossary of Terms (page 89) – This explains key terms used throughout the document 
further. 

 
Further Information 
Further information about the Statement of Accounts is available from 
accountancy@southkesteven.gov.uk  or Finance Team, The Council Offices, St Peter’s Hill, 
Grantham, Lincolnshire, NG31 6PZ.  In addition, members of the public have a statutory 
right to inspect the accounts before the annual audit is completed.  The availability of the 
accounts for inspection is advertised on our website at 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8920  

72

mailto:accountancy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8920


South Kesteven District Council                                  1                                                                
 

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
 
The Council's Responsibilities 
 
The Council is required to: 
 

• make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that 
one of its officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  In this Council, 
that officer is the Interim Director of Finance (Chief Finance Officer). 

 

• manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 
safeguard its assets. 

 

• approve the Statement of Accounts. 
 
 
The Chief Finance Officer’s Responsibilities 
 
The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council's Statement of 
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). 
 
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Finance Officer has:  
 

• selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently 
 

• made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent 
 

• complied with the Local Authority Code 
 
The Chief Finance Officer has also: 
 

• kept proper accounting records which were up-to-date 
 

• taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
 
CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE 
 
I certify that the accounts set out in this document present a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Council at the accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year 
ended 31 March 2021. 
 
    
           
   

Richard Wyles CPFA, ACMA, FCMA           Councillor Ian Stokes               
CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER                   Chairman of Governance & Audit Committee 
30 September 2021                   30 September 2021 
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 

73



South Kesteven District Council                                  2                                                                
 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
 

G
ro

s
s
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro

s
s
 I
n
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

N
o
te

G
ro

s
s
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro

s
s
 I
n
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

Restated 2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

15,131 (5,946) 9,185 Commercial & Operations 15,073 (5,264) 9,809

29,375 (46,255) (16,880) Corporate 26,101 (47,083) (20,982)

10,334 (3,493) 6,841 Growth & Culture 8,744 (2,535) 6,209

15,407 (1,993) 13,414 Housing & Property 13,176 (2,284) 10,892

70,247 (57,687) 12,560 Cost Of Services 63,094 (57,166) 5,928

Other Operating Expenditure

0 (1,328) (1,328) (Gain)/Loss Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 (507) (507)

2,410 0 2,410 Precepts & Levies 8 2,560 0 2,560

802 0 802 Contribution Housing Capital Receipts to the Pool HRA6 768 0 768

0 0 0 Other Operating Income and Expenditure 0 0 0

3,212 (1,328) 1,884 3,328 (507) 2,821

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

2,731 0 2,731 Interest Payable on Debt 2,530 0 2,530

1,411 0 1,411 Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) 32 1,188 0 1,188

0 (703) (703) Interest & Investment Income 0 (419) (419)

0 (4) (4)
Income & Expenditure and Movement in Fair Value of

Investment Property
9 0 46 46

300 0 300 Movement in the value of property fund income 19 0 19

4,442 (707) 3,735 3,737 (373) 3,364

0 (17,074) (17,074) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 10 0 (20,519) (20,519)

1,105 (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services (8,406)

(8,263) (Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets (13,250)

(10,325) Remeasurement of Defined Pension Liability 32 14,974

(18,588) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 1,724

(17,483)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME & 

EXPENDITURE
(6,682)

 
 
 

74



South Kesteven District Council                                  3                                                                
 

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 

N
o

te

General Fund 

Balance 

(including 

Earmarked 

Reserves)

Housing 

Revenue 

Accounts 

(including 

Earmarked 

Reserves)

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Major Repairs 

Reserve

Total Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves Total Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forward (18,697) (18,580) (9,577) (14,292) (61,146) (181,369) (242,515)

Movement in reserves during 2020/21

Total Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure 6,935 (15,341) 0 0 (8,406) 1,723 (6,683)

Transfers between Reserves 17 0 2,974 (42) (2,974) (42) 42 0

Adjustments between accounting basis & 

funding basis under regulations 16 (17,475) 11,618 (633) (634) (7,124) 7,124 0

(Increase) or decrease in 2020/21 (10,540) (749) (675) (3,608) (15,572) 8,889 (6,683)

Balance at 31 March 2021 carried 

forward (29,237) (19,329) (10,252) (17,900) (76,718) (172,480) (249,198)
N

o
te

General Fund 

Balance 

(including 

Earmarked 

Reserves)

Housing 

Revenue 

Accounts 

(including 

Earmarked 

Reserves)

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Major Repairs 

Reserve

Total Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves Total Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 31 March 2019 carried forward (25,492) (19,401) (9,246) (12,659) (66,798) (158,234) (225,032)

Movement in reserves during 2019/20

Total Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure 10,064 (8,959) 0 0 1,105 (18,588) (17,483)

Transfers between Reserves 17 0 2,883 (3) (2,883) (3) 3 0

Adjustments between accounting basis & 

funding basis under regulations 16 (3,270) 6,898 (328) 1,250 4,550 (4,550) 0

(Increase) or decrease in 2019/20 6,794 822 (331) (1,633) 5,652 (23,135) (17,483)

Balance at 31 March 2020 carried 

forward (18,697) (18,580) (9,577) (14,292) (61,146) (181,369) (242,515)
 

For details of reserves see notes 33 and 34 

75



South Kesteven District Council                                  4                                                                
 

BALANCE SHEET 
 

At 31 March 

2020

At 31 March 

2021

£'000 £'000

333,775 Property Plant & Equipment 18 349,559

522 Heritage Assets 20 537

5,583 Investment Property 21 5,198

278 Intangible Assets 22 181

3,907 Long Term Investments 23 3,868

2,311 Long Term Debtors 25 2,283

346,376 Long Term Assets 361,626

132 Current Assets Held for Sale 26 132

27,368 Short Term Investments 23 24,764

23 Inventories 25

6,294 Short Term Debtors 25 17,744

25,583 Cash and Cash Equivalents 27 41,879

59,400 Current Assets 84,544

(3,246) Short Term Borrowing 23 (3,245)

(11,981) Short Term Creditors 29 (28,981)

(767) Provisions 31 (554)

(15,994) Current Liabilities (32,780)

(1,211) Provisions 31 (1,524)

(92,656) Long Term Borrowing 23 (89,435)

(51,158) Other Long Term Liabilities 34 (69,031)

(2,242) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 11 (4,202)

(147,267) Long Term Liabilities (164,192)

242,515 Net Assets 249,198

£'000 £'000

61,146 Usable Reserves 33 76,718

181,369 Unusable Reserves 34 172,480

242,515 Total Reserves 249,198

Note

 
 

.  
  

76



South Kesteven District Council                                  5                                                                
 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
 

Cash outflows are shown as negative figures in the cash flow statement to allow the movement 
in cash & cash equivalents to match the signage convention on the balance sheet. 

 
 

 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

Operating Activities

(1,105) Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services 8,406

12,966
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of 

services for non-cash movements
35 26,304

(5,013)

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit 

on the provision of services that are investing and 

financing activities

35 (3,108)

6,848 Net cash flows from Operating Activities 31,602

9,540 Net cash flows from investing activities 35 2,689

(2,499) Net cash flows from financing activities 35 (17,995)

13,889
Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash 

equivalents
16,296

11,694
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 

reporting period
25,583

25,583
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 

period
27 41,879

13,889 16,296

Notes

  

77



South Kesteven District Council                                  6                                                                
 

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

1. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT NOT 
ADOPTED 

 
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 (the 
Code) requires the disclosure of information relating to the expected impact on the 
accounting change that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet 
adopted by the Code for the relevant financial year. This applies to the adoption of the 

following new or amended standards within the 2021/22 code: 
 

• IFRS 3 Business Combinations: This standard will require local authorities to disclose 
in its financial statements that a transfer of functions has taken place (including a 
brief description of the transferred function) giving the date of the transfer, the name 
of the transferring body and the effect on the financial statements. An authority that 
transfers functions to another authority or public sector entity shall also provide the 
same information in its financial statements. Where accounted for as a transfer by 
absorption, the authority should apply judgement as to whether the additional 
disclosure of historical financial performance of the function should be provided, to 
enable users to understand the operational performance.  

• Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark reform: these 
standards (as adapted by the Code) govern the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of financial instruments as specified in the Code. Many 
requirements are inapplicable since all material financial instruments are carried at 
fair value through profit or loss. 
 

• IFRS 16 Leases requires lessees to recognise nearly all leases on the balance sheet 
which will reflect their right of use for a period of time and the associated liability to pay 
rentals.  It is anticipated that the Council’s balance sheet non-current assets will 
increase by £3.7m largely due to the inclusion of Bourne Leisure Centre. It is estimated 
that non-current liabilities will increase by £10K and additional depreciation costs of 
£256K will be included in the net cost of services. Depreciation is an accounting entry 
which is subsequently reversed out and does not require any additional funding from 
taxpayers. 

 

2. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
In applying the accounting policies (see page 77), the Council has had to make certain 
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.  
The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:  
a. The long term effects of the Covid-19 pandemic and the delayed Fairer Funding Review 

and Business Rates Retention Review has created a high degree of uncertainty about 
future levels of funding for local government. The Council has determined that this 
uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Council might 
be impaired as a result of the need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision. 

b. Investments with banks and other financial institutions are secure and will not suffer 
impairments. 

c. No contracts with other bodies need to be accounted for as a service concession or contain 
an embedded lease. 

d. No substantial legal claims or appeals will be made against the Council in the next financial 
year. 

  

78



South Kesteven District Council                                  7                                                                
 

 

3. ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR 
SOURCES OF UNCERTAINTY  
 
The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions 
made by the Council about the future, or that are otherwise uncertain.  Estimates are made 
taking account of historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors.  
However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be 
materially different from the assumptions and estimates. 
 
The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2021 for which there is a significant 
risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 

 

Item Uncertainties Consequences of difference 
from Assumption 

Valuation of Property The Council’s external valuers 
provided valuations as at 31 
March 2021. 
The restrictions required due to 
Covid-19 safeguarding 
requirements resulted in most 
inspections being external only. 

A reduction in the estimated 
valuations would result in reductions 
to the Revaluation Reserve and a 
loss recorded in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.  
If the value of the Council’s property 
assets were to reduce by 10% this 
would result in a charge of 
approximately £34m to the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and the 
Revaluation Reserve. 

Pension Liability Estimation of the net liability to 
pay pensions depends on several 
complex judgements relating to 
the discount rate used, the rate at 
which salaries are projected to 
increase, changes in retirement 
ages, mortality rates and 
expected returns on Pension 
Fund investments.  
 
The Council has engaged Barnett 
Waddingham to provide expert 
advice about the assumptions 
applied.  
 

A 0.1% decrease in the discount 
rate will increase the net pension 
liability by £3.846m;  
A 0.1% increase in the assumed 
level of pension increases will 
increase the net pension liability by 
£3.292m  
 

Business Rates Since the introduction of the 
Business Rates Retention 
Scheme effective from 1 April 
2013,  Local Authorities are liable 
for successful appeals against 
business rates charged to 
businesses in 2020/21 and earlier 
financial years in their 
proportionate share.  Therefore, a 
provision has been recognised for 
the best estimate of the amount 
that businesses may have been 
overcharged up to March 
2021.  The estimate has been 
calculated using analysis of 
successful appeals to date against 
the 2010 and 2017 rating lists. 

 

79



South Kesteven District Council                                  8                                                                
 

 

4. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 
 

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Director of Finance on 31 July 
2021. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. 
Where events taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing as 
at 31 March 2021, the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material 
respects to reflect the impact of this information. 
 

 
 
 
  

80



South Kesteven District Council                                  9                                                                
 

NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
 

5. EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS 
 
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants, rents, council tax and business 
rates) by local authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.  It 
also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the council’s services.  Income and expenditure accounted for under generally 
accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

Net Expenditure 

Chargeable to the 

General Fund and HRA 

Balances

Adjustments between 

the Funding and 

Accounting Basis

Net Expenditure in the 

Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure 

Statement

£'000 £'000 £'000

Commercial & Operations 6,495 (3,314) 9,809

Corporate (12,498) 8,484 (20,982)

Growth & Culture 2,783 (3,426) 6,209

Housing & Property 5,878 (5,014) 10,892

Net Cost of Services 2,658 (3,270) 5,928

Other Income & Expenditure (16,923) (2,589) (14,334)

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services (14,265) (5,859) (8,406)

Total General Fund HRA

£'000 £'000 £'000

Opening General Fund and HRA Balance (37,277) (18,698) (18,579)

Less/Plus Surplus or (Deficit) on General Fund and HRA Balance in Year (14,263) (10,539) (3,724)

Transfers to/ from reserves 2,974 0 2,974

Closing General Fund and HRA Balance (48,566) (29,237) (19,329)

2020/21

 
 

81



South Kesteven District Council                                  10                                                                
 

Net Expenditure 

Chargeable to the 

General Fund and HRA 

Balances

Adjustments between 

the Funding and 

Accounting Basis

Net Expenditure in the 

Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure 

Statement

£'000 £'000 £'000

Commercial & Operations 5,699 (3,486) 9,185

Corporate (19,877) (2,997) (16,880)

Growth & Culture 6,469 (372) 6,841

Housing & Property 11,307 (2,107) 13,414

Net Cost of Services 3,598 (8,962) 12,560

Other Income & Expenditure 1,136 12,591 (11,455)

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 4,734 3,629 1,105

Total General Fund HRA

£'000 £'000 £'000

Opening General Fund and HRA Balance (44,892) (25,491) (19,401)

Less/Plus Surplus or (Deficit) on General Fund and HRA Balance in Year 4,732 6,793 (2,061)

Transfers to/ from reserves 2,883 0 2,883

Closing General Fund and HRA Balance (37,277) (18,698) (18,579)

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2019/20

 
 

  

82



South Kesteven District Council                                  11                                                                
 

6. NOTE TO THE EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS 
 

Adjustments from General 

Fund to arrive at the 

Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure 

Statement amounts

Adjustments 

for Capital 

Purposes 

(Note a)

Net change for 

the Pensions 

Adjustments 

(Note b)

Other 

Differences 

(Note c)

Total 

Adjustments

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Commercial & Operations (2,171) (1,123) (20) (3,314)

Corporate 7,937 577 (30) 8,484

Growth & Culture (3,059) (359) (8) (3,426)

Housing & Property (4,185) (806) (23) (5,014)

Net Cost of Services (1,478) (1,711) (81) (3,270)

Other Income and 

expenditure from the 

Expenditure and Funding 

Analysis 8,173 (1,188) (9,574) (2,589)

Difference between 

General Fund surplus or 

deficit and Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure 

Statement Surplus or 

Deficit on the Provision of 

Services 6,695 (2,899) (9,655) (5,859)

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2020/21

 

83



South Kesteven District Council                                  12                                                                
 

Adjustments from General 

Fund to arrive at the 

Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure 

Statement amounts

Adjustments 

for Capital 

Purposes 

(Note a)

Net change for 

the Pensions 

Adjustments 

(Note b)

Other 

Differences 

(Note c)

Total 

Adjustments

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Commercial & Operations (2,148) (1,338) 0 (3,486)

Corporate (3,668) 671 0 (2,997)

Growth & Culture 1,207 (1,579) 0 (372)

Housing & Property (1,608) (499) 0 (2,107)

Net Cost of Services (6,217) (2,745) 0 (8,962)

Other Income and 

expenditure from the 

Expenditure and Funding 

Analysis 15,174 (1,411) (1,172) 12,591

Difference between 

General Fund surplus or 

deficit and Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure 

Statement Surplus or 

Deficit on the Provision of 

Services 8,957 (4,156) (1,172) 3,629

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2019/20

 
 

 

 
a) Adjustments for Capital Purposes – this column adds in depreciation and 

impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the services line and for: 
▪ Other Operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of 

income on disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets. 
▪ Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for 

capital financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions 
are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable 
under generally accepted accounting practices. 

▪ Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants are 
adjusted for income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting 
practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those 
receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the 
year, The Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is 
credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which 
conditions were satisfied in the year. 

 
b) Net Change for the Pension Adjustments – the removal of pension contributions 

and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and 
income: 

▪ For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions 
made by the authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current 
service costs and past service costs. 

84



South Kesteven District Council                                  13                                                                
 

▪ For Financing and investment income and expenditure – the net interest on 
the defined benefit liability is charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement (CIES). 

 
c) Other Differences between amounts debited/credited to the CIES and amounts 

payable/receivable to be recognised under statute: 
▪ Adjustment involving Accumulated Absences Account represents the amount by 

which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year 
in accordance with statutory requirements. 

 

 

7. EXPENDITURE AND INCOME ANALYSED BY NATURE 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 Expenditure/Income £'000

Expenditure

23,955 Employee benefits expenses 23,500

40,074 Other services expenses 38,116

6,217 Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 1,478

70,246 Total expenditure 63,094

Income

(9,721) Fees, charges and other service income (6,361)

(1) Interest and investment income 0

(23,201) Government grants and contributions (25,467)

(23,689) Dwelling Rents (24,168)

(1,074) Non- Dwelling rents (1,170)

(57,686) Total income (57,166)

12,560 Net cost of services 5,928

 
 
 

8. PRECEPTS AND LEVIES 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

1,718 Parish Council Precepts 1,835

692 Drainage Board Levies 725

2,410 2,560
 

  

85



South Kesteven District Council                                  14                                                                
 

 
9. INCOME AND EXPENDITURE AND MOVEMENT IN FAIR VALUE OF 

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

(333) Income & Expenditure from investment properties (339)

329
Movements in relation to changes in the fair value 

of investment properties
385

(4) 46
 

 

10. NON SERVICE RELATED GOVERNMENT GRANTS 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

(9,269) Council Tax (9,621)

(5,531) Non-Domestic Rates* (5,348)

(1,957) New Homes Bonus (1,814)

(295) S31 Grant (3,734)

(22) S106 Contribution (2)

(17,074) (20,519)

*includes £10.5m S31 Business Grants (2019/20 £2.232m)  
  

86



South Kesteven District Council                                  15                                                                
 

 
11. GRANT INCOME 
 
The Council credited the following grants and contributions to the Cost of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2020/21 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

19,847 Benefits Subsidy 18,560

409 Local Council Tax Admin Subsidy 124

261 Housing Benefits Admin Grant 286

68 Discretionary Housing Payment 0

465 Welfare Reform 102

26 IER Funding 10

0 Custom Build Grant 17

20 Neighbourhood Planning Grant 0

861 Disabled Facilities Grant 975

261 Homelessness 260

0 Rough Sleeping 615

0 Leisure Centre Programme 306

0 COVID 19 Grants 2,584

0 Heritage Action Zone 125

0 Local Enterprise Partnership 200

441 Arts and Recreation Grants 606

66 Other Grants 80

22,725 24,850

 
 
The Council has received a number of grants and contributions that have yet to be recognised 
as income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the money to be returned. 
 
The balances at the year end are as follows: 

2019/20 Capital Grants 2020/21

£'000 Receipts in Advance £'000

116 Receipts in Advance 1,066

2,126 S106 Contributions 3,136

2,242 4,202
 

  

87



South Kesteven District Council                                  16                                                                
 

12. OFFICER REMUNERATION 
 
The numbers of employees whose remuneration was £50,000 or more, (excluding those 
classed as senior employees with strategic responsibility and shown separately in the second 
table below) in bands of £5,000 were: 
 

2019/20 2020/21

No. of officers No. of officers

Remuneration Band

3 £50,000 - £54,999 2

7 £55,000 - £59,999 3

4 £60,000 - £64,999 3

0 £65,000 - £69,999 3

0 £70,000 - £74,999 3

1 £75,000 - £79,999 0

1 £80,000 - £84,999 1

16 15

88



South Kesteven District Council                                  17                                                                
 

The remuneration of senior employees (i.e. those with strategic responsibility for the Council) 
is shown below:  

Note
Salary, Fees

 & Allowances

Bonuses & 

Expenses 

Allowances

Compensation 

for Loss of 

Employment

Employers 

Pension 

contribution

Any other 

emolument
Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive (1) 2020/21 0 0 0 0 0 0

2019/20 1 43 12 84 7 0 146

Chief Executive (2) 2020/21 0 0 0 0 0 0

2019/20 2 74 3 0 12 0 89

Chief Executive (3) 2020/21 131 7 0 23 0 161

2019/20 3 11 0 0 2 0 13

Strategic Director 2020/21 55 3 23 10 0 91

2019/20 4 41 0 0 7 0 48

Strategic Director 2020/21 100 2 0 18 0 120

2019/20 97 2 0 16 0 115

Strategic Director 2020/21 0 0 0 0 0 0

2019/20 5 10 0 0 2 0 12

Strategic Director 2020/21 0 0 0 0 0 0

2019/20 6 24 1 0 4 0 29

Strategic Director 

(S151 Officer) (1)
2020/21 0 0 0 0 0 0

2019/20 7 24 6 0 4 0 34

Strategic Director 

(S151 Officer) (2)
2020/21 100 3 0 18 0 121

2019/20 8 73 1 0 12 0 86

Assistant Chief 

Executive
2020/21 90 0 0 16 0 106

2019/20 9 79 1 0 13 0 93

Strategic Director 2020/21 51 5 0 9 0 65

2019/20 10 73 0 0 12 0 85

Monitoring Officer 2020/21 93 0 0 16 0 109

2019/20 11 19 1 0 3 0 23

Assistant Chief 

Executive 

(Monitoring 

Officer) 

2020/21 0 0 0 0 0 0

2019/20 22 2 0 4 0 28
 

 
1. Aidan Rave left the Council’s employment on 31 July 2019 
2. Paul Thomas appointed as Interim Chief Executive on 1 August 2019 
3. Karen Bradford appointed as Chief Executive on 1 March 2020 
4. Paul Thomas returns to substantive post of Strategic Director 1 March 2020 
5. Ken Lyon appointed Interim Strategic Director Growth on 1 August 2019 – 20 October 

2019 
6. Harry Rai appointed Interim Strategic Director Growth 21 October 2019 – 29 February 

2020  

89



South Kesteven District Council                                  18                                                                
 

7. Debbie Muddimer left the Council’s employment as Director of Finance (S151 Officer) 
on 27 June 2019 

8. Richard Wyles was appointed Interim Director on Finance (S151 Officer) on 27 June 
2019 

9. Ken Lyon returned to substantive post of Assistant Chief Executive on 21 October 
2019 

10. Lee Sirdifield was appointed Strategic Director Transformation & Change on 27 June 
2019 

11. Shahin Ismail was appointed Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer) on 
1 January 2020  

 

13. TERMINATION BENEFITS 

2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21

No. No. No. No. £'000 £'000

£0-£20,000 0 0 11 7 103 51

£20,001 - £40,000 0 0 3 3 85 83

£40,001 - £60,000 0 0 1 4 42 173

£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 1 0 76 0

£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 1 0 84 0

£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£150,000 and above 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Cost included in 

bandings
0 0          17          14            390            307 

Amounts provided for in 

CIES not included in 

bandings

0 0

Total Cost included in CIES 390            307 

Number of 

compulsory 

redundancies

Total number of 

exit packages by 

cost band

Total cost of exit 

packages in each band

Exit Package cost bands 

(including special 

payments)

 
 

14. MEMBERS ALLOWANCES 
 
The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) Regulations 2003 requires local authorities to 
publish the amounts paid to members under the Members’ allowance scheme.  
 
The Council had 55 elected Councillors as at 31 March 2021. 
 
Members’ allowances and expenses paid during the year amounted to £486,106 (2019/20 
£531,873). The figure includes basic allowance, special responsibility, and other related 
allowances. 

 

 
15. JOINT OPERATIONS 
 

South Kesteven District Council are members with Newark and Sherwood District Council and 
Rushcliffe Borough Council of the Building Control Partnership.  The partnership’s net 
expenditure in 2020/21 is £130,628 of which £43,543 is attributable to South Kesteven District 
Council which has been accounted for within the Council’s Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement.  
 

90



South Kesteven District Council                                  19                                                                
 

South Kesteven District Council have a collaboration agreement with Burghley Land Ltd.  The 
joint agreement’s net expenditure in 2020/21 is £364,146 of which £182,073 is attributable to 
South Kesteven District Council and accounted for within the Council’s Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
 

  

91



South Kesteven District Council                                  20                                                                
 

NOTES TO THE MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 
 

16. ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS 
UNDER STATUTE  

 
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and 
expenditure recognised by the Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting 
practices, to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the 
Council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. 
 
The descriptions of the reserves that the adjustments are made against are as follows: 
 
General Fund Balance 
 
The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of a Council are required to 
be paid and out of which all the liabilities are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules 
might provide otherwise.  These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities 
and payments should impact on the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in 
accordance with proper accounting practice.  The General Fund Balance therefore 
summarises the resources that the Council is statutorily empowered to spend on its services 
or on capital investment (or the deficit of resources that the Council is required to recover) at 
the end of the financial year however the balance is not available to be applied to HRA 
services. 
 
Housing Revenue Account Balance 
 
The Housing Revenue Account Balance reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a revenue 
account for local authority council housing provision in accordance with Part VI of the Local 
Government & Housing Act 1989.  It contains the balance of income and expenditure as 
defined by the 1989 Act that is available to fund future expenditure in connection with the 
Council’s landlord function or (if in deficit) that is required to be recovered from tenants. 
 
Major Repairs Reserve 
 
The Council is required to maintain the Major Repairs Reserve which funds capital investment 
in HRA assets or the financing of historical capital expenditure by the HRA.  The balance 
shows the capital resources that have yet to be applied at year end.  
 
Capital Receipts Reserve 
 
The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets 
which are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or 
to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure.  The balance on the reserve shows 
the resources that have yet to be applied for these purposes as at the year-end. 
 
.

92



South Kesteven District Council                                  21                                                                
 

 
Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations (Continued)  

2020/21
General 

Fund
HRA

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve

Total Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital 

Adjustment Account

Depreciation of non-current assets (4,687) (399) 0 (3,430) (8,516) 8,516

Amortisation of intangible assets (110) 0 0 0 (110) 110

Revaluation gains/losses on PPE (1,952) 12,354 0 0 10,402 (10,402)

Impairments charged to CIES 0 (2,602) 0 0 (2,602) 2,602

Movements in market value of investment 

properties
(370) (15) 0 0 (385) 385

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under 

statute (REFCUS)
(650) 0 0 (650) 650

Financing of REFCUS 650 0 0 650 (650)

Capital expenditure 1,373 3,222 574 2,796 7,965 (7,965)

Statutory provision for financing of capital 

investment
142 0 0 142 (142)

Profit/Loss on disposal of non-current assets (113) 620 (1,975) 0 (1,468) 1,468

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection 

Fund Adjustment Account
 

Adjustment to council tax income (176) 0 0 0 (176) 176

Adjustment to NNDR income (9,397) 0 0 0 (9,397) 9,397

Adjustments primarily involving the Pension 

Fund

Adjustment of IAS 19 retirement entries for actual 

contributions
(2,123) (776) 0 0 (2,899) 2,899

Adjustments primarily involving the 

Accumulating  Compensated Absences 

Account

(63) (18) 0 0 (81) 81

Adjustments relating to the value of Financial 

Instruments

Financial Instruments 1 0 0 0 1 (1)

Adjustments between Usable Reserves

Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool 0 (768) 768 0 0 0

Total Adjustments (17,475) 11,618 (633) (634) (7,124) 7,124

 

93



South Kesteven District Council                                  22                                                                
 

 
Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations (Continued)  

2019/20
General 

Fund
HRA

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve

Total Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital 

Adjustment Account

Depreciation of non-current assets (4,437) (353) 0 (3,415) (8,205) 8,205

Amortisation of intangible assets (108) (4) 0 0 (112) 112

Revaluation gains/losses on PPE (1,644) 9,128 0 0 7,484 (7,484)

Impairments charged to CIES 0 (4,567) 0 0 (4,567) 4,567

Movements in market value of investment 

properties
(336) 7 0 0 (329) 329

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under 

statute (REFCUS)
(818) 0 0 0 (818) 818

Financing of REFCUS 818 818 (818)

Capital expenditure 7,779 3,222 2,847 4,665 18,513 (18,513)

Statutory provision for financing of capital 

investment
148 0 0 0 148 (148)

Profit/Loss on disposal of non-current assets (30) 1,358 (3,977) 0 (2,649) 2,649

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection  0 0

Adjustment to council tax income 4 0 0 0 4 (4)

Adjustment to NNDR income (1,176) 0 0 0 (1,176) 1,176

Adjustments primarily involving the Pension 

Fund
0 0

Adjustment of IAS 19 retirement entries for actual 

contributions
(3,064) (1,091) 0 0 (4,155) 4,155

Adjustments relating to the value of Financial 

Instruments
0 0

Financial Instruments (406) 0 0 0 (406) 406

Adjustments between Usable Reserves 0 0

Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool 0 (802) 802 0 0 0

Total Adjustments (3,270) 6,898 (328) 1,250 4,550 (4,550)

 
 

94



South Kesteven District Council                                  23                                                                
 

 

17. Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 
This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund and HRA balances in earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and 
the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund and HRA expenditure. 

2020/21

General 

Fund 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account

Usable 

Capital 

Receipts

Earmarked 

General 

Fund 

Reserves

HRA 

Revenue 

Reserves

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Authority 

Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Amounts set aside to provide for future 

expenditure 

Insurance provision (37) 37 0 0 0

SEA provision 65 (65) 0 0 0

Transfer Surplus to reserves (927) 1,513 927 1,461 (2,974) 0 0 0

Repaid loans (40) (40) 40 0

Other Long-Term Debtors (2) (2) 2 0

Amounts transferred from reserves to 

support in year expenditure

Finance Building Control deficit 25 (25) 0 0 0

Total Transfers To/(From) Earmarked 

Reserves
(874) 1,513 (42) 874 1,461 (2,974) (42) 42 0

2019/20

General 

Fund 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account

Usable 

Capital 

Receipts

Earmarked 

General 

Fund 

Reserves

HRA 

Revenue 

Reserves

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Authority 

Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Amounts set aside to provide for future 

expenditure 

Insurance provision (200) 200 0 0 0

SEA provision 83 (83) 0 0 0

Transfer Surplus to reserves 1,622 2,708 (1,622) 175 (2,883) 0 0 0

Repaid mortgages 0 0 (3) 0 0 0 (3) 3 0

Other Long-Term Debtors 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Amounts transferred from reserves to 

support in year expenditure 0

Finance Building Control deficit 3 0 0 (3) 0 0 0 0 0

Total Transfers To/(From) Earmarked 

Reserves
1,708 2,508 (3) (1,708) 375 (2,883) (3) 3 0

 

95



South Kesteven District Council                                  24                                                                
 

NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET 
 

18. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE) 
Non-current assets owned and assets leased by the Council include the following: 

Council  

Dwellings

Other 

Land & 

Buildings

Vehicles, 

Plant & 

Equipment

Surplus  

Assets

Assets Under 

Construction Total PPE

Movement on Balances Council  

Dwellings

Other 

Land & 

Buildings

Vehicles, 

Plant & 

Equipment

Surplus  

Assets

Assets Under 

Construction Total PPE

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or Valuation 

234,572 75,354 15,906 211 6,026 332,069 at 1 April 2019                at 1 April 2020 242,894 76,030 17,374 216 9,713 346,227

4,745 59 2,285 0 5,676 12,765 Additions 2,602 193 1,226 0 696 4,717

3,452 372 0 5 0 3,829
Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Revaluation Reserve
11,582 (3,847) 0 (19) 0 7,716

2,223 (1,744) 479

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on 

Provision of Services

8,322 (2,337) 0 0 0 5,985

(2,135) 0 (817) 0 0 (2,952) Derecognition - Disposals (1,260) 0 (1,128) 0 (41) (2,429)

37 37
Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale 

(see Note 29)
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 1,989 0 0 (1,989)
Assets reclassified (to)/from Assets Under 

Construction
2,237 (2,237) 0

242,894 76,030 17,374 216 9,713 346,227 at 31 March 2020      at 31 March 2021 266,377 70,039 17,472 197 8,131 362,216

Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment 

(9) (147) (11,628) 0 0 (11,784) at 1 April 2019                at 1 April 2020 (4) (271) (12,177) 0 0 (12,452)

(3,415) (3,563) (1,213) (14) 0 (8,205) Depreciation charge (3,430) (3,871) (1,199) (16) 0 (8,516)

1,151 3,270 0 14 0 4,435
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation 

Reserve
1,970 3,549 0 16 0 5,535

6,836 169 0 0 0 7,005

Depreciation written out to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 

Statement

4,035 381 0 0 0 4,416

(4,567) 0 0 0 0 (4,567)
Derecognition of Non Enhancing Capital 

Expenditure
(2,602) 0 0 0 0 (2,602)

0 0 664 0 0 664 Derecognition - Disposals 0 0 962 0 0 962

(4) (271) (12,177) 0 0 (12,452) at 31 March 2020      at 31 March 2021 (31) (212) (12,414) 0 0 (12,657)

Net Book Value

242,890 75,759 5,197 216 9,713 333,775 at 31 March 2020      at 31 March 2021 266,346 69,827 5,058 197 8,131 349,559

234,563 75,207 4,278 210 6,026 320,285 at 1 April 2019                at 1 April 2020 242,890 75,759 5,197 216 9,713 333,775

Movement in 2019/20 Movement in 2020/21

 
 

96



South Kesteven District Council                                  25                                                                
 

Property, Plant & Equipment (Continued)   
 
Valuation Assumptions 
 
The significant assumptions applied in estimating the current values by the Valuer are as 
follows: 
 

• No potentially deleterious or hazardous materials were used in the construction of the 
assets and none has subsequently been incorporated. 
 

• That the properties are not subject to any unusual or especially onerous restrictions, 
encumbrances or outgoings and good titles can be shown. 
 

• The properties and their values are unaffected by any matters which would be 
revealed by a local search or inspection of any register and that use and occupation 
are both legal. 
 

• The inspection of those parts which have not been inspected would cause the Valuer 
to alter their opinion of value. 

 

• The land and properties are not contaminated nor adversely affected by radon. 
 

• No allowances have been made for any rights obligations or liabilities arising from the 
Defective Premises Act 1972. 
 

• The Covid 19 pandemic has raised economic uncertainty and difficulties in attaching 
weight to previous market  evidence. The Council’s valuers have reported on the 
basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty’. The valuations should therefore be viewed 
with a higher degree of caution than would normally be the case.  

  

97



South Kesteven District Council                                  26                                                                
 

 

19. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING 
 
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below 
together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to 
be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the 
expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of 
the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has yet to be financed. The 
CFR is analysed in the second part of this note. 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

114,602 Opening Capital Finance Requirement 111,232

Capital Investment

178   Council Dwellings 0

59   Other land & buildings 193

2,285   Vehicles, plant & equipment 1,226

0   Investment properties 0

5,676   Assets under construction 696

4,566   Capital expenditure 2,602

55   Intangible Assets 13

2,471   Loans to Other Organisations 0

0   Heritage Assets 15

818   Revenue expenditure charged to capital under statute 651

Sources of Finance

(2,847)    Capital receipts (574)

(1,189)    Capital grants & contributions (769)

(15,442)    Sums set aside from revenue (7,417)

111,232 Closing Capital Financing Requirement 107,868

Explanation of movements in year 

(3,370)
Increase/(Decrease) in underlying need to borrow 

(supported by government financial assistance)
(3,364)

(3,370)

Increase/ (Decrease) in Capital Financing 

Requirement (3,364)
 

 
 

  

98



South Kesteven District Council                                  27                                                                
 

20. HERITAGE ASSETS 
 

Reconciliation of the carrying value of tangible Heritage Assets held by the Council 
 

Antiques

Miscellaneous 

Artefacts

Art 

Installations

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or Valuation

1st April 2019 238 264 20 522

Revaluations 0 0 0 0

Disposals in Year 0 0 0 0

31st March 2020 238 264 20 522

Revaluations 0 0 0 0

Additions in year 0 0 15 15

Disposals in Year 0 0 0 0

31st March 2021 238 264 35 537

Total 

Assets
Assets held at value

Assets held 

at cost

 
 
It is not practicable to report any transactions relating to Heritage Assets before 1 April 2010, 
as such transactions were not distinguished from those relating to operational assets. 
 
a. Antiques 
The Council's collection of antiques is reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation 
which is based on market values.  The collection includes items such as the chandeliers and 
mirrors at Stamford Arts Centre and 2 large Japanese bronze koros in the civic suite at 
Grantham.  The collection also includes an 18th Century portrait of Catherine Manners, Lady 
Huntingtower on view at Grantham Guildhall. 
 
b. Miscellaneous Artefacts 
Items of note in this collection include civic regalia and a Victoria Cross medal.  Items in this 
collection are reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is based on market 
values.  The collection is held at Grantham. 
 
Valuations were undertaken in February 2018 for insurance purposes by Anthony Marriott, 
Fine Art Consultant & Valuer. 
 
c. Art Installations 
The Orrery sculpture in Grantham Market Place and the light installation on St Peter’s Hill 
are reported at cost. 
 
d. Historic 
The Council has a collection of assets that are of historic significance but are not reported on 
the balance sheet as their value cannot be reliably established.  This collection is made up of 
the following: 
 
St Leonard Priory, Stamford 12th Century Priory listed ancient monument 
Conduit, Grantham 16th Century Well Head 
St Wulfram's War Memorial, Grantham World War 1 memorial 
Dysart Park Band Stand, Grantham Victorian wrought iron band stand 
Wyndham Park Shelter, Grantham World War 1 memorial shelter 

99



South Kesteven District Council                                  28                                                                
 

Currently the Council has no intangible Heritage Assets 
 
More details on the Heritage Assets held by the Council including their location and any public 
access allowed is held on the Council's Heritage Asset schedule. 

 
21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
 
The following items of income and expense have been accounted for under Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 
Statement: 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

(352) Rental income from investment property (358)

19
Direct operating expenses arising from investment 

property
19

(333) (339)
 

 
There are no restrictions on the Council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment 
property or on the Council’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.  
The Council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment 
property, or repairs, maintenance or enhancement. 
 
The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over 
the year: 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

5,912 Balance at start of year 5,583

0 Additions - Purchases 0

(329) Net gains/losses from fair value adjustments (385)

0 Disposals

5,583 Balance at end of year 5,198
 

 
The fair value of investment property was determined by external, independent property 
valuers, having appropriate recognised professional qualifications. Fair value measurement 
for investment property has been categorised as Level 2 fair value based on information from 
observable market transactions of comparable property with no significant adjustments. 
  

100



South Kesteven District Council                                  29                                                                
 

 

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 
The Council accounts for its software licences as intangible assets where the software is not 
an integral part of a particular IT system.  The intangible assets included in the balance sheet 
only include purchased licences.  They are held at historic cost. 
 
All licences are given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the period the software is 
expected to be of use to the Council.   
 
Movements on Intangible Assets during the year were as follows: 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

Balance at start of year:

945 Gross carrying amount 1,000

(610) Accumulated amortisation (722)

335 Net carrying amount at start of year 278

55 Additions 13

(112) Amortisation for the period (110)

(57) (97)

0 Disposals 196

0 Amortisation written back (196)

0 0

278 Net carrying amount at end of year 181

Comprising

1,000 Gross carrying amount 1,209

(722) Accumulated amortisation (1,028)

278 181
 

 
None of the intangible assets are individually material to the financial statements.   
 
  

101



South Kesteven District Council                                  30                                                                
 

23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instruments of another entity. Non exchange transactions, such as 
those relating to taxes and government grants, do not give rise to financial instruments.  
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet: 
 
Financial Assets

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Amortised Cost

Principal 2,748 2,787       2,311 1,843 24,720 27,220 6,450 3,116

Investment Accrued 

Interest 0 0 0 0 44 148 0 0

Cash and cash 

equivalents (CCE) 0 0 0 0 41,879 25,583 0 0

Fair value through 

other 

comprehensive 

income - other 1,120 1,120 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total financial 

assets 3,868       3,907       2,311       1,843       66,643     52,951     6,450 3,116

Non financial assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 11,294 3,178

Total 3,868       3,907       2,311       1,843       66,643     52,951     17,744 6,294

Non Current

Investments Debtors Investments Debtors

Current

 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Amortised Cost

Principal 89,435      92,656      3,222       3,222       6,045 5,804       

Interest 0 0 24            24            0 0

Total financial liabilities 89,435 92,656 3,246 3,246 6,045 5,804

Non financial liabilities 0 0 0 0 22,937 6,177

Total 89,435 92,656 3,246 3,246 28,982 11,981

Financial Liabilities

Investments Creditors

Non Current Current

Investments

 
Designated to fair value through other comprehensive income  
 
The Council has a 100% shareholding in Gravitas Housing Limited which is a wholly owned 
Local Authority Controlled Company.  These shares were purchased on 22 March 2019.  
The adoption of accounting standard IFRS 9 Financial Instruments requires that investments 
in equity are classified as fair value through profit and loss unless there is an irrevocable 
election to designate the asset as fair value through other comprehensive income. The 
investment in Gravitas Housing Limited is an equity instrument and as such, the default 
valuation method is any gains and losses on changes in fair value would be recognised 
through profit and loss.  

102



South Kesteven District Council                                  31                                                                
 

 
The Gravitas Housing Limited shareholding is a strategic investment to stimulate housing 
growth in the District and are not held for trading and therefore the Council has opted to 
designate it as fair value through Other Comprehensive Income. This means that there is no 
impact on the revenue budget and the decision to designate to fair value through other 
comprehensive income is irrevocable. Any gains or losses on the valuation of the shareholding 
will therefore be transferred to a Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve.  The fair value is 
deemed to be the purchase price.  The investment will be revalued at the end of each reporting 
year taking into consideration the assets and liabilities of the company. 
 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Description £'000 £'000

Gravitas Housing Limited 1,120 1,120

Total 1,120 1,120
 

 
The Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not measured at 
Fair Value 

Except for the financial assets carried at fair value (described in the table above), all other 

financial liabilities and financial assets represented by amortised cost and long-term debtors 

and creditors are carried on the balance sheet at amortised cost.  Their fair value can be 

assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that take place over the remaining 

life of the instruments, using the following assumptions: 

 

• For loans from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) and other loans payable, 
premature repayment rates from the PWLB have been applied to provide the fair 
value under PWLB debt redemption procedures; 

• For loans receivable prevailing benchmark market rates have been used to provide 
the fair value; 

• No early repayment or impairment is recognised; 

• Where an instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months or is a trade or other 

receivable the fair value is taken to be the carrying amount or the billed amount; 

• The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed 

amount. 

 

Carrying 

Amount     

£000

Fair         

Value      

£000

Carrying 

Amount     

£000

Fair         

Value      

£000

PWLB 92,681 109,726 95,902 121,464

Short Term Creditors 6,045 6,045 5,804 5,804

Total 98,726 115,771 101,706 127,268

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

 
The fair value of the liabilities is less than the carrying amount because the Council’s portfolio 
of loans includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is lower than 
the rates available for similar loans in the market at the Balance Sheet date. This shows a 
notional future gain (based on economic conditions at 31 March 2020) arising from a 
commitment to pay interest to lenders below current market rates. 

103



South Kesteven District Council                                  32                                                                
 

The fair value of Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans of £121.464m measures the 

economic effect of the terms agreed with the PWLB compared with estimates of the terms that 

would be offered for market transactions undertaken at the Balance Sheet date. The difference 

between the carrying amount and the fair value measures the additional interest that the 

authority will pay over the remaining terms of the loans under the agreements with the PWLB, 

against what would be paid if the loans were at prevailing market rates.  

 

The authority has a continuing ability to borrow at concessionary rates from the PWLB rather 

than from the markets. A supplementary measure of the [additional/reduced] interest that the 

authority will pay as a result of its PWLB commitments for fixed rate loans is to compare the 

terms of these loans with the new borrowing rates available from the PWLB. If a value is 

calculated on this basis, the carrying amount of £95.902m would be valued at £98.858m. But, 

if the authority were to seek to avoid the projected loss by repaying the loans to the PWLB, 

the PWLB would raise a penalty charge for early redemption in addition to charging a premium 

for the additional interest that will not now be paid. The exit price for the PWLB loans including 

the penalty charge would be £121.464m. 

 

Carrying 

Amount     

£000

Fair         

Value      

£000

Carrying 

Amount     

£000

Fair         

Value      

£000

Cash and Cash 

Equivalents 41,879 41,879 25,583 25,583

Short Term 

Investments 24,764 24,764 27,368 27,368

Long Term 

Investments 2,748 0 2,787 0

Short Term Debtors 6,450 6,450 3,116 3,116

Long Term Debtors 2,311 2,311 1,843 1,843

Total 78,152 75,404 60,697 57,910

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

 
The fair value of the financial assets in 2019/20 is higher than the carrying amount because 
the authority’s portfolio of investments includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest 
rate receivable is higher than the rates available for similar loans at the Balance Sheet date. 

The fair value measurement of the financial assets and liabilities are all hierarchy level 2 - 
other significant observable inputs. 

 

24. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks.  The key risks are: 

• Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the 
Council; 

• Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet 
its commitments to make payments;  

• Re-financing risk – the possibility that the Council might be requiring to renew a 
financial instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms. 

104



South Kesteven District Council                                  33                                                                
 

• Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of 
changes in such measures as interest rates movements. 

The Council’s overall risk management procedures focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund 
services and is based on the framework set out in the Local Government Act 2003 and the 
associated regulations.   

As directed by the Act, the Council has formally adopted the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code of Practice and complied with the CIPFA Prudential code.  As part of the adoption of the 
Treasury Management Code, the Council annually approves a Treasury Management 
Strategy prior to the commencement of the year to which it relates.  This strategy sets out the 
parameters for the management of risks associated with financial instruments.  

The Council’s Treasury Management strategy for 2020/21 is available on the Council’s website 
at:http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25014/Appendix%20E%20-
%20TM%20Strategy%202020-21.pdf 

The strategy also includes an Annual Investment Strategy for the forthcoming year, setting out 
the Council’s criteria for both investing and selecting investment counterparties. 

These strategies are implemented by the central treasury department.  The Council maintains 

written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific 

areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of surplus cash through 

Treasury Management Practices (TMPs).  These TMPs are a requirement of the Code of 

Practice and are reviewed periodically. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit 

exposures to the Council’s customers.   

This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which is available on the 

Council’s website.   

The Council’s credit risk management practices are set out on pages 12 to 13 of the Annual 

Investment Strategy.  With particular regard to determining whether the credit risk of financial 

instruments has increase significantly since initial recognition. 

The Annual Investment Strategy requires that deposits are not made with financial institutions 

unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, in accordance with the Fitch, Moody’s and 

Standard and Poor’s Credit Ratings Services. The Annual Investment Strategy also considers 

maximum amounts and time limits with a financial institution located in each category.   

The Council uses the creditworthiness service provided by Link.  This service uses a 

sophisticated modeling approach with credit ratings from all three rating agencies – Fitch, 

Moody’s and Standard and Poors, forming the core element.  However, it does not rely solely 

on the current credit ratings of counterparties but also uses the following as overlays: 

• Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies 

• Credit Default Swap spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings. 

• Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries 

The full Investment Strategy was approved by Full Council on 2 March 2020 and is available 
on the Council’s website. 

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, 

past experience and other factors, with individual credit limits being set in accordance with 

internal ratings in accordance with parameters set by the Council. 

105

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25014/Appendix%20E%20-%20TM%20Strategy%202020-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25014/Appendix%20E%20-%20TM%20Strategy%202020-21.pdf


South Kesteven District Council                                  34                                                                
 

The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks, building 
societies, property fund and money market funds of £67.141m cannot be assessed generally 
as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will 
be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such 
entities to be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the 
Council’s deposits, the Council has £3m invested with the property fund and at 31 March 2021 
this was valued at £2.681m.  
 
Amounts Arising from Expected Credit Losses 
 
We have assessed the Council’s short and long term investments and concluded that the 
expected credit loss is not material therefore no allowances have been made. 
A summary of the credit quality of the Council’s investments at 31 March 2020 is shown below, 
along with the potential maximum exposure to credit rick, based on experience of default and 
uncollectability. 

L
in

k
 A

s
s
e
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 C
o
lo

u
r 

b
a
n
d
in

g

L
o
w

e
s
t 
L
o
n
g
 T

e
rm

 R
a
ti
n
g

Balance 

at 31 

March 

2021 

£'000

Historical 

Experience 

of Default   

%

Estimated 

maximum 

exposure to 

default and 

uncollectability 

at 31 March 

2021                 

£

Santander UK Plc - Call account Red A 5,800 0.000 7

Lloyds Bank Plc (RFB) - call account Red A+ 3,679 0.000 5

National Westminster Bank Plc (RFB) Blue A 10,281 0.005 465

Santander UK Plc - Notice account Red A 6,200 0.005 280

Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council Yellow AA- 3,000 0.003 0

Close Brothers Ltd Red A- 1,000 0.006 62

Cheltenham Borough Council Yellow AA- 3,000 0.004 0

London Borough of Southwark Yellow AA- 2,500 0.005 0

Close Brothers Ltd Red A- 1,000 0.012 116

Thurrock Borough Council Yellow AA- 5,000 0.011 0

Lloyds Bank Plc (RFB) Red A+ 1,000 0.039 391

Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council Yellow AA- 2,000 0.023 0

CCLA Property Fund Not Rated Not Rated 3,000

Aberdeen Standard Investments MMF* Yellow AAA 5,000

BNP Paribas MMF* Yellow AAA 5,000

CCLA MMF* Yellow AAA 5,000

Federated Investors (UK) MMF* Yellow AAA 5,000

Total Investments 67,460 1326

Deposits with Banks and Financial Institutions

 

*Money Market Funds 

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period and the Council does not expect 
any losses from non-performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits and 
bonds. 

106



South Kesteven District Council                                  35                                                                
 

The Council does not generally allow extended credit for its trade debtors, but some of the 
current balance is past its due date for payment.  The past due but not impaired amount can 
be analysed by age as follows: 

At 31 March 

2021

At 31 March 

2020

At 31 March 

2019

   £'000 £'000 £'000

Under 30 Days 108 119 157

30-60 days 1,689 1,189 2,235

60-90 days 152 128 53

Over 90 Days 471 420 451

Total 2,420 1,856 2,896

 

During the reporting period the council held no collateral as security. 

Liquidity risk 

The Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above 
(the setting and approval of prudential indicators and the approval of the treasury and 
investment strategy reports), as well as through a comprehensive cash flow management 
system, as required by the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice.  This seeks to 
ensure that cash is available when needed. 

The Council has ready access to borrowings from the money markets to cover any day to day 
cash flow need, and the PWLB and money markets for access to longer term funds.  The 
Council is also required to provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992, which ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure.  There is 
therefore no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments 
under financial instruments.   

The maturity analysis of financial assets, excluding sums due from customers, is as follows: 

At 31 March 

2021

At 31 March 

2020

At 31 March 

2019

£'000 £'000 £'000

Less than one year 64,460 51,330 56,414

Between one and two years 2,681 2,700 4,000

Between two and three years 0 0 0

More than three years 0 0 0

Total 67,141 54,030 60,414

 

Re-financing and Maturity Risk 

The Council maintains a significant debt and investment portfolio.  Whilst the cash flow 
procedures above are considered against the refinancing risk procedures, longer term risk to 
the Council relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they 
mature.  This risk relates to both the maturing of longer term financial liabilities and longer 
term financial assets. 

The approved treasury indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt and the limits on 

investments placed for greater than one year in duration are the key parameters used to 

address this risk.  The Council approved treasury and investment strategies address the main 

risks and the central treasury team address the operational risks within the approved 

parameters.  This includes: 

107



South Kesteven District Council                                  36                                                                
 

• Monitoring the maturity profile of financial liabilities and amending the profile through either 
new borrowing or the rescheduling of the existing debt; and 

• Monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for 
the Council’s day to day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer term investments 
provide stability of maturities and returns in relation to the longer term cash flow needs. 

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows:  

At 31 March 

2021

At 31 March 

2020

At 31 March 

2019

£'000 £'000 £'000

Less than one year 3,245 3,246 28,244

Between one and two years 3,222 3,221 3,221

Between two and five years 9,665 9,665 9,665

Between five and ten years 16,109 16,109 16,109

Between ten and fifteen years 41,109 41,109 16,109

Over Fifteen Years 19,330 22,552 25,774

Total 92,680 95,902 99,122

 

Market risk  

Interest rate risk 

The Council is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments.  

Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Council, depending on how variable 

and fixed interest rates move across differing financial instrument periods.  For instance, a rise 

in variable and fixed interest rates would have the following effects: 

• Borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Account will rise; 

• Borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the borrowing will fall (no impact on revenue 
balances); 

• Investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Account will rise; and 

• Investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall (no impact on revenue 
balances). 

Borrowings are not carried at fair value on the balance sheet, so nominal gains and losses on 

fixed rate borrowings would not impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 

or Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.  However, changes in interest payable and 

receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit 

on the Provision of Services and affect the General Fund Balance.  Movements in the fair 

value of fixed rate investments that have a quoted market price will be reflected in Other 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.  

108



South Kesteven District Council                                  37                                                                
 

The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk.  The Annual Treasury 

Management Strategy draws together the Council’s prudential and treasury indicators and its 

expected treasury operations, including an expectation of interest rate movements.  From this 

Strategy a treasury indicator is set which provides maximum limits for fixed and variable 

interest rate exposure.  The central treasury team will monitor market and forecast interest 

rates within the year to adjust exposures appropriately.  For instance during periods of falling 

interest rates, and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate investments 

may be taken for longer periods to secure better long term returns, similarly the drawing of 

longer term fixed rates borrowing would be postponed.  If all interest rates had been 1% higher 

(with all other variables held constant) the financial effect would be: 

£'000

Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings 0

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments 564

Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 564

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowing liabilities (no 

impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services or Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure) 2,203

 

The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the 
movements being reversed.  These assumptions are based on the same methodology as used 
in the Note – Fair value of Assets and Liabilities carried at amortised Cost. 

Price risk 

The Council, excluding the pension fund, does not generally invest in equity shares or 
marketable bonds but does have shareholdings in the Gravitas Housing Limited which is a 
wholly owned Local Authority Controlled Company.  Whilst these holdings are generally 
illiquid, the Council is consequently exposed to losses arising from movements in the prices 
of the shares.   

As the shareholdings have arisen in the acquisition of specific interests, the Council is not in 
a position to limit its exposure to price movements by diversifying its portfolio.  Instead it only 
acquires shareholdings in return for “open book” arrangements with the company concerned 
so that the Council can monitor factors that might cause a fall in the value of specific 
shareholdings. 

The shares in Gravitas Housing Limited have been elected as Fair Value through Other 
Comprehensive Income, meaning that all movements in prices will impact on gains and losses 
recognized in the Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve.  A general shift of 5% in the 
general price of the shares (positive or negative) would have resulted in a £56k gain or loss 
being recognised in the Financial Instrument Revaluation reserve. 

Foreign exchange risk 

The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. It therefore 
has no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates. 

  

109



South Kesteven District Council                                  38                                                                
 

25. DEBTORS 
 
An analysis of Debtors is shown below 

 
At 31 March 

2020

At 31 March 

2021

£'000 £'000

Current Debtors

2,635 Government Departments 10,719

363 Other Local Authorities 3,375

(3) NHS 10

3,299 Other entities and individuals 3,640

6,294 17,744

Long Term Debtors

2,311 Other 2,283

2,311 2,283
 

 
26. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 
 

As at 31 March 2021 there are 4 Council Dwellings that are in the process of being sold and 
these are classified as Current Assets Held for Sale in the Balance Sheet. The details of the 
assets held for sale are shown below. 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

532 Balance at start of year 132

Assets newly classified as held for sale:

0 Property, Plant & Equipment 0

(363) Assets sold 0

(37) Withdrawn sales transferred back to PPE 0

132 132
 

 

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements:  
 

At 31 March 2020 At 31 March 2021

£'000 £'000

8 Cash held by the authority 219

1,445 Bank current accounts 1,900

24,130 Short Term Deposits 39,760

25,583 Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 41,879
 

Some instant access accounts are used for short-term investments where the rate of interest 
achieved is better than for a short-term investment.  However, due to the requirements of the 
Code they are included as Cash and Cash Equivalents on the Balance Sheet. 

 

 

110



South Kesteven District Council                                  39                                                                
 

28. BORROWING 
 
Non-Current Borrowing represents borrowing repayable within a period in excess of one year. 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000  Analysis of Loans by Source £'000

92,656  PWLB 89,435

92,656 89,435

£'000 Analysis of Loans by Maturity £'000 

3,221 Between 1 and 2 Years 3,222

9,665 Between 2 and 5 Years 9,665

16,109 Between 5 and 10 Years 16,109

41,109 Between 10 and 15 Years 41,109

22,552 Over 15 years 19,330

92,656 89,435
 

 
Current Borrowing represents borrowing repayable within one year. 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

28,244 Balance at start of year 3,246

(28,244) Borrowing repaid during year (3,247)

3,222 Transferred from  Non-Current Borrowing 3,222

24 Accrued interest at end of year 24

3,246 Balance at end of year 3,245
 

29. CREDITORS 
 
An analysis of Creditors is shown below: 
 

At 31 March 

2020

At 31 March 

2021

£'000 £'000

5,237 Government Departments 22,781

893 Other Local Authorities 60

5,851 Other entities and individuals 6,140

11,981 Total 28,981
 

 

30. LEASES 
 
a. Council as Lessee 
 
Finance Leases 
 
The Council has acquired a number of buildings under finance leases on a peppercorn basis.  
Typically the annual payments for these buildings are less than £1 per annum, so the future 
minimum lease payments due are immaterial.  The assets acquired under these leases are 
carried as Property, Plant & Equipment in the Balance Sheet at the following net book values. 

111



South Kesteven District Council                                  40                                                                
 

At 31 March 

2020 Carrying Value

At 31 March 

2021

£'000 £'000

2,035 Other Land & Buildings 2,153
 

 
None of these properties are sublet. 
 

 
 

 
b. Council as Lessor 
 
Finance Leases 
 
The Council has leased out HRA shops and the Crematorium at Grantham on finance leases 
with the remaining terms being between 65 and 70 years.  The Council has a gross investment 
in the lease, made up of the minimum lease payments expected to be received over the 
remaining term and the residual value anticipated for the property when the lease comes to 
an end.   The minimum lease payments comprise settlement of the long-term debtor for the 
interest in the property acquired by the lessee and finance income that will be earned by the 
Council in future years whilst the debtor remains outstanding.  The gross investment is made 
up of the following amounts: 
 

Gross Investment in the Lease

At 31 March 

2020 Finance Lease Debtor (net present value 

At 31 March 

2021

£'000   of minimum lease payments) £'000

12        Non-Current 12

54 Unearned finance income 54

1,740 Unguaranteed residual value of property 1,740

1,806 Gross Investment in the Lease 1,806
 

The gross investment in the lease and the minimum lease payments will be received over the 
following periods: 
 

112



South Kesteven District Council                                  41                                                                
 

At 31 March 

2021

At 31 March 

2020

At 31 March 

2021

At 31 March 

2020

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Not later than one year 1 1 0 0

Between one & five years 5 5 1 1

Later than 5 years 1,800 1,800 12 12

1,806 1,806 13 13

At 31 March 

2020

At 31 March 

2019

At 31 March 

2020

At 31 March 

2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Not later than one year 1 1 0 0

Between one & five years 5 5 1 1

Later than 5 years 1,800 1,802 12 13

1,806 1,808 13 14

Gross Investment in the 

Lease Minimum Lease Payments

Gross Investment in the 

Lease Minimum Lease Payments

 
 
No allowance for uncollectible amounts has been set aside as at 31 March 2021. 
 
The minimum lease payments do not include rents that are contingent on events taking place 
after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews.  In 2020/21 no 
contingent rents were receivable by the Council. 
 
Operating Leases 
 
The Council leases out property under operating leases for the following purposes  
 

• For the provision of community services such as leisure and community services. 

• For economic development services to provide suitable affordable accommodation for 
local businesses. 

 
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years 
are shown below: 
 

At 31 March 

2020

At 31 March 

2021

£'000 £'000

641 Not later than one year 695

2,128 Between one & five years 2,264

551 Later than 5 years 1,731

3,320 4,690
 

 
The minimum lease payments receivable do not include rents that are contingent on events 
taking place after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews.  In 
2020/21 no contingent rents were receivable by the Council. 

113



South Kesteven District Council                                  42                                                                
 

 
31. PROVISIONS 
 
All of the injury & damage compensation claims are individually insignificant.  They relate to 
personal injuries sustained where the Council is alleged to be at fault (e.g. through a failure to 
repair a pavement properly).  Provision is made for those claims where it is deemed probable 
that the Council will have to make a settlement, based on past experience of court decisions 
about liability and the amount of damages payable.  Of the £167k provided at 31st March 2021 
£140k is expected to be settled in 2021/22.   

Injury & Damage 

Compensation 

Claims

Business Rates 

Appeals
Total

2020/21 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2020 209 1,769 1,978

Additional provisions made in 2020/21 45 351 396

Amounts used in 2020/21 (35) (209) (244)

Unused amounts reversed in 2020/21 (52) 0 (52)

Total 167 1,911 2,078

Split between:

   Short-term provisions 140 414 554

   Long-term provisions 27 1,497 1,524

167 1,911 2,078

2019/20

Balance at 1 April 2019 285 1,738 2,023

Adjusted split due to 50% rates retention 0 (579) (579)

Additional provisions made in 2019/20 110 633 743

Amounts used in 2019/20 (123) (23) (146)

Unused amounts reversed in 2019/20 (63) 0 (63)

Total 209 1,769 1,978

Split between:

   Short-term provisions 143 624 767

   Long-term provisions 66 1,145 1,211

209 1,769 1,978
 

The Council has a provision for any potential liabilities as a result of Business Rate Payers 
appeals against rateable valuations.  The Council is responsible for a 40% share of this liability 
along with Government who a responsible for 50% and Lincolnshire County Council being 
responsible for a 10%. 

  

114



South Kesteven District Council                                  43                                                                
 

32. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME 
 
a. Participation in Pension Scheme 
 
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the 
Council makes contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these 
benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to 
make the payments for those benefits and to disclose them at the time that employees earn 
their future entitlement. 
 
The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by 
Lincolnshire County Council.   

• This is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning the Council, and employees, 
pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension’s 
liabilities with investment assets.  

 

• Arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early retirement 
are an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when 
awards are made. However, there are no investment assets built up to meet these pension 
liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual pension payments as they 
eventually fall due. 

 

• The Lincolnshire County Council pension scheme is operated under the regulatory 
framework for the Local Government Pension Scheme and the governance of the scheme 
is the responsibility of the pensions committee of Lincolnshire County Council. Policy is 
determined in accordance with the Pension Fund Regulations.  

 

• The principal risks to the Council of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory 
changes to the scheme, structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large scale withdrawals 
from the scheme), changes to inflation, bond yields and the performance of the equity 
investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory 
requirements to charge to the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account the amounts 
required by statute as described in the accounting policies note. 

 
Discretionary Post-retirement benefits on early retirement are an unfunded defined benefit 
arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are made. There are no plan 
assets built up to meet these pension liabilities. 
 
b. Transactions Relating to Post-Employment Benefits 
 
The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the cost of services when they are 
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. 
However, the charge the Council is required to make against council tax is based on the cash 
payable in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of 
the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account via the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
The reversal of the IAS19 transactions ensures that there is no effect on the amounts to be 
met from government grant and the local taxpayers. The following transactions have been 
made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund 
Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year. 

115



South Kesteven District Council                                  44                                                                
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Cost of Services

6,025  - current service cost 5,343

214  - past service cost 39

0 Administration fee 78

Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure

3,915  - Net interest expense 3,064

(2,504)  -Expected return on assets in the scheme (1,876)

7,650
Total Post-employment benefits charged to the Surplus or 

Deficit on the Provision of Services
6,648

Other Post-employment benefits charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability 

comprising:

11,943
-return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the 

net interest expense)
(19,443)

(5,831)
-Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in 

demographic assumptions
(1,672)

(14,032)
-Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial 

assumptions
37,852

(2,405) -Other (1,763)

(2,675)
Total Post Employment Benefit charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
21,622

Movement in Reserves Statement

(4,155)

Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit for 

the Provision of Services for post employment benefits in 

accordance with the Code

(2,899)

Actual amount charged against the General Fund 

Balance for pensions in the year.

3,495  - Employers' contributions payable to scheme. 3,749

 
  

116



South Kesteven District Council                                  45                                                                
 

c. Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 
 

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council’s obligation in respect of 
the defined benefit plans is as follows: 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

145,805 Present Value of the defined benefit obligation 184,792

(94,647) Fair value of plan assets (115,761)

51,158 Sub-total 69,031

51,158 Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 69,031

 
 
d. Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

104,123 Opening fair value of scheme assets 94,647

2,504 Interest income 1,876

Remeasurement gain/ (loss:

(11,943)

The return on plan assets, excluding the  amount included 

in net interest 19,443

3,495 Contributions from employer 3,749

883 Contributions from employees into the scheme 911

(4,415) Benefits paid (4,787)

0 Administration Expense (78)

94,647 Closing fair value of scheme assets 115,761

 
  

117



South Kesteven District Council                                  46                                                                
 

 
e. Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit 

Obligation) 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

Original

161,451 Opening balance at 1 April 145,805

6,025 Current Service Cost 5,343

3,915 Interest cost 3,064

883 Contributions from scheme participants 911

Remeasurement (gains) and losses:

(5,831)

Actuarial gains/ losses arising from changes in 

demographic assumptions (1,672)

(14,032)
Actuarial gains/ losses arising from changes in financial 

assumptions
37,852

(2,405) Other (1,763)

214 Past Service cost 39

(4,415) Benefits paid (4,787)

145,805 Closing Balance at 31 March 184,792

 
  

118



South Kesteven District Council                                  47                                                                
 

f. Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised 
 

2019/20 Fair Value of Scheme Assets 2020/21

£'000 £'000

63,735 Equities 86,090

17,688 Bonds 16,392

8,527 Property 12,060

566 Cash 2,552

90,516 Total Assets 117,094

 
All scheme assets have quoted prices in active markets. 
 
g. Basis of Estimating Assets and Liabilities 
 

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit cost method, an 
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependant on assumptions about 
mortality rates, salary levels etc. 
 
Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and discretionary benefits liabilities have been 
estimated by Hymans Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the 
Lincolnshire County Council Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 
31 March 2019. 
 
The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been: 
 

2019/20 2020/21

Long term expected rate of return on assets in the 

Scheme

Mortality Assumptions

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

21.4 Men 21.1

23.7 Women 23.6

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

22.4 Men 22.0

25.2 Women 25.0

2.2% Rate of increase in salaries 3.2%

1.9% Rate of Increase in Pensions 2.9%

2.3% Rate for discounting scheme liabilites 2.0%

 
The estimate of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to actuarial assumptions set out in 
the table above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably 
possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes 
for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain 
constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases 
or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some 
assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the 
accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit 

119



South Kesteven District Council                                  48                                                                
 

method. The method and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below 
do not change from those used in the previous period.    

Increase in 

Assumption 

£000

Decrease in 

Assumption 

£000

194 176

185 184

188 182

181 189

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Scheme

Longevity (increase or decrease in 1 year)

Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%)

Rate of increase in pensions (increase or decease by 0.1%)

Rate of discounting scheme liabilities (Increase or decrease by 0.1%)

 
 
 

h. Impact on the Council’s Cash Flows 
 
The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contribution at as constant a rate as 
possible. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis. The next triennial valuation is due 
to be completed on 31 March 2022. 
 
The Council is anticipated to pay £3.842m expected contributions to the scheme in 2021/22. 
 
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 17 
years. 
   
Further information can be found in Lincolnshire County Council's Pension Fund Annual 
Report which is available upon request from the Pension Fund Manager, Lincolnshire County 
Council, County Offices, Newland, Lincoln, LN1 1YL (Tel: 01522 553656). 

120



South Kesteven District Council                                  49                                                                
 

 

33. USABLE RESERVES 
 
Movements in the Council’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement and below: 

 
Balance at Transfer Transfer Balance at Transfer Transfer Balance at

1 April 2019 To Reserve From Reserve 31 March 2020 To Reserve From Reserve 31 March 2021

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

GF Capital Receipts Reserve 2,586 (269) 2,317 (122) 2,195

HRA Capital Receipts Reserve 6,660 600 7,260 797 8,057

Major Repairs Reserve 12,659 1,633 14,292 3,608 17,900

Earmarked GF Revenue Reserves 17,757 (2,638) 15,119 11,303 26,422

General Fund Unapplied Revenue Grants 1,148 (652) 496 (8) 488

Earmarked HRA Revenue Reserves 1,321 (374) 947 1,089 2,036

Earmarked GF Capital Reserve 3,752 (2,680) 1,072 (757) 315

Earmarked HRA Capital Reserves 16,073 16,073 (2,550) 13,523

Housing Revenue Account Balance 2,007 (447) 1,560 2,212 3,772

General Fund Balance 2,835 (825) 2,010 2,010

66,798 2,233 (7,885) 61,146 16,797 (1,225) 76,718
 

121



South Kesteven District Council                                  50                                                                
 

34. UNUSABLE RESERVES 
 

At 31 March 

2020

At 31 March 

2021

£'000 £'000

51,827 Revaluation Reserve 65,022

180,825 Capital Adjustment Account 186,269

(51,158) Pensions Reserve (69,031)

393 Collection Fund Adjustment Account (9,180)

(131) Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account (212)

20 Deferred Capital Receipts 18

(107) Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (87)

(300) Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve (319)

181,369 172,480

 
 
a. Revaluation Reserve 
 
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in 
the value of its Property, Plant & Equipment.  The balance is reduced when assets with 
accumulated gains are: 

• Re-valued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost 

• Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation or 

• Disposed of and the gains are realised 
 
The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date the 
Reserve was created.  Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the 
balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 

REVALUATION RESERVE

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

43,699 Balance at start of year 51,827

8,636 Upward revaluation of assets 14,568

(372)

Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses 

not charged to the Surplus/Deficit on Provision of 

Services

(1,318)

51,963
Surplus/Deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not 

posted to Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services
65,077

(73)
Difference between fair value depreciation and 

historical cost depreciation
(3)

(63) Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped (52)

(136) Amounts written off to the Capital Adjustment Account (55)

51,827 Balance at end of year 65,022

 
 

 
 

122



South Kesteven District Council                                  51                                                                
 

b. Capital Adjustment Account (CAA) 
 
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the 
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.  The 
account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, 
impairment losses and amortisation are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert 
current value figures to a historical cost basis).  The Account is credited with the amounts set 
aside by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement. 
 
The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and also 
contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant & Equipment before 1 April 2007, 
the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. 

  

123



South Kesteven District Council                                  52                                                                
 

 
34b CAA Continued 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

170,406 Balance at start of year 180,825

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure 

debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure Statement

(8,205) Charges for depreciation of non-current assets (8,516)

(4,567) Charges for impairment of non-current assets (2,602)

(1,911) Revaluation losses on Property, Plant & Equipment (2,068)

9,396

 Revaluation gains reversing previous impairments 

charged to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 

Statement

12,470

(112) Amortisation of intangible assets (110)

(818) Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (650)

(2,587)

 Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or 

sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

(1,415)

161,602 177,934

73 Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 3

161,675
Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets 

consumed in the year
177,937

Capital financing applied in the year

2,847
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new 

capital expenditure
574

4,665
Use of the Major Repairs reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure
2,796

742

Capital grants and contributions credited to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement that 

have been applied to capital financing

769

148
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 

charged against the General Fund & HRA balances
142

10,978 Self-financed capital expenditure 4,477

0 Long Term Debtor written down (41)

99
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and 

HRA balances

19,479 8,717

(329)

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties 

debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure Statement

(385)

180,825 Balance at end of year 186,269
 

  

124



South Kesteven District Council                                  53                                                                
 

c. Pensions Reserve 
 
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements 
for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with 
statutory provisions.  The Council accounts for post-employment benefits in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees 
accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing 
assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs.  However, 
statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes 
employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is 
directly responsible.  The balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial 
shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Council 
has set aside to meet them.  The statutory arrangements will ensure that the funding will have 
been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

Original

(57,328) Balance at start of year (51,158)

10,325 Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) (14,974)

(7,650)

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited 

or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of 

Services

(6,648)

3,495
Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to 

pensioners  payable in the year
3,749

(51,158) Balance at end of year (69,031)
 

 

 
d. Collection Fund Adjustment Account 
 
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition 
of council tax and non-domestic rates income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as it falls due from council tax payers and business rates payers compared with 
the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection 
Fund. 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

1,565 Balance at start of year 393

4

Amount by which council tax income credited to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement is 

different from council tax income calculated in 

accordance with statute

(176)

(1,176)

Amount by which NNDR income credited to the CIES is 

different from council tax and NNDR income calculated 

for the year in accordance with statutory requirements

(9,397)

393 Balance at end of year (9,180)
 

 
 

125



South Kesteven District Council                                  54                                                                
 

 
e. Accumulated Absences Account 
 
The Accumulating Compensated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would 
otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences 
earned but not taken in the year e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March.  
Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised 
by transfers to or from the account. 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

(131) Balance at start of year (131)

Amounts accrued at the end of the current year

0

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement on an 

accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in 

the year in accordance with statute

(81)

(131) Balance at end of year (212)
 

 
f. Deferred Capital Receipts 
 
The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-
current assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory 
arrangements, the Council does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital 
expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash settlement 
eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

23 Balance at start of year 20

(3) Repayments received in year (2)

20 Balance at end of year 18
 

 
g. Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 
 

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising 
from the different arrangements for accounting for income and expenses for certain 
financial instruments and for bearing losses or benefiting from gains as per statutory 
provisions. This reserve is used for accounting for monies advanced by the Council 
at less than the market interest rate (soft loans). 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

0 Balance at start of year (107)

(120) Soft Loan Cost 0

13 Repayments received in year 20

(107) Balance at end of year (87)
 

  

126



South Kesteven District Council                                  55                                                                
 

 
h. Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve 
 

The Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the 
Council arising from increases in the value of its investments which are measured at 
fair value through profit and loss.  The balance is reduced when investments with 
accumulated gains are: 

- Revalued downwards or impaired and gains are lost 
- Disposed of and the gains are realised 

 
Statutory override on pooled investments 
The Council holds £3m of pooled investments.  The Council is using the temporary 
statutory override agreed by MHCLG (5years commencing from April 2018) to 
account for any changes in the fair value on its pooled investments. 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

0 Balance at start of year (300)

0 Upward Revaluation of Investments 0

(300) Downward Revaluation of Investments (19)

0 Change in Impairment Loss Allowances 0

(300) (319)

0

Accumulated gains or losses on assets sold and maturing 

assets written out to the CIES as part of Other Investment 

Income

0

(300) Balance at end of year (319)
 

  

127



South Kesteven District Council                                  56                                                                
 

NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
 

35. CASH FLOW STATEMENT – OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
 
The adjustments to the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash 
movements can be analysed as follows; 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

8,205            Depreciation 8,516         

(2,918)        Impairment & downward valuations (7,760)       

112            Amortisation 110            

62              Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors 20,050       

120            (Increase)/Decrease in Debtors 560            

(4)               (Increase)/Decrease in Stock (2)              

4,155         Movement in pension liability 2,899         

2,650         
Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current 

assets held for sale, sold or de-recognised
1,427         

584            
Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or deficit 

on the provision of services
504            

12,966          
Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of 

services for noncash movements
26,304              

 
 
Adjustments to the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that are investing or 
financing activities: 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

(3,977)        
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 

investment property and intangible assets
(1,975)       

(1,036)        
Other items for which the cash effects are investing or 

financing cash flows
(1,133)       

(5,013)           

Adjustment for items included in the net surplus or 

deficit on the provision of services that are investing 

and financing activities

(3,108)               

 
The cash flows for operating activities include the following items: 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

762            Interest Received 523            

(2,729)        Interest Paid (2,530)       

(1,967)           (2,007)                
 
 
 
 
 
 

128



South Kesteven District Council                                  57                                                                
 

36. CASH FLOW STATEMENT – INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
£'000 £'000

(12,669)      
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment 

property and intangible assets
(4,922)       

(87,200)      Purchase of short-term and long-term investments (29,500)     

(2,473)        Other payments for investing activities 0            

3,980         
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 

investment property and intangible assets
1,977         

106,640     
Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments

32,000       

1,262         Other receipts from investing activities 3,134         

9,540            Net cash flows from investing activities 2,689                

 
37. CASH FLOW STATEMENT – FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

 
 
Cash flow Financing Activities: 
 

£'000 £'000

25,000       Cash receipts of short- and long-term borrowing 0            

(28,222)      Repayments of short- and long-term borrowing (3,222)       

723            Other payments for financing activities (14,773)     

(2,499)           Net cash flows from financing activities (17,995)             

 
 

129



South Kesteven District Council                                  58                                                                
 

OTHER DISCLOSURE NOTES 
           

38. INTEREST IN OTHER COMPANIES AND ENTITIES 
 

South Kesteven District Council wholly owns Gravitas Housing Ltd, Invest SK Limited and 
Environment SK Limited.  Group accounts have been produced for Gravitas Housing Ltd and 
these are available on page 73 onwards.  
 
Invest SK Limited 
 
The registered name of the company is Invest SK Limited, and this is a wholly owned 
subsidiary of South Kesteven District Council. The company was incorporated on 13 June 
2018 and exists to “lead South Kesteven’s ambitious economic development agenda, support 
local business to grow, deliver new inwards investment, boost the arts, heritage, town centre 
and visitor economy offers”. The company is a Private company limited by guarantee without 
share capital 
 
The net assets of the Company at 31 March 2021 are £0.341m (£0.357m 2019/20).  The 
accounts can be obtained from Invest SK, Council Offices, St Peter’s Hill, Grantham, NG31 
6PZ. 
 
During 2020/21 the net amount paid by the Council to the company was £0.430m (£1.119m 
2019/20). 
 
Environment SK Limited 
 
The registered name of the company is Environment SK Limited, and this is a wholly owned 
subsidiary of South Kesteven District Council. The company was incorporated on 1 March 
2019 and exists to “offer a range of quality, environmental services”.  
 
The net assets of the Company as at 31 March 2021 are £0.446m (£0.456m 2019/20). The 
accounts can be obtained from Environment SK Ltd, Council Offices, St Peters Hill, Grantham, 
Lincolnshire, NG31 6PZ.  
 
During 2020/21 the Council spent £0.917m (£1.079m 2019/20) on services with Environment 
SK Ltd. At the 31 March 2021 the Council owed £38k (£57k 2019/20) to Environment SK Ltd 
and Environment SK Ltd owed £14k (£9k 2019/20) to the Council. 
 
The Council provided a loan to Environment SK Ltd of £571k during 2019/20 of which £430k 
was the balance outstanding at 31 March 2021. 
  

130



South Kesteven District Council                                  59                                                                
 

39. EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS 
 

The Council has incurred the following costs in relation to the external audit of the Statement 
of Accounts, certification of grant claims and other audit work. The Council has not made any 
payments for non-audit services to its external auditors and not incurred any costs for statutory 
inspections. 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

54
Fees payable to the external auditors with regard to external 

audit services carried out by the appointed auditor.
44

3
Fees payable to the external auditors for the certification of 

grant claims.
3

4 CFO Insights 4

7
Fees payable to external auditors for the certification of 

returns
10

68 61
 

  
 

40. RELATED PARTIES 
 
The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or 
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or 
influenced by the Council.  Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the 
extent to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently 
or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the 
Council. 
 
Central Government has effective control (significant influence) over the general operations 
of the Council.  It is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council 
operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of 
many of the transactions the Council has with third parties e.g. housing benefits. Details of 
transactions with government departments are set out in Notes 11 and 12 relating to grant 
income. 
 
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating 
policies.  Guidance has been issued to make Members, Chief Officers and senior managers 
aware of the requirements to declare all interests relevant to the Council including interests of 
families, partners and entities controlled by them.  Also all Members, Chief Officers and senior 
managers have been requested to complete a Related Party Transaction declaration. Upon 
analysis of completed returns no material items were identified that required separate 
disclosure.  The Council maintains a Register of Interests which is complete and up to date 
on the basis of information received.   
 
Wholly owned companies of the Council have members and senior officers on the board of 
Directors.  The boards are constituted as follows: 
 
Gravitas Limited – Director of Finance, Leader of the Council and Deputy Leader of the Council 
Environment SK – Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations, Assistant Director of 
Commercial and Operations, Community Resilience Lead 
Invest SK – Leader of the Council, Deputy Leader of the Council, Chief Executive. 
Leisure SK – Leader of the Council, Deputy Leader of the Council, Chief Executive, Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Resources, Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy 
 
Note 38 provides details of the transactions with Environment SK and Invest SK. 

131



South Kesteven District Council                                  60                                                                
 

 
Precept & Levying bodies, town councils, parish councils and drainage boards levy demands 
on the Council Tax, and the transactions are detailed below. 
 
Payments made during the year were as follows: 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

1,718 Town and Parish Councils 1,835

133 Upper Witham Drainage Board 136

58 Black Sluice Drainage Board 59

501 Welland and Deepings Drainage Board 530

2,410 2,560
 

 
41. AUTHORISATION OF ACCOUNTS FOR ISSUE 
 
The date that the Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue was 30 July 2021.  This is 
the date up to which events after the Balance Sheet date have been considered.  The name 
of the person who gave the authorisation was Richard Wyles (Chief Finance Officer). 

 
  

132



South Kesteven District Council                                  61                                                                
 

 
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 

 
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

 31 MARCH 2021 
 

The HRA Income and Expenditure Statement shows the economic cost in the year of providing 
housing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the 
amount to be funded from rents and government grants.  Authorities charge rents to cover 
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost.  
The increase or decrease in the year, on the basis on which rents are raised, is shown in the 
Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement. 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

Income

Gross Rental Income

(23,676)  - Dwelling Rents (24,152)

(289)  - Non-Dwelling Rents (280)

(670) Charges for Services and Facilities (551)

(108) Other Income (43)

(24,743) Total Income (25,026)

Expenditure

8,153 Repairs and Maintenance 6,816

3,657 Supervision and Management 3,318

9 Rent, rates, taxes and other charges 37

131 Increase/(Decrease) in Prov'n for Doubtful Debts 116

(812)
Depreciation and impairment of Non-Current 

Assets
(5,922)

42 Debt Management Costs 35

11,180 4,400

(13,563) Net Cost of HRA Services (20,626)

2,517 HRA share of Corporate and Democratic Core 2,592

(11,046)

Net Cost of HRA Services as included in the 

whole authority Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement

(18,034)

(1,358) (Gain)/loss on sale of HRA assets (620)

802 Contribution Housing Captial Receipts to the Pool 768

0
Other operating income (Right to Buy Discount 

Repaid)
0

2,731 Interest payable and similar charges 2,530

(391) Interest and Investment Income (252)

(25) Investment Property Income and Expenditure (3)

328
Pension Interest Costs and Expected Return on 

Assets
270

(8,959) (Surplus)/Deficit for the year on HRA services (15,341)

 
  

133



South Kesteven District Council                                  62                                                                
 

 
MOVEMENT ON THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT STATEMENT 

 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 Note

£'000

(2,007)
Balance on the HRA at the end of the 

previous year
(1,560)

(8,959)
(Surplus)/Deficit for the year on the HRA 

Income & Expenditure Statement
(15,341)

6,898
Adjustments between Accounting Basis and 

Funding Basis under statute
7 11,618

(2,061)
Net (increase) or decrease before 

transfers to or from reserves
(3,723)

2,508 Transfers to or (from) reserves 7 1,513

(1,560)
Balance on HRA at the end of the current 

year
(3,770)

 
  

134



South Kesteven District Council                                  63                                                                
 

NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
 
The Housing Revenue Account reflects a statutory obligation to maintain a revenue account 
for local Council housing provision in accordance with part 6 of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989. The Act sets the framework for "ring fencing" the Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA).  The account has to be self-financing and there is a legal prohibition on cross 
subsidy to or from the General Fund. 
 

1. HOUSING STOCK 
 
The Council was responsible for managing on average 5920 dwellings during 20/21.  The 
housing stock and changes during the year are as follows: 
 

At 1 April 

2020
Additions

Disposals 

/Sales

At 31 March 

2021

Rentable Stock

 - Houses 3,094 1 (26) 3,069

 - Bungalows 1,499 0 (1) 1,498

 - Flats 1,312 14 (1) 1,325

Shared Ownership 22 0 22

Total 5,927 15 (28) 5,914
 

 

135



South Kesteven District Council                                  64                                                                
 

2. LAND HOUSES AND OTHER PROPERTY 
 

Analysis of Housing Fixed Assets 

D
w

e
ll
in

g
s

O
th

e
r 

L
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 

B
u
il
d
in

g
s

V
e
h
ic

le
s
, 
P

la
n
t 
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

A
s
s
e
ts

 U
n
d
e
r 

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or Valuation at 1 April 2020 242,894 4,340 1,387 468 2,768 251,857

Additions 2,602 0 160 0 405 3,167

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised 

in the Revaluation Reserve
11,582 (170) 0 0 0 11,412

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised 

in the Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services
8,322 (76) 0 (15) 0 8,231

Derecognition - Disposals (1,260) 0 (60) 0 0 (1,320)

Assets reclassified to/from Assets Under 

Construction 2,237 0 0 0 (2,278) (41)

Gross Book Value as at 31 March 2021 266,377 4,094 1,487 453 895 273,306

Depreciation & Impairments

At 1 April 2020 (4) 0 (1,286) 0 0 (1,290)

Depreciation charge (3,430) (257) (142) 0 0 (3,829)

Depreciation written out to the revaluation 

reserve
1,970 185 0 0 0 2,155

Depreciation written out to the CI&E 4,035 72 0 0 0 4,107

Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in the 

Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services
(2,602) 0 0 0 0 (2,602)

Derecognition - Disposals 0 0 46 0 0 46

At 31 March 2021 (31) 0 (1,382) 0 0 (1,413)

Balance Sheet Amount at 31 March 2021 266,346 4,094 105 453 895 271,893

Balance Sheet Amount at 31 March 2020 242,890 4,340 101 468 2,768 250,567

Operational Assets

Total

Non Operational Assets

 
The vacant possession value of dwellings at 31 March 2021 was £628.42m (£579.16m at 31 
March 2020).  Each council dwelling owned, in full or part, by the Council has been valued by 
the Valuation Office Agency in accordance with the guidance issued by DCLG.  The vacant 
possession value of dwellings must be adjusted to reflect the social housing status of local 
authority dwellings i.e. that social housing is available to tenants at less than open market 
rents.  The predetermined adjustment factor for social housing in the East Midlands is 42%.  

136



South Kesteven District Council                                  65                                                                
 

3. HRA REVALUATION LOSS 
 

When assets are re-valued, the increase or decrease is an “unrealised gain or loss” until the 
asset is sold.  These unrealised gains and losses are held in the revaluation reserve.  If an 
asset is revalued upward, then in subsequent years re-valued downward, the revaluation loss 
is set against the original gain in the reserve, so reducing it. Once any gains in the reserve are 
reduced to zero, any further loss must be charged as expenditure to the Housing Revenue 
Account in the year.   
 
Due to accounting rules, the Revaluation Reserve was set up with an opening balance of zero 
at 1 April 2007.  The closing position on the Reserve at 31 March 2021 therefore only shows 
revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007 together with depreciation adjustments to 
comply with accounting rules.  Any revaluation gains (and losses) on non-current assets prior 
to 1 April 2007 are accounted for in the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

3,768 Depreciation 3,829

(9,135) Revaluation Loss/(Gain) (12,339)

4,567 Impairment Losses 2,602

(800) (5,908)
 

 
 

4. MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE 
 
The Major Repairs Reserve is maintained to meet HRA capital expenditure. Movements on 
the Reserve were: 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

12,658 Opening balance on the Major Repairs Reserve 14,291

Transfer to/ (from) the Major Repairs Reserve

3,415 Transfer from HRA equal to depreciation 3,430

2,883 Additional contribution from HRA 2,975

(4,665) Financing of Capital Expenditure (2,796)

14,291 Closing balance on the Major Repairs Reserve 17,900
 

 
 

137



South Kesteven District Council                                  66                                                                
 

5.  FINANCING CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
 
The capital expenditure on land, houses and other assets in the HRA together with its 
financing is shown below: 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

Expenditure

4,745 Council Dwellings 2,602

99 Plant and Equipment 160

2,299 Assets Under Construction 405

7,143 Total 3,167

Financed from:

4,665 Major Repairs Reserve 2,796

2,478 Capital Receipts 371

7,143 3,167
 

 
Supported Capital Expenditure allowances are issued by the Government as part of The 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities. 
 
 

6. CAPITAL RECEIPTS 
 
The sale of HRA assets during the year is detailed in the following table. Following the 
reinvigoration of the Right to Buy (RTB) the split between useable and unusable poolable 
receipts is now re calculated by use of a complex procedure imposed by the Department of 
Communities and Local Government.   

Receipt in 

Year

Element 

Pooled

Useable 

Element

£'000 £'000 £'000

Sale of Land 0 0 0

Sale of Vehicles 13 0 13

Sale of Council Dwellings 1,920 (766) 1,154

Mortgage Repayments 2 (2) 0

Total 1,935 (768) 1,167

 
 

 
A transaction cost of £1,300 per completed RTB sale has been deducted before calculating 
the apportionment between pooled and useable plus a deduction for the debt supported by 
those properties sold. 
 
 
  

138



South Kesteven District Council                                  67                                                                
 

7. ANALYSIS OF RECONCILING ITEMS IN MOVEMENT ON THE HOUSING 
REVENUE ACCOUNT STATEMENT  

 

2019/20
Movement on the Housing Revenue Account 

Statement
2020/21

£'000 £'000

Adjustments between Accounting and Funding 

Basis:

(1,780)  IAS 19 (1,512)

689  - Pension Costs Charged to Rent Income 736

(4,567)  - Non-Enhancing Capital Expenditure (2,602)

3,222 Capital Expenditure 3,222

1,358
Gains/losses on disposal of non current 

   assets
620

9,135 Revaluation gains/(losses) on PPE 12,339

(802) Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool (768)

(357) Depreciation of non-current assets (399)

0 Other Adjustment (18)

6,898 11,618

Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves:

(375)  -  Transfers to/(from) reserves (1,462)

2,883  -  Transfers to/(from) Major Repairs Reserve 2,975

2,508 1,513
 

 
 

8. RENT ARREARS 
 
An analysis of rent arrears is shown below: 
 

At 31st 

March 

2020

At 31st 

March 

2021

£'000 £'000

1,122 Current Tenants 1,008

828 Former Tenants 939

1,950 Gross Rent Arrears 1,947

(1,247) Impairment Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debt (1,305)

 
A bad debt Provision has been made in the accounts for potentially uncollectable rent 
arrears. 
. 

139



South Kesteven District Council                                  68                                                                
 

COLLECTION FUND INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT 
         FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 

 
 The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities to 

maintain a separate Collection Fund.  The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation 
to the collection from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and the Government of council tax and 
non-domestic rates. 

 
 

Business Council Business Council 

Rates Tax Total Rates Tax Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 Note £'000 £'000 £'000

0 82,427 82,427 0 85,581 85,581

43,195 0 43,195 21,959 0 21,959

0 0 0 Central Government 0 0 0

0 0 0 South Kesteven District Council 0 0 0

0 0 0 Lincolnshire County Council 0 0 0

43,195 82,427 125,622 21,959 85,581 107,540

Expenditure

41,374 81,473 122,847 3 41,954 85,813 127,767

176 0 176 174 0 174

(186) 0 (186) (8) 0 (8)

279 186 465 Write Offs (1) 65 64

(13) 91 78 Provisions 366 164 530

1,526 0 1,526 Appeals 355 0 355

168 0 168 Central Government 830 0 830

1,317 73 1,390 South Kesteven District Council 1,042 123 1,165

822 473 1,295 Lincolnshire County Council 279 817 1,096

0 84 84 Lincolnshire Police & Crime Commissioner 0 152 152

45,463 82,380 127,843 Total Expenditure 44,991 87,134 132,125

(2,268) 47 (2,221) (23,032) (1,553) (24,585)

2,590 710 3,300 322 757 1,079

322 757 1,079 (22,710) (796) (23,506)

Allocated to -

(85) 0 (85) Central Government (11,353) 0 (11,353)

311 82 393 South Kesteven District Council (9,087) (93) (9,180)

96 565 661 Lincolnshire County Council (2,270) (594) (2,864)

0 110 110 Lincolnshire Police & Crime Commissioner 0 (109) (109)

322 757 1,079 (22,710) (796) (23,506)

Movement on Fund

Balance at the Beginning of the Year

Surplus/(Deficit) on Fund at End of Year

2020/212019/20

Precepts and Demands

Costs of Collection

Transitional Protection Payment

Bad and doubtful Debts - 

Apportionment of Previous Year Surplus -

Income

Council Tax Payers

Business Ratepayers

Apportionment of Previous Year Deficit -

Total Income

  

140



South Kesteven District Council                                  69                                                                
 

NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND 
 

1. COUNCIL TAX  
 
Council Tax income derives from charges raised according to the value of residential properties that have 
been classified into eight Valuation Bands (A to H).  Individual charges are calculated by estimating the 
amount of income required to be taken from the Collection Fund by Lincolnshire County Council, Office of 
the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire and South Kesteven District Council together with each 
parish requirement and dividing this by the Council Tax base i.e. the number of properties in each valuation 
band converted to an equivalent number of band D dwellings and adjusted for discounts.   
 
The Council Tax base for 2020/21 increased to 47,918.4 (47,125.7 in 2019/20) 
 
The Council Tax base was calculated as follows: 
 

Band

Estimated No. of Taxable 

Properties After Effect of 

Discounts

Ratio

Band D 

Equivalent 

Dwellings

A 13,124.20 6/9 8,749.5

B 12,079.50 7/9 9,395.2

C 10,003.80 8/9 8,892.3

D 8,474.20 9/9 8,474.2

E 5,351.90 11/9 6,541.2

F 2,752.90 13/9 3,976.4

G 1,022.90 15/9 1,704.8

H 66.30 18/9 132.6

Band A entitled to Disabled 

Relief Reduction
21.90 5/9 12.2

47,878.4

Ministry of Defence Properties 40.0

Council Tax Base 47,918.4
 

 
 

2. BUSINESS RATES 
 

Under this scheme SKDC keeps the total non-domestic rates due, less certain reliefs and deductions and 
then redistributes the rates collected based on estimates at the start of the year.  The redistribution of the 
central and local shares is based on the ratio of 50:40:10 for Central Government, SKDC and Lincolnshire 
County Council. The business rates retention scheme is designed to encourage economic growth and 
incentivise Councils by allowing them to keep a proportion of any business rates growth achieved during the 
year.  
 

Under the arrangements for Non-Domestic Rates, the Council collects rates for its area based upon local 
rateable values (determined by the Valuation Office Agency, an executive agency of HM Revenue & 
Customs) multiplied by the multiplier (determined by Government). For 2020/21 there are two multipliers: 
 
Full   51.2p (50.4p for 2019/20) 
Small Business 49.9p (49.1p for 2019/20) 
 
The total Non-Domestic Rateable Value at 31 March 2021 was £111.056m (31 March 2020 £111.347m). 
 

141



South Kesteven District Council                                  70                                                                
 

3. PRECEPTS AND DEMANDS 
 

 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Council Tax
Business 

Rates
Total Council Tax

Business 

Rates
Total

0 20,687 20,687 Central Government 0 20,862 20,862

60,905 4,137 65,042 Lincolnshire County Council 64,093 4,172 68,265

11,375 0 11,375
Lincs Police & Crime 

Commissioner
12,045 0 12,045

9,193 16,550 25,743 South Kesteven District Council 9,675 16,920 26,595

81,473 41,374 122,847 85,813 41,954 127,767

2019/20 2020/21

 
  

142



South Kesteven District Council                                  71                                                                
 

 
STATEMENT OF GROUP ACCOUNTS 

 
INTRODUCTION 
 

The statement of group accounts consolidates South Kesteven District Council accounts with those of its 
subsidiary Gravitas Housing Limited. 
 
Gravitas Housing Limited has been established by the Council to deliver new housing outside the Housing 
Revenue Account. The company is wholly owned by the Council and the aggregation of accounts has been 
completed on a line-by-line basis with intra-group transactions removed. 
 
Group accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 (the Code) published by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).  
 
The aim of the statement of group accounts is to provide the reader with an overall view of the material 
economic activities of the Group.  It provides a summary of the group’s financial position and details of 
material items that have impacted on the accounts during the year. The same accounting policies have 
been applied to both the Council and Group Accounts. 
 
The main differences between the Group and single entity accounts are seen in the balance sheet: 
 

• Gravitas Housing Limited properties currently being marketed have been added, classified as 
current assets held for sale in the sum of £2.43m 

• £1.9m intercompany loan has been removed from long term debtors and short and long term 
investments 

• £1.12m intercompany investment has been removed from long term investments 

• The company’s bank balance has added £1.17m to the cash and cash equivalent total. 

  

143



South Kesteven District Council                                  72                                                                
 

 
GROUP MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 
 
This statement shows the movement in the year on the reserves held by the Group, analysed into 
usable and unusable reserves.  The Total Comprehensive Income & Expenditure line shows the 
true economic cost of providing the Groups services, this is further detailed in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be 
charged to the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account for Council Tax setting and dwelling 
rent setting purposes.  
 

Total Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total Authority 

Reserves

Gravitas 

Housing Ltd

Total Group 

Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 31 March 2020 brought forward (61,146) (181,369) (242,515) (60) (242,575)

Movement in reserves during 2020/21

Total Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure (8,406) 1,723.00 (6,683) 214.00 (6,469)

Transfers between Reserves (42) 42 0 0

Adjustments between accounting basis & 

funding basis under regulations (7,124) 7,124 0 0

(Increase) or decrease in 2020/21 (15,572) 8,889 (6,683) 214 (6,469)

Balance at 31 March 2021 carried forward (76,718) (172,480) (249,198) 154 (249,044)

Total Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total Authority 

Reserves

Gravitas 

Housing Ltd

Total Group 

Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 31 March 2019 brought forward (66,798) (158,234) (225,032) 81 (224,951)

Movement in reserves during 2019/20

Total Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure 1,105 (18,588) (17,483) (141) (17,624)

Transfers between Reserves (3) 3 0 0 0

Adjustments between accounting basis & 

funding basis under regulations 4,550 (4,550) 0 0 0

(Increase) or decrease in 2019/20 5,652 (23,135) (17,483) (141) (17,624)

Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forward (61,146) (181,369) (242,515) (60) (242,575)

 
  

144



South Kesteven District Council                                  73                                                                
 

 
GROUP COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
 
This statement shows the accounting costs of providing services in the year.  
 

G
ro

u
p
 G

ro
s
s
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro

u
p
 G

ro
s
s
 

In
c
o
m

e

G
ro

u
p
 N

e
t 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro

u
p
 G

ro
s
s
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro

u
p
 G

ro
s
s
 

In
c
o
m

e

G
ro

u
p
 N

e
t 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

Restated 2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
15,131 (5,946) 9,185 Commercial & Operations 15,073 (5,264) 9,809

29,390 (46,256) (16,866) Corporate 26,181 (47,083) (20,902)

10,334 (3,493) 6,841 Growth & Culture 8,744 (2,535) 6,209

15,407 (1,993) 13,414 Housing & Property 13,176 (2,284) 10,892

70,262 (57,688) 12,574 Cost Of Services 63,174 (57,166) 6,008

Other Operating Expenditure

0 (1,328) (1,328) (Gain)/Loss Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 (507) (507)

2,410 0 2,410 Precepts & Levies 2,560 0 2,560

802 0 802 Contribution Housing Capital Receipts to the Pool 768 0 768

0 0 0 Other Operating Income and Expenditure 0 0 0

3,212 (1,328) 1,884 3,328 (507) 2,821

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

2,731 0 2,731 Interest Payable on Debt 2,530 0 2,530

1,411 0 1,411 Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) 1,188 0 1,188

0 (653) (653) Interest & Investment Income 0 (342) (342)

0 (4) (4)
Income & Expenditure and Movement in Fair Value of

Investment Property
0 46 46

300 0 300 Movement in the value of property fund income 19 0 19

4,442 (657) 3,785 3,737 (296) 3,441

0 (17,074) (17,074) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 0 (20,519) (20,519)

1,169 (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services (8,249)

33 Tax expenses of subsidiaries (33)

1,202 Group (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services (8,282)

(8,263) (Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets (13,250)

(10,325) Remeasurement of Defined Pension Liability 14,974

(18,588) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 1,724

(17,386) TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME & EXPENDITURE (6,558)

 
 

  

145



South Kesteven District Council                                  74                                                                
 

 
GROUP BALANCE SHEET 
 
The Group Balance Sheet summarises the financial position of the Council and its subsidiary, as a 
whole.  It shows the value of group assets and liabilities at the end of the financial year. 
 

At 31 March 

2020

At 31 March 

2021
Note

£'000 £'000

Note

333,775 Property Plant & Equipment 349,559

522 Heritage Assets 537

5,583 Investment Property 5,198

278 Intangible Assets 181

2,722 Long Term Investments 2,698

490 Long Term Debtors 448

343,370 Long Term Assets 358,621

2,789 Current Assets Held for Sale G1 2,560

27,353 Short Term Investments 24,749

23 Inventories 25

6,228 Short Term Debtors 17,654

26,303 Cash and Cash Equivalents G2 43,046

62,696 Current Assets 88,034

(3,246) Short Term Borrowing (3,245)

(12,211) Short Term Creditors (29,620)

(767) Provisions (554)

(16,224) Current Liabilities (33,419)

(1,211) Provisions (1,524)

(92,656) Long Term Borrowing (89,435)

(51,158) Other Long Term Liabilities (69,031)

(2,242) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance (4,202)

(147,267) Long Term Liabilities (164,192)

242,575 Net Assets 249,044

£'000 £'000

61,206 Usable Reserves 76,564

181,369 Unusable Reserves 172,480

242,575 Total Reserves 249,044

 
  

146



South Kesteven District Council                                  75                                                                
 

GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
 
The Group Cash Flow Statement summarises the cash flows of the Council and its subsidiary 
during the year. 
 

2019/20 2020/21
Notes

£'000 £'000
Notes

Operating Activities

(1,202) Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services 8,282

12,852
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of 

services for non-cash movements
G3 26,915

(5,014)

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit 

on the provision of services that are investing and 

financing activities

(3,108)

2,018

Reversal of operating activity items included in the net 

(surplus) or deficit on the provision of services that are 

shown separately below 

2,084

Net cash flows from Operating Activities includes

(2,729) Interest paid (2,530)

711 Interest received 446

6,636 Net cash flows from Operating Activities 32,089

Investing Activities

(14,651)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment 

property and intangible assets
(5,701)

(87,200) Purchase of short-term and long-term investments (29,500)

(572) Other payments for investing activities 0

4,608
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 

investment property and intangible assets
2,716

106,640 Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments 32,000

1,262 Other receipts from investing activities 3,134

10,087 Net cash flows from Investing Activities 2,649

Financing Activities

25,000 Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing (3,222)

(28,222) Repayments of short and long-term borrowing (14,773)

723 Other payments for financing activities 0

(2,499) Net cash flows from Financing Activities (17,995)

14,224 Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash 16,743

12,079
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 

reporting period
26,303

26,303
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 

period
43,046

(14,224) (16,743)
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

147



South Kesteven District Council                                  76                                                                
 

NOTE G1 – ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

532 Balance at start of year 2,789

Assets newly classified as held for sale:

2,657 Property, Plant & Equipment 601

(363) Assets sold (830)

(37) Withdrawn sales transferred back to PPE 0

2,789 2,560

 
NOTE G2 – CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

At 31 March 2020 At 31 March 2021

£'000 £'000

8 Cash held by the authority 219

2,165 Bank current accounts 3,067

24,130 Short Term Deposits 39,760

26,303 Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 43,046

 
NOTE G3 – CASH FLOW 
 

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

8,205 Depreciation 8,516

(2,918) Impairment & downward valuations (7,760)

112 Amortisation 110

(99) Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors 20,637

167 (Increase)/Decrease in Debtors 584

(4) (Increase)/Decrease in Stock (2)

4,155 Movement in pension liability 2,899

2,650

Carrying amount of non-current assets and 

non-current assets held for sale, sold or de-

recognised 1,427

584

Other non-cash items charged to the net 

surplus or deficit on the provision of 

services 504

12,852 26,915
 

  

148



South Kesteven District Council                                  77                                                                
 

 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
I. GENERAL PRINCIPLES 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2020/21 financial year and its 
position at the year-end of 31 March 2021.  The Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of 
Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. These regulations require the Statement of Accounts 
to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 and supported by International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by 
the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 
 

II. ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. 
In particular: 
 

• Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant risks and rewards 
of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated 
with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

 

• Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure reliably the 
percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

 

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between the date 
supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

 

• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as 
expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made. 
 

• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income 
and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument, rather than 
the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 

 

• Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor 
or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the 
balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be 
collected.  

 

• The impact of IFRS15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers has been considered and deemed to 
have no material impact. 

 
III. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on 
notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in 30 days or 
less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant 
risk of change in value. 
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable 
on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. 
 

IV. CHARGES TO REVENUE FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost 
of holding non-current assets during the year. 
 

149



South Kesteven District Council                                  78                                                                
 

• Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service. 

• Revaluation and Impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated 
gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the loss can be written off. 

• Amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or 
amortisation.  However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in 
its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council 
in accordance with statutory guidance.  Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation 
are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance by way of an adjusting transaction 
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the 
two. 
 

V. COUNCIL TAX AND NON-DOMESTIC RATES 
 
Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf of major 
preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as, principals, collecting council tax and NDR for 
themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. the Collection Fund) 
for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and NDR. Under the legislative 
framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors and central government share 
proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax and NDR collected could be less or more 
than predicted. 
 
Accounting for Council TAX and NDR 
 
The council tax and NDR included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the council’s 
share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the amount of council tax and NDR 
that must be included in the Council’s General Fund. Therefore, the difference between the income included 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be 
credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a 
reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The Balance Sheet includes the council’s share of the end of year balances in respect of council tax and 
NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments and 
appeals. 
 

VI.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
Benefits Payable during Employment 
 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. They include 
such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary 
benefits for current employees.  These expenses are charged on an accruals basis to the relevant service 
line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Termination Benefits  
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate an officer’s 
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in 
exchange for those benefits.  They are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service, or where 
applicable, to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the 
earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the council recognises 
costs for a restructuring. 
 
Post-Employment Benefits  
 
Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Fund, administered by Lincolnshire 
County Council.  The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), 
earned as employees worked for the Council.   
 

150



South Kesteven District Council                                  79                                                                
 

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the revenue account when employees earn them, 
rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme: 
 

• The liabilities of the Lincolnshire County Council pension scheme attributable to the Council are included 
in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the 
future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based 
on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projected earnings for current 
employees.  

 

• The assets of the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the 
balance sheet at their fair value. 
 

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 
 

• Service Cost comprising: 
 

- Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year –  
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the revenue accounts of 
services for which the employees worked 
 

- Past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment 
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on 
the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non 
Distributed Costs 
 

• Net interest on the net defined pension liability (asset) i.e. net interest expense for the Council – the 
change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time 
charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. Remeasurement comprising: 
 

- The return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the defined benefit liability 
(asset) charged to the Pension Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
 

-  Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not 
coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have 
updated their assumption – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure. 

 
- Contributions paid to the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund – cash paid as employer’s 

contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.   
 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be charged with 
the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount 
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.    
 
In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the Pensions 
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the 
cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. 
The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the 
General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as 
benefits are earned by employees. 
 
Discretionary Benefits 
 
The Council has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early 
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in 

151



South Kesteven District Council                                  80                                                                
 

the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the 
Local Government Pension Scheme. 
 

VII. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
Financial Liabilities  
 
Financial Liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and carried at their 
amortised cost.  Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount 
of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the 
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at 
which it was originally recognised.  
 
For all of the borrowing that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is 
the outstanding principle repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Account is the amount payable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects the 
business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics. There are three main 
classes of financial assets measured at:  
 

• amortised cost  

• fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and  

• fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 
 

The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial assets are 
therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments are not solely payment 
of principal and interest (ie where the cash flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument).  

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost  

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair 
value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 
for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of 
interest for Statements the instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the Council, this means that 
the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) 
and interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.  

Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES at a 
marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the 
difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions 
require that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial 
year – the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the CIES to the net gain required against the 
General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement.  

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.  

Expected Credit Loss Model  

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost, either on 
a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease receivables and contract 
assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the Council.  

152



South Kesteven District Council                                  81                                                                
 

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take place 
because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in assessing losses. 
Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, losses are assessed on 
a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the 
basis of 12-month expected losses.  

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit of Loss  

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and 
carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on 
the Provision of Services.  

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques:  

 

• instruments with quoted market prices – the market price  

• other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis.  
 

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three levels:  

• Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the Council 
can access at the measurement date.  

• Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset, either directly or indirectly.  

• Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset.  
 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 

VIII. GOVERNMENT GRANTS & OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS  
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and 
donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance that: 

• The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

• The grants or contributions will be received 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contributions have been satisfied. Conditions are 
stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potentially embodied in the asset in the 
form of the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic 
benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 
Money advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the 
Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant 
service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income (non 
ring-fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

IX. HERITAGE ASSETS 
 
Heritage assets are held or maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and culture.   They are 
initially recognised at cost if this is available.   If cost is not available, values are only included in the Balance 
Sheet where the cost of obtaining valuation is not disproportionate to the benefit derived.  For most of the 
Council’s heritage assets, insurance valuations are used.  Where no market exists or the asset is deemed to 
be unique, and it is not practicable to obtain a valuation, the asset is not recognised in the Balance Sheet but 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts. 
 
Heritage assets are depreciated over their useful life if this can be established.  If an asset is considered to 
have an indefinite life, no depreciation is charged.  Disposals, revaluation gains and losses and impairments 

153



South Kesteven District Council                                  82                                                                
 

of heritage assets are dealt with in accordance with the Council’s policies relating to property, plant and 
equipment.   
 
The cost of maintenance and repair of heritage assets is written off in the year incurred. 
 

X. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and controlled 
by the Council (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or 
service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Council.  
 
Expenditure on the development of the Council’s website is not capitalised.   
 
Intangible Assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the assets 
held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible asset held 
by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount 
of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that 
the asset might be impaired – any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gains or losses arising on the disposal or 
abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure Line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, amortisation, 
impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund 
Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than 
£10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 
The useful life of intangible assets is assessed by the Chief Finance Officer at the time of acquisition.  
Intangible assets are derecognised when no future economic benefits are expected from them. 
 

XI. INTERESTS IN COMPANIES AND OTHER ENTITIES 
 
The Council has a material interest in LeisureSK, Invest SK and Environment SK.  The nature of these 
relationships has been assessed and they are deemed to be subsidiaries.  The Council is not currently 
required to produce group accounts on the grounds of materiality.  In respect of Gravitas the Council produces 
Group Accounts. 
 

XII. INVENTORIES AND LONG TERM CONTRACTS 
 
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  
 
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the provision of 
services with the value of works and services received under the contract during the financial year.   
 

XIII. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 
 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The 
definition is not met if property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods 
or is held for sale. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the price that would 
be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date. As a non-financial asset investment properties are measured at highest and best use. Properties are 
not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year end. Gains and losses 
on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on 
disposal.  
 

154



South Kesteven District Council                                  83                                                                
 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income 
line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses 
are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and 
losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and 
posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital 
Receipts Reserve. 

 
XIV. LEASES 

 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to the ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other 
leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately 
for classification. 
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for 
payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 
specific assets 
 
The Council as Lessee 
 
Finance Leases: 
 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the leases inception (or the present value of the 
minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay 
the lessor e.g. payments net of financing costs. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying 
amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into the lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. 
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
Lease payments are apportioned between: 

• A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to write down the 
lease liability, and 

• A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

 
Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies applied 
generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the 
assets estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the Council at the end of the 
lease period). 
 
Operating Leases 
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are 
made on a straight line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the patterns of payments 
(e.g. there is a rent free period at the commencement of the lease). 
 
The Council as Lessor 
 
Finance Leases 
 
Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the relevant asset 
is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal and replaced by a long-term debtor in the Balance Sheet 
valued on the future income due under the finance lease.  
 
Operating Leases 
 

155



South Kesteven District Council                                  84                                                                
 

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is 
retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life 
of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the 
commencement of the lease).  
 

XV. OVERHEADS AND SUPPORT SERVICES  
 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance with the 
Council’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance.  
 

XVI. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods and services, 
for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one 
financial year are classified as Property Plant and Equipment.  
 
Recognition:  
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on 
an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated 
with the item will flow to the Council, over more than one year and that the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an assets potential to deliver future economic 
benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.   
 
The Council has a de-minimis of £10,000 for capital expenditure, with the exception of the purchase of motor 
vehicles.  Where the total cost of an asset is higher than £10,000 but only part of the expenditure has occurred 
within a financial year that expenditure would be included in the balance sheet even if it was below the de 
minimis level.  
 
Measurement 
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 
 

• the purchase price 

• any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management 

 
The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred while assets are under construction. 
 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition does 
not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Council). In the latter 
case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the 
asset given up by the Council. 
 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

• Dwellings – current value determined using the basis of existing use value for social housing (EUV-SH).  
The social housing discount applied in 2020/21 is 42%. 

• Community assets and assets under construction –  historic cost.  

• Plant, Vehicles & Equipment – depreciated historical cost 

• All other classes of assets – current value, unless there is no market-based evidence of fair value because 
of the specialist nature of the asset.  In this case fair value is estimated using the Depreciated 
Replacement Cost method. 

 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re-valued where there have been material changes 
in the value, but as a minimum every five years.  Valuations of property assets are carried out by the District 
Valuer, an external, qualified valuer, who is independent of the Council. The method of valuations is as 
recommended by CIPFA and in accordance with the principles and guidance notes issued by the Royal 
Institute of Chartered Surveyors.   Operational assets constructed or acquired during the year will be re-
valued on 31 March of the following year.   

156



South Kesteven District Council                                  85                                                                
 

 
Increases as a result of revaluations are debited to the appropriate asset account, with the opposite entry 
going to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains, except to the extent where it reverses a 
previous revaluation loss that was charged to a service revenue account within the Comprehensive Income 
& Expenditure Statement.  In this case the revaluation gain will first be used to offset the previous loss and 
any further gain is then taken to the Revaluation Reserve.  Revaluation gains charged to Surplus or Deficit 
on Provision of Services are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account and reported in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 
 
Decreases as a result of revaluation, which are not specific to one asset but affect several, are revaluation 
losses as opposed to impairments.  The decrease is recognised in the Revaluation Reserve up to the balance 
in respect of each asset affected and then in Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services.   Any such charge 
taken to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services is then transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account and 
reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal 
implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Impairment 
 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 
Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount 
of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is 
recognised for the shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 

• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains) 

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of 
the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement,  

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for 
depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 
Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their 
depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite 
useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. 
assets under construction). 
 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
 

• Land is not depreciated as it will not have a finite life. 
 

• Council Dwellings and Other Buildings are depreciated using the straight line method. The finite useful 
life is assessed by the District Valuer at the time of revaluation but for Council Dwellings is usually 50 
years, and for other buildings is between 1 and 60 years. 

 

• Plant and Equipment are also depreciated by the straight line method. Useful life is assessed by the Chief 
Finance Officer at the time of acquisition, usually between 3 and 10 years.  Some assets have a longer 
life span, up to 30 years.   

 

• Vehicles are depreciated using the reducing balance method at a rate of 25% per annum. 
 

• Non-current assets held-for sale are not depreciated. 
 

157



South Kesteven District Council                                  86                                                                
 

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historic 
cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.  
 
Componentisation 
 
Only assets with a carrying amount more than or equal to £500,000 at the beginning of the financial year are 
considered for componentisation.  To be recognised as a component the value of the part of the asset being 
considered must be more than or equal to 10% of the value of the asset, and have a life less than or equal 
to half that of the main asset.  When a component is replaced, the carrying amount of the old component is 
derecognised and the new component is recognised. If the carrying amount of the old component is not 
known, this is estimated by indexing back from the cost of the new component and adjusting for depreciation 
and impairment over the old component’s useful life.  The Building Costs Index will be used. 
 
The depreciation calculated is charged to the service revenue accounts, central support service accounts 
and trading accounts.  
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale 
  
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale 
transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is classified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is 
revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less 
costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to a fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted in the 
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement. Gains in fair 
value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on 
Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to 
non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for 
sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not 
been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell. 
 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale. 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet 
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value 
of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation 
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Amounts for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A proportion of receipts 
related to housing disposals is payable to the Government. The balance of receipts remains within the Capital 
Receipts Reserve and can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s 
underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement).  
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully 
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  
 
 
 
 

158



South Kesteven District Council                                  87                                                                
 

XVII. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
Provisions  
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive obligation 
that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best 
estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account 
relevant risks and uncertainties 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. 
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year - where it becomes less than probable 
that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the 
provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another 
party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually 
certain that reimbursement will be received if the obligation is settled. 
 
The council has made a provision for settling the self-insured element of Public Liability insurance claims. 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible obligation whose 
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise 
be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the 
obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 
 
Contingent Assets 
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset whose 
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the Council. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it 
is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 
 

XVIII. RESERVES 
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. 
Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the 
appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transferred back into the General 
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for 
the expenditure.   
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes e.g. for non-current assets, retirement and 
employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council – these reserves are explained in 
the relevant policies. 
 
 

XIX. REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE 
 

159



South Kesteven District Council                                  88                                                                
 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not result 
in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.   Where the Council has determined to meet 
the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out 
the amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax. 
 

XX. VAT  
 

VAT is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue and 
Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income. 
 

XXI. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
 
The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment properties at 
fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair 
value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
 
The council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best 
interest. 
 
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the council takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

160



South Kesteven District Council                                  89                                                                
 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 

Accounting Period 
The length of time covered by the Council’s accounts.  This is twelve months commencing on 1 April. The 
end of the accounting period is the balance sheet date. 
 
Accounting Policies 
Those principles, conventions, rules and practices applied by the council that specify how the effects of 
transactions and other events are to be reflected in the financial statements through  

• Recognising 

• Selecting measurement bases for, and 

• Presenting assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes to reserves 
 
Accrual Concept 
This is one of the main accounting concepts and ensures that income and expenditure are shown in the 
accounting period that they are earned not as money is received or paid. 
 
Actuarial Gains and Losses 
For a defined pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise because: 

(a) events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation (experience 
gains and losses), or 

      (b) the actuarial assumptions have changed 
 
Amortisation 
The writing down in value of intangible assets, which is charged to service revenue accounts to reflect the 
cost of such assets, used in the provision of those services. This is the equivalent of depreciation for non-
current assets. 
 
Annual Governance Statement 
A statement, updated annually, detailing all significant corporate systems, processes and controls covering 
all the Council’s activities. 
 
Asset 
An asset is something that the Council owns that has monetary value.  Assets are either “current” or “non-
current”. 

• A current asset is one that will be used or cease to have material value by the end of the next financial 
year e.g. stock or debtors 

• A non-current asset provides benefits for a period of more than one year e.g. Council Offices. 

• An intangible asset is those non-monetary assets that cannot be seen, touched or physically 
measured and which are created through time and/or effort e.g. IT software. 

 
Audit of Accounts 
An audit is an examination by an independent expert of an organisation’s financial affairs to check that the 
relevant legal obligations and codes of practice have been followed. 
 
Bad Debt Provision 
Outstanding amounts owed to the Council which are highly unlikely to be collected. 
 
Balance Sheet 
The Balance Sheet summarises the Council’s financial position at the end of each financial year i.e. 31st 
March. 
 
Budget 
The Council’s plans set out in financial terms.  Both revenue and capital budgets are prepared, and are used 
to control and monitor expenditure and performance. 
 
CAA 
Capital Adjustment Account. The Capital Adjustment Account contains the amounts that are required by 
Statute to be set aside from capital receipts and revenue for the repayment of external loans as well as 

161



South Kesteven District Council                                  90                                                                
 

amounts of revenue, useable capital receipts and contributions that have been used to fund capital 
expenditure. It also accumulates depreciation, impairment and write-off of non-current assets on disposal. 
 
Capital Charges 
A charge to service revenue accounts to reflect the cost of non-current assets used in the provision of 
services, i.e. depreciation. 
 
Capital Expenditure 
Expenditure on the acquisition of a non-current asset or expenditure which adds to and not merely maintains 
the value of an existing non-current asset. 
 
Capital Receipts 
Money received from the disposal of a non-current asset.  Capital receipts cannot be used to fund revenue 
services. 
 
Carrying Amount 
The value of an asset or liability as shown in the Balance Sheet. 
 
Cash Flow Statement 
A statement that forms part of the Core Financial Statements and summarises the cash flows within the 
Council’s bank accounts that have taken place within the financial year. 
 
Certificate of Deposit 
A savings certificate with a set maturity date offering a fixed rate of interest which can be traded on the money 
markets. 
 
CIES 
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 
 
CIPFA 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. The professional accounting body concerned 
with Local Government and the Public Sector. 
 
Code (the) 
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK: A Statement of Recommended Practice. 
 
Collection Fund 
A separate account to record the income and expenditure collected from council tax and Non-Domestic 
Rates, including outstanding community charges. 
 
Community Assets 
Assets that the Council intends to hold in perpetuity that have no determinable useful life and that may have 
restrictions regarding their sale.  Examples of such items are parks and historic buildings. 
 
Current Service Cost 
The increase in the present value of the pension scheme liabilities expected to arise from employee service 
in the current period. 
 
Curtailment 
Curtailments will show the cost of the early payment of pension benefits if any employee has been made 
redundant in the previous financial year. 
 

Contingent Liabilities 
Potential losses for which a future event will establish whether a liability exists for which it is appropriate to 
set up a provision in the accounts. 
 
Council Tax 
This is a banded property tax set by local authorities in order to meet their budget requirements.  There are 
eight bands (Band A-Band H), set by the District Valuer according to the value of the property.  The amount 
of tax each household pays depends on the band of the property. 

162



South Kesteven District Council                                  91                                                                
 

 
Creditors 
Amounts owed by the Council for work done, goods received or services rendered before the end of the 
accounting period but for which payment was not made by the end of the accounting period. 
 
Current Liabilities 
Amounts payable that become due during the next financial year. 
 
Debtors 
Amounts due to the Council for goods or services provided before the end of the accounting period, but  for 
which actual payments had not been received by the end of the accounting period. 
 
Deferred Charges 
Expenditure that may properly be deferred but which does not result in, or remain matched with, assets 
controlled by the Council. 
 
Deferred Credits 
This term is applied to deferred capital receipts. These transactions arise when non-current assets are sold 
and the amounts owed by the purchasers are repaid over a number of years, such as by way of mortgages. 
The balance is reduced by the principal amounts repayable in any financial year. 
 
Depreciation 
An estimate of the loss in value of a non-current asset due to age, wear and tear or obsolescence over a 
period of time. 
 
Emoluments 
Sums paid to an employee and sums due by way of expenses allowances and the money value of any other 
benefits received other than in cash.  Pension contributions payable are excluded. 
 
Earmarked Reserves 
These are reserves set aside for specific purposes, a type of service or type of expenditure. 
 
Expected Rate of Return 
The average rate of return expected over the remaining life of the related obligation on the actual assets held 
by the pension scheme 
 

Explanatory Foreword 
A simplified introduction to the Statement of Accounts and its contents. 
 
Finance Leases 
Arrangements whereby the lessee is treated as the owner of the leased asset and is required to include 
such assets within the non-current assets on the Balance Sheet. 
 
Financial Year 
The period over which the Council reports its financial activity. Currently this is 1st April to 31st March. 
 
FRS 
Financial Reporting Standards, a reference to the accounting treatments that companies in the UK (and 
Local Authorities) would generally be expected to apply in the preparation of the Financial Statements. 
 
General Fund 
The total services of the council except for the Housing Revenue Account and Collection Fund.  The day to 
day spending on services is met from the fund. 
 
Government Grants 
Grants made by central government towards either revenue or capital expenditure to help with the cost of 
providing services and capital projects.  Some government grants have restrictions on how they may be used 
whilst others are general purpose. 
 
 

163



South Kesteven District Council                                  92                                                                
 

Housing Benefits 
This is a national system for giving financial assistance to individuals towards certain housing costs.  The 
cost of the service is subsidised by central government. 
 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
A separate account to the General Fund recording all the transactions relating to the provision of social 
housing. 
 
Joint Operation 
This is an arrangement whereby all parties have joint control of the assets and liabilities to the operation. 
 
IAS 
International Accounting Standards, a reference to accounting treatments that companies in the UK (and 
Local Authorities) would generally be expected to apply in the preparation of the Financial Statements. 
 
IFRS 
International Financial Reporting Standards, a reference to accounting treatments that companies in the UK 
and Local Authorities would generally be expected to apply in the preparation of the Financial Statements. 
 
Income 
This is the money that the council receives or expects to receive from any source, including fees, charges, 
sales, grants and interest. 
 
Impairment Losses 
A reduction in the value of a non-current asset to below its carrying amount on the Balance Sheet, as a result 
of damage, obsolescence or a general decrease in market value. 
 
Intangible Assets 
Capital expenditure that does not result in the creation of a tangible asset but which gives the Council a 
controllable access to future economic benefit , e.g. computer software licences. 
 
Interest on Pension Scheme Liabilities  
The increase in the present value of the pension scheme liabilities expected to arise from employee service 
in the current period. 
 

Investments 
Cash deposits with approved institutions. 
 
Key Prudential Indicator 
One of the indicators required under the Prudential Code for the measuring of the Council’s Treasury 
Management activities. 
 
Liability 
A liability arises when the Council owes money to others and it must be included in financial statements.  
There are two types of liability: 

• A current liability is a sum of money that will or might be payable during the next accounting period 
e.g. creditors or cash overdrawn 

• A deferred liability is a sum of money that will not become payable until some point after the next 
accounting period or is paid off over a number of accounting periods. 

 
Long Term Debtor 
Amounts due to the Council more than one year after the Balance Sheet date. 
 
Materiality 
This is one of the main accounting concepts.  It ensures that the statement of accounts includes all the 
transactions that, if omitted, would lead to a significant distortion of the financial position at the end of the 
accounting period. 
 
MHCLG 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government. 

164



South Kesteven District Council                                  93                                                                
 

Minimum Revenue Provision 
The minimum amount which must be charged to the Council’s revenue accounts each year and set aside for 
debt repayment.  New guidance in 2008 allows the Council to set aside the amount it considers “prudent” 
instead of following a formula calculation as in the past. 
 
MIRS 
Movement in Reserves Statement 
  
MRR 
Major Repairs Reserve 
 
Net Book Value (NBV) 
The value of a non-current asset less the accumulated amount of depreciation/amortisation. 
 
Non Distributed Costs 
These are overheads for which no user benefits and should not be apportioned to services. 
 
Non Domestic Rates 
Tax charged on the rateable value of non-domestic properties (business properties).  The rate of tax is set 
by the Government.   
 
Non-Exchange Transactions 
In a non-exchange transaction an entity either gives or receives value to or from another without directly 
giving or receiving equal value in exchange. 
 
Non-Operational Assets 
Non-current assets held by the Council that are not directly used in the delivery of services. 
 
Operational Assets 
Non-current assets held by the Council that are used in direct delivery of services (another term for working 
capital). 
 
Operating Leases 
A lease where the lessor retains all the risks and rewards of ownership of a non-current asset.   
 
Past Service Cost 
Discretionary benefits awarded on early retirement are treated as past service costs. This includes added 
years and unreduced pension benefits covered by the rule of 85. 
 
Pension Fund 
An employee’s pension fund maintained by a Council or group of councils in order to primarily make pension 
payments on the retirement of participating employees. It is financed by contributions from the employing 
authority, the employees and investment income. 
 
Performance Management 
A technique which assists the Council to monitor progress in achieving key performance measures and 
priority actions. 
 
PPE 
Property, Plant & Equipment.  Assets other than Council dwellings, Assets under Construction and 
Investment Properties. 
 
Precepts 
The amount of Council Tax income that Councils, Police Authorities, Parish Councils and Fire Authorities 
need to provide their service.  The amount for all local authorities providing services in an area appears on 
council tax bills. 
 
Provisions 
This is a sum of money that has been put aside in the accounts for liabilities that are due but where the 
amount or the timing of the payment is not known with any certainty. 

165



South Kesteven District Council                                  94                                                                
 

 
PWLB 
Public Works Loans Board.  A central government agency that provides lending facilities to local authorities. 
 
Related Party Transactions 
A related party transaction is the transfer of assets or liabilities or the performance of services by, to or for a 
related party irrespective of whether a charge has been made. 
 
Reserves 
Amounts set aside to meet capital or revenue expenditure which do not fall under the definition of Provisions. 
 
Revaluation Reserve 
The Revaluation Reserve records the accumulated gains from the increase in the revaluation of assets. It 
also records any reduction in the value of assets subject to the limits of the previous increases in value of the 
same asset. 
 
Revenue Expenditure 
Expenditure that is incurred on the day to day costs of running local authority services, for example, staff 
costs, utility charges, rent and business rates. 
 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 
This is expenditure treated as capital expenditure but which does not result in a non-current asset belonging 
to the council.  An example of this is a Disabled Facilities Grant paid to a homeowner to fund adaptations to 
their own home. 
 
Revenue Support Grant 
A general grant paid by central government to local authorities as a contribution towards the cost of their 
services. 
 
Soft Loan 
A soft loan is a loan with a below market rate of interest. 
 
Treasury Management 
The process by which the Council manages its day to day cash requirements. 
  

166



South Kesteven District Council                                  95                                                                
 

 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of South Kesteven District Council 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

167



South Kesteven District Council                                  96                                                                
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

168



South Kesteven District Council                                  97                                                                
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

169



South Kesteven District Council                                  98                                                                
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

170



2020/21

Annual  
Governance 
Statement 

Stamford
171



100

Welcome to South Kesteven District Council’s Annual 
Governance Statement for the period 1 April 2020 to 
31 March 2021. 

The Council has a duty to ensure that its business is 
conducted to a high standard in accordance with law 
and that its finances are safeguarded and properly 
accounted for, and the purpose of this Statement is to 
demonstrate that the right systems and processes are 
in place.

The year 2020-21 presented a huge set of 
unprecedented challenges to which the Council 
responded positively and proactively, thereby ensuring 
that residents and businesses could continue to 
access essential services and that support and advice 
were available throughout.

The Council has had to adapt, be flexible and 
responsive in line with the changing environment, 
whilst also meeting the requirement of the Local 
Government Act 1999 of planning for continuous 
improvement in the way our services are delivered and 
ensuring value for money for residents.

As part of this, alongside our governance framework 
we have a new Corporate Plan 2020-2023 in place to 
bring focus and clarity to our vision and priorities for 
South Kesteven to be the best district in which to live, 
work and visit.

The Annual Governance Statement has been 
prepared and published in accordance with the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government Framework and meets the statutory 
requirement to review governance arrangements at 
least once a year.

It conforms to the Council’s Local Code of Corporate 
Governance and covers all significant corporate 
systems, processes and controls across all of the 
Council’s activities.

The Statement details the Council’s key governance 
arrangements and explains how they are tested and 
the assurances that can be relied on to show that the 
systems are working effectively. It also allows us to 
identify areas for improvement in our internal control 
framework and implement any necessary changes.

The Council is committed to improvement and are 
confident that we have established robust foundations 
that enable us to continue to develop and strengthen 
our governance arrangements.

      

Cllr Kelham Cooke
Leader of the Council  
South Kesteven District Council

Karen Bradford 
Chief Executive 
South Kesteven District Council

  @southkesteven
   @southkdc
   linkedin.com/company/south-kesteven-council
( 01476 40 60 80

Foreword

172



101

Council

• Approves Constitution including Codes of Conduct
• Approves the Corporate Plan
• Approves the Council’s budget and policy framework
• Holds meetings in public unless exemptions apply. All decisions will be reported in 

publicly available minutes

Cabinet

• Sets priorities in line with the Council’s Vision and recommend budget proposals to 
underpin delivery

• Delivers financial performance and risk management within the budget and policy 
framework set by Council

• Approves strategies within the Council’s policy framework
• Holds meetings in public unless exemptions apply. All decisions will be reported in 

publically available minutes

Governance 
and Audit 
Committee

• Scrutinises and approves Financial Statements on behalf of the Council
• Reviews Financial Regulations, Contract Procedure Rules, Treasury Management 

Strategy
• Reviews and scrutinises governance arrangements, including Local Code of 

Corporate Governance, internal and external audit reports, management of risk
• Reviews annual reports for Safeguarding, Health & Safety, Business Continuity and 

complaints made to the Ombudsman

Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committees

• Provide a critical friend challenge to the Cabinet
• Holds calls for evidence from a wide range of external authorities and agencies
• Reflect the voice and concerns of the public and its communities
• Holds meetings in public

Companies 
Committee

• Considers proposals on the creation of any new company or joint venture, making 
recommendations to Cabinet

• Provides oversight of companies, joint venture partnerships or other such 
collaborative arrangements whether wholly or jointly owned by the Council 

• Provide the scrutiny function for investments, outcomes against funding, property 
disposals and other resourcing decisions made in relation to companies

Management
• Reviews performance management and projects including progress against 

milestones, resource allocation, risks and performance
• Completes annual assurance statements and contribute to the effective corporate 

management and governance of the Council

Risk 
Management

• Reviews risk registers for corporate, operational and fraud risks
• Corporate risks considered by senior managers quarterly and Governance and Audit 

Committee biannually

Internal Audit

• Sets the Internal Audit Strategy to meet the Council’s overall strategic direction 
and provide assurance on risk management, governance and internal control 
arrangements

• Undertakes annual programme of audits and presents progress reports  
against the plan

• Makes recommendations for improvement in systems and controls and  
value for money

Key elements of the Council’s
Governance Framework

173



102

How we comply with the  
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and  
Accountancy (CIPFA) Solace Framework

Principle A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong 
commitment to ethical values and respecting  
the rule of law

The Council has defined and communicated the 
standards of conduct and personal behaviour 
expected of elected Members and Officers through 
its Member Codes of Conduct and its Constitution 
to ensure integrity. Conduct training formed part of 
the induction programme for Members following the 
quadrennial election in May 2019. At officer level, 
an Officer Code of Conduct is in place which guides 
and informs ethical conduct and provides clarity for 
member-officer relationships.

We have arrangements in place for individuals to 
raise concerns where they believe these values 
and behaviours are not being met. We have a 
Counter Fraud Strategy which incorporates bribery 
and corruption, and a Whistleblowing Policy which 
provides protection for individuals to raise concerns in 
confidence and ensures that any concerns raised are 
investigated. A Code of Conduct complaints process 
exists and the Council’s Customer Feedback Policy 
gives the public an avenue to raise any concerns or 
complaints.

The governance framework brings together an 
underlying set of legislative requirements, good 
practice principles and management processes. It 
comprises the systems, processes, culture and values 
by which the Council is directed and controlled, and 
through which it is accountable to, engages with and 
informs the local community. It enables the Council to 
monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives.

Whenever the Council makes a decision it ensures 
legal implications are considered. To help it to do this, 
all reports include legal and governance implications, 
which are signed off by the Monitoring Officer or a 
Legal Officer.

Principle B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive  
stakeholder engagement

All meetings are open to the public with agenda 
papers, reports and decisions being published on 
our website, except those determined as exempt 
from publication. The Council is able to exclude the 
press and public from meetings for reasons set out in 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended).

The Council has robust arrangements in place to deal 
with complaints, data subject access requests, data 
breaches and  whistleblowing allegations. 

Our constitution sets out how we engage with 
stakeholders and partners. We have carried out a 
number of consultations during 2020/21 including 
whether existing Public Space Protection Orders 
should be applied for another three years. This was 
strongly supported. Other consultations included 
surveys of two of our parks, Wyndham Park and 
Queen Elizabeth Park, to find out what people think. 
There were high levels of satisfaction with strong 
support for the messaging used in the park during the 
pandemic. Respondents for Queen Elizabeth Park 
would also like to see improvements to the natural 
aspects of the park ie woodlands and wildflower 
meadows.

The Council has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance based on 
the requirements of the CIPFA/Solace Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 
Framework 2016. Set out below is how the Council has complied with the seven principles 
set out in the CIPFA/Solace Framework during 2020/21.

174



103

There was also a consultation on Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Vehicles to gather feedback on 
proposed changes to the licensing policy. There was 
strong support for some of the proposed changes 
to the policy, including extending the prohibition of 
smoking in licensed vehicles to include vaping or other 
smoking devices, and the introduction of an externally 
provided English Language test for new licence 
applicants. 

Local residents and stakeholders to the Stamford 
Customer Service Centre and Deeping Customer 
Service Centre were consulted on a proposal to close 
the two area offices and replace with a self-service 
facility within the Stamford Arts Centre and Stamford 
Library, and the Community Centre and Community 
Library respectively. The proportion of respondents 
supporting the proposal to close the customer service 
centre in Market Deeping and replace with a self 
-service facility was the same as the proportion not 
supporting the proposal.

175



104

Principles C & D
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, 
social and environmental benefits and determining the 
interventions necessary to optimise the achievement 
of the intended outcomes

South Kesteven District Council has a number 
of Council owned companies which assists with 
delivering its outcomes.

EnvironmentSK Ltd, a company wholly owned by the 
Council, provides facilities management focused on 
grounds maintenance, arboriculture and horticultural 
services to the Council, other authorities, parish 
and town councils, businesses and the public.  The 
company has successfully reported their five year 
business plan to the Council’s Companies Committee 
and provides six monthly updates.  EnvironmentSK’s 
flexibility has allowed it to provide support for key 
Council services during the Covid-19 pandemic, 
ranging from supporting the priority refuse collection 
service through to ensuring the main vaccination site 
at Grantham had safe car parks and walkways during 
the peak winter period.

InvestSK, for the whole of the period 2020/21, has 
been leading on the administration of Covid business 
support grants. Working closely with the Council’s 
finance and business rates teams they have provided 
nearly £50m to over 2,700 businesses across the 
District. This funding has been focused around those 
businesses either forced to close or severely impacted 
as a result of local and national restrictions and it is 
hoped has been a lifeline for many businesses that 
otherwise would not have survived during these 
unprecedented times.

As well as ensuring immediate support for businesses 
in the District, InvestSK have also been working hard 
in developing plans to support economic growth in 
the future. This includes the delivery of the Heritage 
Action Zone for Grantham and submitting a proposal 
to Government for the Future High Streets Fund that 
will see a significant capital investment into key areas 
of Grantham Town Centre.

InvestSK continue to actively engage with the key 
business representation groups across the District and 
provide advice and guidance to businesses through 
our monthly briefing sessions bringing together 
businesses, external speakers and key contacts from 
within SKDC.

LeisureSK Ltd was established as a wholly-owned 
Council company in September 2020.  The company 
is responsible for the management of the Council’s 
four leisure centres under a contract arrangement 
which began on the 1 January 2021.  However, due to 
the ongoing national lockdown which was in place the 
centres remained closed until April 2021.

LeisureSK is responsible for the provision of a 
high quality, accessible leisure service across the 
district for residents and visitors to South Kesteven 
and improving the health and wellbeing of the 
district through a range of outcomes. These include 
increasing the levels of physical activity within the 
district and reducing inactivity levels, attracting 
increased numbers of users to the leisure facilities 
within the district and providing a high standard of 
customer care.

176



105

Principle E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the 
capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

The Council has a Workforce Strategy which is built 
around three themes:
• Attract the right people, retain and develop 

excellent skills, define and embed the right culture

• Engaging and valuing our people in order to run our 
business effectively

• Effective leadership to encourage, inspire and 
navigate change

The aim of the Workforce Strategy is to provide an 
immediate and on-going and long-term framework for 
engaging, sustaining, developing and managing our 
people to be fit for purpose in supporting the Council’s 
vision, goals and the aspirations outlined in the 
Corporate Plan. In order to address this, we will:

• Attract and recruit high calibre staff regionally and 
nationally

• Develop and support our staff to fulfil their potential 
and help us deliver our aspirations

• Retain and reward our staff through recognising 
their contribution

• Promote and secure excellent leadership and 
management

• Create and maintain a progressive, collaborative 
and healthy working environment

The Council has a scheme of delegation that sets 
out how decisions are made within the Council both 
at Member level and officer level. We have effective 
arrangements for the discharge of the statutory
Monitoring Officer and Head of Paid Service functions, 
and we comply with the relevant requirements of the 
CIPFA statement on the Role of the Chief Financial 
Officer in Local Government.

Principle F
Managing risks and performance through robust 
internal control and strong public financial 
management

The Council has effective risk management which is 
embedded across all areas of business activity. We 
recognise that risk management is an integral part of 
all activities and must be considered in all aspects of 
decision making.

Our Risk Management Framework sets out our 
approach to identifying and controlling risks. Risk 
registers are maintained at strategic and service area 
level. Strategic risks are reviewed by the Corporate 
Management Team and reported to The Governance 
and Audit Committee biannually.

Our Counter Fraud Strategy, structured on the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud 
and Corruption, sets out the importance of achieving 
intended outcomes, whilst acting in the public interest, 
and being seen to do so.

The Council continues to be a part of the Lincolnshire 
Counter Fraud Partnership which was established 
to create the framework for a county-wide anti-fraud 
approach. The Partnership provides a forum for 
counter fraud specialists and subject area experts 
from Lincolnshire County Council and the seven 
district councils in Lincolnshire to develop and deliver 
proactive exercises and investigate fraud.

Financial management is a key element of the 
structure and processes that comprise the Council’s 
governance arrangements and we will be undertaking 
an assessment against the CIPFA Financial 
Management Cose and developing an action plan.

Underpinning the delivery of our Corporate Plan and 
priorities is the ethos of a well-run Council. This includes 
effective financial management to achieve efficiencies 
and savings in the short and medium terms.

Strategic Risks 2020/21
1. Ensuring efficient and effective  

internal control/compliance
2. Achieving Council transformation
3. Supporting communities
4. Achieving future financial resilience
5. Creating the right culture, capacity  

and capability
6. Ability to be agile and shift focus in 

response to policy and national  
political change

7. Ensuring robust security measures to 
protect the Council’s data and assets 
from cyber threats

177



106

Principle G
Implementing good practices in transparency, 
reporting and audit to deliver effective accountability

The Council is open and accessible to the 
community, service users and employees. We 
have a commitment to openness and transparency 
in all that we do and this is underpinned by the 
Corporate Strategy. We ensure that clear channels 
of communication are in place with all sections of the 
community and other stakeholders and we monitor 
these to ensure that they are operating effectively. 
Every effort is made to ensure that information is 
concise and easy to understand.

In accordance with the Local Government 
Transparency Code we publish how we spend 
our money, how we use our assets, how we make 
decisions and have regard to issues important to 
local people.

We have a comprehensive consultation process 
for published reports which ensures senior 
management and Members own the contents. 
The Council is committed to publishing information 
on its performance in a timely manner and report 
performance against targets and financial targets on 
a regular basis.

We have an effective internal audit service that 
reports directly to the Governance and Audit 
Committee on all aspects of its work, including 
tracking the implementation of management actions. 
The Committee also has the opportunity to suggest 
items for the internal audit work programme.

The Council welcomes peer challenge, reviews and 
inspections from regulatory bodies and it participates 
in national benchmarking exercises to obtain 
comparative data on performance.

178



107

Governance Framework for 2020-2021
The Governance Framework shown below has been in place throughout the financial year 
which ended on 31 March 2021 and continues to be in place up to the date of the approval 
of the Statement of Accounts. 

Assurances Required

• Delivery of Council’s aims and objectives
• Services deliver value for money
• Engagement with stakeholders and public accountability
• Budget and financial management
• Roles and responsibilities of Members and Officers
• Standards of conduct and behaviour
• Compliance with laws, regulations, internal policies and procedures
• Management of risk
• Effectiveness of internal controls

Sources of Assurance

• Constitution; Scheme of Delegation, financial procedures and Contract Procedure Rules
• Council, Cabinet and Committees including Governance and Audit and Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees
• Medium Term Financial Strategy
• Human resources policies and procedures
• Whistleblowing and counter fraud procedures
• Risk management and internal control frameworks
• Performance management framework
• Partnership governance arrangements
• Codes of Conduct
• Corporate Management Team
• Annual Assurance Statements
• Customer complaints system

Assurances Received

• Statement of Accounts
• External audit reports
• Internal audit reports
• Risk management reports
• Counter fraud reports
• Independent and external sources
• Local Government Ombudsman reports
• Reviews by Overview and Scrutiny Committees and Governance and Audit Committee
• Member/officer working groups
• Customer feedback

179



108

Review of Effectiveness

To Follow

Governance and Audit 
Committee is well established with its 
terms of reference complying fully with 
CIPFA guidance.

The key areas covered by the 
Committee’s terms of reference are:

•   accounts and financial reporting
•   financial regulations
•   treasury management
•   internal and external audit activity
•   risk management
•   governance
•   counter fraud and bribery
•   contract procedure rules
•   regulatory framework
•   the ombudsman process

In addition, Committee receives 
annual reports on:

•   Business Continuity
•   Health & Safety
•   Safeguarding

Internal audit
The Council’s internal auditors, RSM, are required 
to provide an opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s risk management, 
governance and internal control arrangements.
Eight assurance reviews were undertaken during 
2020/21 plus three follow-up reviews and two advisory 
reviews. The eight assurance reviews resulted in an 
assurance opinion summarised below:

For the twelve months ended 31 March 2021, based 
on the work undertaken, internal audit’s opinion 
below details the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s risk management, governance and internal 
control arrangements:
“There are weaknesses in the framework of 
governance, risk management and control such that it 
could become inadequate and ineffective.”
With regard to the issues raised by RSM’s Head of 
Internal Audit in their Annual Report to the Governance 
and Audit Committee in June 2021, action plans have 
been put in place to address these, particularly in 
those areas where management concerns have also 
been raised and further work is required to strengthen 
the control framework.

External audit

1
Substantial 
assurance

2
Reasonable 
assurance

3
Partial

assurance

2
No

assurance

180



109

Annual Assurance 
Statement
The Council’s Heads of Service produced an Annual 
Assurance Statement for 2020/21 which assessed the 
effectiveness of their key internal control environment. 
Management assurance is a key assurance 
mechanism on which we seek to obtain visibility over. 
We recognise that management may not be able to 
provide a positive assurance in all cases and would 
prefer a conclusion to be reached that is objective and 
honest with a view to then addressing any areas of 
concern in the future as may be required.

Heads of Service were asked to agree, or otherwise, 
to various statements based on their knowledge and 
understanding across seven core areas of assurance:

• Business Continuity 
• Governance
• Health and Safety
• IT Security and Confidentiality
• Probity and Regularity
• Procurement
• Staffing and Development

The overall assurance level revealed that managers 
fully agreed with 79% of the statements on assurance 
with the remainder being 13% partially agreed; 2% not 
agreed and 6% did not know.

Areas identified for improvement were Business 
Continuity, Health & Safety and Governance.

Actions will be taken to improve the level of assurance 
over the controls.  These may be addressed at service 
level, or corporately, to improve internal controls.  We 
will liaise with Internal Audit as part of the annual 
planning process to seek verification of the assurance 
levels being provided.  This will further inform the 
overall assurance with regards to the management of 
assurance within the Council. In addition to the seven 
core areas of assurance, Heads of Service were also 
asked to assess the impact of Covid-19 within their 
own service areas with the outcomes being considered 
by Corporate Management Team.  

181



110

The Annual Governance Statement assesses the 
governance in place during 2020/21.  Therefore, this 
section covers the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 
2021 and the effectiveness of the Council’s governance 
with regards to the global Covid-19 pandemic during 
this period.

This period was one of great change and challenge for 
the Council, with many services closed or significantly 
reduced following the first lockdown in March 2020, 
then gradually reopened in line with legislation and 
Government guidance over the summer months and 
then closed or reduced again during November and in 
January 2021 (the second and third lockdowns).

Governance and Decision Making
Many of these changes had significant consequences 
for the Council, and the residents and businesses of 
South Kesteven, and therefore ensuring effective and 
robust governance was in place was critical.  This 
enabled the Council to make decisions that were timely, 
effective and evidence based. During 2020/21 the 
Council made:

• 15 decisions utilising the Chief Executives  
Emergency Powers

• 15 decisions by the Leader

The emergency scenario highlighted a lack of 
clarity in the Council’s Constitution in relation to 
the emergency powers of the Chief Executive, 
succession arrangements in the absence of the 
Leader of the Council and arrangements related to 
the postponement of meetings once the summons is 
served.  Amendments to the Council’s constitution were 
approved at Full Council on 14 May 2020 to address 
these issues. 

To ensure transparency these decisions were reported 
to Full Council and Cabinet as appropriate.  These 
included seven decisions that were reported to July 
Council.  To support transparency, All Councillor and 
All Staff emails from the Leader and Chief Executive 
communicated a number of these decisions.

Virtual Meetings
The Council took steps to ensure democratic processes 
were restored as quickly as possible and, following 
legislation changes, Council meetings were able to be 
held virtually using remote technology.  The Council 
took steps to implement virtual meetings as soon as 
practically possible, with the first:

• Virtual Planning Committee Meeting (and virtual 
meeting of any type) taking place on 12 May 2020; 

• Virtual Cabinet Meeting taking place on 15 June 
2020; and

• Virtual meeting of Full Council taking place on 14 
May 2020 (with 55 of 56 Members being present).

Following the establishment of virtual meetings the 
Council established a full programme of virtual meeting 
sessions and sought to make decisions via this route 
wherever possible (therefore reducing the reliance on 
emergency powers).  It should be noted that in some 
cases the use of virtual meetings necessitated a change 
in process or protocol, for example the introduction 
of a ‘minded to…’ stage if Planning Committee 
were intending to make a decision against officer 
recommendation.

The use of virtual meetings increased public 
engagement in the democratic process with an increase 
of guests attending meetings. The legislation enabling 
virtual meetings ended on 6 May 2021 and following 
this the Council has returned to in person meetings and 
is now using ‘Public-I’ technology to broadcast most of 
democratic meetings to make them accessible to the 
public.

Conclusion
The circumstances of 2020/21 provided some huge 
challenges for governance and decision making 
for organisations in both the public and private 
sectors.  However the Council’s governance process 
demonstrated it was both agile and robust, providing 
the ability to make timely and transparent decisions.  
In addition to this, areas where processes could be 
improved were identified and amended in May 2020 
and further changes will be considered as part of the 
review of the Council’s Constitution. 

Covid-19

182



111

Our Covid-19 Response  
(April 2020 - March 2021)

GAS SAFETY 
CHECKS 

CARRIED OUT

5,212 
CUSTOMER 
ENQUIRIES 
HANDLED

121,654 1

BENEFIT CLAIMS 
PROCESSED 

12,694 EMERGENCY AND 
RIGHT TO REPAIR 

REPAIRS HANDLED

9,860 
REQUESTS RECEIVED 

BY OUR  
SK COMMUNITY  

HUB

2,865   VULNERABLE 
PEOPLE PERSONALLY 

CONTACTED TO 
OFFER SUPPORT

NEARLY

18,000  

ADAPTATIONS CARRIED 
OUT TO ENABLE 
INDEPENDENT 

LIVING

63 
OUT OF HOURS 
CALLS DEALT 

WITH

2,138 
COMPLAINTS ABOUT  
FLY-TIPPING DEALT 

WITH

1,826 

INCIDENTS HANDLED 
BY CCTV 

OPERATORS  

4,381 BINS COLLECTED 
EVERY WEEK (BLACK, 

GREEN AND 
SILVER)

80,000   
SQUARE METRES OF 

GRASS CUT 

1.4M

PLANNING 
APPLICATIONS 
DETERMINED

1,662 
IN GRANTS AWARDED 

TO 2,566 BUSINESSES – 
FIRST PHASE 

GRANTS AWARDED TO
1,278 BUSINESSES –

SECOND
PHASE

£29.7M 

HOMELESS PEOPLE 
PROVIDED WITH 

ACCOMMODATION

631

TEST AND TRACE 
PAYMENTS AWARDED  

TO 329 
CLAIMANTS

£164,500   

PROHIBITION NOTICES AND 
ONE FIXED PENALTY NOTICE 

SERVED FOR BREACHES 
OF COVID-19 

REGULATIONS

6   

COUNCIL TAX ACOUNT 
HOLDERS RECEIVED 

HARDSHIP FUND 
PAYMENTS 
TOTALLING 

£754,091 

12,686

£12.3M



LOCATION PROVIDED FOR 
COVID-19 VACCINATIONS

183



112

Follow-up on last year’s key areas of focus
Last year’s Annual Governance Statement identified six areas of focus and the table below sets out  
the action taken to address those areas:

Key area of focus identified for 2020/21 Action taken

1. Implementation of actions arising from the
independent expert review of governance in 
accordance with the improvement plan

There is an action plan in place which is 
reported on through Governance and Audit 
Committee. Pressing actions are complete 
with longer term actions in hand with 
timescales for completion

2. Completion of the review of the 
Constitution in accordance with the project 
plan

The Review is underway with completion due 
by September 2021

3. Update of the Council’s assessment 
against the Delivering Good Governance in 
Local Government: Framework

The Council has just appointed a Head 
of Democratic Services who has Deputy 
Monitoring Officer responsibilities, and this 
will be a focus for that post holder in the 
coming 12 months

4. Implementation of actions arising from 
the Annual Assurance Statement to improve 
internal control assurance

Actions have been monitored  
throughout the year

5. Implementation of internal audit actions 
in accordance with the dates agreed by 
Governance and Audit Committee

Follow up reviews were undertaken by 
internal audit and implementation of all 
management actions are monitored by 
Statutory Officers Group

6. Delivery of the Covid-19 Recovery Plan

The Covid-19 Recovery Plan and framework 
was agreed by Cabinet in June 2020 and 
actions put in place to deliver.  However in 
September, following a rise in Covid-19 cases 
nationally, the Council entered back in to 
the ‘Response’ phase.  The Recovery Plan 
is being refreshed and rolled out alongside 
partners from the Local Resilience Forum in 
line with the Government roadmap

184



113

Governance Issues
For the financial year 2020/21 there has been a number of significant governance issues identified by audit, 
in particular in respect of Housing Compliance.  We will continue to enhance and improve our governance 
arrangements and relevant actions are listed in the table below: 

Key area of focus for 2021/22 Action Owner Deadline

Completion of the review of the 
Constitution in accordance with the 
project plan

Monitoring Officer December 2021

Update of the Council’s 
assessment against the Delivering 
Good Governance in Local 
Government: Framework

Head of Democratic 
Services March 2022

Implementation of the Housing 
Service Improvement Plan

Director of Housing 
and Property March 2022

Assessment against the CIPFA 
Financial Management Code and 
development of an action plan

Interim Director of 
Finance (s151 Officer) March 2022

Develop an action plan to 
implement findings arising from the 
Peer and Scrutiny Reviews

Chief Executive March 2022

Continuation of the Covid–19 
Recovery Plan Chief Executive March 2022

03
17

9R
T_

7.
21

185



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 
21 July 2021 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 

   

         
  

Internal Audit Follow Up Report   
In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee one of the key areas for the 
Committee is to monitor the audit activity on behalf of the Council.  This includes monitoring the 
implementation of internal audit management actions.  This report provides an update on the 
implementation of Follow Up 1 and Follow Up 2 management actions that were reported as part of 
the Internal Audit Annual Report on 9 June 2021. 

Report Author 

Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer 

 
 01476 406038 

  t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance  7 July 2021 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 7 July 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

13 July 2021 

 

Recommendation to the decision maker 

1. Governance and Audit Committee is asked to review the implementation of the 
actions from the two Follow Up reviews completed during 2020-21.  The actions 
from Follow Up 1 have recently been audited and are included within the Follow Up 
Report attached as Appendix A. 

187

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 In accordance with its terms of reference, Governance and Audit Committee is asked to 

consider the implementation of the Follow Up 1 and Follow Up 2 management actions and 

review the Internal Auditor’s Follow Up report appended to this covering report.   

1.2 Follow Up 1 was undertaken in August 2020 and Follow Up 2 in November 2020 and the 

table below provides a summary of the implementation of those actions:  

 Total Implemented In progress  Superseded 
Not 

implemented  

Follow Up 1  16 11 - 2 3 

Follow Up 2  13 6 6 1 - 

Total 29 17 4 2 3  

 

1.3 Follow Up 1 has recently been followed up, along with GDPR Post Implementation, and 

the report is attached as Appendix A. 

1.4 All of the actions continue to be actively monitored by the use of hosted software (4action).  

This system allows the responsible officers to manage their implementation plans, 

alongside the agreed timescales, and enables the Council to ensure all actions are 

monitored and can then be reported to the Committee in a timely fashion.  The 

management and monitoring of actions will be supported by the internal audit follow up 

arrangements.   

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 None. 

3 Reasons for the Recommendation 

3.1 Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of reference, is required to consider 

the internal audit follow up report. 

4 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

4.1 N/A 

5 Financial Implications  

5.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, interim Director of Finance 

6 Legal and Governance Implications  

6.1 Governance and Audit Committee is responsible for the monitoring of internal audit report 

recommendations as part of its terms of reference.  This report provides information in this 

respect.  

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

7 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

7.1 None. 

 

188



 

 
 

8 Risk and Mitigation 

8.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate. 

9 Community Safety Implications  

9.1 None. 

10 Background Papers 

10.1 None. 

11 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’? 

The recommendation will have a neutral effect on the Council’s declaration of a climate 

emergency. 

12 Appendices 

12.1 Appendix A – Internal Audit Follow Up Report 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not required 

Previously Considered by: Governance and 
Audit Committee 

Not applicable 

Final Decision date   21 July 2021 

 

189



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Follow Up 1 

Internal audit report 3.21/22 

Final 

2 July 2021 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party.  

191



    

 
 

   2
 

 

 

With the use of secure portals for the transfer of information, and through electronic communication means, remote working has meant that we have been able to 
complete our audit and provide you with the assurances you require. It is these exceptional circumstances which mean that 100 per cent of our audit has been 
conducted remotely. Based on the information provided by you, we have been able to sample test, or complete full population testing using data analytics tools. 

Background 
We have undertaken a review to follow up on progress made to implement the previously agreed management actions from the following audits: 

• 01.20/21 Follow Up 1; and 

• 02.20/21 GDPR. 

The 24 management actions considered in this review comprised of 10 medium, six low and eight not categorised priority actions. Concentrating on the actions 
classified as medium, and those not categorised, the focus of this review was to provide assurance that all actions previously agreed have been satisfactorily 
implemented. For actions categorised as low we have accepted management's assurance regarding their implementation.  

Conclusion  
Taking account of the issues identified in the remainder of the report and in line with our definitions set out in Appendix A, in our opinion South Kesteven District 
Council has demonstrated reasonable progress in implementing agreed management actions. Our testing has found that 13 actions have been fully implemented, 
two actions have been superseded, two actions have been partially implemented and eight actions have not been implemented. 

 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

192



    

 
 

   3
 

 

Progress on actions 
The following table includes details of the status of each management action: 

 
Implementation status by review 

 
Number of 

actions 
agreed 

Status of management actions

Impl. (1) Impl. ongoing 
(2) 

Not impl. (3) Superseded 
(4) 

Confirmation as 
completed or no 
longer necessary 

(1)+(4) 

01.20/21 Follow Up 1 16 11 0 3 2 13 

02.20/21 GDPR 8 2 2 4 0 2 

Total 24 
 

13  
(54%) 

2  
(8%) 

7 
(29%) 

2  
(8%) 

15 
(62%) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

193



 

4 
 

 

2 FINDINGS AND MANAGEMENT ACTIONS 
Status Detail 

1 The entire action has been fully implemented. 
2 The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 
3 The action has not been implemented. 
4 The action has been superseded and is no longer applicable. 
5 The action is not yet due. 

 

 

01.20/21 Follow Up 1  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

Once the implementation of the Data Disposal Module has been undertaken and set timescales agreed, data will be periodically removed. 
 
Medium  

Audit finding 
/ status 

It has been confirmed by the IT Systems Development and Support Officer that the Data Disposal Module is currently with the IT 
department to be installed - the timeframe for full implementation of the module has not been finalised. 
 
3: The action has not been implemented 

Management 
Action 1 

Management action  
Once the implementation of the Data Disposal Module has been 
undertaken, and set timescales agreed, data will be periodically removed.  
 
The Data Disposal Module is installed but the Data Retention Policy is not 
completed. Once this is in place, data can be removed in accordance with 
the policy. 

Responsible Owner:  
IT Services Manager  

Date:  
31 December 
2021  

Priority: 
Medium 

 

 

 

194



 

5 
 

 

01.20/21 Follow Up 1  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

Upon all Councillors receiving Microsoft Devices the Password Policy will be updated and circulated. 
 
Low  

Audit finding 
/ status 

It has been confirmed by the IT Systems Development and Support Officer that the Password Policy has not been updated. 
 
3: The action has not been implemented. 

Management 
Action 2 

Management action  
Once confirmation has been received that all Councillors have received 
Microsoft Devices the Password Policy will be updated and circulated. 
 
Guidance from NCSC has changed recently and passwords alone are seen 
as a small part of security. A policy is being produced for user security 
measures to include more secure methods of logging in such as two factor 
authentication and single sign on. 

Responsible Owner:  
IT Services Manager  

Date:  
31 July 2021  

Priority: 
Low 

 

01.20/21 Follow Up 1  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

On completion of the surveys of the sheltered accommodation and flats with communal facilities, the Stay Put Policy will be amended for 
each property based on the findings of the survey. 
 
Low 

Audit finding 
/ status 

It has been confirmed by the Project Lead that the Council is still awaiting the full completion of the surveys for the sheltered 
accommodation.  Once this has been undertaken the Stay Put Policy will be amended for each property. 
 
3: The action has not been implemented. 

Management 
Action 3 

Management action  
On completion of the surveys of the sheltered accommodation and flats 
with communal facilities, the Stay Put Policy will be amended for each 
property based on the findings of the survey. 

Responsible Owner:  
Interim Head of Housing 
Technical Services 

Date:  
31 July 2021 

Priority: 
Low 

195



 

6 
 

 

 

02.20/21 GDPR  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

The Information Asset Register will be updated and reviewed to ensure a complete and comprehensive record is maintained of all data 
held by the Council.  
 
Once completed, a process will be implemented to ensure that this central record resulting from the data audit is accurate and remains up 
to date to ensure that the Council continues to hold a comprehensive, accurate and up to date record of all the personal data held. This 
should be undertaken via regular data audits to capture any changes. 

Audit finding 
/ status 

It has been confirmed by the Data Protection Support Officer that the Council's Information Asset Register has yet to be fully updated and 
reviewed to ensure a complete and comprehensive record is maintained of all the data held by the Council. 
 
We reviewed the Asset Register and noted that no defining changes had been made to it since it was reviewed at as part of the GDPR 
audit in August 2020.  

3: The action has not been implemented.  

Management 
Action 4 

Management action  
The Information Asset Register will be updated and reviewed to ensure a 
complete and comprehensive record is maintained of all data held by the 
Council.  
 
Once completed, a process will be implemented to ensure that this central 
record resulting from the data audit is accurate and remains up to date to 
ensure that the Council continues to hold a comprehensive, accurate and 
up to date record of all the personal data held. This should be undertaken 
via regular data audits to capture any changes.

Responsible Owner:  
Data Protection Support 
Officer 

Date:  
31 December 
2021 

Priority: 
N/A 

 

 

02.20/21 GDPR  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

The Council will ensure that it produces a comprehensive, accurate and up to date record of all the personal data it holds and whether 
arrangements are in place for it to be shared with a third party.  
The Council will review all third parties identified and ensure that there is a corresponding Data Sharing Agreement in place where 
required. 

Audit finding 
/ status 

The Council maintains an Information Sharing Agreement Log (i.e. ISA register), which records what ISA's they maintain with third parties 
such as Public Health England and Lincolnshire Police.  

196



 

7 
 

 

02.20/21 GDPR  
We have been provided with copies of the Data Sharing Agreements in place with three third parties identified on the log: Lincs 4 Warmer 
Homes Scheme, Safer Housing Partnership - Housing and Homeless Assistance and Restorative Justice Service Lincolnshire. Upon 
review, we noted that one of the three Agreements had not been signed by the Council. 
 
2: The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

Management 
Action 5 

Management action  
The Council will ensure that the copies of the Data Sharing Agreements in 
place at the Council are countersigned and dated by a representative from 
the Council. 

Responsible Owner:  
Data Protection Support 
Officer 

Date:  
28 February 
2022 

Priority: 
N/A 

 

 

02.20/21 GDPR  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

Once the Information Asset Register has been fully completed, a dedicated staff member will be allocated to each data source as a 
responsible data owner. 
 
 

Audit finding 
/ status 

It has been confirmed by the Data Protection Support Officer that this action's implementation is dependent on the completion of the 
Council's Information Asset Register which we have been advised is currently still in progress.  Once this has been fully implemented a 
dedicated member of staff will be assigned as a responsible owner to each data source.  
 
3: The action has not been implemented. 

Management 
Action 6 

Management action  
Once the Information Asset Register has been fully completed, a dedicated 
staff member will be allocated to each data source as a responsible data 
owner. 

Responsible Owner:  
Data Protection Support 
Officer 

Date:  
31 December 
2021 

Priority: 
N/A 

 

 

 

197



 

8 
 

 

02.20/21 GDPR  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

The Data Retention Schedule will be updated, setting out standard retention periods for specific categories of data, based on purpose and 
business need.  
 
Data should then be deleted on a cyclical basis in line with retention requirements. 
 
The Council will ensure that it produces a comprehensive, accurate and up to date record of all data storage and retention locations, 
including back-ups. 

Audit finding 
/ status 

Through discussions with the Data Protection Support Officer we were informed that the Council's Data Retention Schedule has yet to be 
fully updated for each service area.  
 
We reviewed a copy of the Schedule's review and noted that the retention periods had been updated for some service areas in 
September 2020, but not others. The areas updated include:  
 
- Management and Administration  
- Legal & Contracts  
- Human Resources  
- Financial Management  
- Property and Land Management  
- Planning and Land Use  
- Infrastructure and Transport  
 
We were informed by the Data Protection Support Officer that the Data Retention Schedule will be updated to set out the standard 
retention periods for the remaining service areas by the end of December 2021. It has also been confirmed that data will be deleted in line 
with retention requirements and the Council will ensure that it produces a comprehensive, accurate and up to date record of all data 
storage and retention locations, including back-ups, by the end of December 2021. 
 
2: The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

Management 
Action 7 

Management action  
The Data Retention Schedule will be updated for the remaining areas 
outstanding, setting out standard retention periods for specific categories of 
data, based on purpose and business need.  
 
Data should then be deleted on a cyclical basis in line with retention 
requirements. 
 
The Council will ensure that it produces a comprehensive, accurate and up 

Responsible Owner:  
Data Protection Support 
Officer 

Date:  
31 December 
2021 

Priority: 
N/A 

 

198



 

9 
 

 

02.20/21 GDPR  
to date record of all data storage and retention locations, including back-
ups. 

 

02.20/21 GDPR  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

The Council will ensure that procedural guidance is in place for the actioning of all individual’s rights documented within GDPR. 
 
 

Audit finding 
/ status 

We reviewed the Council`s Procedural Guidance for Reporting Breaches, undertaking a Data Protection Impact Assessment and 
Protecting Personal Data and noted that this does not include any guidance for updating and deleting personal data at a departmental 
level, which was highlighted in the GDPR audit in August 2020. 
 
3: The action has not been implemented. 

Management 
Action 8 

Management action  
The Council will ensure that the Procedural Guidance for Reporting 
Breaches, undertaking a Data Protection Impact Assessment and 
Protecting Personal Data are updated to include guidance for updating and 
deleting personal data at a departmental level. 

Responsible Owner:  
Data Protection Support 
Officer 

Date:  
31 October 
2021 

Priority: 
N/A 

 

 

02.20/21 GDPR  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

Processes for seeking, obtaining and recording consent to handling individual’s personal data will be identified. Once all methods are 
identified, they will be reviewed and updated in accordance with the requirements of the GDPR.  
 
The requirements for consent processes under the new Act include:  
 
• Explicit consent must be given for data collection, data usage and marketing; and 
• Consent must be verifiable/subject to an appropriate audit trail.  
 
The Council will ensure they maintain evidence of positive indication of agreement for personal data being processed i.e. this must not be 
inferred from silence, pre-ticked boxes, or inactivity.  

199



 

10 
 

 

02.20/21 GDPR  

Audit finding 
/ status 

The Data Protection Support Officer has confirmed that there are no specific processes in place at the Council for seeking, obtaining, and 
recording consent for handling individual’s personal data. We have been informed by the Data Protection Support Officer that the Council 
is looking to develop these but currently have no estimated timescale for full implementation. 
  
Additionally, the Data Protection Support Officer confirmed that the Council maintains a consent list for its Art Centres which both the Art 
Centres and Council's Communication Team rely on for verification. We have been provided with screenshots of where a new customer 
enters their contact preferences, marketing preferences and tags on 'SPEKTRIX' which feature on the consent list. SPEKTRIX is used by 
the Arts Centre as a linked piece of software to capture consent through the online ticketing system.  
 
3: The action has not been implemented. 

Management 
Action 9 

Management action  
Processes for seeking, obtaining and recording consent to handling 
individual’s personal data will be identified. Once all methods are identified, 
they will be reviewed and updated in accordance with the requirements of 
the GDPR.  
 
The requirements for consent processes under the new Act include:  
 
• Explicit consent must be given for data collection, data usage and 
marketing; and 
• Consent must be verifiable/subject to an appropriate audit trail.  
The Council will ensure they maintain evidence of positive indication of 
agreement for personal data being processed i.e. this must not be inferred 
from silence, pre-ticked boxes, or inactivity.  

Responsible Owner:  
Data Protection Support 
Officer 

Date:  
31 December 
2021 

Priority: 
N/A 

 

 

 

200



 

11 
 

 

APPENDIX A: DEFINITIONS FOR PROGRESS MADE 
The following opinions are given on the progress made in implementing actions. This opinion relates solely to the implementation of those actions followed up 
and does not reflect an opinion on the entire control environment. 

 Progress in 
implementing 
actions 

Overall number of 
actions fully 
implemented 

Consideration of high 
priority actions  

Consideration of medium 
priority actions 

Consideration of low priority 
actions 

Good 75% + None outstanding. None outstanding. 
All low actions outstanding are 
in the process of being 
implemented. 

Reasonable 51 – 75% None outstanding. 
75% of medium actions made 
are in the process of being 
implemented. 

75% of low actions made are 
in the process of being 
implemented. 

Little 30 – 50% 
All high actions outstanding 
are in the process of being 
implemented. 

50% of medium actions made 
are in the process of being 
implemented. 

50% of low actions made are 
in the process of being 
implemented. 

Poor < 30% 
Unsatisfactory progress has 
been made to implement 
high priority actions. 

Unsatisfactory progress has 
been made to implement 
medium actions.  

Unsatisfactory progress has 
been made to implement low 
actions. 

201



 

12 
 

 

APPENDIX B: ACTIONS COMPLETED OR SUPERSEDED  
From the testing conducted during this review we have found the following actions to have been fully implemented and superseded.  

Assignment title Management actions
01.20/21 Follow Up 1 Implemented  

The deed of variation extending the Building Control will be signed by South Kesteven District Council, 
Rushcliffe Borough Council, Newark and Sherwood District Council. 
 
Priority: Medium

01.20/21 Follow Up 1 Implemented  
a) Financial Services have performed reconciliations between 2018 and 2020.  
b) Data for 01.01.2021 – 25.05.2021 is currently being reconciled as at 27/05/21 the fees to date. Going 
forward it will be necessary to establish a robust and reliable method. This will require a process for identifying 
common data from the two back office systems to ensure that any reconciliation is accurate. 
 
Priority: Medium 

01.20/21 Follow Up 1 Implemented 
The Customer Feedback Process - Compliments, Comments and Complaints Guidance Document will be 
reviewed to ensure it is reflective of current working practices. 
 
Priority: Low 

01.20/21 Follow Up 1 Implemented  
The DOIs for 2020 will be completed and all declarations of interest will be blocked on Northgate. 
 
Priority: Low 

01.20/21 Follow Up 1 Implemented  
Once the new Civica module has been implemented, refresher training will be provided on the use of Civica to 
ensure that responsibility and accountability in regard to FOI requests is understood. 
 

202



 

13 
 

 

Assignment title Management actions
Priority: Medium 

01.20/21 Follow Up 1 Implemented  
The Council, in regard to its website, will ensure that;  
 
a) The information required to be published by the Transparency Code for 2019/20 will be published.  
b) The number of marked out controlled on and off-street parking spaces within their area, or an estimate of 
the number of spaces where controlled parking space is not marked out in individual parking bays or spaces 
will be published.  
 
Priority: Medium

01.20/21 Follow Up 1 Implemented  
A flowchart will be produced to show the recruitment process from start to finish. 
 
Priority: Low

01.20/21 Follow Up 1 Implemented  
Departments who continually raise purchase orders retrospectively will reminded of the importance of raising 
purchase orders prior to receiving the goods.  
 
Priority: Medium 

01.20/21 Follow Up 1 Implemented  
Management will ensure that the Emergency Lighting tests are completed before their due date. 
 
Priority: Medium 

01.20/21 Follow Up 1 Superseded 
Upon the new Service Head coming into post it will be discussed with them the best way to progress with the 
completion of Fire Risk Assessments.  
 
The new adopted approach will ensure that:  
  
a) Fire Risk Assessments will be undertaken on completion of the surveys.  
b) Going forward Fire Risk Assessments will be reviewed annually for all properties where one is required 
based on the structure and layout of the property.

203



 

14 
 

 

Assignment title Management actions
c) Where the use or layout of the building changes requiring a new Fire Risk Assessment these will be carried 
out and any arising actions implemented. 
 
Management comment: 
It has been confirmed by the Interim Head of Housing Technical Services that this action will be picked up as 
part of the ongoing housing compliance actions moving forward. 
 
Priority: Medium 

01.20/21 Follow Up 1 Superseded 
The Council is intending to implement a new Civica Module for the handling of FOI and complaint requests.  
Once the new module has been implemented, refresher training will be provided on the use of Civica to ensure 
that responsibility and accountability in regard to complaints is understood. 
 
Management action:  
Management will ensure that where refresher training is provided on FOI and complaint requests to members 
of staff a detailed log is retained with the details of training undertaken and the dates training was provided. 

01.20/21 Follow Up 1 Implemented  
The Expenses Policy will be reviewed and updated to reflect current working practices. 
 
Priority: Low  

01.20/21 Follow Up 1 Implemented  
 
The Council is intending to implement a new Civica Module for the handling of FOI and complaint requests. 
Once the new module has been implemented, monthly management reporting of FOI's will be actioned. 
Priority: Medium 

02.20/21 GDPR Implemented  
The Council will review and update the Data Protection Policy to ensure it is reflective of current working 
practices. 
Priority: N/A  

204



 

15 
 

 

Assignment title Management actions
02.20/21 GDPR Implemented  

GDPR training will be delivered to all staff members who have not completed the allocated online training 
course. 
Additionally, GDPR training will also be delivered to all Councillors who did not attend the previous training 
session in May 2019. 
Priority: N/A  

 

205



 

16 
 

 

APPENDIX C: SCOPE 
The scope below is a copy of the original document issued. 

Scope of the review 
The internal audit assignment has been scoped to provide assurance on how South Kesteven District Council manages the following area: 

Objective of the risk under review 

To meet internal auditing standards, and to provide assurance on action taken to address management actions previously agreed by management. 

When planning the audit, the following areas for consideration and limitations were agreed: 

Areas for consideration: 

We will review the eleven medium priority management actions agreed in the following Internal Audit reviews: 
• 01.20/21 Follow Up 1 

• 02.20/21 GDPR 

Limitations to the scope of the audit assignment:   

• Detailed testing will only be carried out on the medium priority management actions; 

• We will obtain a management update in relation to low priority management actions, but no detailed testing will be carried out; 

• We will not review the whole control framework of the areas listed above. Therefore, we are not providing assurance on the entire risk and control 
framework of these areas; 

• Testing will be completed, where appropriate, on a sample basis over the period since actions were implemented or controls enhanced; and 

• Our work does not provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not exist. 

 

206



 

17 
 

 

 

Debrief held  

Draft report issued  

15 June 2021 

28 June 2021 
 

Internal audit Contacts Robert Barnett, Head of Internal Audit 
Robert.Barnett@rsmuk.com 
 
Amjad Ali, Senior Manager 
Amjad.Ali@rsmuk.com 
 
 

Responses received 1 July 2021 

Final report issued 
 

2 July 2021 

 
 Client sponsor Richard Wyles, Director of Finance  

Tracey Elliot, Governance and Risk Officer.  
Distribution Richard Wyles, Director of Finance  

Tracey Elliot, Governance and Risk Officer.  
 

207



 

rsmuk.com 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the 
weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Actions for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact. This report, or our work, should 
not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system 
of internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should our work be 
relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council, and solely for the purposes set out herein. This report should not therefore be 
regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. 
Any third party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or 
expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 

This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), 
without our prior written consent. 

We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

 

 

 

208



 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
South Kesteven District Council 
Internal Audit Progress Report 
 
Governance and Audit meeting: 21 July 2021 
 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed.  
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no  
responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party. 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 1 of 16

209

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council Progress Report | 2 
    
 

Contents 
 

1 Key messages .................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 
2 Reports ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 
Appendix A – Progress against the internal audit plan 2021/22 ................................................................................................................................................................................ 5 
Appendix B – Other matters ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

   

Page 2 of 16

210



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council Progress Report | 3 
    
 

1 Key messages 
The internal audit plan for 2021/22 was approved by the Governance and Audit Committee at the 18 March 2021 meeting. As the developments around Covid-19 will continue 
to impact on all areas of the Council’s risk profile, we will work closely with management to deliver an internal audit programme which remains flexible and ‘agile’ to ensure it 
meets your needs in the current circumstances. 

This report provides an update on progress against that plan and summarises the results of our work to date. 
 

 

Since the Governance and Audit Committee meeting last met, we have finalised three reports: Disabled Facilities Grant, Continuous Assurance 1 and Follow  
Up 1. 
A summary of the outcomes of the Disabled Facilities Grant audit and the Continuous Assurance 1 audit are included at Section 2 and further details are 
appended to this report. [To discuss and accept] 

 

The Follow Up 1 report is issued as a separate agenda item and this review resulted in a ‘reasonable progress’ opinion being made to implement previously 
agreed actions. [To note] 

 

The individual assignment dates for the 2021/22 internal audit plan have been agreed with management since the last Governance and Audit Committee 
meeting.  
See Appendix A for further details. [To note] 

 

Management have requested two changes to the 2021/22 internal audit plan since the last meeting committee meeting. Following some additional work to 
provide management assurance that previously agreed action relating to cash handling had been implemented, it was agreed that an audit of ‘Income and 
Banking’ be undertaken and this review has been added to the internal audit plan. It has also been agreed with management to remove the ‘Repairs Stock’ audit 
as the department no longer holds stock.  
See Appendix B for further details. [To note] 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 16

211



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council Progress Report | 4 
    
 

2 Reports 
2.1 Summary of final report being presented to this committee 
This section summarises the report that has been finalised since the last meeting.  

Assignment Opinion issued Actions agreed 
H M L 

Disabled Facilities Grant 
Overall, we found that the controls in place regarding disabled facilities grants at South Kesteven 
District Council are adequately designed and are operating effectively.  

Testing confirmed compliance with all controls and as a result, no management actions were 
raised. Further details are appended to this report. 

0 0 0 

Continuous Assurance 1 
The first continuous assurance review has been completed in order to provide management with 
assurance that the 10 key controls agreed with management are in place and operating effectively. 
These controls are considered as non-negotiable areas of compliance, that management require 
assurance on throughout the year on their functionality and effectiveness.  

As a result of testing undertaken, three ‘medium’ and two ‘low’ priority management actions were 
identified, and these were agreed by management. The findings were in relation to the following areas: 
Land Searches, Supplier Bank Accounts, Housing Repairs, Starters and Complaints. 
Further details are appended to this report. 

No opinions are issued for Continuous 
Assurance reviews 

0 3 2 

  

Page 4 of 16

212



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council Progress Report | 5 
    
 

Appendix A – Progress against the internal audit plan 2021/22 
Assignment  Status / Opinion issued Actions agreed Audit Date agreed with 

management 
Governance and Audit 

Committee meeting H M L 
Disabled Facilities Grant Final report issued / Substantial Assurance 0 0 0 20 May 2021 July 2021 
Continuous Assurance 1 Final report issued / No opinions are issued 

for Continuous Assurance reviews 
0 3 2 1 June 2021 July 2021 

Follow Up 1  Final report issued / Reasonable Progress 0 1    2  * 2 June 2021 July 2021 
Income and Banking ** Draft report issued     21 June 2021 September 2021 
Local Authority Searches Draft report issued    21 June 2021 September 2021 
Follow Up 2 Not yet commenced    9 August 2021 September 2021 
Housing Compliance  Not yet commenced    16 August 2021 September 2021 
Repairs – Stock Not yet commenced    31 August 2021 December 2021 
Council Subsidiary Companies Not yet commenced    13 September 2021 December 2021 
Street Scene – Stock Not yet commenced    13 September 2021 December 2021 
Continuous Assurance 2 Not yet commenced    20 September 2021 December 2021 
Medium Term Financial Planning Not yet commenced    27 September 2021 December 2021 
Follow Up 3 Not yet commenced    18 October 2021 December 2021 
Continuous Assurance 3 Not yet commenced    29 November 2021 March 2022 
Follow Up 4 Not yet commenced    7 February 2022 March 2022 
Continuous Assurance 4 Not yet commenced    24 February 2022 March 2022 
Project Governance Not yet commenced    Tbc March 2022 
 
* The Follow Up 1 audit also resulted in six non-categorised priority actions (relating to GDPR) as well as the one ‘medium’ and two ‘low’ priority actions. 
** This is an additional audit that has been added to the plan at the request of the Interim Director of Finance – see Appendix B. 

Page 5 of 16

213



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council Progress Report | 6 
    
 

Appendix B – Other matters 
Changes to the audit plan 
The current Covid-19 situation means that our clients and internal audit are working differently. We understand and recognise the Group’s strategic objectives, and that the 
developments around Covid-19 will continue to impact on all areas of the Group’s risk profile. We will work closely with management to deliver an internal audit programme 
which remains flexible and ‘agile’ to ensure it meets your needs in the current circumstances. 

At the request of the Interim Director of Finance, an audit of ‘Income and Banking’ has been added to the internal audit plan, with a focus on cash collection and banking 
processes for the following areas: Markets, Toilets, Wyndham Park and Cemeteries. The audit fieldwork has been completed and a draft report has recently been issued to 
management. 

The Interim Director of Finance has also advised that the ‘Repairs Stock’ audit can be removed from the internal audit plan, due to Repairs no longer having stock on site. 

Other assurance activity 
Note Activity Overview of output
1 Housing Benefit Grant Validation We have commenced the housing benefit grant validation testing and will provide the results to Management and the 

Council’s external auditors upon completion. 
This work is being  undertaken as a separate engagement and we do not see this as a conflict of interest. The work 
performed does not form part of the internal audit annual opinion.

 

Page 6 of 16

214



 
 

  

 

 

rsmuk.com 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the 
weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Actions for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact.  This report, or our work, should not 
be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of 
internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist.  Neither should our work be relied 
upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council and solely for the purposes set out herein. This report should not therefore be 
regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. Any 
third party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk 
Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of 
whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 

This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), without 
our prior written consent. 

 

For more information contact 
 
Rob Barnett, Head of Internal Audit  
Robert.Barnett@rsmuk.com  
07791 237 658 
 
Amjad Ali, Senior Manager   
Amjad.Ali@rsmuk.com   
07800 617 139 
 
 

Page 7 of 16

215



    

 
 

 

 

 

With the use of secure portals for the transfer of information, and through 
electronic communication means, remote working has meant that we have 
been able to complete our audit and provide you with the assurances you 
require. It is these exceptional circumstances which mean that 100 per cent of 
our audit has been conducted remotely. 

Why we completed this audit 
An audit of disabled facilities grants (DFGs) was undertaken at South 
Kesteven District Council as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan 
for 2021/22.  

An application for a disabled facilities grant comes about following an 
Occupational Therapist referral via Lincolnshire County Council. South 
Kesteven District Council then take over the referral, requiring the client to 
complete an application form in full, followed by a means test where required 
to establish whether the client needs to make a financial contribution to the 
work they will have undertaken.  

Approved contractors are in place to carry out the works and all plans for 
adaptations to a client’s home must be approved by the Occupational 
Therapist before work can commence. A purchase order must also be raised 
by a member of the Private Sector Housing Team prior to works commencing 
and this must be approved by the Environmental Protection and Private 
Sector Housing Team Leader or the Head of Public Protection. If additional 
works are required throughout the process, this must be justified to the 
Council by the contractor or the Occupational Therapist and a second 
purchase order raised and approved in the same way in line with delegated 
authorities.  

The Council uses the Civica Flare system to retain information regarding grant 
application.  

 

An action diary is maintained on Civica detailing all correspondence and 
actions taken throughout the application process to completion of works. All 
documentation including application forms, means tests (where applicable), 
work plans, and contractor sign off are retained on Civica.  

Conclusion  
Overall, we found that the controls in place regarding disabled facilities grants 
at South Kesteven District Council are adequately designed and are operating 
effectively.  

Testing confirmed compliance with all controls and as a result, no 
management actions were raised. Details of controls reviewed can be found in 
the key findings section of this report.  

Internal audit opinion: 

Taking account of the 
issues identified, the 
Council can take 
substantial assurance 
that the controls upon 
which the Council relies 
to manage this area are 
suitably designed, 
consistently applied and 
effective. suitably 
designed and 
consistently applied.  

 

  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – DISABLED FACILITIES GRANTS 

Page 8 of 16

216



    

 
 

 

 

Key findings 
We identified the following areas of good control design which, based on 
our testing, were being complied with in practice: 

 

The Private Sector Housing Assistance- Independent Living Policy 
outlines clear guidance for disabled facilities grants,  including the 
application process and eligible works that can be carried out using a 
disabled facilities grant. The policy is maintained up to date and made 
available to all staff via the Council’s website.  

 

A dedicated page on the Council’s website provides clear guidance and 
information to the public on disabled facilities grants. The website also 
provides useful links to the GOV.UK guidance on disabled facilities 
grants.  

 

Testing a sample of 15 applications for a disabled facilities grant 
confirmed in all instances that the client had been referred to the 
Council via an Occupational Therapist working for Lincolnshire County 
Council and that an application form had been completed in full.  

 

For a sample of 15 applications for a disabled facilities grants 
confirmed in two instances that a client contribution was required 
following a means test. Payment of these contributions was received 
prior to any works commencing. In the remaining instances, testing 
identified that the client was in receipt of passported benefits or that a 
contribution was not required based on the results of a means test.  

 

For the sample tested ,an Occupational Therapist approved the work 
plans to ensure they met the health needs  of the client prior to any work 
commencing.  

 

For the 15 applications sampled, in 14 instances a purchase order had    
been appropriately raised and approved for the cost of the works prior       
to any works commencing. In the remaining instance, the work was 
cancelled by the client at this stage and no costs were incurred.  

 

Our testing identified six instances where additional work on the property 
was required. Further testing confirmed that in all instances a second 
purchase order was appropriately raised and approved for the additional 
work.  

 

Testing a sample of 15 applications for a disabled facilities grants 
confirmed in all instances that an updated action diary of the case was 
maintained on Civica.  

 

Approved contractors and an agreed schedule of rates is in place for all 
works carried out to ensure that the Council is achieving value for money 
for the work undertaken.  

 

Testing a sample of 15 applications for a disabled facilities grants 
confirmed in 14 instances that the completed works had received formal 
sign off and certifications were retained on Civica. In the remaining 
instance, the work was cancelled by the client before it commenced.  

 

Budget monitoring is undertaken as part of the wider finance budget and 
is reported to Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee every quarter in which details of 
disabled facilities grant spend is outlined.   

 

Page 9 of 16

217



 

 
 

 

2. DETAILED FINDINGS AND ACTIONS 
 

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, only those areas of weakness in control or examples of lapses in 
control identified from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

 
* No management actions were raised as a result of this audit. 
 

Page 10 of 16

218



    

 
 

 

 

 
 

With the use of secure portals for the transfer of information, and through electronic communication means, remote working has meant that we have been able to 
complete our assignment and provide you with the assurances you require. It is these exceptional circumstances which mean that 100 per cent of our audit has been 
conducted remotely. Based on the information provided by you, we have been able to sample test, or complete full population testing using data analytics tools. 

Why we completed this audit 
A programme of Continuous Assurance of key controls is being undertaken as part of the approved Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22. This report covers the first cycle 
of testing in the financial year. 

As part of the Internal Audit Plan, we have agreed to visit several key areas over the financial year to provide a high-level assurance that key controls are in place 
and operating effectively in these areas. 

These controls are considered as non-negotiable areas of compliance, that management require assurance on throughout the year on their functionality and 
effectiveness.  

Findings and agreed actions are included within this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – CONTINUOUS ASSURANCE VISIT ONE 

Page 11 of 16

219



    

 
 

 

 

Findings 
Below is a tabular representation which reflects our view of South Kesteven District Council’s controls, highlighting areas where action has been agreed with 
management based upon the work. See the Findings and Actions Plan section for further details of the actions agreed with management to address issues identified. 

Control Area Conclusion 

Land Searches Non-compliance with control 

Planning Applications Compliance with control 

Purchase Orders and Invoicing Compliance with control 

Supplier Bank Accounts Non-compliance with control 

Housing Repairs Non-compliance with control 

Starters Non-compliance with control 

IT Access Controls Compliance with control 

Complaints Non-compliance with control 

Service Council Vehicles Compliance with control 

Issue of Licences Compliance with control 

 

Page 12 of 16

220



 

 
 

 

2. FINDINGS AND ACTION PLAN 
Area Finding summary  Risk 

Context 
Actions for 
Management 

Action 
Owner 

Target 
Date 

Land Searches 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We were able to evidence a Search Volume report, which 
documented all land searches undertaken at the Council 
between 1 April 2021 and 31 May 2021. This report 
evidenced that a total of 272 searches had been issued 
within the period, the average turnaround time was 27 
working days; and the longest time taken was 35 working 
days. 

The Council website states that they currently endeavour to 
complete a search within an average of 22 working days. 
However, we were unable to identify a Policy that detailed 
the process and internal timescale requirement of 22 
working days for conducting land searches, which may 
result in any new staff within the Council being unaware of 
the suggested timeframes.  

Low Management will implement 
a Policy or internal 
guidance that details the 
process and timescale 
requirements for conducting 
land searches. 

Internal guidance will be 
implemented by 31 July and 
the policy thereafter – this 
will be an action from the 
Land Searches internal 
audit. 

Assistant 
Director Legal & 

Governance 

 

31 July 2021 

Page 13 of 16

221



 

 
 

 

Area Finding summary  Risk 
Context 

Actions for 
Management 

Action 
Owner 

Target 
Date 

Supplier Bank 
Accounts 

For a sample of 10 supplier bank account amendments for 
the period 1 April 2021 to 31 May 2021, we conducted 
sample testing to evidence that these amendments have 
been checked with the supplier and validated. 

In three instances, no evidence was provided, and in two 
instances the evidence provided could not clearly validate 
that these amendments had been appropriately checked, 
which could result in incorrect amendments being made for 
the supplier.  

Medium Management will review the 
five supplier bank account 
amendment instances 
where evidence was either 
not provided or was not 
clear; and confirm that 
these amendments were 
appropriately verified prior 
to the amendments being 
actioned. 

A new process was 
implemented in June to 
capture bank account 
amendments.  The five 
bank account amendment 
instances have since been 
checked and we can 
confirm they were 
appropriately verified. 

Head of 
Finance 

31 July 2021 

Page 14 of 16

222



 

 
 

 

Area Finding summary  Risk 
Context 

Actions for 
Management 

Action 
Owner 

Target 
Date 

Housing Repairs From a sample of 10 repairs completed between 1 April 
2021 to 31 May 2021, we were able to evidence that all 
repairs had been appropriately assigned and completed 
within the provided KPI’s, and source documentation or 
system evidence was available to confirm this:  

Standard Repair KPI 

Emergency – 2 Hours 

Urgent – 1 Working Day 

Routine – 3 Working Days 

Routine – 7 Days 

Planned Repair – 60 Days 

However, the timeframes provided had not yet been 
documented by the Council in internal procedures and a 
repairs policy, which may provide a risk that staff members 
(particularly newer staff members) are unaware of the 
timeframes required. 

Low Management will ensure 
that all staff are aware of 
the current KPIs and going 
forwards this will be 
included in a repairs policy 
and procedures.  

Repairs 
Manager 

31 July 2021 

Starters We sampled 10 new starters and were able to evidence 
that each vacancy had gained approval to recruit. In 8/10 
instances, we were also able to evidence via source 
documentation that satisfactory references had been 
obtained where applicable and driving licence and right to 
work in the UK checks had also been undertaken.  

However, in two instances, we were unable to evidence that 
the driving licence and right to work in the UK checks had 
been undertaken. This is currently being followed up by 
management; as this poses a risk that staff may be 
employed who are not suitable to work within the Council. 

Medium Management will follow up 
on the two starters where 
driving licence and right to 
work in the UK checks had 
not been completed; 
understand why this 
occurred and implement a 
control to ensure this is 
checked in future prior to 
staff members starting with 
the Council. 

HR Manager 31 July 2021 

Page 15 of 16

223



 

 
 

 

Area Finding summary  Risk 
Context 

Actions for 
Management 

Action 
Owner 

Target 
Date 

Complaints Due to IT system changes allowing for more in-depth 
reporting, complaints data for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 
May 2021 was unavailable. We therefore tested the control 
against data provided between December 2020, and March 
2021. 

From the complaints data provided, we were able to 
evidence that complaints had been logged within the 
system, investigated and where upheld, remediation action 
was provided.  

We were provided with the Compliments, Comments & 
Complaints guide, which stated that customer complaints 
will be acknowledged within three working days, and a full 
response provided within 15 working days. However, the 
current reporting dashboard does not allow the Council to 
identify the time taken to investigate and resolve 
complaints. This may therefore present the risk that 
complaints are not followed through to resolution, or 
investigated at all, due to insufficient monitoring.  

The policy document provided was also dated September 
2013, however the Data Protection Support Officer is 
currently in the process of updating this, for approval in 
September 2021. 

Medium Management will implement 
a complaint recording 
mechanism that allows the 
Council to identify 
timeframes taken to deal 
with complaints, in line with 
the Policy. 

 

Data Protection 
Support Officer

30 
September 

2021 

Page 16 of 16

224



 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 
21 July 2021 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Resources 

   

         
  

 

2020/21 Treasury Management Annual Report 

This report provides Governance and Audit Committee with the details of the Council’s treasury 
management activity for the financial year 2020/21. 

 

 

Report Author 

Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 

 
 01476 406208 

  alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Claire Morgan, Senior Accountant 8 July 2021 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 8 July 2021 

Signed off by: Cllr Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 

9 July 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. It is recommended that the Governance and Audit Committee: 

Note and approve the content of the annual report on the Treasury Management 
Activity for 2020/21. 

 

225

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury management review of activities and performance against 

prudential and treasury indicators for 2020/21. This report meets the requirements of both 

the CIPFA Code of practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA 

Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code). 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 The Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury management review of activities and performance against 

prudential and treasury indicators for 2020/21.  This report meets the requirements of both 

the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA 

Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code). 

2.2 For the financial year 2020/21 the Council adhered to the suggested minimum reporting 

requirements and members received the following reports: 

• An annual treasury management strategy in advance of the year which was approved 
by Council on 2 March 2020 

• A mid-year treasury update report which was approved by Governance and Audit 
Committee on 19 November 2020 

• An annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared to the 
strategy (this report) 

2.3 Governance and Audit Committee has delegated powers from Council to deal with matters 

relating to the Council’s treasury management activities. Specifically, it has the 

responsibility to monitor, review and amend as appropriate the Council approved Treasury 

Management Strategy during the financial year. The regulatory environment places a 

much greater onus on members for the review and scrutiny of treasury management 

policy and activities. This report is important in that respect, as it provides details of the 

outturn position for treasury activities and highlights compliance with the Council’s policies 

previously approved by members. 

Treasury Position at 31 March 2021 

The Strategy for 2020/21 was approved by Council on 2 March 2020. A key element of 

daily operations focuses on comparing current market conditions in conjunction with the 

Link credit rating list, using this as a tool for guidance, with the option to deviate from this 

guidance only when there are clear alternative options available to the Council. Any 

decision of this nature is clearly documented for audit purposes. The aim of the Strategy is 

to generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which enables diversification of 

investments and thus avoidance of risk whilst providing security.  A summary of the 

Council’s treasury position at 31 March 2021 is as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

226



 

 
 

 Actual Debt Management activity during 2020/21  

Actual 
Borrowing 
Position 

31 March 2020 31 March 2021 

Principal Average Rate Principal Average Rate 

Fixed Interest 
Rate Debt 

£95.878m 2.45% £92.656m 2.33% 

Capital 
Financing 
Requirement 

 

£111.232m 

 

£107.868m 

Over/(Under) 
Borrowing 

(£15.354m) (£15.211m) 

Investment 
position 

31 March 2020 31 March 2021 

Principal Average Rate Principal Average Rate 

Fixed Interest 
Investments 

£17.000m 1.09% £18.500m 0.31% 

Variable 
Interest 
Investments 

£38.150m 0.74% £49.761m 0.48% 

Total 
Investments 

£55.150m 0.99% £68.261m 0.40% 

Net borrowing 
position 

£40.728m £24.395m 

 

2.4 The £92.656m is split between short term and long term borrowing as follows: 

• Short term - £3.222m which is repayable within the next 12 months 

• Long term - £89.434m 

Actual Investment management Activity during 2020/21 

2.5 The Council’s investment policy is governed by Ministry of Housing, Communities and 

Local Government (MHCLG) guidance, which was implemented in the annual investment 

strategy approved by Council on 2 March 2020. The investment activity during the year 

complied with the approved strategy throughout the whole of the year. During the year the 

Council had no liquidity difficulties. 

2.6 At 31 March 2021 the Council held short and long-term investments of £68.261m and was 

compliant with the Council’s policy to hold not more than 35% of investments as long term.  

This total includes a £1.12m investment in Gravitas and a £3m investment in the CCLA 

Property Fund.   

2.7 The CCLA Property Fund invests in property so the value of any investment in the fund 

can fluctuate as the value of property fluctuates and a quarterly dividend payment is 

received.  The council views this as a long-term investment that it has entered into for a 

minimum of five years as this manages the risk of fluctuations in the value of the 

investment which was £2.7m at 31 March 2021.  The primary reason for investing in the 

fund was for the quarterly dividend payment as the return is significantly higher than the 

227



 

 
 

return on other investments.  The dividend payable for the year was 117k which is a 

3.90% return on investment. 

2.8 The total amount of variable rate investments has increased between 31 March 2020 and 

31 March 2021 from £38.150m to £49.761m respectively as the interest rates achievable 

on notice accounts and MMF was comparable to fixed rate investments.  This decision 

was made to ensure that the Council was able to achieve a return on investments and 

also meant that the Council has not had any cashflow issues during the financial 

difficulties of 2020/21. 

2.9 The duration and counterparties of investments at 31 March 2021 are shown in the 

following graphs.  When investments are placed the duration is determined by taking into 

consideration the treasury advice received from Link and the cash flow for the Council. A 

number of counterparties are used as the Council has recommended investment limits 

that can be placed with each institution which assists with risk management. 

 
 

0

2000000

4000000

6000000

8000000

10000000

12000000

Counterparty

Investments Held at 31 March 2021

Specified

non Specified

228



 

 
 

 
 

2.10 As part of the role performed by our treasury advisers, we are also provided with 

benchmarking comparative information across all their clients which helps the Council 

understand how its investment portfolio is performing in relation to others. 

2.11 The table below shows for each quarter analysis our average rate of return was only 

marginally lower whilst managing the risk, when compared to other District Councils within 

the comparative group. This reflects the prudent approach to managing risk and return in 

order to maximise our investment returns whilst balancing our exposure to risk. 

Quarter ending SK 
WARoR* 

District 
WARoR* 

SK 
WARR** 

District 
WARR** 

Q1 – June 2020 0.37% 0.39% 2.61 2.37 

Q2 – Sept 2020 0.19% 0.28% 2.88 2.75 

Q3 – Dec 2020 0.16% 0.21% 2.98 2.90 

Q4 – Mar 2021 0.13% 0.18% 2.48 2.92 

*WARoR – weighted average rate of return 

**WARR – weighted average rate of risk 

2.12 As part of the prudential code the Council sets a number of prudential and treasury 

indicators as part of the treasury strategy, the estimated performance against these 

indicators was provided in the treasury strategy approved on 2 March 2020 and the actual 

the performance against these indicators is detailed in Appendix 1. 

Summary 

 

2.13 The Council’s treasury management functions have operated effectively during 2020/21 

and have successfully achieved the following: 

• Repayment of principal has been secured in all deposits. 

• The Council’s cash liquidity requirement has been met throughout the financial year. 

£0

£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

£20,000,000

£25,000,000

£30,000,000

£35,000,000

Overnight 2-30 31-91 92-182 183-273 274-365 366+

Days

Duration of Investments

229



 

 
 

• Investment income levels have exceeded the amended budget as investment levels 
were higher than originally estimated. 

• Robust management of the Council’s debt position. 

• Performance indicators set for 2020/21 have been achieved. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 None 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 As set out in the recommendations 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury management review of activities and performance against 

prudential and treasury indicators for 2019/20. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 Not applicable 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 These are included in the report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The Council is under a duty to manage its resources prudently and therefore due 

consideration must always be given to its borrowing and lending strategy.  A wide range of 

local authority financial activities, including borrowing, lending, financial management and 

the approval of types of investment vehicle are governed by legislation and various 

regulations.   

8.2 This report provides details of the Council’s performance in respect of Treasury 

management against policy set out as part of the Budget and policy framework. Members 

should note the performance and scrutinise any elements to assist the role of the 

Governance and Audit Committee in its review of the Treasury Management Strategy. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 none 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no exceptional/high risks have been 

identified. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 None 

 

230



 

 
 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 The report has a neutral carbon impact. 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 Not applicable 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 Treasury Management Strategy 

http://moderngovsvr/documents/s25014/Appendix%20E%20-

%20TM%20Strategy%202020-21.pdf 

 

14.2 Treasury Management Mid-year Review 2020/21 

http://moderngovsvr/documents/s28295/Treasury%20Management%20Mid-

Year%20Review.pdf 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix A – 2020/21 Prudential and Treasury Indicators 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

n/a 

Previously Considered by:  n/a 

Final Decision date   21 July 2021 

 

231

http://moderngovsvr/documents/s25014/Appendix%20E%20-%20TM%20Strategy%202020-21.pdf
http://moderngovsvr/documents/s25014/Appendix%20E%20-%20TM%20Strategy%202020-21.pdf
http://moderngovsvr/documents/s28295/Treasury%20Management%20Mid-Year%20Review.pdf
http://moderngovsvr/documents/s28295/Treasury%20Management%20Mid-Year%20Review.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 
 

2020/21 PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY INDICATORS 
 

During 2020/21, the Council complied with its legislative and regulatory requirements.  
The key actual prudential and treasury indicators detailing the impact of capital 
expenditure activities during the year, with comparators, are as follows: 

Actual prudential and treasury 
indicators 

2019/20 
Actual 
£’000 

2020/21 
Estimated 

£’000 

2020/21 
Actual 
£’000 

Capital expenditure 
• General Fund 
• HRA 
• Commercial 

activities/non-financial 
activities* 

• Total 
 

6.494 
7.142 
2.471 

 
 

16.107 

 
3.041 
3.377 

0 
 
 

6.418 
 

2.230 
3.167 

0 
 
 

5.397 

 
Capital Financing 
Requirement: 
• General Fund 
• HRA 
• Total 
 

 
 

11.606 
99.626 

111.232 

 
 

11.412 
96.404 

107.816 

 
 

11.464 
96.404 

107.868 

External debt 95.878 92.656 92.656 

Investments 
• Longer than 1 year 
• Under 1 year 
• Total 
 

3,820 
51,330 
55.150 

 

 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

 
 

3,000 
64,460 
67,460 

 

*Commercial activities/non-financial investments relate to areas such as investment 
properties, loan to third parties etc 
 
The authorised limit - the authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” required 
by S3 of the Local Government Act 2003.  The Council does not have the power to 
borrow above this level.   
 
The operational boundary – the operational boundary is the expected borrowing 
position of the Council during the year.  Periods where the actual position is either 
below or over the boundary is acceptable subject to the authorised limit not being 
breached.  
 

 2019/20  2020/21 

Authorised limit £156.765m £141.765m 

Operational boundary £138.765m £115.000m 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

233



Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator 
identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long-term obligation 
costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream.  

Ratio of financing costs to net 
revenue stream 

31 March 2020 
actual 

2020/21 
Revised limits 

31 March 2021 
Actual 

 General Fund (2.07%) (1.53%) (0.87%) 

 HRA 12.56% 13.72% 13.67% 
 

HRA Ratio – net debt per dwelling 

 2019/20 
Actual 
£’000 

2020/21 
Estimated 

£’000 

2020/21 
Actual 
£’000 

HRA Debt £m 95.878 92.656 92.656 

Number of HRA Dwellings 5,949 5,925 5,927 

Debt per Dwelling £ 16,117 15.638 15,633 
 

Net borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent 
over the medium term, the Council’s external borrowing net of investments, must only 
be for a capital purpose.  This essentially means that the Council is not borrowing to 
support revenue expenditure.  Net borrowing should not therefore, except in the short 
term, have exceeded the CFR for 2020/21 plus the expected changes to the CFR over 
2020/21 and 2021/22 from financing the capital programme.  This indicator allows the 
Council some flexibility to borrow in advance of its immediate capital needs in 2020/21.   

 

The maturity structure of the debt portfolio was as follows: 

 31 March 2020 
Actual 

31 March 2021 
Actual 

Under 12 months  £3.221m £3.222m 

12 months and within 24 months £3.222m £3.222m 

24 months and within 5 years £9.665m £9.665m 

5 years and within 10 years £16.109m £16.108m 

10 years and above £63.661m £60.439m 

The exposure to fixed and variable rates was as follows: 

 31 March 2020 
Actual 

31 March 2021 
Actual 

Fixed rate (principal or interest) £17.000m 18.500m 

Variable rate (principal or interest) £38.150m 49.761m 

 

 
 

31 March 2020 
Principal 

Rate/ Return 
31 March 2021 

Principal 
Rate/ Return 

Total debt £95.878m 2.45% £92.656m 2.33% 

CFR £111.232m  £107.868m  

Over/ (under) 
borrowing 

(£15.354m)  (£15.211m)  

Total investments £55.150m 0.99% £68.261m 0.40% 

Net debt £40.728m  £24.395m  

234



 

 

Report Author 

Claire Morgan, Senior Accountant 

 
01476 406051 

 claire.morgan@southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance  9 July 2021 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 9 July 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources.  Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet 
Member for Housing and Property 

13 July 2021  

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

The Governance and Audit Committee is asked to: 

1. Review and approve the Revenue and Capital Outturn report and associated 
appendices for the financial year 2020/21. 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 

21 July 2021 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes  

 Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 
 
Councillor Robert Reid 
 
Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Property 

 

 

Outturn Position Report 2020/21 

This report provides the Governance and Audit Committee with details of the Council’s outturn 
position for the financial year 2020/21. The report covers the following areas: 
 

- General Fund Revenue Budget 

- Housing Revenue Account Budget 

- Capital Programmes – General Fund and HRA  

235

Agenda Item 10

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


2. Review and approve the proposed reserve movements (sections 4 and 7). 

3. Note the budget carry forwards to be included into the 2021/22 budget framework 
as set out at appendices D and H. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

236



 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1   This report provides the Governance and Audit Committee with the detail of the 

Council’s outturn position for the financial year 2020/21. 

1.2   From a financial perspective, 2020/21 has been the most turbulent year for many years 

and one that has proved extremely challenging from both a member and officer 

perspective.  Almost immediately after the budget was approved by Council on 2 March 

2020, the country went into lockdown and subsequently the budget framework was 

facing a high degree of volatility and uncertainty that continued throughout the 

remainder of the financial year and into 2021/22. 

1.3 The Council responded in many ways including the formation of COVID-19 financial 

impact reports that tracked and monitored the situation throughout the year including 

updated narrative on the levels of Government support, the impact on the income of the 

Council, the impact on Business Rate and Council Tax collection and the necessary 

unforeseen expenditure that was being incurred. 

1.4 This work culminated in an amended budget being presented and approved by Council 

on 17 September 2020 which set out the budget allocations that required re-basing and 

showed in detail the full extent of the potential deficit the Council was potentially 

exposed to based on a range of scenarios and in the absence of mitigating actions 

being implemented.  The report also confirmed that the Council’s Budget stabilisation 

reserve may need to be utilised to meet any deficit that arises; this reserve was further 

bolstered by specific allocations to it as part of the Budget framework proposals for 

2021/22 that were approved by Council on 1 March 2021. 

1.5 This report attempts to capture all of the volatility that is referred to above in a manner 

that enables members to better understand the changes that have occurred, the nature 

and level of grants that have been allocated directly to the Council to support its 

financial stability and details of the grants that were administered by the Council for its 

residents and businesses throughout the year.  For clarity, the variance and 

explanatory information are based on the comparison between the amended budget 

and the outturn rather than the original budget that was set in March 2020. 

1.6 An overview of the provisional outturn is presented in the main report and there a 

number of supporting appendices that provide greater detail in respect of: 

- General Fund (GF) – Revenue, Capital and reserves 

- Housing Revenue Account (HRA) – Revenue, Capital and reserves 

1.7 In order to comply with International Financial Reporting Standards, a number of 

technical accounting entries are required to be made which can create significant 

variances. These entries are removed at table 4 to provide a more meaningful 

comparison.  The report ensures that, through explanation and presentation, the final 

account figures can be reconciled back to the budget set by the Council.  Table 1 

shows the overall summary outturn. 

 

 

 

 

 

237



 

Table 1 – 2020/21 Overall Summary 

Heading 2020/21  

Amended Budget 
(not including 

proposed budget 
C/F)  

£m 

2020/21  

Outturn 

 

 £m 

Commentary 

General Fund 
Revenue Account  

26.015 24.365 Details shown at 
section 2 and 
appendices A & B  

General Fund 
Capital 

3.638 2.230 Details shown at 
section 3 and appendix 
C 

Housing Revenue 
Account 

(4.593) (6.290) Details shown at 
section 5 and appendix 
F  

HRA Capital 17.616 3.167 Details shown at 
section 6 and appendix 
G  

 

Salary Vacancy Factor 

1.8 The Council has a budgeted salary vacancy factor calculated at 3.0% of salary budgets 
to offset against in year vacant posts. The annual budgets are (£428k) for General 
Fund and (£136k) for HRA and these have been achieved in 2020/21. 
 
Carry Forwards 
 

1.9 Due to timing differences in grants and budgets being approved, it is proposed to carry 
specific budgets forward into 2021/22 to fund specific and previously approved projects 
and the Committee is asked to review and approve these. The details are shown at 
Appendix D (General Fund) and Appendix H (HRA). 
 

1.10 Commentary and review of reserves are detailed at sections 4 (General Fund) and 7 
(HRA). Reserves statements are shown at Appendix E (General Fund) and Appendix I 
(HRA). 

2 Revenue Budget 2020/21 – General Fund  

2.1 The budget set by Budget Council on 2 March 2020 was £19.157m. However an 

amended budget was presented and approved on 17 September 2020 and therefore 

the budget framework was reset at that point.  Budgets have been amended as 

projects have commenced and these changes increased the 2020/21 budget to 

£26.015m. For the purposes of the outturn variance analysis, the budget carry forwards 

have been removed from this which reduces the budget for comparative purposes to 

£24.168m. 

 

 

238



 

Table 2 – General Fund Revenue Budget Amendments 

 

Date of 
Approval 

Revenue Budget amendment £’000 

  24,675 

August 2020 2019/20 Grants received 199 

August 2020 Maintenance Reserve 40 

August 2020 Government Re-organisation – Local Priorities Reserve 50 

August 2020 Regeneration Reserve 60 

September 
2020 

Leisure SK – Local Priorities Reserve 50 

October 2020 Leisure SK – Local Priorities Reserve 500 

October 2020 ICT Reserve 36 

October 2020 Maintenance Reserve 80 

October 2020 Climate Change Reserve 20 

October 2020 Leisure SK – Management Fee – Local Priorities Reserve 250 

December 
2020 

Maintenance Reserve 45 

December 
2020 

Invest to Save 10 

Total  26,015 

 

2.2 The forecast outturn position has been constantly monitored throughout the financial 

year.  The forecast adverse variance as at 31 December 2020 was projected at £320k. 

It can be confirmed that the outturn shows a balanced year end position reflecting the 

work Members and officers have jointly undertaken in ensuring that there is not an 

adverse position at the year end.  This places the Council in a positive position moving 

into the current financial year, which is particularly important given the challenges 

currently being experienced on the budget framework in 2021/22.  

2.3 The General Fund outturn position is shown in Table 3 and Appendix A provides a 

detailed breakdown of the funding of the revenue expenditure. Appendix B provides 

details of the variances per service area along with supporting information explaining 

the main variances.  The table confirms at line 6 (net cost of services) that a balanced 

position has been achieved after utilising an element of the Government support 

funding without the need to utilise its own resources, specifically the Budget 

stabilisation reserve.  The table confirms that there is a significant amount of 

Government funding that was received during the year (which is referenced at line 16).  

Of the allocated funding, £1.249m will not be required to be used to meet 2020/21 

costs and is therefore proposed to be allocated to a specific COVID recovery reserve in 

order to meet ongoing challenges during 2021/22 (and during the period in which 

further Government funding is not expected). 

 

 

 

 

 

239



 

       Table 3 – General Revenue Outturn Position 

 

Description 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current 
Budget  

2020/21 
Current 
Budget 

(less 
proposed 
Budget 

C/F) 

2020/21 
Outturn 

Variance 
to 

Current 
Budget 

2020/21 
Outturn 
Variance 

 

 

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

1 Commercial & Operations 9,664 9,246 9,809 563 6.1% 

2 Corporate 10,109 9,796 9,362 (433) (4.4%) 

3 Growth & Culture 6,718 6,359 6,174 (185) (2.9%) 

4 Housing & Property 2,090 1,333 1,612 279 20.9% 

5 HRA Recharge (2,566) (2,566) (2,592) (26) (1.0%) 

6 Net Cost of Service 26,015 24,168 24,365 197 0.8% 

7 
Removal of Accounting 
Adjustments 

0 0 (2,527) (2,527) - 

8 
Removal of Additional 
Depreciation 

0 0 (684) (684) - 

9 Re-stated Net Cost of Service 26,015 24,168 21,154 (3,014) (12.5%) 

10 
Interest Payable and 
Receivable 

(107) (107) (168) (61)  

11 Minimum Revenue Provision 148 148 142 (6)   

12 Revenue Contribution to Capital 72 72 15 (57)  

13 Depreciation (4,114) (4,114) (4,114) 0   

14 Net Budget Requirement 22,014 20,167 17,029 (3,138)   

15 Funding (17,386) (17,386) (17,499) (113)   

16 Covid-19 Specific funding  (1,675) (1,675) (1,793) (118)  

17 
Transfers to/(from) earmarked 
reserves 

(1,638) (513) 292 805   

18 
Proposed transfer to Covid 
Recovery Reserve 

0 0 1,249 1,249  

19 
Budget Carry Forwards from 
20/21 underspends 

0 722 722 0  

20 Net Budget (Surplus)/Deficit 1,315 1,315 0 (1,315)   

 

- Line 7 – removal of accounting entries, specifically:  

- IAS19 (employee pension) - the cost of providing employee benefits should be 
recognised in the period in which the benefit is earned by the employee, rather 
than when it is paid or payable.  

- Revenue Expenditure Financed from Capital under Statute (REFCUS) and 
REFCUS is capital expenditure, which is incurred on non-Council owed assets, 
for example, disabled facilities grants and the shop front grant scheme. 

- Capital grants received in year of £243k will fund specific capital schemes for the 
university fit out and electric charging points.  

 

 

240



 

 

These adjustments are detailed in table 4 below: 

 

 Table 4 – Removal of Accounting Adjustments 

Accounting 
Adjustments 

Commercial 
& 

Operations 
£’000 

Corporate 

£’000 

Growth & 
Culture 
£’000 

Housing & 
Property 
£’000 

Total 

£’000 

IAS 19 (1,123) 425 (359) (148) (1,205) 

REFCUS 362 0 88 0 450 

Revaluations (814) 0 0 (1,138) (1,952) 

Capital Grants 43 0 200 0 243 

Accumulated 
Absences 

(21) (29) (8) (5) (63) 

Additional 
Depreciation 

(216) (12) (420) (36) (684) 

Total (1,769) 384 (499) (1,327) (3,211) 

 

- Line 9 –shows the total net overall expenditure for the Council. 

- Line 10 – additional interest income has been earned through investment of 
increased cash balances and interest rate changes. No external borrowing was 
required in 2020/21 so no interest charges have been incurred.  

- Line 13 – in accordance with accounting requirements, depreciation is charged at 
the costs of services where relevant (lines 1-4) but then reversed out at line 13 to 
ensure there is not an impact on Council Tax and the General Fund.   

Once the accounting adjustments (line 7 of table 3) and the additional depreciation (line 
8 of table 3) have been removed from the Directorate, the ‘controllable’ variance can be 
identified (line 9 of table 3).  

 

Table 5 – General Revenue Outturn Position excluding accounting adjustments 

Description 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current 
Budget  

2020/21 
Current 
Budget 

(less 
proposed 

Budget 
C/F) 

2020/21 
Outturn 

Variance 
to 

Current 
Budget 

2020/21 
Outturn 
Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

Commercial & Operations 9,664 9,246 8,040 (1,206) (13.0%) 

Corporate 10,109 9,796 9,746 (50) (0.5%) 

Growth & Culture 6,718 6,359 5,675 (683) (12.0%) 

Housing & Property 2,090 1,333 285 (1,048) (78.6%) 

HRA Recharge (2,566) (2,566) (2,592) (26) (1.0%) 

Net Cost of Service 26,015 24,168 21,154 (3,014) (12.5%) 

 

2.5 Appendix B provides further details of the outturn revenue position for each Directorate 

along with variance comments. 

241



2.6 During the year 2020/21 there have been a high number of grants that have been 

awarded to the Council in order to serve a number of objectives ranging from 

supporting local businesses, communities, residents and also to provide specific 

financial support to the Council for reimbursement of lost income and supporting the 

financial recovery of the culture and leisure services.  These are summarised below in 

table 6: 

Table 6 - Specific Covid Grants 2020/21 

 

Name of Grant Amount 
Awarded 
2020/21 
£’000 

Re-opening High Streets Safely 126 

Covid Compliance and Enforcement (Covid Marshalls) 55 

LCC Covid Outbreak Management (Test and Trace) 100 

Leisure Recovery 321 

Cultural Recovery 230 

Furlough scheme (Arts and Building Control) 331 

Business Grants awarded  42,145 

Winter Grant Scheme  8 

Tranches 1 – 4 Government support for Council  1,793 

Council Tax Hardship Grant 924 

Co-payment losses contribution 653 
 

2.7 The fees and charges (income) analysis below shows the variance between the outturn 

and the amended budget which demonstrates the difficulties experienced particularly with 

specific venues such as arts venues being closed throughout the year.  Members will be 

aware that the Government introduced an income loss compensation scheme which 

reimbursed the Council 75p for every £1 lost. This scheme enabled the Council to access 

approximately £653k to offset the income losses shown below. 

Table 7 – General Fund Significant Income Streams 

Significant Income (in 
order of Amended 
Budget 

Original 
Budget 

Amended 
Current 
Budget 

Outturn 
Outturn 
Variance 

Outturn 
Variance 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 % 

Green Waste Collection (1,112) (1,214) (1,269) (55) (5%) 

Development Management (1,154) (822) (935) (113) (14%) 

Licensing (294) (238) (252) (14) (6%) 

Stamford Car Parks (820) (231) (330) (99) (43%) 

Commercial Waste (367) (231) (274) (44) (19%) 

Investment Property (423) (227) (325) (98) (43%) 

Land Charges (233) (150) (183) (33) (22%) 

242



Grantham Car Parks (473) (136) (186) (50) (37%) 

Stamford Arts Centre (749) (103) (42) 61 59% 

Miscellaneous Property (114) (101) (64) 37 37% 

Stamford Market (173) (73) (86) (13) (18%) 

Guildhall Arts Centre (312) (44) (27) 17 39% 

Grantham Market (46) (20) (26) (6) (30%) 

Bourne (19) (7) (16) (9) (129%) 

TOTAL (6,289) (3,596) (4,015) (419) (12%) 
 

Chart 1 - Significant Income for 2020/21  

 

3 General Fund Capital Programme 2020/21 

3.1 The amended budget set by Council on 17 September 2020 for the 2020/21 General 

Fund Capital programme was £3.522m which was subsequently increased by the 

additional Disabled Facilities Grant of £116k as shown in table 8. 
 

Table 8 – General Fund Capital Budget 
 

Date of 
Approval 

Capital Budget amendment £’000 

17 September 
2020 

 3,522 

February 2021  Additional Disabled Facilities Grant 116 

Total  3,638 
 

(1,350)(1,150)(950)(750)(550)(350)(150)50

Green Waste Collection

Development Management

Licensing

Stamford Car Parks

Commercial Waste

Investment Property

Land Charges

Grantham Car Parks

Stamford Arts Centre

Miscellaneous Property

Stamford Market

Guildhall Arts Centre

Grantham Market

Bourne Market

£'000

2020/21 Significant Income - Budget vs  Outturn

2020/21 Current Budget 2020/21 Outturn

243



3.2 Table 9 summarises the General Fund capital outturn position as at 31 March 2021. 

There is an underspend of £1.017m which includes an additional Disabled Facilities 

Grant award of £116k in February 2021, deferral of works to the re-surfacing of 

Welham car park and several property renovations which have been delayed during 

Covid-19 restrictions and will be completed in 2021/22. 
 

Table 9 – General Fund Capital Outturn Position 
 

Heading 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current 
Budget 

 
 
 
 

£’000 

2020/21  
Amended 
Budget 

(less C/F 
approved 

by Council 
March 
2021)  
£’000 

2020/21 
Outturn 

 
 
 
 
 
 

£’000 

2020/21 
Outturn 
Variance 

 
 
 
 
 

£’000 

Commercial & Operations 1,963 2,116 1,557 (559) 

Corporate  55 55 19 (36) 

Growth & Culture 1,620 1,076 654 (422) 

Total Expenditure 3,638 3,247 2,230 (1,017) 

Financed By:     

Capital Grant and Contributions     

-  Disabled Facility Grant (976) (976) (614) (362) 

-  Historic England (100) (100) (15) (85) 

-  Electric Charging Points 0 0 (43) 43 

-  University Fit-Out 0 0 (97) 97 

Capital Reserve (755) (755) (758) 3 

Revenue Reserve Funding     

-  Shop Front Scheme (28) (28) (12) (16) 

-  Local priorities Reserve (431) (309) (242) (67) 

-  GLEP 0 0 (10) 10 

-  Regeneration (290) (290) (229) (61) 

-  ICT (55) (55) (6) (49) 

-  S106 (12) (12) 0 (12) 

Useable Capital Receipts (991) (722) (204) (518) 

Total Financing (3,638) (3,247) (2,230) (1,017) 

 

3.3 Details of the individual capital schemes included in each directorate are detailed at 

Appendix C including variance comments.  Additional General Fund capital budget 

carry forward requests are detailed in Appendix D and approval of these carry forward 

requests will allow approved schemes to be completed in 2021/22. 

4 General Fund Reserves 2020/21 

4.1 An integral element of the closedown procedure is to undertake a review of the usage 

and levels of the Council’s reserves and balances.  The financial statements reflect the 

proposed use of these and specific details of the significant balances and reserves are 

set out below and detailed at Appendix E.  There have been a small number of 

changes to the following reserves due to continuing the final outturn position since the 

reports were presented to the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate 

Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet.  These can be summarised 

as: 

244



• Local Priorities Reserve (line 7) – the budget carry forwards will be financed 

from this reserve and the closing balance is stated as £4.388m. 

• Section 31 Grant Reserve (line 19) – this reserve is a Code recommendation 

requirement and reflects the in-year grant received by Government to offset the 

income losses arising from the Business Rates relief extensions.  This reserve 

also includes the Collection Fund surplus of £500k.  This reserve will be utilised 

to offset the reduction in the 2021/22 collectable debt arising from the reliefs 

awarded. 

• Working Balance (line 25) – this reserve has been replenished to a balance of 

£1.947m representing 11% of the net operating expenditure. 

Discretionary Reserves £9.525m (lines 1-13) 

4.2 These reserves have been established to financially support the delivery of the 
Council’s Corporate Plan ambitions including both revenue and capital projects.  Lines 
1 to 13 set out the provisional balance on each reserve as at 31 March 2021 based on 
the specific requirements of the reserve use during the financial year.  Commentary is 
provided below on the main movements during the course of the year: 
 

4.3 A summary of the key observations and proposals are: 

- Commercial (line 2) – there has been no use of the reserve during the year and Council 

approved a reduction to the reserve from 1 April 2021 to £250k in order to increase the 

balance to the Regeneration Reserve. 

- ICT investment (line 5) – this reserve has been increased by a net £199k which is a 

combination of a previous approved top up and in-year reserve use to fund the agile roll-

out to staff and support the migration to Windows 365.  

- Local priorities reserve (line 7) – this is the Council’s most significant reserve and as at 

31 March 2021 has an actual closing balance of £6.599m reducing to £4.388m after 

commitments have been taken into consideration.  During the year the Council received 

New Homes Bonus receipt of £1.8m which was credited to the reserve and the reserve 

was used to make the contributions to pay Leisure SK management fee. 

- Housing Delivery (line 9) – this reserve is used to continue to respond to on-going 

demands for supporting residents adapt their properties to meet their specific 

requirements.  A transfer of £362k was made to the reserve at year end. 

- Property Maintenance reserve (line 10) – top up proposed to a balance of £500k in 

order to provide funding for essential works that arise during the course of the year in 

respect of the Council’s property portfolio. 

- Regeneration reserve (line 11) – this reserve is currently being used to fund the current 

holding and development costs of the St Martins Park site at Stamford.  The reduction in 

the reserve balance reflects the costs during 2020/21.  The capital receipts arising from 

this development will be a major contributor towards the Council’s overarching 

regeneration and economic development projects that support the overall ambitions of 

the Corporate Plan. 

Governance Reserves £5.639m (lines 14-22) 

4.3 These reserves are maintained to mitigate risk, satisfy statutory and grant awarding 
bodies’ requirements and support prudent financial management. 

 

245



- The Insurance Reserve (line 14) - provides cover to meet unforeseen costs relating to 
insurance claims over and above the provisions made in year as part of managing the 
‘in house risk’ with an increased self-insured strategy.  The balance on this reserve is 
£272k.  

 
- The Council holds two Pension Reserves (lines 15 and 16) - The former employees 

reserves funds the annual costs associated with these individuals.  The balance on 
these reserves totals £341k at 31 March 2021.  The current employees reserve has 
now been removed as pension costs for staff are budgeted at service cost level. 

 
- Budget Stabilisation Reserve (line 17) - To ensure there is minimum financial 

disruption to the funding of the General Fund in respect of Business Rates income, 

the Council has established a reserve to smooth out fluctuations in year to year 

funding. This reserve has a balance of £2.843m as at 31 March 2021 and has been 

further increased by Council by a further £1.123m for 2021/22. For the financial year 

2020/21 there has been no requirement to use this reserve as overall costs have been 

kept within the amended budget framework. 

- COVID Recovery reserve (line 18) – Proposal to create a COVID recovery reserve 

(line 18) arising from the residual balance from the Government COVID grants to be 

specifically used to fund services (from both a cost or income loss perspective) that 

are continuing to experience difficulty in achieving budgeted levels during 2021/22 

due to the ongoing impact of the pandemic.  The balance of this reserve will be 

£1.249m which wholly consists of currently unused Council specific COVID recovery 

grants.    

− Special Expense Area reserves (SEA) (line 22) - £86k of the Grantham SEA reserve 

has been used to fund the Wyndham Park improvements, Christmas Lights in 

Grantham and the car park improvements at Queen Elizabeth Park.  This reserve has 

been replenished by £83k leaving a balance of £276k.  This is broken down as: 

- Bourne SEA £33k 

- Grantham SEA £110k 

- Langtoft SEA £2k 

- Stamford SEA £131k 

General Fund working balance £1.947m (line 25) 
 

4.9 The purpose of this working balance is to ensure there is sufficient financial resource 
available in order to meet unforeseen events during the course of the financial year.  
The proposed minimum balance is set at a level that reflects the financial risk the 
Council is currently exposed to. This objective is also being met from the Budget 
Stabilisation Reserve and therefore the two balances combined provide a robust 
financial cushion for the Council to access should there be further financial volatility. 
This is a provisional balance as further work is being undertaken to determine the final 
outturn with regard to the allocation of the additional S31 grants that was received 
during 2020/21 in connection with business rate relief.     

 
General Fund Capital Reserves £1.356m (lines 27-29) 
 

4.10 These reserves are the primary source of funding for the Council’s capital investment 
programmes and have been used in recent years in lieu of undertaking external 
borrowing.  This strategy has enabled the Council to financially benefit from previously 
high levels of reserves that has provided this flexible funding approach.  However it can 

246



be seen that the capital reserves are now close to being depleted and in the absence of 
capital receipts being generated from the sale of assets then the Council will be in a 
position where it will need to undertake external borrowing if it wishes to continue in 
capital investment.  This will obviously introduce new revenue funding requirements 
into the Medium Term Financial Plan. 
 

− LAMS reserve £18k (line 27) - The Local Authority Mortgage Scheme (LAMS) is no 
longer in operation for all authorities; however, the Council continues to receive 
investment interest that is derived from the investment that was placed to support the 
scheme.  The remaining balance of £18k will be retained until six year after the final 
mortgage which was taken out in October 2016.  At the end of the investment period 
the balance will be reviewed in relation to the outstanding guarantee commitment and 
excess funds returned to balances.  

 

− General Fund - Capital Reserve - £274k (line 28) -The General Fund capital reserve is 
used to assist with the funding of the capital programme.  It can be seen that the 
reserve is close to a zero balance which reflects the current Council objective of 
utilising its reserve to fund the capital programme in lieu of undertaking external 
borrowing.  However it is clear that the Council will imminently need to undertake 
borrowing as internal resources are depleted.  

- Useable Capital Receipts Reserve £1.064m (line 29) -This reserve is one of the 
sources of funding the General Fund capital programme. During the year the Council 
has received very limited capital receipts and only arising from the sale of surplus 
vehicles.  If the Council is to continue to utilise internal resources to fund its capital 
ambitions, there will need to be a renewed emphasis on the generation of capital 
receipts from the sale of surplus assets.    

5 Revenue Budget 2020/21 – Housing Revenue Account 

5.1 The budget set by Council on 2 March 2020 was a surplus of £5.493m.  This surplus is 

used to provide funding for the external loan and to enable reserve levels to be 

maintained that subsequently fund the capital programme and service improvements.  

Table 10 details the amendments to the 2020/21 budget to a surplus of £4.593m. For 

the purposes of the outturn variance analysis, the budget carry forwards have been 

removed from this which reduces the budgeted surplus for comparative purposes to 

£6.313m, the actual surplus for the year is £6.290m. The surplus is fully utilised to fund 

future investment in stock growth and property maintenance.  Table 11 shows the HRA 

outturn position for 2020/21. 

Table 10 – Housing Revenue Account Budget Amendments 

Date of 
Approval 

Revenue Budget amendment £’000 

  (5,493) 

August 2020 2019/20 Budget Carry Forwards 120 

December 
2020 

Stock Condition Surveys 780 

Total   (4,593) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

247



       Table 11 – HRA Revenue Outturn Position 

Description 

2020/21 
Current 
Budget 

 
£’000 

2020/21 
Current 
Budget 

less 
proposed 
Budget 
Carry 

Forwards 
£’000 

2020/21  
Outturn 

 
£’000 

Variance 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Income (25,637) (25,637) (24,949) 688 

Expenditure 18,519 16,799 6,915 (9,884) 

Net Cost of HRA Services (7,118) (8,838) (18,034) (9,196) 

Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,778 2,778 2,530 (248) 

Interest and Investment Income (253) (253) (252) 1 

Investment Property Inc & Exp 0 0 (3) (3) 

Return on Pension Assets  0 0 270 270 

Net (Gain)/loss on sale of HRA Assets  0 0 (620) (620) 

Capital receipts pooling  0 0  768  768 

IAS19* 0 0 (488) (488) 

(Surplus)/Deficit for the year (4,593) (6,313) (6,290) 23 

MOVEMENT ON THE HRA BALANCE     

(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year 4,593 6,313 15,341 9,028 

Other Reserve Movements 204 204 1,461 1,257 

Repayment of Principal (3,222) (3,222) (3,222) 0 

Transfer to Major Repairs Reserve  (3,194) (3,194) (2,974) 220 

Net charges made on Retirement Benefits (IAS19) 0 0 1,512 1,512 

Employer's contribution to Pension Fund 0 0 (736) (736) 

Net (Gain)/loss on sale of HRA Assets 0 0 (620) (620) 

Capital receipts pooling 0 0 768 768 

Non-Enhancing Capital Expenditure Financed from MRR 0 0 2,602 2,602 

Revaluation (Gains)/Losses 0 0 (12,339) (12,339) 

Transfer to Reserve (1,619) 101 1,793 1,692 
 

 

5.2 Appendix F provides details of the HRA revenue outturn position together with 

significant variances. 

6 HRA Capital Programme 2020/21 

6.1 The budget set by Council on 17 September 2021 for 2020/21 HRA Capital Programme 

is £17.616m. Table 12 summarises the HRA capital outturn position as at 31 March 

2021.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

248



Table 12 – HRA Capital Outturn Position 

Capital Scheme 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current 
Budget 

 
£’000 

2020/21  
Amended 
Budget 

(less C/F 
approved 

by 
Council 
March 
2021)  
£’000 

2020/21  
Outturn 

 
£’000 

Variance to 
Current 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Energy Efficiency Initiatives 1,900 1,445 786  (659)  

ICT 30 0 0 0 

Refurbishment & Improvement 15,540 14,577 2,221 (12,356) 

Repairs Vehicles 146 146 160 14 

Total Expenditure 17,616 16,168 3,167 (13,001) 

     

Financed By:     

HRA Capital Receipts Reserve (4,000) (3,650) (371) 3,279 

Loan Repayment Reserve (1,350) (1,350) 0 1,350 

Major Repairs Reserve (4,786) (3,718) (2,796) 922 

Property Development Reserve (7,450) (7,450) 0 7,450 

S106 (30) 0 0 0 

Total Financing (17,616) (16,168) (3,167) 13,001 
 

6.2 Appendix G provides a detailed table of the HRA capital programme outturn position 

together with significant variances. 

7 HRA Reserves 2020/21 

7.1 An integral element of the closedown procedure is to undertake a review of the usage 

and levels of the Council’s reserves and balances.  The financial statements reflect the 

proposed use of these and specific details of the significant balances and reserves are 

set out below and detailed at Appendix I. 

HRA Reserves £41.261m Line 11 

− HRA working balance £2.832m (line 6) - This balance serves the same purpose as the 

General Fund working balance in that it is established to respond to unforeseen 

financial events that occur during the financial year.  The Council policy is to aim to 

keep the working balance at approximately 10% of the operating expenditure.  

Therefore it is necessary to add further resources to the reserve to increase the 

provisional balance as at 31 March 2021.   

− Capital Receipts Reserve (HRA) £7.707m (line 8) - The Council has established a 

capital receipts reserve where the ‘Right to Buy’ sale receipts are allocated. During the 

year £1.935m receipts have been received with 29 right to buy sales (compared to 56 

RTB sales in 2019/20).   During the year £371k of the reserve has been used to 

contribute towards the financing of the capital programme and pooling payments of 

£767k have been made to Government.  This reserve will continue to be utilised to 

contribute to the provision of affordable housing and the provision of additional Council 

housing stock. 

− Major Repairs Reserve (HRA) £16.464m (line 9) - This reserve has been increased by 

£6.404m in accordance with the HRA business plan and an annual allocation is a 

requirement in order to provide sustainable funding for the HRA capital programme.  In 

order to provide financing for the 2020/21 programme an allocation of £2.796m has 

249



been utilised.  This will continue to be the primary financing for the housing 

improvement elements of the Capital Programme. 

8 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and 

Scrutiny 

8.1 Quarterly budget monitoring and forecasting reports have been presented to Finance, 

Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

during 2020/21. These have updated Members on the estimated outturn position for the 

year.  These reports are referenced at the background papers section of this report. 

9 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

9.1 Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the Authority, as effective 

budget management is critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the 

budget and are targeted towards the Council's priorities. Monitoring enables the early 

identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action. 

9.2 This report provides an overview of the provisional outturn financial position for the 

Council. 

10 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

10.1 The outturn report is presented to the Governance and Audit Committee for its 

consideration in accordance with the terms of reference for the Committee. 

11 Financial Implications  

11.1 These are included throughout the report and the supporting appendices. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

12 Legal and Governance Implications  

12.1 The terms of reference of the Governance and Audit Committee require the Committee to 

consider for approval the annual revenue and capital outturn report.    

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

13 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

13.1 There are no equality or safeguarding implications arising as a result of this report. 

14 Risk and Mitigation 

14.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks have been 

identified. 

15 Community Safety Implications  

15.1 There are no community safety implications arising as a result of this report. 

16 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

16.1 The report has a neutral carbon impact. 

17 Background Papers 

17.1 Determination of Budget 2020/21 and indicative budgets to 2022/23 – General Fund, 

Housing Revenue Account and associated Capital Programmes Report  

250



http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25022/Council%20Budget%20Re

port.pdf 

17.2 Finance Impact Report – May 2020 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25630/FinanceImpactReportP1.pdf 

17.3 Finance Impact Report – June 2020 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s26128/Financial%20Impact%20Report.pdf 

17.4 Finance Impact and Budget Monitoring Report – July 2020 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s26634/Finance%20Update%20Report.pdf 

17.5 Finance Update Report – April 2020 – July 2020 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27516/Budget%20Monitoring%20Report%20

2020-21.pdf 

17.6 Amended Budget Proposals 2020/21 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27458/Amended%20budget%20prop

osals%20202021%20report.pdf 

17.7 Finance Update Report – April 2020 – September 2020 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s28172/Qtr2%20Finance%20Update.pdf 

17.8 Finance Update Report – April 2020 – December 2020 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s29139/FEDCO%20Qtr3%20Finan

ce%20Update.pdf 

18 Appendices 

18.1 Appendix A – 2020/21 General Fund Revenue Summary - Outturn  

18.2 Appendix B – 2020/21 General Fund Revenue Significant Variance Analysis  

18.3 Appendix C – 2020/21 General Fund Capital Programme – Outturn  

18.4 Appendix D – 2020/21 Budget Carry Forwards General Fund Revenue & Capital 

18.5 Appendix E – 2020/21 General Fund Reserves Statement 

18.6 Appendix F – 2020/21 HRA Revenue Summary - Outturn and Significant Variance 

Analysis 

18.7 Appendix G – 2020/21 HRA Capital Programme – Outturn  

18.8 Appendix H – 2020/21 Budget Carry Forwards HRA Revenue & Capital 

18.9 Appendix I – 2020/21 HRA Reserves Statement  

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not required 

Previously Considered by: n/a  Not applicable 

Final Decision date   21 July 2021 

 

251

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25022/Council%20Budget%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25022/Council%20Budget%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25630/FinanceImpactReportP1.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s26128/Financial%20Impact%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s26634/Finance%20Update%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27516/Budget%20Monitoring%20Report%202020-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27516/Budget%20Monitoring%20Report%202020-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27458/Amended%20budget%20proposals%20202021%20report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27458/Amended%20budget%20proposals%20202021%20report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s28172/Qtr2%20Finance%20Update.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s29139/FEDCO%20Qtr3%20Finance%20Update.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s29139/FEDCO%20Qtr3%20Finance%20Update.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

2020/21 General Fund Revenue Summary  
 

Description 

2020/21 
Amended 
Budget 

2020/21 
Current 
Budget 

(less 
Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

2020/21  
Outturn 

Variance 
to 

Current 
Budget  

2020/21 
Outturn 
Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

Commercial & 
Operations 

9,664 9,246 9,809 563 6.1% 

Corporate 10,109 9,796 9,362 (433) (4.4%) 

Growth & Culture 6,718 6,359 6,174 (185) (2.9%) 

Housing & Property 2,090 1,333 1,612 279 20.9% 

HRA Recharge (2,566) (2,566) (2,592) (26) (1.0%) 

Net Cost of Service 26,015 24,168 24,365 197 0.8% 

Removal of Accounting 
Adjustments 

0 0 (2,527) (2,527) - 

Removal of Additional 
Depreciation 

0 0 (684) (684) - 

Re-Stated Net Cost of 
Service 

26,015 24,168 21,154 (3,014) (12.5%) 

Interest Payable and 
Receivable 

(107) (107) (168) (61)  

Minimum Revenue 
Provision 

148 148 142 (6)   

Revenue Contribution to 
Capital 

72 72 15 (57)  

Depreciation (4,114) (4,114) (4,114) 0   

Net Budget 
Requirement 

22,014 20,167 17,029 (3,138)   

Funding and Resources:         

Council Tax (7,840) (7,840) (7,840) 0   

Retained Business 
Rates (S31 Grant, 
Pooling Gain, 
Renewable energy) 

(4,954) (4,954) (4,954) 0   

New Homes Bonus (1,814) (1,814) (1,814) 0   

Rural Grant (295) (295) (295) 0   

Collection Fund 
(Surplus)/Deficit 

(957) (957) (957) 0   

Covid-19 Specific 
funding 

(126) (126) (986) (860)  

Co-payment losses 
contribution 

(1,400) (1,400) (653) 747  

Total Funding (17,386) (17,386) (17,499) (113)   

Covid-19 Specific 
funding not allocated 

(1,675) (1,675) (1,793) (118)  

Transfers to/(from) 
earmarked reserves 

(1,638) (513) 292 805   

253



 

Proposed transfer to 
Covid Recovery 
Reserve 

0 0 1,249 1,249  

Budget Carry Forwards 
from 20/21 underspends 

0 722 722 0  

Net Budget 
(Surplus)/Deficit 

1,315 1,315 0 (1,315)   

 

254



Appendix B 
2020/21 General Fund Revenue Significant Variance Analysis 

 

Commercial & Operations 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(less 

Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

Current 
Income 
Budget 

Current 
Budget 

(less 
Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

2020/21 
Outturn  

(less 
Accounting 

Adjustments) 

Variance to 
Current 
Budget 

 

2020/21 
Outturn 

Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Building Control 805,239 (674,716) 130,523 43,423 (87,100) (66.7%) 

Commercial & 
Operations  

262,900 0  262,900 269,844 6,944 2.6% 

Community 
Resilience 

404,250 (100) 404,150 374,942 (29,208) (7.2%) 

Corporate 
Operations 

4,306,464 (919,676) 3,386,788 2,706,706 (680,082) (20.1%) 

Public Protection 1,094,600 (419,450) 675,150 551,627 (123,523) (18.3%) 

Street Scene 5,970,350 (1,583,600) 4,386,750 4,093,429 (293,321) (6.7%) 

Total 12,843,803 (3,597,542) 9,246,261 8,040,261 (1,206,000) (13.0%) 

 
 
 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Building Control 

The Building Control partnership income has recovered strongly following an initial 
negative impact during quarter 1 of the pandemic and has returned to budgeted levels.  
The initial reduced income for the period April to June was partly offset by Furlough 
and Job Retention Scheme grants of £33k. At the outturn the trading account has 
made a surplus of £25k which will be re-invested into the service in future years 

(87) 

Corporate Operations 

In-year lease of office space rental to third parties for their occupancy at the Council 
offices resulting in additional rent and service charge income of (£62k) 

Markets income was (£20k) higher than the reduced amended budgets as essential 
items traders continued during the year 

- Stamford (£14k) 
- Grantham (£6k) 

Business Rates- in year revaluations of the Market functions by the Valuation Office 
have resulted in a net refund of previous years’ charges (£21k) 

Crowdfunding – scheme has now ceased with an in year underspend of (£65k) 

 

Car parking ticket sales income from August 2020 to March 2021 were higher than the 

amended budgeted levels (£149k) despite the national changes in Covid-19 restrictions 

(overall for the year Grantham achieved approximately 28.9% of previous year income 

and Stamford achieved approximately 40.2%) 

(536) 

255



In year vacancy of Communities Officer has resulted in an underspend of (£24k). This 

post has now been recruited into 

Customer Services – In year customer services advisor vacancies and additional 

income received from Housing for call resourcing support (£53k) 

Open spaces & Closed Burial Grounds - there has been a reduction in responsive 

works required during the year (£36k) 

A grant was awarded during 20/21 to fund the re-opening of the High Street (£126k).  

To date £20k has been incurred that meets the strict criteria of the grant conditions 

Public Protection 

Two full time Environmental Health Officer posts were vacant during the year resulting 
in an underspend of (£39k). Recruitment is underway for these posts 

Income received arising from works undertaken in previous years - works in default 
and disabled adaptations (£20k) 

(59) 

Street Scene 

Additional income of (£46k) has been received for collection of bulky waste and the 
sale of wheelie bins for landlords and new developers in respect of new developments 

Vehicle Repairs - Cost of parts and consumables have been reduced in year due to 
the introduction of a stock management system and the previous capacity bid for 
increased prices has not been required resulting in a saving of (£40k) 

Green Waste Collection - Additional income of (£55k) has been received with 29,641 
households renewing their subscription for 2020/21 and 1,589 new households joining 
the service throughout the year.  94.1% of these households made their payment 
online with 70.5% paying by direct debit 

Commercial Waste - The service continues to grow with additional strong annual sales 
value achieved each month after the initial lockdown was lifted 

Fuel prices remained low during the year with the average price being lower than the 
budgeted assumed price.  This is resulted in an under spend of (£98k) 

(239) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

256



Corporate 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(less 

Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

Current 
Income 
Budget 

Current 
Budget 

(less 
Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

2020/21 
Outturn  

(less 
Accounting 

Adjustments) 

Variance 
to 

Current 
Budget 

 

2020/21 
Outturn 

Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Centralised & 
Business 
Support 

532,900 (3,200) 529,700 371,321 (158,379) (29.9%) 

Communications 325,610 (4,300) 321,310 349,740 28,430 8.8% 

Corporate 3,411,444 (98,550) 3,312,894 2,808,599 (504,295) (15.2%) 

Finance 2,054,781 (76,350) 1,978,431 1,952,996 (25,435) (1.3%) 

Human 
Resources 

350,000 (4,200) 345,800 385,668 39,868 11.5% 

ICT Services 1,608,240 (97,200) 1,511,040 1,429,618 (81,422) (5.4%) 

Legal & 
Democratic 

1,582,800 (187,500) 1,395,300 1,200,107 (195,193) (14.0%) 

OD & Change 526,559 0 526,559 509,679 (16,880) (3.2%) 

Revenues & 
Benefits 

20,248,150 (20,373,420) (125,270) 737,888 863,158 688.9% 

TOTAL 30,640,484 (20,844,720) 9,795,764 9,745,616 (50,148) (0.5%) 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Centralised & Business Support 

A reduction of postage, printing and advertising requirements during the financial year 

has resulted in an in-year under spend of (£146k).  This underspend is a direct result 

of the changes to working practices that resulted in the majority of the workforce 

operating remotely 

(146) 
 
 
 

Corporate  

General reduction in anticipated expenditure across several different cost centres 

(£222k) 

Original budgeted procurement savings of £239k of which £40k included within the 

amended budget were not achieved due to the procurement programme being 

severely disrupted during Covid-19 and officers being reassigned to other priority 

during the year 

Senior team in year vacancies have resulted in underspends of (£80k) 

Completion of the agile rollout programme has resulted in under spends of (£40k) - 

offset by a reduced reserve movement 

New burdens grant monies of (£170k) have been received which are proposed to be 

moved to the newly created Covid Recovery reserve to aid additional works required in 

2021/22 

(472) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

257



Human Resources 

Additional costs have been incurred (£41k) due to the requirement to appoint external 

specialist recruitment consultants to support the implementation of the corporate 

restructure that was approved by Council in October 2020 

41 
 
 

ICT Services 

Changes to centralised licence and corporate licence fees have resulted in savings of 
(£86k) 

Reduced number of office printers and usage during 2020/21 has resulted in savings of 
(£22k).  This is a direct saving arising from staff not working from the main Council 
offices during the year 

Reduced level of income of £23k compared to budget arising from an external hosting 
agreement during 2020/21. This arrangement will be reviewed to ensure the Council is 
achieving value for money 

(85) 

Legal and Democratic 

Legal – In year vacancies and the required level of resource during Covid-19 through 

the Lincolnshire Legal Services partnership has resulted in an under spend of (£36k). 

The cost and volume of outsourced work continues to be assessed for the Lincolnshire 

Legal Services partnership 

Democratic & Elections – The majority of meetings have been held virtually during 

Covid-19 resulting in a saving of (£21k) on members travel expenses.  Members 

Allowances have been underspent by (£36k) due to one vacant ward during the year 

and the distributed allocations in accordance with the member allowance scheme.   

Changes to individual registration have resulted in a saving of (£10k) in casual staff 

costs for canvassing. In year vacancies within the service area have resulted in an 

under spend of (£22k) 

(125) 

OD & Change 

Transformation savings of £100k included within the amended budget have not been 

achieved in 2020/21. The programme is being re-assessed in 2021/22 

Reduced requirement and availability of training courses has resulted in an under 

spend of (£63k) 

 
37 

Revenues & Benefits 

During Covid-19, the focus has been the administration of grants payments so 

recovering overpayments for benefit payments made without entitlement has recouped 

£106k below the budgeted level 

There has been a reduction in income from court costs amounting to £240k during the 

pandemic period following the temporary suspension of all recovery processes for 

Council Tax and Business Rates. Court dates have resumed in 2021/22 

Additional DWP grant income (£77k) has been received in 2020/21 which will be 

utilised for service improvements in future years 

In year vacancies within the service area in anticipation of automated processes which 

have been delayed has resulted in under spend of (£94k) 

Covid grant payments of £739k for Council Tax hardship have been made during 

2020/21. These are funded by Section 31 grants received  

914 

 

258



Growth & Culture 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(less 

Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

Current 
Income 
Budget 

Current 
Budget 

(less 
Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

2020/21 
Outturn  

(less 
Accounting 

Adjustments) 

Variance 
to Current 

Budget 

 

2020/21 
Outturn 

Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Arts & Culture 2,329,172 (266,357) 2,062,815 1,441,240 (621,575) (30.1%) 

Development & 
Policy 

1,539,471 (1,018,721) 520,750 558,636 37,886 7.3% 

Growth 
Management 

707,990 (148,225)  559,765 605,668 45,903 8.2% 

Invest SK 549,981 (10,069) 539,912 457,416 (82,496) (15.3%) 

Leisure 2,797,884 (122,150) 2,675,734 2,612,709 (63,025) (2.4%) 

Total 7,924,498 (1,565,522) 6,358,976 5,675,669 (683,307) (10.7%) 

 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Arts & Culture 

The Council were successful in securing Cultural Recovery grant of (£230k) for the 
Arts Centres. This was used to mitigate the losses of income during pandemic. A 
further application has been made for round 2 and the Council has been awarded 
£100k  

A number of employees were furloughed during the year and income has been 
received from the Job Retention Scheme for (£297k) to offset the costs £369k 

(527) 

Development & Policy 
The level of planning applications has increased this year resulting in income from 
fees and charges overachieving by (£120k). There were more major applications 
received against the amended budget.  Agency costs have only partly been funded 
by a number of vacant posts within the service area with a net cost of £93k 
overspend. These necessary costs were covered by the additional income above and 
permanent recruitment is being undertaken during 2021/22 
 

Conservation - There are ongoing expenses for scaffolding to support a conservation 
building within the district £17k. Agency staff covering vacant posts has resulted in an 
overspend of £22k. Recruitment is underway 

12 

Growth Management  
Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) Projects have predominately been revenue in 2020/21 
resulting in an overspend of £76k, mitigated by a reduction in contribution of grant 
required to fund capital expenditure 
 
Revenue works have now been completed on the university fit out space due to 
changing requirements resulting in an underspend of (£50) 
 
In year vacancies within the growth management team have resulted in an under 
spend of (£40k) 
 
 

(14) 

259



Invest SK 
Following a review of the funding levels to ISK for the current financial year, a 
proportion of uncommitted budget has been returned to the Council which has 
resulted in an underspend of (£110k) 

(110) 

 

Housing & Property 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget 
(less 

Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

Current 
Income 
Budget 

Current 
Budget 

(less 
Budget 
Carry 

Forwards) 

2020/21 
Outturn  

(less 
Accounting 

Adjustments) 

Variance to 
Current 
Budget 

 

2020/21 
Outturn 

Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Assets & 
Estates 

1,863,579 (854,000) 1,009,579 152,198 (857,381) (84.9%) 

Housing 1,296,252 (972,730) 323,522 132,947 (190,575) (58.9%) 

TOTAL 3,159,831 (1,826,730) 1,333,101 285,145 (1,047,956) (78.6%) 

 
 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

  

Assets & Estates 
Reduction in proposed alteration works to council offices in Grantham has resulted in 
an under spend of (£832k).  It is proposed to carry forward an element of this budget to 
enable works to be undertaken during 2021/22 
 
Commercial rental income invoiced has exceeded the amended budget by (£218k).  
However as at 31 March 2021, £47k remains outstanding 
 
There has been a requirement to increase the security arrangements  at a cost of £50k 
for the St Martins Park site in Stamford.  This additional cost will be met from the 
Regeneration Reserve 
 
Feasibility costs have been reduced by (£74k) due to a change of focus away from 
commercial investment and development opportunities. The approved reserve 
movement will also be reduced 

(1,074) 

Housing 

In-year vacancies of homeless prevention officers have resulted in under spends of 
(£40k). However this function is being supported by the Rough Sleeper initiative 

Cost of converting properties to homelessness accommodation during the pandemic 
has been lower than the expected amended budget provision by (£65k) 

(105) 

 

260



Appendix C 

General Fund Capital Programme Summary 2020/21  
 

Capital Scheme 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current   
Budget  

2020/21  
Amended 

Budget less 
C/F 

approved 
by Council 
March 2021 

2020/21 
Outturn 

2020/21 
Outturn  
Variance  

Variance comments 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  

Commercial & Operations  

CCTV Camera 
replacement 

12 12 0 (12) 
£6k has been incurred on this scheme but the cost has 
transferred to revenue as it is below the de minimis capital 
threshold of £10k 

Disabled Facilities Grant 976 976 614 (362) 

Applications for the use of the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) 

are received via referrals from Lincolnshire County Council 

Occupational Therapy Team.  Funding is received from an 

annual Government grant and any unspent budget at the year 

end is transferred to a specific reserve in order to fund future 

demands.  Despite the impact of Covid19 which severely 

impacted on works in homes being undertaken, 111 grants 

were successfully completed in 2020/21 with a further 15 being 

approved in-year and which will be completed in 2021/22. 

Street Scene Vehicle 
Procurement 

145 88 89 1  

Trade Waste Bins 24 24 24 0  

261



Uffington Rd - Washdown 
Facilities 

12 12 0 (12) 
£9k has been incurred on this scheme but the cost has been 
transferred to revenue as below the de minimis of £10k 

Vehicle Replacement 
Programme (Freighters) 

655 655 680 25 
Programme delivered as planned. Costs increased due to price 
increases which was unavoidable in order to ensure all service 
requirements were met 

Wheelie Bin Replacements 100 100 78 (22) 
Delivery of the final order which was scheduled for 2020/21 
has been delayed until early 2021/22 so a budget carry forward 
is required 

Vehicle Electric Charging 
Points 

39 39 72 33 
The scheme has now been completed supported by an 
external  grant of £43k and therefore there will not be an 
overspend 

Welham Car Park - 
Resurfacing 

340 150 0 (150) 

Feasibility works have been completed in 2020/21 in order for 

the full scope of the works being agreed so a budget carry 

forward of £150k is proposed 

Welham Car Park - 
Security 

9 9 0 (9) 
£6k has been incurred on this scheme but transferred to 
revenue as below the de minimis of £10k 

Welham Car Park - Lift 50 50 0 (50) 
Feasibility works completed in 2020/21 are being reviewed 
prior to works being procured so a budget carry forward of 
£50k is proposed 

Market Stall Covers 1 1 0 (1) 
£1k has been incurred on this scheme but transferred to 
revenue as below the de minimis of £10k 

Corporate 

Digital Services 
Compliance 

55 55 6 (49) 
Final costs of the infrastructure implementation have been 
received and these are significantly less than budget estimate 
provided at the time 

Payment Receipting 
System 

0 0 13 13 
Final consultancy costs were confirmed after amended budgets 
had been approved 

Growth & Culture 

Bourne Corn Exchange - 
Renovations 

168 168 71 (97) 
A comprehensive scheme of improvement works has been 
undertaken utilising predominantly in-house resources 
including employees from the Corn Exchange. Significant 

262



savings have been made using local suppliers where possible. 
No carry forward of budget is required 

Heritage Action Zone - 
Grantham 

120 120 37 (83) 

The budgets for this project are split between capital and 
revenue depending upon the nature of the scheme.  For 
2020/21 the total budget was set at £190k and the outturn was 
£173k.  The underspend shown on this line has been charged 
to a revenue budget to align the costs correctly 

GAC - Renovations 175 110 4 (106) The scheme of works is scheduled to commence for 2021/22 

Meres LC - Lighting 10 10 0 (10) 
This project has been completed and the revenue spend of £9k 
has been charged to revenue spend as it is below the de 
minimis £10k 

SK Stadium Hammer Cage 12 12 11 (1)  

Stamford Arts Centre - 
Roof 

195 195 114 (81) 
Works on this project have commenced but has not been 
completed during 2020/21 and so a budget carry forward of 
£81k is proposed 

Shop Front Scheme 56 56 0 (56) 
No further applications have been approved for this specific 
scheme during Covid-19.  This scheme is now being funded 
from Heritage Action Zone funding  

Public Realm 15 15 15 0 
This is the final cost in relation to this scheme which 
commenced in 2018/19 

Meres LC - Boiler 29 0 0 0 
Review of the heating system has been undertaken and budget 
has been approved by Council as part of the annual Budget 
report 

Invest & Regeneration 290 290 248 (42) 

Conversion of the former ambulance station in Stamford into 
office accommodation is awaiting final costs and the demolition 
of police houses has been delayed until April so a budget carry 
forward of £42k is proposed 

Cycle Shelter & Changing 50 50 5 (45) 

A cycle shelter to replace the demolished facility is scheduled 
to be undertaken.  These works will commence in 2021/22 
once a new site location is agreed.  Therefore a £45k budget 
carry forward is proposed 

Stamford Arts Centre – 
Regeneration  

100 50 4 (46) 
There has been a delay to the commencement of the works so 
a budget carry forward of £46k is proposed 

263



Property Acquisition 0 0 6 6  

Turnpike Close, Grantham 
- Depot 

0 0 32 32 

Initial feasibility costs for the proposed depot site completed 
prior to the end of March.  This cost will be charged to the 
overall budget allocation approved by Council in November 
2020 

University Fit-Out 0 0 107 107 
Final scheme costs incurred which has been funded by a 
capital grant (LLEP funded) received in 2020/21 

Total 3,638 3,247 2,230 (1,017)  

 

264



Appendix D 

Budget Carry Forwards – General Fund Revenue 2020/21 
 

Project 

Proposed 
Budget 
Carry 

Forward 

£’000 

Funding Commentary 

Funding of Climate 
Change initiative 

50 Local Priorities 
Reserve £27k 

Climate change 
Reserve £20k 

Grant £3k 

Funding in order to continue to 
deliver initiatives as identified  

Funding of Leisure 
Management Fee 

125 Local Priorities 
Reserve 

Budget already approved to 
provide management fee to 
Leisure SK.  This carry forward 
covers the period to 30 June 
2021 

Funding of Leisure 
development 
programme  

80 Local Priorities 
Reserve 

Allocated funding to continue the 
establishment of Leisure SK   

Funding of Local 
government re-
organisation 

34 Local Priorities 
Reserve 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget  

Funding of Saint 
Martin’s Park master 
planning 

66 Local Priorities 
Reserve 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget in order to continue the 
progression of the project  

Funding of Advertising 
& Sponsorship 

20 Invest to Save 
Reserve 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget as the contract is 
expected to be in place during 
2021/22 

Funding of Waste 
Management system 
procurement 

35 Invest to Save 
Reserve 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

Funding of Maintenance 
of assets requirements 

46 Maintenance 
Reserve 

Approval already in place via a 
Non-key decision  

Funding of committed 
play area safer surfaces 

28 Maintenance 
Reserve 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

Funding of 
configuration, security 
and deployment of ICT 
systems 

110 ICT Reserve Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

Funding of Website 
procurement 

42 ICT Reserve Funding requested in order to 
proceed with the development of 
a replacement website  

Funding of the District 
local plan 

58 Specific 
Reserve £32k 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

265



Budget 
underspend 
2020/21 £26k 

Funding of 
homelessness and 
prevention 

58 FHSB Grant 
received in 
previous years 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

Funding of Food Waste 
service 

50 Grant received 
in 19/20 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

Funding of meeting 
rooms and office 
refurbishment 
programme   

332 To be funded 
from Collection 
Fund surplus 

This is the remaining balance of 
the approved £350k   

Funding of Festivals in 
2021/22 

46 Budget 
underspend 
2020/21 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

Funding of committed 
spend on Leisure 
improvement 
programme 

10 Budget 
underspend 
2020/21 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

Funding of ICT 
requirements in order to 
implement a hybrid 
working solution for 
staff  

72 Budget 
underspends 
2020/21 

Request to carry over remaining 
budget 

Funding of Community 
Fund applications 

125 Budget 
underspend 
2020/21 

£73k approved schemes 
payable in 2021/22 and £52k 
available for 2021/22  

Funding of Blue Green 
Corridor project 

111 Budget 
underspend 
2020/21 

Request to carry over remaining 
approved budget for the 
continuation of the project 

Sub Total 1,498   

Grants: 

- Garden 
Village 

- Rough 
Sleeper 

- Outbreak 
Management 

 

 
 

40 
 

255 
 

54 
 

 Grants & contributions received 
that are required to fund specific 
expenditure items in the 
2021/22. 

Total 1,847   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

266



 
Financing Summary Table - Revenue 

 

Funding  £’000 

Grant funding 460 

ICT reserve 152 

Local Priorities Reserve 332 

Invest to save 55 

Maintenance Reserve 74 

Climate Change Reserve 20 

Specific Reserves 32 

Service underspends/ Collection fund 
surplus 

722 

Total 1,847 

 
 

Budget Carry Forwards – General Fund Capital 2020/21 
 

Project 

Budget 
Carry 

Forward 

£’000 

Funding 

Commentary 

Wheelie Bin Replacements 22 Capital Reserve  

Welham Car Park - 
Resurfacing 

150 Usable Capital 
Receipts 

Will this scheme 
be undertaken? 

Welham Car Park - Lift 50 Usable Capital 
Receipts 

Will this scheme 
be undertaken? 

Stamford Arts Centre - 
Roof 

81 Usable Capital 
Receipts 

 

Stamford Arts Centre - 
Regeneration 

46 Useable Capital 
Receipts 

The remaining 
carry forward of 

the approved 
£100k 

St Peter's Hill Development 
(Cycle Shelter) 

45 Local Priorities 
Reserves 

 

267



Invest & Regeneration 42 Regeneration 
Reserve 

Demolition of 
police houses 
and remaining 

works at the 
former 

ambulance 
station, Elm 

Street Stamford 

Total 436   

 

Financing Summary Table – Capital  
 

Funding  £’000 

Capital Reserve 22 

Useable Capital Receipts 45 

Local Priorities Reserve 42 

Regeneration Reserve 327 

Total 436 

 

268



Reserves – General Fund 2020/21 

  

Description 

Actual 
Balance as 

at 31 
March 
2020 
£’000 

Movement 
 
 

£’000 

 Balance 
as at 

31 March 
2021 
£’000 

Reserve 
Use 

Committed 
2020/21 

 
£’000 

 
 

TOTAL 
 
 

£’000 

  Discretionary Reserves         

1 Climate Change 0 40 40 (20) 20 

2 Commercial 0 500 500 0 500 

3 Training and Development 15 0 15 0 15 

4 Street Scene 222 0 222 0 222 

5 ICT investment 177 199 376 (152) 224 

6 Economic Development & Growth 54 (22) 32 (32) 0 

7 Local Priorities Reserve 5,619 980 6,599 (2,211) 4,388 

8 Invest to Save 1,158 (142) 1,016 (55) 961 

9 Housing Delivery 1,106 362 1,468 0 1,468 

10 Property Maintenance 500 0 500 (74) 426 

11 Regeneration 1,847 (554) 1,293 (42) 1,251 

12 Food Waste 74 (24) 50 0 50 

13 Crowd Funding 64 (64) 0 0 0 

    10,836 1,275 12,111 (2,586) 9,525 

  Governance Reserves       

14 Insurance Reserve 309 (37) 272 0 272 

15 
Pensions Reserve - Former 
Employees 377 (36) 341 

 
0 

 
341 

16 
Pensions Reserve - Current 
Employees 58 (58) 0 

 
0 

 
0 

17 Budget Stabilisation 2,843 0 2,843 0 2,843 

18 Covid Recovery 0 1,249 1,249 0 1,249 

19 Section 31 Grant reserve 0 8,828 8,828 (8,328) 500 

20 Building Control 33 25 58 0 58 

21 Football 3G Pitch 75 25 100 0 100 

22 Special Expense Area Reserve 211 65 276 0 276 

   3,906 10,061 13,967 (8,328) 5,639 

23 
Total General Revenue 
Reserves 14,742 11,336 26,078 

 
(10,914) 

 
15,164 

         

24 Government Grants Received 870 206 1,076 (277) 799 

         

25  Working Balance 2,010 0 2,010 (63) 1,947 

26  Total Revenue Reserves 17,622 11,542 29,164 (11,254) 17,910 

         

 Capital Reserve       

27 LAMS Reserve 18 0 18 0 18 

28 General Fund Capital Reserve 1,054 (758) 296 (22) 274 

29 
Useable Capital Receipts 
Reserve 2,318 (122) 2,196 

 
(1,132) 

 
1,064 

30 Total Capital Reserves 3,390 (880) 2,510 (1,154) 1,356 

         

31 Total General Fund Reserves 21,012 10,662 31,674 (12,408) 19,266 

 

269



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix F 

 
 

Housing Revenue Account Summary 2020/21 

 

Description 

2020/21 
Current 
Budget 
£’000 

2020/21 
Current 
Budget 

(less 
proposed 
Budget 

C/F) 
£’000 

2020/21 
Outturn 
£’000 

2020/21 
Variance  
£’000 

Income         

Dwelling Rents (24,557) (24,557) (24,094) 463 

Non-Dwelling Rents (331) (331) (280) 51 

Charges for Services and Facilities (677) (677) (551) 126 

Other Income (72) (72) (24) 48 

Total Income (25,637) (25,637) (24,949) 688 

          

Expenditure       

Repairs and Maintenance  8,207    6,627  6,938 311 

Supervision and Management - General  1,931   1,931  2,116 185 

Supervision and Management - Special  1,223    1,083  1,038 (45) 

Depreciation and Impairment of Fixed 
Assets 

 3,609   3,609  3,700 91 

Revaluation Losses/Gains 0 0 (12,353) (12,353) 

Non enhancing Capital Expenditure 0 0 2,602 2,602 

Debt Management Expenses  35   35  35 0 

Provision for bad debts  384   384  58 (326) 

Other Expenditure (Pension Deficit)**  322   322  0 (322) 

Housing Development  250   250  152 (98) 

HRA Insurance provision 0 0 37 37 

Support recharge from General Fund  2,558   2,558  2,592 34 

Total Expenditure  18,519   16,799  6,915 (9,884) 
       

Net Cost of HRA Services (7,118) (8,838) (18,034) (9,196) 

Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,778 2,778 2,530 (248) 

Interest and Investment Income (253) (253) (252) 1 

Investment Property Inc & Exp* 0 0 (3) (3) 

Return on Pension Assets * 0 0 270 270 

Net (Gain)/loss on sale of HRA Assets * 0 0 (620) (620) 

Capital receipts pooling * 0 0 768 768 

HRA (Surplus)/Deficit (4,593) (6,313) (15,341) (9,028) 

MOVEMENT ON THE HRA BALANCE     

(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year 4,593 6,313 15,341 9,028 

Other Reserve Movements 204 204 1,461 1,257 

Repayment of Principal (3,222) (3,222) (3,222) 0 

Transfer to Major Repairs Reserve  (3,194) (3,194) (2,974) 220 

Net charges made on Retirement 
Benefits (IAS19) 

0 0 1,512 1,512 

Employer's contribution to Pension Fund 0 0 (736) (736) 

271



Net (Gain)/loss on sale of HRA Assets 0 0 (620) (620) 

Capital receipts pooling 0 0 768 768 

Non-Enhancing Capital Expenditure 
Financed from MRR 

0 0 2,602 2,602 

Revaluation (Gains)/Losses 0 0 (12,339) (12,339) 

Transfer to Reserve (1,619) 101 1,793 1,692 

*Accounting adjustment reversed out on the HRA balance 
** Costs in relation to pension deficit are charged at service level 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Explanation of significant variances £’000 

Dwelling rents: 

Reduction in income of £125k as no new build properties are expected to be 
completed this year.  

Increase in write offs due to non-collection of rent of £58k.  The write off level is in 
line with the current bad debt provision level that is set in the HRA financial 
business plan. 

Void rates are higher than budgeted due to restrictions on moving residence 
during lockdown.  Currently at 2% (budgeted at 1.5%) resulting in a £110k shortfall 
in rents. 

 

 

293 

 

Non- Dwelling rents: 

Income for garages has been reduced by £25k as a result of higher than budgeted 
voids 

 

Rental income from HRA shops of £21k are removed within the movement on the 
HRA balance 

 

25 

 

 

21 

Charges for Services and Facilities: 

Due to the closure of the communal rooms within the sheltered accommodation 
properties during lockdown, charges to residents and room hire income has  
reduced by £142k. 

 

Creation of additional Homelessness units in order to comply with Covid-19 
requirements has provided an increase of service charges of £22k.  (These are 
partially offset by the increased charges in managing these units) 

 

 

142 

 

 

 

(22) 

Repairs & Maintenance: 
Pension costs of £448k for accounting entry IAS19 (employee pension) are 
included. These costs are removed within the movement on the HRA balance. 
 

Due to Covid-19, there has been a delay in repairs to council houses where 
access is necessary. 

 

448 

 

 

(190) 

272



Supervision & Management – General: 
Pension costs of £159k for accounting entry IAS19 (employee pension) are 
included. These costs are removed within the movement on the HRA balance. 
 

 

159 

Housing Delivery:  

Following the cessation of the HomesSK as of October 2020, no further costs 
were incurred resulting in an under spend of (£98k)  

 

 

(98) 

Bad Debts: 

Due to the suspension of recovery action including courts not sitting during 
2020/21, bad debts have not been at the budgeted level. Courts have resumed in 
2021/22.  

 

 

(326) 

 
 
 
 

273



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix G 

 
HRA Capital Programme Summary 2020/21  
 

Capital Scheme 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current   
Budget 

2020/21 
Amended 
Budget 
less C/F 

approved 
by 

Council 
March 
2021 

2020/21 
Provisional 

Outturn  

2020/21 
Variance  

 
 

Variance comments 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  

Central Heating and Ventilation 1,900 1,445 786 (659) 

Works restarted in July but further delayed with the 

additional Covid-19 restrictions. Communal scheme 

works on hold pending full review of the specific 

requirements – A budget carry forward of £455k 

has been requested and subsequently approved by 

Council as part of the annual Budget report 

CCTV – HRA 30 0 0 0  

Housing System 0 0 0 0  

Repairs Vehicles 146 146 160 14  

Tunstall System Upgrade 125 125 0 (125) 
Personal Alarm upgrade programme to commence 

in 2021/22 so a budget carry forward of £125k is 

proposed 

Communal Rooms 10 10 14 4  

Replacement Door Programme 80 62 58 (4)  

275



Housing Growth 12,800 12,450 472 (11,978) 

New contract works now due to commence in 

2021/22 - Full programme of delivery presented to 

Governance and Audit Committee in November 

2020. 

Kitchens & Bathrooms 1,000 555 464 (91) 

Works commenced in July but now delayed with 

the additional Covid-19 restrictions. A budget carry 

forward of £445k has been requested and 

subsequently approved by Council as part of the 

annual Budget report 

Roofing 1,200 1,200 1,182 (18)  

Electrical Rewires 225 75 26 (49) 
Scheme of planned works is to continue in 2021/22. 

A further budget carry forward of £49k is proposed 

Sewage Maintenance 100 100 5 (95) Costs for works significantly less than expected. 

Total 17,616 16,168 3,167 (13,001)  

 

276



Appendix H 

 
2020/21 Budget Carry Forwards – HRA Revenue 

 

Project 

Budget 
Carry 

Forward 

£’000 

Funding Commentary 

Funding of 
Communal rooms 
refurbishment 

140 Underspends 
2020/21 

Works put on hold in 
2020/21 due to Covid-
19. Refurbishments to 
recommence 2021/22 

Funding of 
compliance software 
procurement 

50 Underspends 
2020/21 

System software build 
commenced in Q4 
2020/21 with build 
continuing into Q1 & 
Q2  2021/22. Therefore 
only partial build 
invoiced for in 20/21 and 
carry forward required 
for remainder of budget 

Funding of Electrical 
testing and works 
procurement 

750 Underspends 
2020/21 

Approved by Cabinet 16 
March 2021 

Funding of Stock 
condition surveys 

780 HRA 
Improvement 
Reserve 

Approved by Cabinet 12 
January 2021  

Total 1,720   

 
2020/21 Budget Carry Forwards – HRA Capital 

 

Project Budget 
Carry 

Forward 

£’000 

Funding Commentary 

Tunstall System Upgrade 125 Major Repairs 
Reserve 

Works to be 
undertaken in 2021/22 

Electrical Rewires 49 Major Repairs 
Reserve 

The remaining carry 
forward of the 
approved £225k 

Total 174   

 
 
 

277



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix I 
Reserves – HRA 2020/21 
 

  

Description 

Actual 
Balance 

as at  
31 March 

2020 
£’000 

Provisional 
movement 
 

£’000 

Provisional 
Balance 

as at 
31 March 

2021 
£’000 

Reserve 
Use 

Committed 
2020/21 

 
£’000 

 
 

TOTAL 
 
 

£’000 

 Revenue Reserve          

1 
Service Specific Funds 
(Pension) 

261 (261) 0 0 0 

2 
HRA Improvement 
Reserve 

656 1,350 2,006 (1,300) 706 

3 Loan Repayment Reserve 1,350 (1,350) 0 0 0 

4 
Property Development 
Reserve 

14,722 (1,200) 13,522 0 13,522 

5 
Residents Involvement 
Reserve 

30 0 30 0 30 

6 Working Balance 1,560 2,212 3,772 (940) 2,832 

7 
Total HRA Revenue 
Reserves 

18,579 751 19,330 (2,240) 17,090 

 HRA Capital Reserve      

8 
HRA Capital Receipts 
Reserve 

7,260 797 8,057 (350) 7,707 

9 Major Repairs Reserve 14,293 3,608 17,901 (1,437) 16,464 

10 
Total HRA Capital 
Reserves 

21,553 4,405 25,958 (1,787) 24,171 

       

11 Total HRA Reserves 40,132 5,156 45,288 (4,027) 41,261 
 

279



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 

21 July 2021 

Report of: Councillor Dr Peter Moseley 

  Cabinet Member for Commercial 
and Operations 

         
  

 

Health and Safety Annual Report 2020/21 

This report presents the Health and Safety Annual Report 2020/21. It provides an overview of 
South Kesteven District Council’s (the Council) management of health and safety arrangements to 
its customers, employees, and Members. It summarises the progress made and identifies key 
areas of focus to ensure the Council maintains its health and safety performance. 

 

Report Author 

Philip Swinton, Health and Safety, Business Continuity and Emergency Planning Lead 

 
01476 40 6555 

 phil.swinton@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Carol Drury, Senior Community Development Officer 7 July 2021 

Approved by: Gary Smith, Strategic Director, Commercial and 
Operations 

7 July 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member for 
Commercial and Operations 

12 July 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Note the attached Health and Safety Annual Report for the period 2020/21. 

2. Give comments or feedback to assist with maintaining the effectiveness of the    
Council’s health and safety arrangements. 

281

Agenda Item 11

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The Health and Safety Annual report 2020/21 (attached at Appendix A) demonstrates that 

the Council’s health and safety performance has been very good during this period. It is 

important that the Council continues to review, monitor and improve, wherever practical, 

its arrangements and practices. Members will be aware that the Authority provides a 

varied range of services, some with inherently higher-risk activities and in challenging and 

changing environments. The report details these arrangements along with annual 

performance and sets out how the Council intends to move forward in the future. 

1.2 The annual report shows the Council’s commitment to safety during the pandemic and the 

measures taken to protect the health and safety of all those who could be affected. There 

has been a small increase in the number of accidents in this period and this is detailed in 

the report. Whilst the focus is on reducing accidents, wherever possible, it is recognised 

that accidents are likely to happen in organisations of the size and in nature as the 

Council. 

1.3 Key areas for focus for next year are: 

• Completion of planned risk assessment audit 

• Continued monitoring and review of Covid safety procedures 

• Provision of training to increase risk recognition and reduction 

1.4 The procedures and safety assessments produced by the Council over this period have 

remained under regular review to restrict service interruption to a minimum while not 

compromising the safety, health or welfare of customers, staff or Members. The Authority 

continues to support significant numbers of staff to work from home while reviewing and 

monitoring the use of all operational buildings. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1  This report invites comments from the Members of the Governance and Audit Committee. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 No other options. This report is provided to Members for their information on an annual 

basis. 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 To note the contents of this report and give any feedback to assist the senior management 

to continue to support and achieve the robust health and safety arrangements for the 

Council. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 Failure to manage health and safety may have a detrimental impact and any incidents 

could lead to people suffering from serious (avoidable) ill health and injury.  Also, legal 

actions may be taken against the Council in the event of any such incidents.  Legal actions 

can impose both financial and reputational risks to the Council. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 The measures and implications within the report will be actioned and communication will 

be made with the relevant departments and relevant senior officers.  

282



 

 
 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 Members are reminded that the terms of reference for Governance and Audit Committee 

include the responsibility to review the annual report and assess the effectiveness of the 

Council’s health and safety arrangements. Risk management and health and safety are 

closely linked.  Control measures and preventative measures must be regularly reviewed 

to ensure they are operating effectively. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance  

8 Legal and Governance Implications 

8.1 The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 (as amended) (“the Act”) along with supporting 

regulations, covers occupational health and safety in workplaces.  The act sets out the 

Council’s duties in respect of its employees and those who may be affected by its work 

activities.  The annual review sets out an overview of the Council’s approach to health and 

safety issues. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 

9.1 Whilst Health and Safety requirements are necessary to manage risk, the Authority is 

mindful of its responsibilities under the Equality Act 2010. Therefore, due regard will be 

paid (where practicable) to any reasonable adjustments required by staff and Members in 

the delivery of their duties. No adjustment that would risk the safety of an employee, 

elected Member or contractor could be considered and therefore officers would work to 

ensure all suitable alternative options were explored to provide an equitable outcome for 

all. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are included in 

this report. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 None identified.  

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 There are limited implications for the Council’s declaration of climate emergency, however 

the increased procurement and disposal of PPE needed to operate throughout this period 

does provide a small increase in the Council’s carbon footprint. 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None identified. 

14 Background Papers 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix A Health and Safety Annual Report 2020/21. 

 

 

283



 

 
 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) Not required 

n/a 

Previously Considered by:  n/a 

Final Decision date   21 July 2021 

 

284



Appendix A 
 

 
2020 - 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

Philip Swinton 

Corporate Health and Safety Officer 

July 2021 

Health and Safety Annual Report 

285



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 1 of 13 
2020-2021   

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1.0 Executive Summary 2 

2.0 Covid-19 Response 3 

3.0 Health and Safety Training 5 

4.0 Accidents and Incidents 6 

5.0 Health and Safety Performance Measures 12 

6.0 Health and Safety Plan 2021 - 2022 12 

 

 

LIST OF TABLES, CHARTS & FIGURES 

Chart A -   Trend in Accidents by Service Area 8 

Table 1   -   Comparison by Accident Type 2019/20 - 2020/21 9 

Table 2   -   Comparison by Service Area 2019/20 - 2020/21 10 

Table 3   -   Riddor Summary of Accidents Reported 11 

Table 4   -   Health and Safety Target Performance Indicators 12 

 

 

286



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 2 of 13 
2020-2021   

INTRODUCTION 

 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

This report provides an overview of South Kesteven District Council’s Health and Safety performance during 

the 2020/21 financial year.  

 

Along with the existing requirements for compliance with current health and safety legislation, the Covid-19 

outbreak created several additional health and safety challenges to maintaining services whilst ensuring the 

safety of all those working for and in contact with representatives of SKDC.  

 

The council’s health and safety performance overall in this period has been very good and a more detailed 

breakdown of the actions are within this report.  During this period two separate unannounced visits have 

been made to SKDC premises by the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) for Covid safety inspections.  On both 

visits the adherence to the guidance and the proactive approach to Covid safety by SKDC were noted. 

 

Accident numbers for the council remain generally consistent with previous years although there has been a 

small increase and there remains an open investigation involving the HSE. Details can be found in Section 4  

 

1.1 The Health and Safety Management Approach 

 

Cabinet set the direction for health and safety, and it is important that Members are involved as health and 

safety responsibility is associated to all council undertakings.  The Corporate Management Team (CMT) will 

remain responsible for ensuring sufficient time and resources, making sure these are available to council 

officers to fulfil health and safety responsibilities and provide staff with any additional support.  Members and 

staff at every level retain a moral, legal, and financial obligation to adhere and actively support health and 

safety. 

 

1.2 Corporate Health and Safety Role  

 

The corporate Health and Safety Team’s role has not changed.  Its function has always been to provide support 

and advice to all staff and members of the council on matters of health, safety, and welfare and to provide and 

maintain safety policies along with a suite of corporate arrangements and guidance to improve understanding 

of safe practice and to provide internal checks and audits on safety related areas. 

 

Identification and mitigation of risk at the earliest possible stage must always be the goal, but it should not 

stop there.  Another part of the role is to encourage and promote constant review and learning from incidents, 

shared experiences of partners and examples of best practice.  This is achieved in part by the continued 

participation in several groups made up of health and safety officers from across the County.  

 

It is the responsibility of the Health and Safety Team to monitor accidents and trends, ensuring investigations 

are prompt and appropriate.  Should it be required at any point the Health and Safety Team will notify the 

HSE, or other relevant bodies of any reportable matters and coordinate the council’s cooperation and 

response. 

 

287



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 3 of 13 
2020-2021   

Covid-19 related demands have had a significant impact on the focus and planned day-to-day health and 

safety works over the last 12-months.  The Health and Safety Team has been heavily involved with providing 

Covid-19 specific guidance and support for various service areas as well as creating and maintaining Covid-19 

specific building assessments, attending Tactical Coordination and Incident Response meetings, supporting 

every stage of the election process in the run up to holding the election as well as home working 

arrangements. 

 

2.0  COVID-19 RESPONSE 

 

The last year has been dominated by Covid-19 and the effect it has had on a global scale.  Within a very short 

period the council had to examine how it could safely provide and maintain its key services during this 

pandemic.  The level of control required to reduce the spread of the virus and protect both staff and members, 

as well as those who may have been in contact with them, meant the council had to develop and support new 

ways of working in both the physical and virtual worlds. 

 

The council moved from a position of having around thirty home workers to supporting almost four hundred.  

The council very quickly provided hundreds of pieces of IT equipment, which included laptops, monitors, 

chairs, and desks to support home working staff and, for certain roles/individuals, meet its obligations under 

the Display Screen Equipment Regulations (DSE) and Equality law.  Once it became clear that home working 

would be in existence for an extended period, the council had the responsibility to provide additional guidance 

and support on all aspects of home working, including general and electrical safety and the importance of 

mental wellbeing to all affected staff and to ensure that all home workers complete a Home Working Self-

Assessment form.  This is key to identifying potential hazards or gaps in equipment and future support, which 

is required to protect staff and services. 

 

The council created a central store to provide and maintain sufficient levels of stocks to ensure key services 

could continue to operate.  This included Personnel Protective Equipment (PPE) and hand gels/sanitisers for 

staff and cleaning products for the operational buildings and the fleet of vehicles in use. 

 

Several service areas were required to continue working; performing visits during the pandemic, which 

required the creation of Covid-19 specific procedures and risk assessments for service level activities.  At a 

corporate level, all council operational buildings required a Covid-19 specific assessment to ensure they could 

operate safely in the new environment.  

 

The available information and government guidance on transmission vectors and controls required to halt the 

spread of the virus changed rapidly as our understanding developed and these have been under constant 

review since March 2020.  This is expected to remain as new variants emerge and the government roadmap 

plans evolve. 

 

The potential impact on the mental welfare of both staff and members was identified and several actions were 

put in place to promote awareness and understanding.  Regular communications, utilising social media, emails, 

Microsoft Teams, and team briefings were provided to keep staff and members informed at regular intervals 

and provide support on a range of subjects, including maintaining mental health and the need for work/life 

balance, wellbeing, and exercise.  Staff were able to join virtual exercise classes and encouraged to interact 

with colleagues. 

288



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 4 of 13 
2020-2021   

In addition to this, the council provides the Employee Assistance Programme and has several trained mental 

health first aiders. Both of these services can be accessed anonymously and have also been made available to 

members. In total there were 400 calls to the Employee Assistance program for support, this includes phone 

calls and use of the online portal.  

 

The Council have commissioned 3 surveys exploring mental health and welfare during this period and the 

results from the pulse survey in January showed that staff felt they would benefit from sessions focused on 

mindfulness and mental wellbeing. In response to this, the Wellbeing Team ran a number of virtual ‘Health 

Shot’ sessions led by Get Sorted People, which focused on issues such as mental health, personal resilience, 

and physical wellbeing.  

 

The survey results also showed that that staff mental wellbeing had worsened since the last survey, likely 

caused by the second national lockdown, and limited social contact. The Wellbeing Team ran a number of 

Employee Assistance Programme Awareness sessions led by Health Assured, for both staff and for managers. 

The Council are in the process of arranging these sessions in person for staff unable to access online. 

Wellbeing articles on a range of topics have continued to be shared with staff via email regularly, with clear 

signposting to available support included in these.  

 

The formation of incident response teams within the council and officer attendance at Local Resilience Forum 

Tactical Coordination (TCG) and Strategic Coordination Groups (SCG), ensured that all staff and teams were 

informed of upcoming changes in guidance and made aware of interdependencies that could affect the 

council’s ability to operate safely and efficiently.  This allowed for potential impacts to be examined and 

controlled as soon as information became available.  

 

2.1 Waste Collections 

 

The collection of household waste and recycling was one service which faced a greater challenge operating 

under Covid-19 restrictions.  The way in which the service operates, and the logistics required, meant that the 

full social distance of 2-metres could not always be met, and additional mitigations had to be implemented. 

 

These included the creation of ‘working-family-bubbles’, designed to keep the same team working together to 

reduce the interaction of personnel and prevent any spread to the wider service.  An increased cleaning 

regime was put in place for vehicles and buildings and robust monitoring of behaviours, hygiene standards and 

compliance with the required controls to protect the service. 

 

The Waste Collection Team works to a risk assessment, which was created by a group of Health and Safety and 

Operational Collections Officers from across the Lincolnshire Waste Partnership.  This assessment is based on 

the Waste Industry Safety and Health Forum Guidance (WISH) and has provided a safe and consistent 

approach to best practice working across the County. 

 

A number of redeployed staff (including from Environment SK) and volunteers from other services came 

forward, receiving training in collections, when waste crews were unable to work as a result of staff needing to 

shield or isolate, or as a precaution when identifying symptoms of the virus. This has allowed SKDC to continue 

uninterrupted collections during the pandemic which has been a great achievement. 

 

289



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 5 of 13 
2020-2021   

During the pandemic, the Waste Collection Department received a visit from an HSE Inspector as part of their 

obligation to inspect workplace Covid-19 safety.  The inspector raised no concerns and was impressed with the 

controls and adherence to the guidance being displayed. 

 

2.2  Housing and Repairs 

 

The need to visit and support tenants, vulnerable persons and those in sheltered accommodation has 

remained throughout the Covid-19 outbreak and as with the waste team these visits and works required 

robust risk assessments, additional training, and Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) in place to protect all 

those involved. 

 

During the initial stages of the outbreak, it was decided that external works would continue and that only 

emergency internal repairs should be conducted, with strict controls and limited time frames for internal 

works in place.  As the situation has evolved the types of work that can be performed have increased but 

remain under regular review. 

Increased visits to sheltered schemes, heightened cleaning regimes and the restricting of access to certain 

areas have all been required and implemented to protect the safety of the residents, staff, and visitors to the 

sites.  This also required additional officer time so that the controls and behaviours could be monitored for 

adherence. 

 

2.3  Environmental Health and Neighbourhoods 

 

The Environmental Health and Neighbourhoods Teams have worked throughout the pandemic providing 

statutory visits to businesses and performing safety inspections, carrying out enforcement actions and 

providing support and advice for businesses throughout the district and working with Covid-19 champions to 

promote the safety messages and government guidance.  Staff faced a considerable uptake in workload and 

were required to understand and interpret a number of new sets of guidance.  This has been a common 

picture with many service areas. 

 

Due to the increase of people spending more time at home, this has resulted in a surge of fly tipping, antisocial 

behaviour, and neighbourhood disputes.  Officers have had to manage more cases than previously seen and 

visit resident’s homes to support and protect the physical and mental health impacted by this type of 

behaviour. 

 

Enforcement officers were also redeployed to Covid-19 champion duties when car parking charges were 

suspended. 

 

To work safely during the restrictions and still provide these services, as with the other higher risk and 

operational services, a set of comprehensive visiting officers guidance and risk assessments have been created 

and remain under regular review. 

 

3.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY TRAINING 

 

Providing suitable training for employees is a legal requirement and essential to ensuring employees can work 

safely, this also provides management with a level of assurance that their teams are health and safety 

290



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 6 of 13 
2020-2021   

competent and confident in their roles. Employee training needs are identified in one-to-ones, as well as 

previously defined training required for a particular role.  

 

From the outset of the pandemic the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) was very clear that Covid-19 would not 

be a defence against falling standards in existing safety provision and that the general duties of the employer 

remained.  The ability to provide a range of training options online has allowed the council to continue to meet 

its legal and moral obligations in these areas.  

 

A larger project of migrating all online training to a single provider and extending the range of topics is 

ongoing.  While some topics will always require a face-to-face session to gain the most benefit the council 

must continue to maximise training through this virtual portal until such time as Covid-19 restrictions allow for 

more in person training.  

As with previous years, Corporate Health and Safety organised the following training during 2020/21.  

 

• Health and Safety (induction for new employees) 

• Workstation Safety Plus (mandatory online training for all display screen equipment users) 

• Fire Safety Plus (mandatory online fire safety awareness training for all new employees) 

• Fire Warden (training needs for all council workplace premises) 

• First Aid at Work (3-days and 2-days refresher) 

• Conflict Resolution (training is provided as identified and required) 

• COSHH Awareness (training for those working with hazardous substances, i.e. Cleaners) 

• Mental Health First aider training 

• Tactical and Strategic incident coordination training provided via the Lincolnshire Resilience Forum 

 

4.0 ACCIDENTS AND INCIDENTS 

 

Services are responsible for reporting, recording, and investigating accidents and incidents that occur within 

their own service area and any involving the public.  In significant incidents, Corporate Health and Safety may 

assume the lead on the investigation.  The council must identify the root cause of an incident and reduce the 

likelihood of reoccurrence.  All health and safety incidents must be submitted to Corporate Health and Safety, 

who oversee a central database and provide assurance to the council that suitable and sufficient investigations 

are taking place, proportionate to the level of incident. 

 

4.1 Accident and Incident Trends 

 

There has been a total of 49 reported accidents in 2020/21 which is an increase of 8 accidents from 2019/20. 

The total number is consistent with previous years’ accident numbers and does not give any specific cause for 

concern. 

 

Manual handling and slip, trip or fall incident numbers remain constant and are usually the most common 

causes of accidents within SKDC.  With over 200 staff working in roles that require a significant amount of 

manual handling and work outside of an office environment, this is not unexpected. 

 

The significant incident involving council contractors and Asbestos Containing Materials (ACM) remains open 

and HSE investigations are ongoing. SKDC have enquired with the HSE regarding the progress of the 

291



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 7 of 13 
2020-2021   

investigation but the demand on HSE staff during the pandemic has had a direct result on the time being taken 

to complete this investigation. 

 

4.2 Accident and Incident Numbers and Charts 

 

Chart A shows the number of reported accidents/incidents over the last 3-years for internal council work- 

related activities and, in most areas, there is a clear reduction.  

 

Covid-19 restrictions forced the closure of leisure and arts centres. It also meant a reduction in some services 

and saw a significant number of staff working from home and it is acknowledged that this has contributed to 

the lower numbers in some areas.  There is a possibility that accidents have occurred in the home, but have 

not been reported, as the link to this being an accident at work was not recognised.  As home working 

becomes part of the new normal the council must continue to positively drive the importance of accident and 

near miss reporting. 

 

Street Scene has had an increase in numbers accounting for almost 80% of all recorded accidents and the 

sharpest rise is within the vehicle-related accident section.  There are several contributing factors that must be 

considered in the increase of accidents. 

 

Of the vehicle-related accidents recorded within Street Scene, a third have been caused by third parties either 

hitting SKDC operated vehicles or forcing SKDC vehicles to take avoiding action to prevent a more significant 

accident with greater potential for injury and loss. 

 

There were also a number of what are classed as minor damage vehicle incidents.  These include scratches to 

vehicles and wing mirrors because of vehicles having to manoeuvre in tight streets.  It is not unreasonable to 

assume that the increase in the number of people working from home as a result of Covid-19 has seen an 

increase in the number of parked cars on the streets and have further hampered vehicle movements and 

contributed to the rise.  

 

Table 2 provides a breakdown by service area and type of accident for the periods 2019/20 and 2020/21.  The 

number of slips, trip incidents has also more than doubled to nine.  Of these accidents six occurred during a 

two-day period of extreme weather and icy conditions. 

 

Regardless of the context, the council is required to constantly review all its activities and procedures and to 

seek safety improvements wherever practical. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

292



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 8 of 13 
2020-2021   

 

3 3 0 3 0

9

31

1
4

1
4

1

6

24

0 0 2 3 0

5

39

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

ARTS CENTRES CORPORATE OPERATIONS ENVIRONMENTAL HOUSING PROPERTY REPAIRS STREET SCENE   

TREND IN ACCIDENTS / INCIDENTS 
BY SERVICE AREAS (3 YEARS)

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

 

CHART A - This chart shows the accident numbers by Service Areas over the last 3-years. 

293



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 9 of 13 
2020-2021   

CATEGORY 2019/20 % OF TOTAL 2020/21 % OF TOTAL 

Bruising/Grazing 0 0 1 2 

Cuts/Lacerations 8 20 2 4 

Manual Handling 7 17 6 12 

Minor Injury (first aid incident e.g. 

nose bleed) 
2 5 0 0 

Projectile 1 2 0 0 

Serious Injury/Multiple Injury 1 2 0 0 

Slips/Trips/Falls 11 27 11 22 

Sprains/Strains 1 2 6 12 

Unacceptable Behaviour 0 0 1 2 

Vehicle Accidents (Injury) 1 2 1 2 

Vehicle Accidents (No injury) 9 24 21 45 

TOTALS 41   49   

TABLE 1 - Comparison by Accident Type 2019/20 - 2020/21   

 

 

294



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 10 of 13 
2020-2021   

CATEGORY 

ARTS CENTRE 
CORPORATE 

OPERATIONS 
ENVIRONMENTAL HOUSING PROPERTY  REPAIRS STREET SCENE TOTAL 

 2019/20  2020/21  2019/20  2020/21  2019/20  2020/21  2019/20  2020/21  2019/20  2020/21  2019/20  2020/21  2019/20  2020/21  2019/20  2020/21 

Bruising/Grazing               1               1 

Cuts/Lacerations 1   2   1           3   1 2 8 2 

Manual Handling                     1 2 6 4 7 6 

Minor incident (nose 

bleed) 
    1                       1   

Projectile                     1       1   

Serious Injury/Multiple 

Injury 
                        1   1   

Slips/Trips/Falls     2       3 2 1   1   4 9 11 11 

Sprains/Strains                       3 2 3 2 6 

Unacceptable Behaviour           1                   1 

Vehicle 

Accidents/Incidents  
          1             10 21 10 22 

TOTAL 1 0 5 0 1 2 3 3 1 0 6 5 24 39 41 49 

TABLE 2 - Comparison by Service Area 2019/20 - 2020/21 

  

295



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 11 of 13 
2020-2021   

4.3    Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 

 

RIDDOR regulations require certain specified accidents, ill health, and dangerous occurrences to be 

reported to the relevant enforcing authority, being the Health and Safety Executive (HSE).  The Council’s 

number of reportable incidents under the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences 

Regulations (RIDDOR). 

  

The Council was required to report five incidents this financial year.  All of these are linked to Street 

Scene and have all been due to a 7-day or more incapacitation and are outlined below. 

 

 

REPORTING OF INJURIES, DISEASES AND DANGEROUS OCCURRENCES REGULATIONS (RIDDOR) 
 

SECTION ACCIDENT  REPORTED 

TRIGGER  

(Over 7-day 

incapacitation 

or specified 

injury) 

PERSON 

EXPOSED 
DESCRIPTION OF INJURY HAZARD TYPE 

Street Scene 2020-06-09 2020-06-16 12 Days Employee 

A stuck gate caused an operative to 

fall forward, hurting lower back and 

knee. 
 

Slip/Trip/Fall 

Street Scene 2020-10-20 2020-10-27 20 Days Employee 

Bulk load, neck injury due to sofa 

falling out of vehicle and hitting him 

on the head. 
 

Manual 

Handling 

Street Scene 2020-11-13 2020-11-13 9 Days Employee 

Slipped on plastic bag, causing loader 

to fall over with the bin, which caused 

a sprained ankle. 

Slip/Trip/Fall 

Street Scene 2021-02-11 2021-02-15 20 Days Employee 
Collecting bin when loader slipped on 

ice, falling hard onto his back. 
Slip/Trip/Fall 

Street Scene 29-03-2021 06-04-2021 124 Days Employee 

Neck and back injury linked to a 
vehicle incident.  
(Booked off until 30-07-2021 and then 
will be reassessed by his doctor) 
 

 

Vehicle related 
Incident 
 

 

TABLE 3 – Riddor Summary of Accidents Reported 
 

 

4.4 Leisure Centres 

 

Covid-19 restrictions have seen the leisure centres closed for a significant period and this, coupled with 

the lack of access to previous 1Life data following the change to LeisureSK Ltd means there are no 

significant figures or data that can be provided at this time.  Moving forward LeisureSK will be able to 

provide information on accident rates and types for future reports. 

 

Previous years have shown a consistently low accident rate across the four sites and the expectation 

would be for this trend to continue. While the drive will always be to reduce accidents to as low a 

number as possible, it must be acknowledged that given the range of activities and footfall across these 

sites accidents it is unlikely to ever achieve a zero-accident rate. LeisureSK Ltd have appointed an 

independent Health and Safety Contractor to assist the operation of the company and a Non-Executive 

296



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 12 of 13 
2020-2021   

Director has been appointed as the lead Health and Safety person on the Board of Directors which 

demonstrates a clear commitment to the Health, Safety and Welfare of both staff and visitors to the 

sites. 

 

5.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

 

Along with the measures below, a quarterly dashboard of performance indicators is shared with the 

CMT and Heads of Service and covers accidents and incidents, quarterly monitoring activities and any 

trends identified or areas which require increased focus. 

 

HEALTH AND SAFETY TARGET/PERFORMANCE 

INDICATOR 
2018/19  2019/20 2020/21 

Staff attendance at Corporate Health and Safety 

induction 
100% 100% 100% 

Number of staff RIDDOR notifications to the enforcing 

authority 
3 19 5 

Number of staff lost days as the result of accidents 

(based upon information received) 
93 184.5 250 

 

TABLE 4 - Target Performance Indicators 

 

6.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY PLAN 2021-2022 

 

Currently the HSE is predicting that workplace Covid-19 safety visits will continue into June 2022 and, 

with the potential for new variants Covid-19, controls will remain a key feature for the coming year. As 

businesses consider the move from response to recovery and more staff begin to work from office 

spaces and move around the community the effective management and control of the spread of the 

virus will be crucial to protecting the health and well-being of all those who work for and interact with 

SKDC.  

 

The Corporate Health and Safety Team will continue to provide support and advice to all services on 

service level risk assessments and procedures as well as maintaining corporate guidance. The team will 

maintain and monitor relevant building-specific Covid-19 assessments as well as undertaking active 

monitoring of the controls and behaviours in council buildings and service areas. 

 

In planning the recovery phase, the Council must ensure it continues to protect all its staff, elected 

members, visitors, and contractors from the spread of the virus.  Council must also provide additional 

mitigation and support, where required, for those who may be more at risk from ill health effects. 

Those in the clinically/extremely clinically vulnerable groups, expectant mothers, and some members 

of the Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) community may be more at risk from ill health effects 

and must be considered when designing the use of buildings. 

 

6.1 Planned Internal Audits and Assessments 

 

297



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 13 of 13 
2020-2021   

The impact of Covid-19 on the business needs of the council saw an increase in demand for Corporate 

Health and Safety support and a shift in the priorities of the Health and Safety team.  The planned risk 

and COSHH assessments for 2020/2021 remain ongoing. 

 

Several of the higher risk areas have been audited and have been provided with feedback and support.  

The remaining lower risk areas are scheduled to be completed in the next 12-months.  The creation of 

risk assessments and the identification and mitigation of risk is a legal requirement and key to the 

prevention of injury or accidents and the preservation of health. 

 

Several personnel changes have highlighted service level gaps in this skill set.  The Corporate Health 

and Safety team will liaise with Heads of Service and CMT to identify and organise suitable training in 

the assessment of risk. 

 

6.2 Review and Provision of Guidance   

 

The Corporate Health and Safety Team provide and maintain a range of guidance documents to 

support managers and staff.  All guidance is up to date and additional guidance for extended home 

working has been produced.  The Health and Safety Policy document for 2021/23 is currently under 

review and awaiting approval and the Threat, Suspect Package, Bomb Arrangements has been revised. 

 

6.3  Reporting of Accidents, Near Miss and Unacceptable Behaviour 

 

Accident reporting, including incidents of unacceptable behaviour and near miss reporting, help the 

council to identify any potential gaps in policies, training and controls ensuring the council can learn 

from and strengthen its responses to further reduce the chance of injury, ill health, and accidents. 

 

Accident numbers have seen a slight increase on last years reported numbers, but there has been a 

reduction in the number of days taken to report incidents, which was identified last year as an area 

that required improvement.  In 2019/20 there were a total of twenty-one reported accidents which 

exceeded the 10-day period set by the council for the reporting and investigation of accidents.  In 

2020/21 there were six accidents reported late.  This is a clear improvement, but the council must 

continue to drive this number to zero.  This statistic is one that the council has control over. 

 

This year has also seen a trend in the late reporting of unacceptable behaviour incidents.  As with any 

accident or near miss it is crucial that these incidents are reported swiftly to allow all necessary actions 

to protect the health and wellbeing of those working for or with SKDC.  The number of persons 

identified as requiring additional controls during interaction is low, but the type of unacceptable 

behaviour and threat being made has escalated.  It is possible that this is also linked to the frustrations 

that people in the community have faced over the last 12-months, however, this cannot be ignored 

and will be monitored. 

 

Accident and reporting statistics will remain a key performance indicator and area of focus. The 

Corporate Health and Safety team will continue to work with all areas to increase understanding on 

the importance and need for prompt and thorough reporting and investigation of all incidents as well 

as the reporting of near miss instances.  

298


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2021
	4 Updates from previous meeting
	5 Planning Service Review - Progress Report
	Annex 1 - South Kesteven Planning Review
	_Hlk50728376
	_Hlk50728385
	_Hlk50728430

	Annex 2 - Planning Review Action Plan

	6 2020 - 2021 Draft Statement of Accounts
	Appendix 1 - 2020 - 2021 Draft Statement of Accounts
	03403RT_STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS COVER 2021.pdf (p.1)
	Statement of Accounts 2020-21 - 13.07.2021 Final.pdf (p.2-116)
	03348RT_ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT.pdf (p.117-131)


	7 Internal Audit Follow Up Report
	Appendix A – Internal Audit Follow Up Report

	8 Internal Audit - Progress Report
	9 2020 - 2021 Treasury Management Annual Report
	Appendix A – 2020/21 Prudential and Treasury Indicators

	10 Outturn Position Report 2020 - 2021
	Appendix A - 2020-21 General Fund Revenue Summary
	Appendix B - 2020-21 General Fund Revenue Significant Variance Analysis
	Appendix C - 2020-21 General Fund Capital Programme Summary
	Appendix D - 2020-21 Budget Carry Forwards General Fund
	Appendix E - 2020-21 Reserves - General Fund
	Appendix F - 2020-21 Housing Revenue Account Summary
	Appendix G - 2020-21 HRA Capital Programme Summary
	Appendix H - 2020-21 Budget Carry Forwards - HRA
	Appendix I - 2020-21 Reserves - HRA

	11 Health and Safety Annual Report 2020 - 2021
	Appendix A - Health and Safety Annual Report 2020/21




